
 
 
 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 
 
 
 
 

IDAHO TRANSPORTATION BOARD 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

February 21, 2019 
 



*All listed times are estimates only. The Board reserves the right to move agenda items and adjust the time schedule.
The meeting is open to the public, except for the executive session.

A G E N D A 

Regular Meeting of the 
Idaho Transportation Board 

  February 21, 2019 
Idaho Transportation Department 

Auditorium 
3311 West State Street 

Boise, Idaho 

KEY: 
ADM = Administration OP = Operations 
CD = Chief Deputy         

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 8:00 

2. SAFETY/SECURITY SHARE: Randy Danner, Employee Safety & Risk Mgr.

Action Items 3. ELECTION OF VICE CHAIRMAN 

4. BOARD MINUTES – January 17, 2019 .......................................................4  8:05 

5. BOARD MEETING DATES ........................................................................15 
March 21, 2019 – Boise June 19-20 – District 6 
April 17-18, 2019 – District 2  July 17-18 – District ___ 
May 15-16, 2019 – District 5  August 21-22 – District ___ 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR ..............................................................................16 
OP ___ Revisions to Administrative Policy 5070 All-Terrain Vehicle, Utility  

 Type Vehicle, Specialty Off-Highway Vehicle, Motorbike and 
Snowmobile Travel and Crossing on the State Highways ..........................17 

OP ___ Consultant agreements ....................................................................................21 
OP ___ Keller Associates term agreement extension, District 6 ..................................30 
OP ___ Contracts for award .........................................................................................31 

Information Items 
7. INFORMATIONAL CALENDAR

OP ___ Contract award information and current advertisements ................................42 
OP ___ Professional services agreements and term agreement work tasks report .......46 
OP ___ I-90, Milepost 49 temporary repair .................................................................51A
ADM ___ Non-construction professional service contracts issued ..................................52 
ADM ___ Annual report on status of state-owned dwellings ..........................................53 

1



 
 

*All listed times are estimates only. The Board reserves the right to move agenda items and adjust the time schedule. 
The meeting is open to the public, except for the executive session. 
 

February 21, 2019 
Page 2 of 3 
 
                                February 21, 2019                                               Page      Time* 
                    Idaho Transportation Department                                       # 

3311 West State Street 
Boise, Idaho 

 
 
    8. DIRECTOR’S MONTHLY REPORT ON ACTIVITIES                                  8:10 
 
   9. LEGISLATIVE REPORT:  Governmental Affairs Manager McCarty                 8:50 
 
   10. AGENDA ITEMS 
Information Item 
OP   ___ Local Highway Rural Investment Program annual report ...............................56 9:05 
Crider/Kral 
 
Action Items 
OP   ___ 2019 Children Pedestrian Safety Program ......................................................64 9:25 
Rindlisbacher/Miles   (Resolution on page 65) 
 
OP   ___ Draft Long-Range Transportation Plan and approval for public comment .....68 9:35 
Kanownik  
 
    11. BREAK                                                                                                                    9:55 
 
   12. AGENDA ITEMS, continued 
Action Items 
OP   ___ 129,000 pound trucking requests – Districts 3 and 4 ......................................269 10:15 
Marker      (Resolution on page 306) 
 
ADM  ___ Aeronautics’ facility lease agreement .............................................................307 10:30 
Pirc       (Resolution on page 354) 
 
Information Items 
ADM  ___ State FY19 financial statements ......................................................................355 10:40 
Tolman 
 
ADM  ___ Monthly report of federal formula program funding through January ............377 10:55 
Drake 
 
CD   ___ Overview on Emergency Management Program ............................................379 11:05 
Murphy 
 

2



 
 

*All listed times are estimates only. The Board reserves the right to move agenda items and adjust the time schedule. 
The meeting is open to the public, except for the executive session. 
 

 
February 21, 2019 
Page 3 of 3 
 
                                February 21, 2019                                               Page      Time* 
                    Idaho Transportation Department                                       # 

3311 West State Street 
Boise, Idaho 

 
Action Items 
   13. EXECUTIVE SESSION (DMV conference room)                                        11:20 
   PERSONNEL ISSUES [SECTION 74-206(a), (b)] 
     LEGAL ISSUES [SECTION 74-206(c), (d), (f)] 
 
 
   14. ADJOURNMENT (estimated time)                                                                         12:00 
 
 
 
 

3



PREVIEW 

January 17, 2019 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE IDAHO TRANSPORTATION BOARD 
 
 

January 17, 2019 
 
 The Idaho Transportation Board convened at 8:00 AM on Thursday, January 17, 2019 at 
the Idaho Transportation Department in Boise, Idaho. The following principals were present: 
 Jerry Whitehead, Chairman 
 Jim Coleman, Vice Chairman – District 1 
 Janice B. Vassar, Member – District 2 
 Julie DeLorenzo, Member – District 3 
 Jim Kempton, Member – District 4 
 Dwight Horsch, Member – District 5 
 Brian Ness, Director 
 Larry Allen, Lead Deputy Attorney General 

Sue S. Higgins, Executive Assistant and Secretary to the Board 
 
 Safety and Security Shares. Bill Kotowski with the Office of Highway Safety reported on 
concerns with drowsy driving, which is especially prevalent between midnight and 6 AM. He 
encouraged motorists to get a good night’s sleep and ensure they’re well rested before driving. 
He also emphasized the importance of being vigilant with electronics, like the internet and 
emails, and personal information. Especially during tax season, scammers are trying to access 
and steal personal information. 
 
 Chairman Whitehead thanked Mr. Kotowski for the messages. 
 

Board Minutes. Vice Chairman Coleman made a motion to approve the minutes of the 
regular Board meeting held on December 13, 2018 as submitted. Member Vassar seconded the 
motion and it passed unopposed. 
 
 Consent Items. There were several questions on consent items, including the two requests 
to extend Keller Associates’ agreements. Chief Operations Officer (COO) Travis McGrath said 
there is one term agreement for two different projects. Regarding a term agreement exceeding 
$620,000, he said the project scope may not have been well defined at the start of the project, 
resulting in the consultant’s tasks accumulating. On the contract awards, COO McGrath said 
some bids on bridge projects have been coming in below the engineer’s estimate while others 
have exceeded the engineer’s estimate. He does not know if the recently-imposed federal tariffs 
are affecting the bid prices. 
 

Vice Chairman Coleman made a motion, seconded by Member Vassar, and passed 
unopposed, to approve the following resolution: 
RES. NO.   WHEREAS, consent calendar items are to be routine, non-controversial, self- 
ITB19-01 explanatory items that can be approved in one motion; and 
 

WHEREAS, Idaho Transportation Board members have the prerogative to 
remove items from the consent calendar for questions or discussion. 

4



PREVIEW 

January 17, 2019 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board approves the revisions to 
Board Policy 4052 Official Travel by Department Personnel and Administrative 
Policy 5052 Official Travel by Department Personnel; the removal of the Hospital 
Drive Sidewalk, Blaine County project from the Program; the Keller Associates 
term agreement extension, District 4; the Keller Associates term agreement 
extension, District 6; the contracts for award; and the contracts for rejection. 

 
1) Board Policy 4052 Official Travel by Department Personnel and Administrative Policy 

5052 Official Travel by Department Personnel. The policies were revised to clarify when travel 
is considered in-state versus out-of-state. The changes are consistent with and meet the State 
Board of Examiners’ State Travel Policy. 
 

2) Remove Hospital Drive Sidewalk, Blaine County from the Program. The project 
sponsor, Blaine County, experienced difficulties with its Transportation Alternative Rural 
project. It requests withdrawing the project and repaying the federal funds used to design the 
project. The FY17 Hospital Drive Sidewalk project, key #18689, is programmed for $119,000. 

 
3) Keller Associates Term Agreement Extension, District 4. Staff requests extending the 

consultant term agreement threshold of $1,500,000 with Keller Associates for the US-93, 200 
South Road project in Jerome County, key #18737. The consultant was selected from the pre-
qualified term agreement list in 2015. During the June 2018 Board meeting, approval was 
granted to exceed the work task agreement threshold of $500,000 for an additional $121,000 of 
work needed on this project. The agreement for that work was not written and now Keller 
Associates doesn’t have sufficient space within its term agreement limit of $1,500,000. If this 
extension is approved, it will bring the amount of the agreements to $1,595,500. 

 
4) Keller Associates Term Agreement Extension, District 6. Staff requests approval to 

exceed the consultant term agreement limit of $1,500,000 with Keller Associates for the SH-33 
and US-93 mill and inlay pavement preservation project, key #20758. The consultant was 
selected from the pre-qualified term agreement list in June 2018 to perform Construction 
Engineering and Inspection. The project required a change order that added time to the 
construction contract. The estimated cost for the additional inspection and project management is 
about $11,000, which would bring the total agreement amount on this project to $146,000. If the 
two term agreement extensions are approved today, the amount of agreements written with 
Keller Associates under the term agreement will total $1,606,750. 

 
5) Contracts for Award. The low bids on the following projects were more than ten 

percent over the engineer’s estimate, requiring justification and Board approval. The Removal of 
Bridge, Prestressed Deck Bulb Tee Girder, Provide and Drive Steel H Pile, Retaining Wall - 
Permanent Soldier Pile, Temporary Shoring – Soldier Pile Retaining Walls, and Mobilization 
items showed the largest variance between the engineer’s estimate and low bid on key #13872 – 
Pine Creek Road Bridge. Bridge Removal is difficult to estimate, as it is highly dependent on the 
contractor’s experience, equipment, and staging plan. This bridge has to be removed in two 
stages. Recent bid openings suggest that prestressed girders on northern Idaho projects are 
costing more than the statewide average. It appears that a combination of pre-drilling, staging, 
and low efficiency resulted in higher unit prices for the Provide and Drive Steel H-Pile, 

5



PREVIEW 

January 17, 2019 

Retaining Wall – Permanent Soldier Pile, and Temporary Shoring items. The Mobilization 
variance is due to the difference in base bid. The Local Highway Technical Assistance Council 
(LHTAC) and Shoshone County believe the bid is reasonable and savings from re-bidding the 
project are unlikely, so recommend awarding the project. Low bidder: C. L. Heilman Company 
Inc. - $2,648,357. 
 

The major differences between the engineer’s estimate and low bid on key #13055 – 10th 
Avenue Bridge, Caldwell, were in the Removal of Bridge and Special Bridge – Dewatering 
Foundations items. The higher bids for the Removal of Bridge can be attributed to uncertainty of 
the substructure removal and potential difficulty in segmenting the existing railcar superstructure 
for removal. The engineer’s estimate based the Special Bridge - Dewatering Foundations unit 
price on the use of bladders or other means to block the water. The low bid prices indicate that 
the contractors anticipate it will be necessary to drive cofferedam sheeting to facilitate the 
construction below the static water level. The timing of the work may also have been a factor in 
the higher bid. LHTAC and the City of Caldwell believe the low bid is reasonable and do not 
believe significant savings could be realized if the project is re-advertised. They recommend 
awarding the project. Low bidder: Knife River Corporation – Mountain West - $2,224,224. 

 
The cost of the Urban Concrete Pavement Pay Item accounted for the vast majority of 

difference between the engineer’s estimate and low bid on key #12009 – US-12, 18th Street to 
Clearwater River Bridge, District 2. Staff did not have a similar sized recent concrete paving 
project in the area to compare the unit price of concrete paving to. Staff recommends awarding 
the project because there was good competition with seven bidders, and it does not believe re-
advertising the project would result in a savings. Low bidder: Western Construction of Lewiston 
Inc. - $7,580,422. 
 

The major variance between the engineer’s estimate and low bid on key #18681 – I-90, 
FY19 District 1 Bridge Repairs were in the Wedge Milling, Concrete Bridge Deck Removal 
Class A, Special Bridge Delaware Rail Retrofit, and Painting Piles items. District 1 believes the 
small quantities and/or multiple location logistics contributed to the higher bids. It does not 
believe re-bidding the project would result in significantly lower bids, and recommends 
awarding the project. Low bidder: C. L. Heilman Company Inc. - $1,966,069.  

 
Staff does not believe the engineer’s estimate adequately accounted for the Mobilization 

costs and the Traffic Control items in key #19558 – SH-11, Greer Bridge Repairs, District 2. The 
variety in the scope of work for the project necessitates a number of separate mobilizations. The 
relatively small contract quantities and the location of the project were also presumably 
responsible for the higher bids on the Concrete and Hot Mix Asphalt items. Staff did not 
discover any obvious errors or oversights in the plan set. It does not believe rejecting the bid and 
re-advertising would result in a savings, so recommends awarding the contract. Low bidder: 
Braun-Jensen Inc. - $1,854,000. 
 
  6) Contracts for Rejection. The low bids on the following projects were more than ten 
percent over the engineer’s estimate, requiring justification and Board approval to reject them. 
The biggest variance in the engineer’s estimate and low bid on key #19086 – US-30,  North 400 
West to Parke Avenue, Burley, District 4, were in the Excavation, ¾” Aggregate Type B for 

6



PREVIEW 

January 17, 2019 

Aggregate, Cement Recycled Asphalt Base Stabilization, Pulverize Existing Surface, and 
SuperPave Special-5 items. The plans and contract are designed using a four phased construction 
sequence. Staff believes the phasing created scheduling problems for contractors because it will 
take the full construction season to complete the work. Staff recommends rejecting the bid and 
changing the plans and specifications to reduce construction costs. Low bidder:  Kloepfer Inc. - 
$11,696,757. 
 

Key #20020 – Main Street Pedestrian Improvements, Lewiston, was originally bid in 
October 2018 with a single submitted bid; however, that bid was deemed non-responsive. The 
current bidding climate is seeing higher prices for items, presumably because of the large 
number of available projects and recently awarded projects. The City of Lewiston does not have 
the funds to support the higher bid. The sponsor and LHTAC recommend rejecting the bid and 
reducing the scope of work to re-advertise the project. Low bidder: Knife River Corporation – 
Mountain West - $370,370. 
 
 Board Meeting Dates. The following meeting dates and locations were scheduled: 
 February 21, 2019 – Boise  
 March 21, 2019 – Boise 
 April 17-18, 2019 – District 2  
 

Informational Items. 1) Contract Awards and Advertisements. Key #19709 – SH-44, I-84 
to Junction SH-55 North, District 3. Low bidder: Boswell Asphalt Paving Solutions Inc. - 
$2,017,085. 
 
 Key #18798 – US-30, Salmon Falls Creek Bridge, District 4. Low bidder: Record Steel & 
Construction Inc. DBA RSCI - $3,992,897. 
 
 Key #13951 – U-95, Weiser River Railroad Bridge, District 3. Low bidder: Knife River 
Corporation – Mountain West - $5,778,611. 
 
 Key #19427 – US-95, Goff Bridge to Milepost 210 Slide, District 2. Low bidder: Knife 
River Corporation – Mountain West - $4,397,000. 
 
 Key #21838 – I-84, FY19 District 4 Interstate Striping. Low bidder: Innovative Marking 
Systems - $362,625. 
 
 Key #20797 – I-84, Karcher Overpass, Nampa, District 3. Low bidder: Concrete Placing 
Company Inc. – $4,170,463. 
 
 Key #20096 – US-95, Moscow North City Limits to Viola, District 2. Low bidder: Poe 
Asphalt Paving Inc. $2,320,796. 
 

Key #13090 – I-86, Raft River Bridge Eastbound Westbound Lanes, District 4. Low 
bidder: Western Construction Inc. - $10,712,221. 
 

The list of projects currently being advertised was provided. 

7



PREVIEW 

January 17, 2019 

 2) Professional Services Agreements and Term Agreement Work Tasks Report. From 
November 24 through December 27, 21 new professional services agreements and work tasks 
were processed, totaling $3,811,258. Two supplemental agreements to existing professional 
services agreements were processed during this period in the amount of $29,516. 
 
 3) Semi-Annual Report on Administrative Settlements for Right-of-Way Acquisitions. 
From July 1 through December 31, 2018, staff processed 56 parcels. Of those, 17 parcels 
included an administrative settlement.  
  

4) State FY19 Financial Statements. Revenues to the State Highway Account from all 
state sources were ahead of projections by 2.6%. Total receipts from the Highway Distribution 
Account were 1.6% or $1.4 million more than forecast. State revenues to the State Aeronautics 
Fund were ahead of projections by 26%, or $330,000. Expenditures were within planned 
budgets. Personnel costs had savings of $5.8 million or 10% due to reserves for horizontal career 
path increases, vacancies, and timing between a position becoming vacant and being filled. 
Contract construction cash expenditures were $255.7 million for FY19 year-to-date. 

 
The balance of the long term investments at the end of November was $136 million after 

redeeming $30 million in October to meet cash flow requirements. These funds are obligated 
against construction projects and encumbrances. The long term investments plus the cash 
balance of $58.4 million were $53 million less than at the end of June. Expenditures in the 
Strategic Initiatives Program Fund through November were $8.4 million. Deposits into the 
Transportation Expansion and Congestion Mitigation Fund were $7.3 million, or 5% ahead of 
forecast.  
 

5) Monthly Reporting of Federal Formula Program Funding through December. Idaho 
received obligation authority of $64.7 million through December 7 via a continuing resolution. 
This corresponds to $65 million with match after a reduction for prorated indirect costs. This 
includes $11.7 million of Highway Infrastructure General Funds carried over from last year. The 
President signed a Continuing Resolution through December 21, but Idaho has not received 
additional obligation authority. Idaho has received apportionments via notices through December 
3, 2018 of $320.4 million, which includes Redistribution of Certain Authorized Funds and $11.7 
million of Highway Infrastructure General Funds carried over from last year. Obligation 
authority is 20.2% of apportionments. Of the $65 million allotted, $27.5 million remains. 

 
 6) Non-Construction Professional Service Contracts Issued by Business and Support 
Management (BSM). The BSM Section did not execute any professional service agreements 
during the previous month. 
 
 Director’s Monthly Report on Activities. Director Ness summarized some of Governor 
Little’s ITD budget recommendations, which the Joint Finance and Appropriations Committee 
will consider on February 1. A joint germane committee presentation is scheduled on January 24. 
He mentioned innovations, awards, and commendations received on the Department’s excellent 
customer service. 
 

The entire Director’s Board Report can be viewed at http://itd.idaho.gov/Board. 

8

http://itd.idaho.gov/Board


PREVIEW 

January 17, 2019 

 Chairman Whitehead thanked Director Ness for the report. 
 
 Annual Dealer Advisory Board (DAB) Report. DAB Chairman Grant Petersen 
commented on the extensive changes occurring at the Division of Motor Vehicles, particularly 
with the modernization project. The titling process is receiving a state-of-the-art system, which 
will eliminate the manual process. The DAB worked with staff on this system, particularly to 
address branding issues.  
 
 Some of the accomplishments include a new online tool for title applications, stronger 
relationships with the counties, quality assurance/quality control enhancements were 
incorporated to the title filing process, motor vehicle investigators focused on dealer 
enforcement, and the Idaho Consumer Asset Recovery Fund has a balance of approximately $1.8 
million. DAB Chairman Petersen said work will continue with ITD on implementing an 
electronic process for titles, procuring new software to identify unlicensed dealers, and 
improving curriculum for continuing education. Discussions are also occurring on improving the 
structure of the Idaho Consumer Asset Recovery Board. 
 
 Chairman Whitehead thanked DAB Chairman Petersen for the report and his service. 
 
 Excellence in Transportation Awards. Manager, Office of Communication Vincent 
Trimboli presented the winners of the Excellence in Transportation Awards. In addition to 
project awards for construction, environmental stewardship, maintenance and operations, public 
participation, and transportation planning, there were three personnel categories: Engineer of the 
Year – District 4 Traffic Engineer Bruce Christensen; Professional of the Year – Idaho 
Transportation Improvement Program Program Manager Randy Gill; and Career Achievement 
Award – District 5 Engineer Ed Bala. 
 
 The Board members congratulated all of the recipients for their achievements and 
thanked them for their valuable contributions. 
 
 Delegation – Public Utilities Commissioner Paul Kjellander. Commissioner Kjellander 
provided history on public utilities and their access to transportation departments’ rights-of-way. 
The Federal Communications Commission has broad authority, and has been working on 
broadband issues, including serving rural areas. 5G, the next generation of wireless technology, 
requires an attachment to poles lower to the ground at approximately ¼-mile intervals. These 
boxes will need a power source and fiber optic and every provider will need its own box. 
 
 The Board members thanked Commissioner Kjellander for the informative presentation. 
Member Kempton expressed some concerns regarding ITD’s right-of-way and believes it is 
important for the two agencies to communicate on fiber optics and emerging technologies. Vice 
Chairman Coleman added that ITD is to allow public utilities access to its right-of-way, but he 
questioned if some of these companies are public utilities and if we have a mechanism to 
determine that. Deputy Attorney General Allen confirmed that Idaho statute requires that ITD 
allow public utilities to use its right-of-way, but the definition of a public utility is broad. 
 

9



PREVIEW 

January 17, 2019 

 Delegation – Humboldt County, Nevada. Humboldt County Commissioner Jim French 
provided background on efforts to establish a new I-11 corridor as an alternate north-south route 
from Mexico to Canada between I-15 and I-5. He believes US-95 is a viable alternative. 
 
 Humboldt County Administrator Dave Mendiola said the Nevada Department of 
Transportation approved Segment A, from Las Vegas to Tonopah. Segment B from Tonopah to 
I-80 is being studied and the final report is due in September. Segment C from I-80 north is 
under consideration. He elaborated on the benefits of US-95. Nevada’s intent was to connect Las 
Vegas and Reno. With the growth the Treasure Valley is experiencing, he believes it is important 
to connect it via an I-11 route. The US-95 corridor is more centrally located between I-15 and I-5 
and has seen significant growth in vehicle miles traveled, especially in the last three years. He 
encouraged the Board to engage with the Nevada Department of Transportation on the feasibility 
of the US-95 corridor. 
 
 Chairman Whitehead expressed concern with the lack of uniformity for commercial 
motor vehicles, as Oregon does not allow 129,000 pound vehicles. Administrator Mendiola 
acknowledged that concern and said he has had some discussions with Oregon officials.  
 
 Member Kempton referenced the congestion on I-5. He believes the US-93 route 
provides better options, as motorists could travel east to I-15 or west on I-84 when they arrive at 
I-84. Also, I-15 appears to be a more viable route to address future freight traffic. 
 
 Chairman Whitehead thanked Messrs. French and Mendiola for the informative 
presentation. 
 
 Legislative Report. Joel Drake, Financial Manager – Financial Planning and Analysis, 
summarized the Governor’s appropriation request. Some of the changes from ITD’s submittal 
include increasing personnel costs for a three per cent change in employee compensation; 
postponing the construction of a new District 4 office building; eliminating or reducing some 
technology line items; and increasing contract construction by about $14 million as a result of 
some of these changes. 
 
 Governmental Affairs Manager Mollie McCarty said the Department’s rule changes are 
being reviewed. The surplus eliminator, or surplus funding from the General Fund, will sunset 
this year. Other issues that may arise that staff will be monitoring include the approval process to 
allow 129,000 pound truck routes on local roads, resources to issue drivers’ licenses, electric-
assisted vehicles, distracted driving, and truck registration fees. She added that the partial federal 
government shutdown is not impacting highway funding at this time; however, funding from the 
Federal Aviation Administration, Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration, National 
Highway Traffic Safety Administration, and Federal Transit Administration are impacting 
agencies that rely on those grants. 
 
 Chairman Whitehead thanked staff for the reports. 
 

10



PREVIEW 

January 17, 2019 

 Informal Luncheon with the Aeronautics Advisory Board (AAB). The Board members 
traveled to the Division of Aeronautics where they met informally with the AAB members 
during lunch. Both groups traveled to the Department of Transportation. 
 

Division of Aeronautics’ Annual Report. The AAB members reported on various aviation 
issues at the national and state level. The use of drones is continuing to escalate. Eastern Idaho is 
experiencing capacity issues, as there is a shortage of hangars and shops. Although the good 
economy has been positive for the corporate and charter businesses, companies need to increase 
salaries to retain pilots and mechanics. 
 

Aeronautics Administrator (AA) Mike Pape summarized the Division’s activities. Staff 
oversaw the $1 million airport aid program, updated the state airport system plan, and maintained 
the state’s 31 airstrips. The flight time of the King Air increased from 205.7 hours in FY17 to 
228.3 hours in FY18. He is proposing the Division take the lead on the use and oversight of 
drones, as ITD’s use of them increases. There were 27 aviation crashes in 2017 and 2 fatalities 
compared to 23 crashes and 2 fatalities in 2016. Discussions with the City of Boise on relocating 
Aeronautics’ facilities are underway. The Division purchased a new plane, a Kodiak, which will 
be instrumental in search and rescue operations, natural disaster reconnaissance, transporting 
state personnel, supporting ITD continuity of operations plan, maintaining the state’s 
backcountry airfields, and other missions critical to the state. 
 

AA Pape said some of the goals for 2019 are to maximize the funding for the public 
airports, work with the City of Boise on designing and constructing the new facility, continue the 
emphasis on safety, and incorporate the new aircraft into the pool. 
 

Chairman Whitehead thanked the AAB members and AA Pape for the report. 
 
 Amendment to Costco Sales Tax Anticipation Revenue (STAR) Agreement. District 3 
Engineering Manager (EM) Caleb Lakey summarized efforts with Costco to improve US-20/26 
from SH-16 to Linder Road in the Treasure Valley. Earlier this year, the Board approved 
entering into a STAR agreement, which allows the private entity to fund highway improvements 
and then seek reimbursement for qualifying expenses. Since then, staff realized that changes to 
the plans for the intersection of Black Cat Road and US-20/26 and to Black Cat Road now would 
better accommodate future traffic and address capacity issues. Those changes require an 
amendment to the original STAR agreement. 
 
 Member Vassar made a motion, seconded by Member DeLorenzo, and passed 
unanimously to approve the following resolution: 
RES. NO. WHEREAS, it is in the public's interest for the Idaho Transportation Department  
ITB19-02 to publish and accomplish a current, realistic, and fiscally constrained Capital 

Investment Program; and  
 

WHEREAS, it is the intent of the Idaho Transportation Board to effectively 
utilize all available federal, state, and private highway funding; and 
 

11



PREVIEW 

January 17, 2019 

WHEREAS, the safe and efficient movement of people and goods on US-20/26 is 
both nationally and regionally significant to commerce; and 

 
WHEREAS, Sales Tax Anticipation Revenue (STAR) legislation has been 
enacted by the Legislature which permits reimbursement, within established 
limits, of private funding of highway improvement construction projects with 
future sales tax reimbursements by the State; and 

 
WHEREAS, Costco Corporation has already entered in a STAR agreement (dated 
30 July 2018) to finance in its entirety the design, right-of-way acquisition, and 
construction for the improvements to US-20/26 (Chinden Road); and 

 
WHEREAS, the project is to be designed and constructed beginning in FY19 
under the STAR Agreement; and 

 
WHEREAS, adjustments to the intersection of Black Cat Road and US-20/26 are 
in the interest of all parties and will reduce the amount of right-of-way needed for 
construction while still maintaining the original intent of the agreement; and 

 
WHEREAS, any amendments to the agreement with the Department will be 
reviewed by the Idaho Transportation Board. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Idaho Transportation Board 
approves the amended STAR Agreement between the Department and Costco 
Corporation for the improvement of US-20/26, Linder Road to SH-16. 

 
 STAR Agreement for US-20/26 (Linder Road to Locust Grove). District 3 has also been 
working with High Desert Development Inc. on a proposed project along US-20/26, according to 
EM Lakey. The developer is pursuing the STAR option for the estimated $14.3 million in 
improvements on the state system between Linder Road and Locust Grove. Work would also be 
done on the local system. The improvements to US-20/26 include widening the highway from 
two lanes to four travel lanes and upgrading intersections. The expansion is programmed in 
FY21 in the current Program. EM Lakey said the District will have oversight of the project, 
which will be in accordance with all applicable federal and state standards and requirements.  
 
 Member DeLorenzo made a motion, seconded by Member Vassar, and passed 
unopposed, to approve the following resolution: 
RES. NO. WHEREAS, it is in the public's interest for the Idaho Transportation Department  
ITB19-03 to publish and accomplish a current, realistic, and fiscally constrained Capital 

Investment Program; and  
 

WHEREAS, it is the intent of the Idaho Transportation Board to effectively 
utilize all available federal, state, and private highway funding; and 
 
WHEREAS, the safe and efficient movement of people and goods on US-20/26 is 
both nationally and regionally significant to commerce; and 

12



PREVIEW 

January 17, 2019 

WHEREAS, Sales Tax Anticipation Revenue (STAR) legislation has been 
enacted by the Legislature which permits reimbursement, within established 
limits, of private funding of highway improvement construction projects with 
future sales tax reimbursements by the State; and 

 
WHEREAS, discussion with High Desert Development Inc. indicates a 
willingness on its part to utilize such legislative provisions to finance in its 
entirety the design, right-of-way acquisition, and construction for the 
improvement to US-20/26 (Chinden Road); and 

 
WHEREAS, any such agreements with the Department will be reviewed by the 
Board; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Department has already committed in the approved 2018 
Statewide Transportation Improvement Program to build these improvements in 
FY21; and 

 
WHEREAS, the project is to be designed and constructed beginning in FY20 
under the STAR Agreement. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Idaho Transportation Board 
approves the STAR Agreement between the Department and High Desert 
Development Inc. for the improvement of US-20/26, Linder Road to Locust 
Grove. 

 
 Chairman Whitehead thanked EM Lakey for the presentations and his efforts on these 
important projects. 
 

Highway Safety Funding. Highway Safety Manager (HSM) John Tomlinson said that 
more than 90% of motor vehicle crashes are caused by human error. Last year the legislature 
approved $500,000 in state funds for behavioral safety. Over $100,000 has been committed to 
the Alive at 25 Program, including training for the instructors and materials for the classes, 
which are free to participants. The rest of the state funds are being directed to the engaged 
driving campaign. Funds are being used for activities such as outreach, development of the 
SHIFT campaign, development of the website, and paid advertising. 
 
 Chairman Whitehead thanked HSM Tomlinson for the report. 
 

Biennial Report on Inventory of Surplus Property. Right of Way Manager (RWM) Justin 
Pond said staff is to report on the amount and location of surplus properties biennially. The 
report is to identify the current inventory of surplus properties and information from the disposal 
of surplus properties that occurred during the reporting period. This will be the first report since 
the policy went into effect. During the period of January 1, 2017 through December 31, 2018, 
seven surplus properties were disposed. The properties consisted of approximately 12.4 acres and 
sales proceeds totaled $457,700. The current inventory contains 49 properties, including some 
that are being leased. The size of some properties is not known. Parcels need to be surveyed in 

13



PREVIEW 

January 17, 2019 

preparation for sale or disposal; however, staff does not appraise the surplus property until a 
party expresses interest in it. 
 
 Chairman Whitehead thanked RWM Pond for the information. 
 

Executive Session on Legal Issues. Member DeLorenzo made a motion to meet in 
executive session at 2:53 PM to discuss legal issues as authorized in Idaho Code Section 74-206, 
(d) and (f). Member Vassar seconded the motion and it passed 5-0 by individual roll call vote. 
 

The discussions on legal matters related to operations.  
 

 The Board came out of executive session at 3:45 PM. 
 
 
 WHEREUPON, the Idaho Transportation Board’s regular monthly meeting adjourned at 
3:45 PM. 
 
 

   _________________________________ 
JERRY WHITEHEAD, Chairman 

Idaho Transportation Board 
Read and Approved 
_____________, 2019 
_____________, Idaho 

14



15



 
 

 
IDAHO TRANSPORTATION BOARD 

 
RESOLUTION FOR CONSENT ITEMS 

 
Pages 17-41 

 
 
 
 

RES. NO.   WHEREAS, consent calendar items are to be routine, non-controversial, self- 
ITB19-04 explanatory items that can be approved in one motion; and 
 

WHEREAS, Idaho Transportation Board members have the prerogative to 
remove items from the consent calendar for questions or discussion. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board approves the revisions to 
Administrative Policy 5070 All-Terrain Vehicle, Utility Type Vehicle, Specialty 
Off-Highway Vehicle, Motorbike and Snowmobile Travel and Crossing on the 
State Highways; consultant agreements; the Keller Associates term agreement 
extension, District 6; and the contracts for award. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

16



Board Agenda Item ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13)

Page 1 of 1 

Meeting Date February 21, 2019 

Consent Item Information Item Amount of Presentation Time Needed   

Presenter's Name Presenter's Title Initials Reviewed By 

LSS Kevin Sablan Design/Traffic Engineer ks 
Preparer's Name Preparer's Title Initials 

Kevin Sablan Design/Traffic Engineer 

Subject 

Update to Admin. Policy 5070 - All-Terrain Vehicle, Utility Type Vehicle, Specialty Off-Highway Vehicle, 
Motorbike and Snowmobile Travel and Crossing on the State Highways 
Key Number District Route Number 

Background Information 

A recent revision to Idaho Statute Title 49-426(4) necessitates an update to Admin. Policy 5070 to 
match updated Idaho Code travel allowances on state highways for ATVs, UTVs, SOHVs, and 
motorbikes.  The revised law allows these vehicles to travel, within cities and one-mile beyond city limits, 
on non-full access-controlled state highways where the speed limit is 45 mph or less.  Outside of these 
limits, authority to control travel of these vehicles lies with the Idaho Transportation Board.  Additionally, 
the revised Code allows these vehicles to cross non-full access-controlled highways at public road 
intersections regardless of the speed limit or municipal boundaries. 

In November 2018, the ITD Board was presented with an updated policy addressing the revisions to 
Idaho Code described above, which the Board approved.  Prior to formally implementing the updated 
policy, it was determined that additional edits were needed; requiring a second review and approval by 
the Board.  

Recommendations 
Approve update to Admin. Policy 5070 

Board Action 

 Approved  Deferred 

 Other 

17



1 
2 

3 
ADMINISTRATIVE  POLICY 5070 4 

Page 1 of 1 5 
6 

ALL-TERRAIN  VEHICLES,  UTILITY TYPE VEHICLES,  SPECIALTY OFF-HIGHWAY  VEHICLES, 7 
MOTORBIKE AND SNOWMOBILE TRAVEL AND CROSSING  ON THE STATE HIGHWAYS 8 

9 
Purpose 10 
The purpose of this policy is to implement Board Policy 4070 authorizing the Director to designate sections of 11 
state highways over upon which certain vehicles may travel upon and cross. 12 

13 
Legal Authority 14 

• Idaho Code 49-426(4) - The Board has the authority to regulate travel on upon and crossings of state15 
highways by certain types of vehicles registered under Idaho CodeTitle 67, rather than Title 49.16 

• Idaho Code 67-7109( l ) - Snowmobiles are prohibited  from crossing controlled access highways.17 
• Idaho Code 67-7109(4) - Snowmobiles may be operated on that portion of a highway system or public18 

roadway right-of- way not maintained or utilized for operation of conventional motor vehicles.19 
20 

Idaho Code assigns authority to the Idaho Transportation Board to designate sections of highways where all-21 
terrain vehicles (ATVs), utility type vehicles (UTVs), specialty off-highway vehicles (SOHVs), and motorbikes 22 
may travel upon and cross. The decision-making authority has been assigned to the Director by Board Policy 23 
4070. 24 

25 
Title 49 provides the following: 26 

1) Within city limits, and within one mile of city limits, ATVs, UTVs, SOHVs, and motorbikes can travel27 
on non-full access-controlled state highways if the speed limit is 45 mph or less, unless restricted by the28 
Idaho Transportation Board.  The Idaho Transportation Board can restrict ATV, UTV, SOHV, and29 
motorbike use on state highways within city limits and within one mile of city limits.30 

2) Outside city limits (except for one mile beyond city limits), the Idaho Transportation Board may31 
designate sections of state highways to allow ATV, UTV, SOHV, and motorbike use.32 

3) ATVs, UTVs, SOHVs, and motorbikes can are permitted to cross non-full access-controlled highways at33 
public road intersections within and outside of city limits and other locations permitted by the Idaho34 
Transportation Board.35 

36 
Any designation to allow travelling travel upon non-full-access-controlled state highways and crossing at non-37 
public road intersections, such as designated trail crossings, shall be supported by an engineering investigation 38 
and evaluation. The Division of Highways shall manage and track approved ATV, UTV, SOHV, and motorbike 39 
crossing points at non-public road intersections on non-full access-controlled highways as shall be managed 40 
with an encroachment permit in accordance with IDAPA 39.03.42 – Rules Governing Highway Right-of-Way 41 
Encroachments on State Rights-of-Way. 42 

43 
The Division of Highways shall establish guidelines and considerations when evaluating areas on the State 44 
Highway system to allow crossings by ATVs, UTVs, SOHVs, and motorbikes.  45 
Responsibility to administer the approval, management, and tracking of these areas is hereby assigned to the 46 
Chief Operations Officer. 47 

48 
Snowmobiles are prohibited from crossing controlled access highways. 49 

50 

IDAHO TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT 
P.O. Box 7129  •  Boise, ID  83707-1129 

(208) 334-8000  •  itd.idaho.gov

18



______________________________________ Date ________________________ 51 
Brian W. Ness 52 
Director 53 

19



ADMINISTRATIVE  POLICY 5070 
Page 1 of 1 

ALL-TERRAIN  VEHICLES,  UTILITY TYPE VEHICLES,  SPECIALTY OFF-HIGHWAY  VEHICLES, 
MOTORBIKE AND SNOWMOBILE TRAVEL AND CROSSING  ON THE STATE HIGHWAYS 

Purpose 
The purpose of this policy is to implement Board Policy 4070 authorizing the Director to designate sections of 
state highways upon which certain vehicles may travel and cross. 

Legal Authority 
• Idaho Code 49-426(4) - The Board has the authority to regulate travel upon and crossings of state

highways by certain types of vehicles registered under Idaho Code.
• Idaho Code 67-7109( l ) - Snowmobiles are prohibited  from crossing controlled access highways.
• Idaho Code 67-7109(4) - Snowmobiles may be operated on that portion of a highway system or

roadway not maintained or utilized for operation of conventional motor vehicles.

Idaho Code assigns authority to the Idaho Transportation Board to designate sections of highways where all-
terrain vehicles (ATVs), utility type vehicles (UTVs), specialty off-highway vehicles (SOHVs), and motorbikes 
may travel upon and cross. The decision-making authority has been assigned to the Director by Board Policy 
4070. 

Title 49 provides the following: 
1) Within city limits, and within one mile of city limits, ATVs, UTVs, SOHVs, and motorbikes can travel

on non-full access-controlled state highways if the speed limit is 45 mph or less, unless restricted by the
Idaho Transportation Board.

2) Outside city limits (except for one mile beyond city limits), the Idaho Transportation Board may
designate sections of state highways to allow ATV, UTV, SOHV, and motorbike use.

3) ATVs, UTVs, SOHVs, and motorbikes are permitted to cross non-full access-controlled highways at
public road intersections within and outside of city limits and other locations permitted by the Idaho
Transportation Board.

Any designation to allow travel upon non-full-access-controlled state highways and crossing at non-public road 
intersections, such as designated trail crossings, shall be supported by an engineering investigation and 
evaluation. The Division of Highways shall manage and track approved ATV, UTV, SOHV, and motorbike 
crossing points at non-public road intersections on non-full access-controlled highways as an encroachment 
permit in accordance with IDAPA 39.03.42 – Rules Governing Highway Right-of-Way Encroachments on State 
Rights-of-Way. 

The Division of Highways shall establish guidelines and considerations when evaluating areas on the State 
Highway system to allow crossings by ATVs, UTVs, SOHVs, and motorbikes.  Responsibility to administer the 
approval, management, and tracking of these areas is hereby assigned to the Chief Operations Officer. 

______________________________________ Date ________________________ 
Brian W. Ness 
Director 

IDAHO TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT 
P.O. Box 7129  •  Boise, ID  83707-1129 

(208) 334-8000  •  itd.idaho.gov

20



Board Agenda Item ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13)

Page 1 of 2 

Meeting Date  February 21, 2019 

Consent Item Information Item Amount of Presentation Time Needed 

Presenter's Name Presenter's Title Initials Reviewed By 

Monica Crider, P.E. Contracting Services Engineer MC 
Preparer's Name Preparer's Title Initials 

Mike Cram Project Manager PMWC 

Subject 
REQUEST TO APPROVE CONSULTANT AGREEMENTS 
Key Number District Route Number 

N/A N/A N/A 

Background Information 

Board Policy 4001 delegates authority to approve routine engineering agreements of up to $1M to 
the Director or another designee. Any agreements larger than this amount must be approved by 
the Board. The purpose of this Board item is to request approval for agreements larger than $1M 
on the same project 

The size of the agreements listed was anticipated because of the complexity and magnitude of the 
associated construction projects.  In many instances, the original intent is to solicit the consultant 
services in phases allowing for greater flexibility of the Department, limited liability, and better 
design after additional information is obtained. In other cases, such as for Construction 
Engineering and Inspection services one single agreement over $1 M may be issued allowing for 
continuity of the inspector.  In all cases, any agreement over $500,000 is awarded through the 
Request for Proposal (RFP) process which is open to all interested firms. 

Recommendations 
Approve: (see attached sheets for additional detail) 

• KN 12098 for supplemental design services with CH2M Hill (Jacobs) for a total of $1.002 M

• KN 22154 for design and engineer of record services with David Evans & Associates for a
total of $3.500 M

• KN 19431 for construction engineering and inspection (CE&I) services with HDR
Engineering for $1.745 M

• KNs 20486/20581/20435 for design and engineer of record services with J-U-B Engineers
for $2.000 M

• KN 19052 for construction engineering and inspection (CE&I) services with HMH Engineering
for a total of $1.300 M

• KN 01004 for supplemental design services with Forsgren for a total of $1.976 M.

LSS

21



Board Agenda Item ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13)

Page 2 of 2 

• KN 20788 for preliminary engineering services with Jacobs Engineers for a total of $8.000 M

Board Action 

 Approved  Deferred 

 Other 

22



Department Memorandum 
Idaho Transportation Department 

ITD 0500   (Rev. 07-17) 
itd.idaho.gov 

DATE: December 26, 2018 Program Number(s) A012(098) 

TO: Monica Crider, PE 
Contracting Services Engineer 

Key Number(s) 12098 

FROM: Scott Ellsworth, PE, PLS Program ID, County, Etc. Center St UPRR 
UPass, Pocatello 

RE: Request to increase professional services agreement amount to over $1,000,000 - CH2M 
Hill (Jacobs) 

The purpose of this project, administered by the LHTAC, is to improve safety and mobility at the UPRR 
bridge underpass on Center Street in Pocatello.   

During the design of the project, the materials reports identified existing concrete pavement below the 
asphalt pavement on Center Street under the UPRR bridge. The City of Pocatello would like to have options 
evaluated to potentially use the concrete pavement or remove it to help create additional vertical clearance 
under the bridge. This work was not intended in the original scope of work. A supplemental agreement of 
approximately $6,000 is required to perform this evaluation and provide payment rehabilitation alternatives 
which would bring the total agreement amount to over $1,000,000.   

A selection for the RFP for these services was made in August 2010.  CH2M Hill was selected to prepare 
plans and specifications for this project and the LHTAC negotiated a contract with the design firm.  The 
original intent was to complete this work in three phases: concept development and evaluation, preliminary 
design, and final design.  Three agreements for this work were written.  They total $995,900.  This 
supplemental agreement would bring the agreement total to $1,001,900. 

The purpose of this board item is to request approval to extend the existing professional services agreement 
amount on this project to an estimated $1.02M to cover complete design services  including the 
supplemental agreement  

23



Department Memorandum 
Idaho Transportation Department 

ITD 0500   (Rev. 07-17) 
itd.idaho.gov 

DATE: December 27, 2018 Program Number(s)A022(154) 

TO: Monica Crider, PE 
Contracting Services Engineer 

Key Number(s)22154 

FROM: Amy Schroeder, PE 
Transportation Program Manager 

Program ID, County, Etc.Ustick & Middleton 
Overpasses, Canyon Co 

RE: Request to increase professional services agreement amount to over $1,000,000 - DEA 

The purpose of this project, is to reconstruct the Notus Canal structure and the Ustick and Middleton Road 
bridges over I-84.  The project will replace the existing five span structures to two span structures to allow 
additional travel lanes to be constructed on I-84.  The Notus Canal bridge is a three span structure 
anticipated to be reconstructed as a single span crossing the canal. 

A Request for Proposals (RFP) was issued September 12, 2018 for professional services to deliver the 
project for advertisement.  DEA was selected to complete the design of the new Middleton and Ustick 
overpasses.  Their subconsultants include Stanley Inc. and GeoEngineers.  Negotiations for a scope of work 
and hours is still in process.  This project is scheduled to be delivered in fall 2019. 

The purpose of this Board item is to request approval to exceed the professional services agreement amount 
on this project to an estimated $3.5M to cover the design of the Ustick and Middleton Road overpasses 
along with engineer of record services during construction.   

The magnitude of this project has caused the design agreement to exceed $1,000,000. 

This agreement will be funded with State and GARVEE funds.  Sufficient funds have been obligated to cover 
this anticipated agreement. 

24



Department Memorandum 
Idaho Transportation Department 

ITD 0500   (Rev. 07-17) 
itd.idaho.gov 

DATE: January 8, 2019 Program Number(s) A019(431) 

TO: Monica Crider, PE 
Contracting Services Engineer 

Key Number(s) 19431 

FROM: Damon Allen, PE 
District 1 Engineer 

Program ID, County, Etc.BLUE CR BAY BR, 
KOOTENAI CO 

RE: Request to increase professional services agreement amount to over $1,000,000 – HDR 
Engineering 

The purpose for this project is to improve the safety, mobility, and economic opportunity of I-90, by 
rehabilitating both the eastbound and westbound Blue Creek Bay Bridges. Work includes replacing the 
concrete deck, expansion joints, critical girder pins/hangers, worn bearing pads, painting the girders and pier 
towers, repair/replacement of underwater corrosion protection systems to extend the two bridges’ service 
lives. 

The agreement for construction engineering and inspection (CE&I) services was originally awarded to HDR 
Engineering through a Request For Proposal.  It was always the intent to write two agreements, one for each 
construction season (2018 and 2019). The original agreement for the 2018 construction season was for 
$675K.  The agreement for the 2019 construction season, plus a supplemental agreement for extra work 
during the 2018 construction season are estimated to cost $1.07M bringing the total agreements on this 
project to $1.745 M. 

The project currently has $988K obligated for this type of services on this agreement.  The additional funds 
needed to cover this agreement were anticipated, and are expected to come from Statewide Balancing. 

25



Department Memorandum 
Idaho Transportation Department 

ITD 0500   (Rev. 07-17) 
itd.idaho.gov 

DATE: January 14, 2019 Program Number(s) A012(098) 

TO: Monica Crider, PE 
Contracting Services Engineer 

 Key Number(s)20486, 20581, & 
20435 

FROM: Jason Minzghor, PE 
District 6 Engineer 

 Program ID, County, Etc.Pine Haven to Buffalo 
Rv. Br., Sheep Falls to Pine Haven, & Buffalo Rv. 
Br. to Island Pk. Lodge, Fremont Co. 

RE: Request to increase professional services agreement amount to over $1,000,000 - JUB 

The purpose for these projects is to reconstruct and improve the safety and mobility of US-20 through the 
Island Park area. This will be done by adding adequate shoulder width and passing / turning lanes where 
needed. The project limits cover 24.5 miles beginning at Sheep Falls Rd. to Island Park Lodge. The 
development of these projects have two phases.  

Phase A is near completion, which included gathering traffic counts, turning movements, utility, and 
geotechnical information. The total agreement cost for Phase A was $262K. 

Phase B will include all tasks for the development of all (3) projects and to take them to PS&E in early 2020. 
This work will span the next 18 months and is estimated to cost $1.0-$1.2M.  

Phase C will be the Engineer of Record agreement for services during construction which could be as much 
as $500K. 

The total estimated costs of phases A, B, and C for all three of these projects are $2.0M.  

These projects currently have enough funds obligated to cover these agreements.   

Total construction costs for all three projects are estimated to be $44,810,000.   

The magnitude of these three projects has caused this agreement to exceed $1,000,000. 

26



Department Memorandum 
Idaho Transportation Department 

ITD 0500   (Rev. 07-17) 
itd.idaho.gov 

DATE: January 18, 2019 Program Number(s) A019(052) 

TO: Monica Crider, PE 
Contracting Services Engineer 

Key Number(s)19052 

FROM: Damon Allen 
District 1 Engineer 

Program ID, County, Etc. I-90, Mullan East 

RE: Request to increase professional services agreement amount to over $1,000,000 - HMH 
Engineering 

The purpose of the I-90, IC #68 East to Mullan project is to extend the service life of the existing 
highway by restoring the travel lanes and shoulders from MP 68.005 to MP 69.515. This will be 
accomplished by removing and replacing the existing Portland Cement Concrete (PCC) pavement 
surface and base materials. 

HMH Engineering was selected through a Request for Proposal (RFP) to provide full CE&I services 
during construction over two years: 2018-2019. 

The phase 1 agreement for the first season of construction is complete. HMH used $500,000.00 of 
the obligated $1,300,000.00 to date in performance of CE&I services on the project. 

The phase 2 agreement for the second season of construction is expected to exceed that of the first 
season and will result in a contract up to $1,300,000 for both phases of the project. 

This project currently has sufficient funds obligated to cover the estimated cost of CE&I services for 
season 1 and 2.  

The magnitude of the awarded construction contract was $10.4M. 

27



Department Memorandum 
Idaho Transportation Department 

ITD 0500   (Rev. 07-17) 
itd.idaho.gov 

DATE: January 31, 2019 Program Number(s) DHP-NH-1568(001) 

TO: Monica Crider, PE 
Contracting Services Engineer 

Key Number(s) 01004 

FROM: Amy Revis, PE 
District 3 Engineer 

 Program ID, County, Etc. Smiths Ferry to Round 
Valley, Valley CO. 

RE: Request to increase professional services agreement amount to over $1,000,000 - 
Forsgren 

The purpose of this project is to widen SH-55 from milepost 98.2 to 99.2. The project will straighten the 
roadway, move rock slopes away from the roadway, provide rock slope stabilization, and add guardrail on 
the river side of the road. The objective is to improve safety and mobility along this section of roadway. 

A Request for Proposals (RFP) was issued June 16, 2014 for professional services to identify safety 
improvements from Smiths Ferry to Round Valley. The original contract amount was for $443,000. Additional 
supplemental agreements were anticipated as the project scope was refined. The original agreement plus 
supplemental agreements totaled $1,566,520 to get the project through Final Design, which was previously 
approved by the Board during January 2016. An additional supplemental is required to address work that is 
outside of the scope of work. The supplemental will increase the totaled amount by $409,000. 

Additional funds needed to cover this supplemental agreement not already obligated (about $109K) will 
come from cost savings found on other projects.     

The purpose of this Board item is to request approval to increase the professional services agreement 
amount on this project to an estimated $1,975,520 to cover additional design work. 

This supplemental addresses additional work needed to complete the design, which weren’t included in the 
Final Design supplemental. These work tasks include the redesign of a creek culvert to meet Aquatic 
Organism Passage requirements, ground penetrating radar geologic work, additional retaining wall design, 
additional right-of-way work and clearances, and a public meeting which was requested by FHWA. 

28



Department Memorandum 
Idaho Transportation Department 

ITD 0500   (Rev. 07-17) 
itd.idaho.gov 

DATE: February 4, 2019 Program Number(s) A020(788) 

TO: Monica Crider, PE 
Contracting Services Engineer 

Key Number(s) 20788 

FROM: Amy Schroeder, PE 
Transportation Program Manager 

Program ID, County, Etc.I-84 to US 20/26, Ada & 
Canyon Counties 

RE: Request to exceed $1 million for professional services agreement - Jacobs 

The purpose of this project is to update traffic projections, validate right of way needs, account for recent 
development activity, develop a phasing plan for future construction and update the right of way and 
construction costs.   

In the April 2018 Board Meeting, up to $6 million was approved for preliminary engineering of the SH-16, I-84 
to US-20/26 corridor. 

Through the RFP process Jacobs Engineers was chosen for the preliminary engineering services. On July 
25, 2018, an agreement was approved for the first phase of services, which included summarizing changes 
since the EIS/ROD action, cost and schedule risk assessment, value engineering analysis, and developing a 
draft strategic corridor plan. The Department and Jacobs Engineers have negotiated the next phase of 
services to further the preliminary engineering for the corridor, which completes the scope of work through 
delivery of right-of-way plans for the whole corridor. 

In October 2018, the Board approved $90.24 million for acquiring right-of-way for the corridor. 

The purpose of this Board item is to exceed the previously approved amount by an additional $2 million for 
these services, bringing the total to $8 million. This is approximately 3% of the total estimated project cost, 
which is reasonable for the level of design being produced. 

The $2 million of additional funds will be obligated from savings from other projects. 

The additional $2 million will cover the remaining services needed to evaluate alternatives, conduct 
stakeholder outreach including hosting a public open house, complete the environmental re-evaluation, 
develop right-of-way plans and provide engineering support through the acquisition process. 

29



Board Agenda Item ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13)

Page 1 of 1 

Meeting Date February 21, 2019 

Consent Item Information Item Amount of Presentation Time Needed 

Presenter's Name Presenter's Title Initials Reviewed By 

LSS Jason Minzghor District Engineer JM 
Preparer's Name Preparer's Title Initials 

Eli Robinson Staff Engineer ER 

Subject 
Keller Associates Term Agreement Extension 
Key Number District Route Number 

18962 6 US-31 

Background Information 

The purpose of this Board Agenda Item is to request approval to exceed Keller and Associates term 
agreement limit of $1,500,000 per Board Policy 4001. 

 Keller was selected from a pre-qualified term agreement list using the RFI process in July 2018 to 
provide Construction Engineering and Inspection for the North Pine Cr Bridge. 

Due to the project taking longer than expected it is estimated that an additional $80,000 of work is 
needed from Keller. 

 If this request is approved, Keller's total agreement amount on this project will be $312,600 and the 
amount of agreements written with them under the term agreement list will be $1,675,500. 
Since Keller has already completed the majority of the North Pine Cr Bridge project, the estimated cost to 
have them complete the remaining tasks would be far less than it would be to select a new consulting 
firm to finish the work. 

Recommendations 
 Please approve request to extend the consultant term agreement threshold of $1,500,000 per 
Board Policy 4001.  

Board Action 

 Approved  Deferred 

 Other 

30



Board Agenda Item ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13)

Page 1 of 1 

Meeting Date February 21, 2019 

Consent Item Information Item Amount of Presentation Time Needed 

Presenter's Name Presenter's Title Initials Reviewed By 

LSS Blake Rindlisbacher, PE Engineering Services Administrator BR 
Preparer's Name Preparer's Title Initials 

Monica Crider, P.E. Contracting Services Engineer MC 

Subject 
Board Approval of Contracts for Award 
Key Number District Route Number 

Background Information 
INFORMATION 
The following table summarizes the projects advertised since the start of the fiscal year by jurisdiction, along 
with those requiring Board approval to award and Board approval to reject. 

  Year to Date Summary (10/1/18 to 2/4/19) 

Contracts Bid 

Contracts Requiring 
Board Approval to 

Award 

Contracts Requiring  
Board Approval to 

Reject 
ITD Local ITD Local ITD Local 

36 7 9 2 3 1 

ACTION 
In accordance with board policy 4001, the construction contracts on the attached report exceeded the 
engineer’s estimate by more than ten percent (10%) but is recommended for award with board approval. 

The following table summarizes the contracts requiring Board approval to award since the last Board Agenda 
Report. 

Contracts requiring Board Approval to Award 12/28/18 to 2/4/19 

ITD Local 

4 0 

Recommendations 
In accordance with board policy 4001, the construction contracts on the attached report is 
recommended for award with board approval. 

Board Action 

 Approved  Deferred 

 Other 

31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



Board Agenda Item ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13)

Page 1 of 1 

Meeting Date February 21, 2019 

Consent Item Information Item Amount of Presentation Time Needed 

Presenter's Name Presenter's Title Initials Reviewed By 

LSS Blake Rindlisbacher, PE Engineering Services Administrator BR 
Preparer's Name Preparer's Title Initials 

Monica Crider, P.E. Contracting Services Engineer MC 

Subject 
Contract Awards and Advertisements 
Key Number District Route Number 

Background Information 
INFORMATION 
The following table summarizes the contracts advertised since the start of the fiscal year by jurisdiction, 
along with those requiring Board approval to award and Board approval to reject. 

 Year to Date Summary (10/1/18 to 2/4/19) 

Contracts Bid 

Contracts Requiring 
Board Approval to 

Award 

Contracts Requiring  
Board Approval to 

Reject 
ITD Local ITD Local ITD Local 

36 7 9 2 3 1 

RECENT ACTIONS 
In accordance with board policy 4001, Staff has initiated or completed action to award the contracts listed on 
the attached report. 

The following table summarizes the Contracts awarded (requiring no Board action) since the last Board 
Agenda Report. 

Contracts Awarded with no action from the Board 12/28/18 to 2/4/19 

ITD Local 

2 0 

FUTURE ACTIONS 
The Current Advertisement Report is attached. 

Recommendations 
For Information Only. 

Board Action 

 Approved  Deferred 

 Other 

42



43



44



45



Board Agenda Item ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13)

Page 1 of 6

Meeting Date February 21, 2019

Consent Item Information Item Amount of Presentation Time Needed

Presenter's Name Presenter's Title Initials Reviewed By

Monica Crider, P.E. Contracting Services Engineer MC
Preparer's Name Preparer's Title Initials

Mike Cram Project Manager MWC

Subject
REPORT ON PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENTS AND TERM AGREEMENT WORK TASKS
Key Number District Route Number

N/A N/A N/A

Background Information
For all of ITD:

Consultant Services processed twenty-three (23) new professional services agreements and work tasks
totaling $4,562,939 and four (4) supplemental agreements to existing professional services agreements
totaling $212,100 from December 28, 2018 through January 31, 2019.

New Professional Services Agreements and Work Tasks

Reason Consultant Needed District Total 

1 2 3 4 5 6 HQ 

Resources not Available 

Design 2 2 1   5 

Environmental 1   1 

Planning 1   1 

Geotechnical 

Traffic 1   1 

Surveying 2 1   3 

Construction 1 3 1 1   6 

Bridge 1 1   2 

Local Public Agency Projects 1 0 1 0 2 0 0   4 

Total 6 2 5 3 3 2 2 23 

LSS

46



Board Agenda Item ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13)

Page 2 of 6

For ITD District Projects:

Nineteen (19) new professional services agreements and work tasks were
processed during this period totaling $4,450,289. Two (2) supplemental
agreements were processed totaling $146,685.

District 1

Project Reason 

Consultant 

Needed 

Description Selection 

Method 

Consultant Amount 

US-95, Sandpoint 

Long Bridge Over 

Pend O’reille 

Resources not 

available: 

Bridge 

Bridge Design, 

Phase II; 

Preliminary 

Design through 

PS&E 

Individual 

Project 

Solicitation 

WSP USA 

Prev: $ 416,300 

This: $ 340,903 

Total: $ 757,203 

SH-41, E Prairie 

Ave to Lancaster 

Rd, Kootenai Co 

Resources not 

available: 

Design 

Roadway Design 

Assistance & 

Modeling, CADD 

Support, and 

Drainage Analysis 

Direct from 

Term 

Agreement 

Burgess & 

Niple 
$ 46,210 

SH-41, Lancaster 

Rd to Boekel Rd, 

Rathdrum 

Resources not 

available: 

Surveying 

Continued Survey 

and Right-of-Way 

Services 

RFI from 

Term 

Agreement 

T-O 

Engineers 

Prev: $ 197,739 

This: $   51,584 

Total: $ 249,323 

SH-41, Lancaster 

Rd to Boekel Rd, 

Rathdrum 

Resources not 

available: 

Design 

Roadway Design 

Assistance & 

Modeling, CADD 

Support, and 

Drainage Analysis 

Direct from 

Term 

Agreement 

Burgess & 

Niple 
$ 30,590 

SH-41, E Prairie 

Ave to Lancaster 

Rd, Kootenai Co 

Resources not 

available: 

Surveying 

Continued Survey 

and Right-of-Way 

Services 

RFI from 

Term 

Agreement 

T-O 

Engineers 

Prev: $ 262,344 

This: $   82,105 

Total: $ 344,449 

District 2

Project Reason 

Consultant 

Needed 

Description Selection 

Method 

Consultant Amount 

US-12, 18th St to 

Clearwater River 

Bridge, Lewiston 

Resources not 

available: 

Construction 

Construction 

Engineering, 

Inspection, 

Sampling & 

Testing Services 

Individual 

Project 

Solicitation 

Horrocks 

Engineers 
$ 589,600 

47



Board Agenda Item ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13)

Page 3 of 6

US-95, Whitebird 

Grade Rehab, Idaho 

Co 

Resources not 

available: 

Surveying 

Surveying 

Services: 

Centerline 

Monument 

Relocation & 

Record of Survey 

Direct from 

Term 

Agreement 

TD&H 

Engineering 
$ 50,000 

District 3

Project Reason 

Consultant 

Needed 

Description Selection 

Method 

Consultant Amount 

I-84, Mountain

Home to Cold

Springs Interchange,

Elmore County

I-84, Hammett Hill

Passing Lane

Resources not 

available: 

Construction 

Engineer of 

Record Services 

During 

Construction 

Individual 

Project 

Solicitation 

Horrocks 

Engineers 

Prev: $  912,992 

This: $    22,500 

Total: $  935,492 

Prev: $ 949,400 

This: $   22,500 

Total: $ 971,900 

SMA-7013, 

Cloverdale Rd; 

Camas Dr to Tutrina 

& Overpass 

Resources not 

available: 

Construction 

Construction 

Engineering & 

Inspection 

Services for 

2019 

Construction 

Year 

Individual 

Project 

Solicitation 

HDR 

Engineering 

Prev: $   24,400 

This: $ 818,300 

Total: $ 842,700 

I-84, Karcher

Overpass, Nampa

Resources not 

available: 

Construction 

Engineer of 

Record Services 

Individual 

Project 

Solicitation 

Parametrix 

Prev: $ 10,784,700 

This: $      174,200 

Total: $ 10,958,900 

Board Approved 

 $11.3 M during 

April 2018 meeting 

US-95, Little 

Rainbow Bridge, 

Adams Co 

Resources not 

available: 

Environmental 

Design & 

Manufacture of 

Interpretive 

Signs and an 

Informational 

Brochure 

Direct from 

Term 

Agreement 

TAG 

Historical 

Research & 

Consulting 

$ 8,510 

District 4

Project Reason 

Consultant 

Needed 

Description Selection 

Method 

Consultant Amount 

I-84, Kasota

Interchange to

Burley Interchange

Eastbound Lane,

Minidoka Co

Resources not 

available: 

Design 

Roadway 

Design, Ph II: 

Preliminary 

Design through 

PS&E 

Individual 

Project 

Solicitation 

Stanley 

Consultants 

Prev: $   15,700 

This: $ 580,407 

Total: $ 596,107 

48



Board Agenda Item ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13)

Page 4 of 6

US-20, Rock Creek 

Culvert, Blaine Co 

US-20, Willow 

Creek Bridge, 

Camas Co 

Resources not 

available: 

Construction 

Inspection and 

Testing Services 

Individual 

Project 

Solicitation 

Horrocks 

Engineers 
$ 467,400 

US-93, 300 South 

Rd, Jerome Co 

Resources not 

available: 

Design 

Roadway 

Design through 

PS&E 

Individual 

Project 

Solicitation 

HDR 

Engineering 
$ 920,000 

District 5

Project Reason 

Consultant 

Needed 

Description Selection 

Method 

Consultant Amount 

US-91, FY24 Park 

Lawn to Siphon Rd, 

Chubbuck 

Resources not 

available: 

Design 

Value 

Planning 

Study 

Direct from 

Term 

Agreement 

Stanley 

Consultants 
$ 99,000 

District 6

Project Reason 

Consultant 

Needed 

Description Selection 

Method 

Consultant Amount 

Non-Project 

Resources not 

available: 

Traffic 

Traffic 

Augmentation 

Services 

Direct from 

Term 

Agreement 

Horrocks 

Engineers 

Prev: $ 28,500 

This: $ 16,800 

Total: $ 45,300 

State, D6 SH33 & US-

93 Mill and Inlay 

Resources not 

available: 

Construction 

Additional 

Inspection 

Services 

RFI from 

Term 

Agreement 

Keller 

Associates 

Prev: $ 135,000 

This: $   11,500 

Total: $ 146,500 

Headquarters

Project Reason 

Consultant 

Needed 

Description Selection 

Method 

Consultant Amount 

State, FY19 State 

Highway System 

Bridge Inspection 

Resources not 

available: 

Bridge 

Bridge Load 

Rating and 

Software 

Testing Services 

Direct from 

Term 

Agreement 

CH2M Hill $ 99,705 

Non-Project 

Resources not 

available: 

Planning 

Technical 

Editing & 

Graphic Design 

of Long Range 

Transportation 

Plan 

Direct from 

Term 

Agreement 

DOWL $ 18,475 

49



Board Agenda Item ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13)

Page 5 of 6

Supplemental Agreements to Existing ITD Professional Service Agreements

District Project Consultant 
Original Agreement 

Date/Description 

Supplemental 

Agreement 

Description 

Total Agreement 

Amount 

1 

SH-41, E 

Prairie Ave to 

Lancaster Rd, 

Kootenai Co 

Forsgren 

Associates 
2/18 Bridge Design 

Modify Design of 

Bridge and 

Approaches to 

include west side 

combined use 

pathway with the 

UPRR Overpass 

Bridges 

Prev: $ 452,886 

This: $ 122,637 

Total: $ 575,523 

3 

SH-44, Half 

Continous Flow 

Intersection, 

Interesection 

Eagle Rd & 

SH44, Eagle 

Horrocks 

Engineers 

3/18 Roadway 

Design, Phase II: 

Completion of 

Design through 

PS&E 

Retaining Wall 

Design 

Prev: $ 784,500 

This: $   24,048 

Total: $  808,548 

For Local Public Agency Projects:

Four (4) new professional services agreements totaling $112,650 were
processed during this period. Two (2) supplemental agreement totaling $65,415
was processed.

Project Sponsor Description Selection 

Method 

Consultant Amount 

STC-5750, Pine 

Creek Road Bridge 

Shoshone 

County 

Engineer of Record 

Services during 

Construction 

Individual 

Project 

Solicitation 

J-U-B 

Engineers 

Prev: $ 539,410 

This: $   38,800 

Total: $ 578,210 

US-95, Cambridge 

Sidewalk & 

Drainage 

City of 

Cambridge 

Limited 

Professional 

Design Services: 

Update of 

Construction 

Documents & 

Construction 

Estimate 

Local 

Project 

Direct from 

Term 

Agreement 

Holladay 

Engineering 

Company 

$ 12,600 

Offsystem, Bannock 

County Event Center 

Pedestrian Path 

Bannock 

County 

Construction 

Engineering and 

Inspection Services 

Local 

Project 

Direct from 

Term 

Agreement 

Keller 

Associates 
$ 30,000 

Offsystem, 

American Falls 

Pedestrian 

Connectivity 

City of 

American 

Falls 

Construction 

Engineering and 

Inspection Services 

Local 

Project 

Direct from 

Term 

Agreement 

Keller 

Associates 
$ 31,250 

50



Board Agenda Item ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13)

Page 6 of 6

Supplemental Agreements to Existing Local Professional Services Agreements

District Project Consultant Original Agreement 

Date/Description 

Supplemental 

Agreement 

Description 

Total Agreement 

Amount 

1 

STC-5727, 

Ramsey Rd; 

Chilco to 

Scarcello, Lakes 

Highway 

District 

David Evans & 

Associates 

10/17 Design 

services through 

PS&E 

Design Services 

Necessary to 

Move Solid 

Waste Transfer 

Station Approach 

Prev: $ 782,500 

This: $   60,000 

Total: $ 842,500 

3 

Offsystem, 

Horseshoe Park 

Pathway & 

Southwest Ave 

Improvements, 

New Plymouth 

Holladay 

Engineering 

Company 

2/18 Design of 

Horseshoe Park 

Pathway & 

Southwest Ave 

Pedestrian and 

Bicycle 

Improvements 

Interpretative 

Signage 

Prev: $ 88,100 

This: $   5,415 

Total: $ 93,515 

Recommendations
For Information Only

Board Action

Approved Deferred

Other

51



Board Agenda Item ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13)

Page 1 of 1 

Meeting Date February 21, 2019 

Consent Item Information Item Amount of Presentation Time Needed 

Presenter's Name Presenter's Title Initials Reviewed By 

Damon Allen DE DLA 
Preparer's Name Preparer's Title Initials 

Damon Allen DE DLA 

Subject 
I-90, MP 49 TEMPORARY REPAIR
Key Number District Route Number 

22171 1 I-90

Background Information 
February 7, 2019, the pavement on I-90 at MP 49 began to sink across all 4 lanes about 150 feet wide in 
two separate areas, see attached below.   It has sunk two to eight inches, the worst being the eastbound 
passing lanes.  By February 11 the sinking had slowed but is continuing.  ITD immediately lowered the 
speed limit from 75 to 45 to allow safe passage through the dip.  

The sinking is likely due to water passing deep under the road from the EPA/Corps Central Impound Area 
(CIA) on the south side of I-90. They performed a deep bentonite wall project this summer to contain the 
water parallel to I-90.  The CIA is part of the superfund site to control contaminated mine tailing runoff.   

EPA/Corps is mobilizing a emergency command center on site and is in daily contact with ITD on how to 
control the water.  DEQ is also involved regarding water quality. 

Under Board Policy 4011 ITD created a new project, “I-90, MP 49 Temporary Repair” ($350k ST from 
statewide balancing) to address the surface asphalt settlement and perform engineering and monitoring.  
The first step in the temporary repair will be to surface grind and then level up the interstate with hot mix 
asphalt.  Future traffic control and asphalt courses may be needed until a permanent solution can be 
engineered once the EPA/Corps controls the water. 

Once the EPA/Corps can permanently control the water from their project site ITD will engineer a 
permanent fix which will likely be a deep base repair in multiple locations with possible drainage features. 
This will likely be done in a separate project.  ITD is tracking all costs to date. 

Recommendations 
Information item. 

Board Action 

 Approved  Deferred 

 Other 

51A



51B



Board Agenda Item ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13)

Page 1 of 1 

Meeting Date February 21, 2019 

Consent Item  Information Item Amount of Presentation Time Needed 

Presenter's Name Presenter's Title Initials Reviewed By 

LSS Michelle Doane Business & Support Mgr MD 
Preparer's Name Preparer's Title Initials 

Michelle Doane Business & Support Mgr MD 

Subject 
Non-Construction Professional Service Contracts issued by Business & Support Management 
Key Number District Route Number 

N/A N/A N/A 

Background Information 

The purpose of this Board item is to comply with the reporting requirements established in Board Policy 
4001 -'Each month the Chief Administrative Officer shall report to the Board all non-construction 
professional service agreements entered into by the Department during the previous month.' 
Business and Support Management section did not execute any professional service agreements in the 
previous month. 

Recommendations 
Information only 

Board Action 

 Approved  Deferred 

 Other 

52



Board Agenda Item ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13)

Page 1 of 1 

Meeting Date February 21, 2019 

Consent Item Information Item Amount of Presentation Time Needed 

Presenter's Name Presenter's Title Initials Reviewed By 

LSS Tony Pirc Capital Facilities Manager ALP 
Preparer's Name Preparer's Title Initials 

Tony Pirc Capital Facilities Manager ALP 

Subject 
Annual Report on Status of State-Owned Dwellings 
Key Number District Route Number 

Background Information 

Per Board Policy 4049 and Administrative Policy 5049, attached is the annual report on the status of 
state-owned dwellings. 

The attached listing shows all dwellings (houses and trailer pads) provided to department employees.  
The department owns 3 stick framed houses, 16 manufactured homes, 6 bunkhouses, and 1 apartment 
each at Johnson Creek and Cavanaugh Bay Air Strips that are used seasonally.  In addition to the 
houses, the department owns 19 trailer pads, 11 have employee owned manufactured housing on them. 

The policy allows the department to provide or rent state-owned dwellings to its employees in situations 
where the best interests of the department are served. The department has locations where employees 
reside in a state-owned dwelling as a condition of their employment.  These locations are; 2 at Powell in 
District 2, 7 at Lowman and 1 at Riddle in District 3, 7 at Hailey and 2 at Carey in District 4, and 
Cavanaugh Bay and Johnson Creek Airports for Aeronautics.  Policy also allows the department to rent 
at a reduced amount state-owned dwellings to employees.  The department withholds from the 
employee's earnings their monthly rent and an appropriate amount to cover taxes on the discounted 
rental value.  

The department also owns 9 trailer pads and 3 houses at rest area locations around the state (see 
attached listing).  Rest area maintenance contracts require the contractor to be available for daily 
conferences and on call for emergencies 24-7. Providing the state-owned dwellings is part of the 
consideration of the maintenance contract. 

Recommendations 
For informational purposes only. 

Board Action 

 Approved  Deferred 

 Other 

53



STATUS OF STATE OWNED DWELLINGS
FEBRUARY 2019

Note: Utilities and trash paid direct by employees

District Location Fair Rental 
Monthly 

Rental Fee Status
1 None
2 Benson Trailer House 2462 $500.00 $0.00
2 Benson House B2461
2 Bovill Trailer Pad 2273 $100.00 $0.00
2 Fleming House 2602 $0.00 $0.00 In the process of removing
2 Fleming Trailer Pad   2606 $50.00 $30.00
2 Powell House 2642 $50.00 $0.00
2 Powell House 2645 $50.00 $0.00
2 Powell N 2651 $0.00 Used as a bunkhouse
2 Powell S 2652 $0.00 Used as a bunkhouse
2 Lucile Trailer Pad 2922 $100.00 $45.00
2 Lucile Trailer Pad 2923 $100.00 $45.00
2 Lucile Tailer Pad 2925 $100.00 $45.00
2 Reeds Bar House 2933 $0.00 Used as a bunkhouse
2 Reeds Bar Trailer Pad 2934
2 Reeds Bar Trailer Pad 2935
3 Bruneau Trailer Pad 3070 $150.00 $0.00 vacant
3 Bruneau Trailer Pad 3071 $150.00 $0.00 vacant
3 Bruneau Trailer Pad 3072 $150.00 $0.00 vacant
3 Lowman Trailer Pad and House 3053 $200.00 $0.00
3 Lowman Trailer Pad 3054 $200.00 $0.00
3 Lowman House 3052 $650.00 $0.00
3 Lowman House 3195 MF $650.00 $0.00
3 Lowman House 3196 MF $650.00 $0.00
3 Lowman MFG House 3197 $650.00 $65.00 Feb 2019 occupancy
3 Lowman MFG House 3198 $650.00 $65.00 Feb 2019 occupancy
3 Lowman MFG House 3199 $650.00 $65.00 Feb 2019 occupancy
3 Riddle House 3084 MF $150.00 $0.00
4 Stanley Trailer Pad 4822 $400.00 $0.00
4 Stanley Trailer Pad 4823 $400.00 $0.00
4 Stanley Trailer Pad 4824 $400.00 $0.00
4 Stanley Trailer Pad 4828 $400.00 $0.00
4 Hailey House 4809 $700.00 $0.00
4 Hailey House 4810 $700.00 $0.00
4 Hailey House 4808 $750.00 $0.00
4 Hailey House 4813 $700.00 $0.00
4 Hailey House 4814 $700.00 $0.00
4 Hailey House 4843 $700.00 $0.00
4 Carey House 4506 $500.00 $0.00
4 Carey House 4507 $500.00 $0.00
4 Sublett Trailer Pad 4323 $250.00 $0.00
4 Sublett Trailer Pad 4324 $250.00 $0.00 Vacant
4 Sublett Trailer Pad 4325 $250.00 $0.00 Vacant
5 None (Soda Springs Sites Out of Use)
6 Island Park Trailer Pad 6225 $250.00 $0.00 Vacant
6 Island Park Bunkhouse 6226 $0.00 Used as Bunkhouse
6 Island Park Bunkhouse 6222 $0.00 Used as Bunkhouse
6 Island Park Bunkhouse 6220
6 Gibbonsville Trailer Pad 6113 $230.00 $0.00 Vacant
8 Cavanaugh Bay Airport 8020 $80.00 $0.00 Vacant/Seasonal
8 Johnson Creek Airport Apartment 8011 $80.00 $0.00 Vacant/Seasonal

TOTAL MONTHLY AMOUNT $14,190.00 $360.00

54



Rest Area Dwelling Summary 
February 2019 

West Bound Huetter   Trailer pad No rent 

Mineral Mountain  Trailer pad No rent 

Lenore  Trailer pad No rent 

Midvale Hill   Trailer pad No rent 

Snake River View  Residence No rent 

Blacks Creek (2ea.)  Trailer Pad No rent 

Juniper West Bound  Trailer pad No rent 

Cherry Creek  Residence No rent 

North Blackfoot (Lava) Residence No rent 

Clark Hill (Seasonal)  Trailer pad No rent 

55



Board Agenda Item ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13)

Page 1 of 2

Meeting Date February 21, 2019

Consent Item Information Item Amount of Presentation Time Needed  20 minutes

Presenter's Name Presenter's Title Initials Reviewed By

Monica Crider, PE / Laila Kral, PE CSE / LHTAC Deputy Administrator MC/LK
Preparer's Name Preparer's Title Initials

Laila Kral, PE LHTAC Deputy Administrator LK

Subject
Local Highway Rural Investment Program (LHRIP) Annual Report
Key Number District Route Number

N/A N/A N/A

Background Information

Board Policy 5030 requires an annual report on this program.

The Idaho Transportation Board in conjunction with the Idaho Transportation Department and the Local
Highway Technical Assistance Council (LHTAC) has developed the Local Rural Highway Investment
Program to assist the small cities, counties, and highway districts in improving their investment in
roadways.  The program is funded by exchanging STP-Rural funds for ITD State Highway Account
Funds, not to exceed $2.8 million annually.  LHTAC’s responsibilities include administering the program
and accounting for the expenditures.

This presentation will be an overview of the 2018 distribution and projects.

Recommendations

X

For information only

LSS

56



Board Agenda Item ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13)

Page 2 of 2

Board Action

Approved Deferred

Other

57



2/4/2019

Local Rural Highway 
Investment Program 
(LRHIP) – FY18

Laila Kral, PE
Deputy Administrator 

Advocate. Support. Train. 

PROGRAM BACKGROUND

• Created by IT Board Policy in 2004, A-11-06

• Continued with Board Policy 4030 and Administrative Policy
5030

• STP-Rural funds exchanged for State Highway Funds
• $0.616 State/$1.00 Federal
• Maximum of $2.8M annually in state funds ($4.54M in STP-Rural)
• Since 2012 LHTAC has requested and used the maximum $2.8M

58



2/4/2019

LRHIP
• Grant program – Rules

• Must collect local taxes or have alternate funding
• Cannot be used for wages/equipment reimbursement
• Can’t pay consultants (Except for Transportation Plans)

• Available to Rural Local Highway Jurisdictions (LHJs)
• Cities outside of urban areas under 5,000 in population
• County Road & Bridge Departments
• Highway Districts

APPLICATION 
• Post cards sent September 2016

• Posted on LHTAC Website

• Eleven training workshops reaching 262
individuals in October 2016

• Presentations at Conventions
• Idaho Associations of County Engineers and

Road Supervisors
• Idaho Association of Highway Districts
• Association of Idaho Counties

• Due November 17, 2016

59



2/4/2019

APPLICATION SCORING
• 9 Council Members, 2 Staff

• Focus areas
• Annual Road & Street Report – taxes, zero end of year balance
• Transportation Plan & Capital Improvement Plan
• Staff Training
• Regional Meetings and Efficiencies

• Approved by Council in March 2017

FY18 APPLICATIONS
• 47 Construction Apps.

• Funded 17 projects, $1.68M

• 3 Federal-aid Match Apps.
• Funded 2 projects, $200K

• 21 Trans. Plan Apps.
• Funded 10 projects, $370K

• 10 Sign Apps.
• Funded 9 projects, $245K

$2.5M in Grants Awarded

81 Applications requesting $5.97M

D1
24%

D2
16%

D3
13%

D4
13%

D5
8%

D6
26%

# OF AWARDS DISTRIBUTION 
BY DISTRICT

Does not include Emergency Projects

60



2/4/2019

CONSTRUCTION PROJECT –
BEAR LAKE CO.
Paris Canyon Rd. Rehabilitation 
& Drainage Improvements

$100k grant, $88.8k project 
(returned funds for FY19)

Received scoring summary and 
recommendations for improvement on 

FY17 Application

After

Before

SIGN PROJECT – ADAMS COUNTY
Regulatory & Warning Sign Replacement

$30k grant, $66k project 

After

Before

Before

After

61



2/4/2019

TRANSPORTATION PLAN –
CITIES OF JULIETTA AND KENDRICK
$30k grant

Combined annual budget of $54,907

Includes inventory of assets, CIP 

2018 EMERGENCY PROJECTS

• 7 Projects Funded
• Bonneville Co. R&B - $18,596
• City of Harrison - $34,497
• Greencreek HD - $6,058
• Idaho Co. R&B - $100,000
• Madison Co. R&B - $100,000
• North HD - $100,000
• Oneida Co. R&B - $81,043

• $440,194 in Emergency Projects
Funded

Before

After

62



2/4/2019

LOOKING FORWARD
FY19 Applications

39 Construction Apps.
• Requesting $3.925M

6 Federal-aid Match Apps.
• Requesting $565K

19 Trans. Plan Apps.
• Requesting $715K

7 Sign Apps.
• Requesting $171K

Provide the best and most efficient assistance to 
every local highway jurisdiction in Idaho

lhtac@lhtac.org
www.LHTAC.org

3330 Grace Street, Boise, ID 83703

63



Board Agenda Item ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13)

Page 1 of 2

Meeting Date February 21, 2019

Consent Item Information Item Amount of Presentation Time Needed  10 minutes

Presenter's Name Presenter's Title Initials Reviewed By

MC

Blake Rindlisbacher & Jeff Miles DES & LHTAC Administrators
Preparer's Name Preparer's Title Initials

Blake Rindlisbacher, P.E. Engineering Services Administrator

Subject
2019 Children Pedestrian Safety Program
Key Number District Route Number

Background Information
During the 2017 Legislative Session, the Idaho Legislature passed House Bill 334 (H334) adding the 

category “Children pedestrian safety on the state and local system” to the existing Strategic Initiatives 

Program.  The first year of the program funded 15 projects.  Thirteen of the 15 projects have been 

completed and closed out – returning $55,953 of unspent funds.  Of the two that remain incomplete, one 

is tied to an ITD Federal-aid project that was delayed one construction season and the other will have 

final completion in the spring of 2019.  Any returned funds from the 2018 cycle will be added to the 

available funding for 2019.  Due to the success of the 2018 program and extensive outreach and training, 

the 2019 Children Pedestrian Safety Program application packet received requests for 65 projects totaling 

over $12.5M in grant fund requests.   

 In July 2018, the LHTAC Council and the IT Board approved a maximum of $2,000,000 (60%

state strategic initiative funds and 40% local strategic initiative funds) to finance projects for the

upcoming 2019 application cycle;

 The IT Board and LHTAC Council authorized staff to advertise 2019 Program guidelines which

remained unchanged from the previous cycle with the exception that sponsors who received

funding in 2018 were not eligible to apply for 2019 funds;

 The call for Children Pedestrian Safety projects closed in December 2018

 Members of the Transportation Alternatives Program committee evaluated and ranked project

applications in January 2019;

 The LHTAC Council approved project rankings in January 2019;

The attached list of projects for 2019 in order of ranking is attached.  ITD and LHTAC staff are seeking 

IT Board approval of the rankings and to approve LHTAC to award projects upon approval of the 

supplemental appropriation for the Strategic Initiative Program Fund.  Projects will be funded by ranking 

until all the funds are expended.  Partial awards will be offered to utilize the available funding. 

Provided there is a savings in the cost of a project or a sponsor of an approved project is unable to 

proceed, the next highest ranked project from the attached list will be contacted for a full or partial award 

depending on the available funding. 

Recommendations
Resolution on page 65.

LSS

64



Board Agenda Item ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13)

Page 2 of 2 

Board Action 

 Approved  Deferred 

 Other 

RESOLUTION 

RES. No. 

WHEREAS, the 2017 HB334 modified the Strategic Initiative Program Idaho Code § 40-719, to 

include funding projects on the local system; and  

WHEREAS, 2017 HB334 included a new eligible project category known as Children Pedestrian 

Safety; and  

WHEREAS, the Idaho Transportation Department and Local Highway Technical Assistance Council 

(LHTAC) staff have developed guidelines for the solicitation and evaluation of 2019 Children 

Pedestrian Safety projects; and  

WHEREAS, the funding split for Children Pedestrian Safety projects will be 60% from the state

share and 40% from the local share; and

WHEREAS, in July 2018, the Idaho Transportation Board authorized ITD staff to coordinate with 

LHTAC staff to continue the Children Pedestrian Safety program for 2019, to jointly solicit and 

evaluate applications and to present a list ranking projects for funding up to $2 million in projects to 

the Board for approval ; and 

WHEREAS, ITD and LHTAC staff are seeking IT Board approval of the Children Pedestrian Safety 

Program conditioned upon legislative and governor’s approval of the supplemental appropriation for 

the Strategic Initiative Program Fund  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board approves the 2019 Children Pedestrian 

Safety project rankings that were provided at the Board meeting and funding up to $2 million in 

projects pending legislative approval of a supplemental budget request for the Strategic Initiative 

Program Fund allowing these projects.  

65



ID Sponsor
Total Project 

Cost
Grant Amount 
$ Applied For

District
State vs 
Offsys

AVG 

SCORE
Running total

CP47 City of Chubbuck $300,000.00 $250,000.00 5 off‐sys 82.33 $250,000.00

CP04 City of Donnelly $89,970.00 $75,300.00 3 off‐sys 81.00 $325,300.00

CP27 City of Emmett $223,000.00 $220,000.00 3 off‐sys 80.67 $545,300.00

CP53 City of Twin Falls $248,500.00 $248,500.00 4 off‐sys 80.33 $793,800.00

CP11 City of Kootenai $140,000.00 $140,000.00 1 off‐sys 79.67 $933,800.00

CP07 City of Lapwai $355,459.00 $250,000.00 2 off‐sys 79.33 $1,183,800.00

CP30  City of Victor $198,707.00 $182,707.00 6 state 79.00 $1,366,507.00

CP63 City of Soda Springs $287,474.00 $250,000.00 5 ST & off 78.67 $1,616,507.00

CP09 City of Iona $155,000.00 $155,000.00 6 off‐sys 78.33 $1,771,507.00

CP38 City of Plummer $100,000.00 $100,000.00 1 off‐sys 78.33 $1,871,507.00

CP64 City of Sandpoint $225,000.00 $225,000.00 1 off‐sys 78.33 $2,096,507.00

CP25 City of Preston $277,870.00 $229,570.00 5 off‐sys 78.00 $2,326,077.00

CP28 City of Buhl $451,671.15 $242,350.00 4 off‐sys 77.67 $2,568,427.00

CP52 City of Fruitland $260,000.00 $250,000.00 3 off‐sys 77.67 $2,818,427.00

CP06 Boundary County $250,000.00 $250,000.00 1 off‐sys 77.33 $3,068,427.00

CP49 City of Sugar City $250,000.00 $250,000.00 6 ST & off 77.33 $3,318,427.00

CP16 Post Falls Highway District $260,000.00 $250,000.00 1 off‐sys 77.00 $3,568,427.00

CP58 City of Montpelier $273,000.00 $250,000.00 5 off‐sys 77.00 $3,818,427.00

CP21 City of Cascade $210,000.00 $199,608.00 3 state 76.67 $4,018,035.00

CP60 City of Nampa $251,195.69 $250,000.00 3 off‐sys 76.33 $4,268,035.00

CP10 City of Priest River $250,000.00 $250,000.00 1 off‐sys 76.00 $4,518,035.00

CP45 City of Lava Hot Springs $310,000.00 $250,000.00 5 off‐sys 76.00 $4,768,035.00

CP22 City of Rexburg $178,000.00 $178,000.00 6 off‐sys 75.67 $4,946,035.00

CP32 City of Inkom $244,000.00 $207,000.00 5 off‐sys 75.67 $5,153,035.00

CP39 City of Challis $95,000.00 $81,000.00 6 off‐sys 75.67 $5,234,035.00

CP18 City of Pocatello $250,000.00 $250,000.00 5 off‐sys 75.33 $5,484,035.00

CP40 City of Bonners Ferry $30,000.00 $30,000.00 1 state 75.33 $5,514,035.00

CP41 City of Weiser $260,000.00 $250,000.00 3 off‐sys 75.33 $5,764,035.00

CP42 City of Heyburn $299,000.00 $249,000.00 4 off‐sys 75.00 $6,013,035.00

CP29 City of Downey $129,000.00 $112,000.00 5 off‐sys 74.67 $6,125,035.00

CP36 Boise County $27,000.00 $27,000.00 3 off‐sys 74.67 $6,152,035.00

CP55 City of Paris $171,000.00 $171,000.00 5 off‐sys 73.67 $6,323,035.00

CP14 City of Kellogg $250,000.00 $250,000.00 1 off‐sys 73.33 $6,573,035.00

CP13 City of Potlatch $250,000.00 $250,000.00 2 off‐sys 73.00 $6,823,035.00

CP62 City of Hayden $83,467.00 $70,625.54 1 off‐sys 72.67 $6,893,660.54

CP24 City of Richfield $280,000.00 $250,000.00 4 off‐sys 72.33 $7,143,660.54

CP59 City of Fairfield $300,800.00 $250,000.00 4 off‐sys 71.67 $7,393,660.54

2019 CHILDREN PEDESTRIAN SAFETY
FINAL COMPILED SCORES

66



CP65 City of Filer $270,000.00 $250,000.00 4 state 71.67 $7,643,660.54

CP15 City of American Falls $308,000.00 $250,000.00 5 state 71.33 $7,893,660.54

CP26 City of Craigmont $308,885.00 $250,000.00 2 off‐sys 70.67 $8,143,660.54

CP31 City of Athol $30,000.00 $30,000.00 1 state 70.67 $8,173,660.54

CP54 City of Orofino $19,734.00 $19,055.00 2 ST & off 70.67 $8,192,715.54

CP43 City of Aberdeen $272,000.00 $243,000.00 5 off‐sys 69.67 $8,435,715.54

CP20 Jefferson County $119,600.00 $119,600.00 6 off‐sys 69.00 $8,555,315.54

CP23 City of Rigby $218,500.00 $198,500.00 6 off‐sys 69.00 $8,753,815.54

CP46 City of New Meadows $37,643.00 $35,643.00 3 state 69.00 $8,789,458.54

CP02 City of Cambridge $228,000.00 $198,000.00 3 State 68.00 $8,987,458.54

CP33 City of Jerome $250,000.00 $250,000.00 4 off‐sys 68.00 $9,237,458.54

CP48 City of Ketchum $146,048.00 $126,048.00 4 off‐sys 68.00 $9,363,506.54

CP50 City of Homedale $202,800.00 $202,800.00 3 off‐sys 68.00 $9,566,306.54

CP57 City of Roberts $308,000.00 $250,000.00 6 off‐sys 68.00 $9,816,306.54

CP05 City of Wendell $273,500.00 $249,739.00 4 State 67.67 $10,066,045.54

CP34 City of St. Maries $250,000.00 $250,000.00 1 off‐sys 67.67 $10,316,045.54

CP35 City of Mullan $250,000.00 $250,000.00 1 off‐sys 66.67 $10,566,045.54

CP03 City of Lewiston $250,000.00 $250,000.00 2 off‐sys 66.33 $10,816,045.54

CP56 Blaine County $250,000.00 $250,000.00 4 off‐sys 65.33 $11,066,045.54

CP37 City of Ammon $238,000.00 $238,000.00 6 off‐sys 64.67 $11,304,045.54

CP51 City of New Plymouth $344,000.00 $250,000.00 3 state 64.33 $11,554,045.54

CP44 City of Grace $260,000.00 $250,000.00 5 state 63.00 $11,804,045.54

CP61 City of Bellevue $250,000.00 $250,000.00 4 off‐sys 62.67 $12,054,045.54

CP01 City of St. Anthony $62,500.00 $60,000.00 6 off‐sys 61.67 $12,114,045.54

CP12 City of Dalton Gardens $48,100.00 $48,100.00 1 off‐sys 58.33 $12,162,145.54

CP17 City of Ririe $128,000.00 $128,200.00 6 off‐sys 55.00 $12,290,345.54

CP08 City of Genesee $144,743.50 $144,743.50 2 off‐sys 53.67 $12,435,089.04

CP19 City of Dayton $250,000.00 $250,000.00 5 off‐sys 43.00 $12,685,089.04

67



Board Agenda Item ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13)

Page 1 of 1 

Meeting Date February 21, 2019 

Consent Item Information Item Amount of Presentation Time Needed  20 minutes 

Presenter's Name Presenter's Title Initials Reviewed By 

LSS Kenneth Kanownik Planning Services Manager KJK 
Preparer's Name Preparer's Title Initials 

Margaret Havey Senior Transportation Planner MH 

Subject 
Draft Long-Range Transportation Plan and Approval for Public Comment 
Key Number District Route Number 

Background Information 

Staff has produced an updated 2040 Long-Range Transportation Plan that builds on the approved 2010 
“Idaho on the Move”.  The updated plan provides information, guidance and recommendations that are 
intended to help ITD staff and transportation professionals in Idaho navigate transportation issues 
through 2040.  Topics such as funding, growth, inflation, project selection, performance management, 
highway data analytics, new and emerging technologies, modal planning and implementation are 
addressed in the plan. 

Staff has developed the updated 2040 Long-Range Transportation Plan over a period of approximately 
two years with collaboration with the public and stakeholders across the state.  The public comment 
period is tentatively scheduled, pending Board approval, from February 24, 2019 to April 10, 2019.  After 
comments are collected, staff will review, respond and make any applicable changes to the draft plan.  
Staff will return to the Board after this process and present a final 2040 Long-Range Transportation Plan. 

Recommendations 
Staff requests Board consent to proceed with the public comment period scheduled from February 24, 
2019 to April 10, 2019. 

Board Action 

 Approved  Deferred 

 Other 

68



Draft | February 2019

Idaho Transportation Department 
3311 West State Street 

Boise, ID 83707-1129 

2040 
LONG-RANGE 

TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

69



 
  
 

 
 
 

Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

Contents 
Page i 

 

Table of Contents 
 

Executive Summary .......................................................................................................................... ii 

Introduction ........................................................................................................................................................ ii 

Summary ............................................................................................................................................................. ii 

Closing................................................................................................................................................................. v 

Preface ........................................................................................................................................... vi 

ITD’s Long-Term Goals – From Strategic Plan .................................................................................................... vi 

About This Plan ................................................................................................................................................. vii 

Public and Stakeholder Outreach ......................................................................................................................viii 

IDAGO 2040 Credits & Thanks ............................................................................................................................ x 

I. State of Transportation ................................................................................................................. 1 

Introduction to the Idaho Transportation Department’s Assets ......................................................................... 1 

Reporting Performance to the Public .................................................................................................................. 1 

Recommendations ............................................................................................................................................ 20 

II. Modal Planning .......................................................................................................................... 21 

Introduction to Planning ................................................................................................................................... 21 

Active Transportation Planning ........................................................................................................................ 22 

Aeronautics Planning ........................................................................................................................................ 23 

Freight Planning ................................................................................................................................................ 25 

Public Transportation Planning ......................................................................................................................... 26 

Privately Owned Vehicle Planning .................................................................................................................... 28 

Recommendations ............................................................................................................................................ 29 

III. Highway Data Analytics ............................................................................................................. 30 

Introduction to Highway Data Analytics ........................................................................................................... 30 

Recommendations ............................................................................................................................................ 37 

IV. New and Emerging Technologies ............................................................................................... 37 

Introduction to New and Emerging Technologies ............................................................................................. 37 

Vehicles ............................................................................................................................................................. 39 

Infrastructure .................................................................................................................................................... 40 

Fuels .................................................................................................................................................................. 40 

Driver Information Services ............................................................................................................................... 42 

70



 
  

Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan

Contents 
Page ii 

Other Technologies ........................................................................................................................................... 42 

Funding ............................................................................................................................................................. 42 

Recommendations ............................................................................................................................................ 43 

V. Implementation ......................................................................................................................... 44 

Summary of Recommendations ........................................................................................................................ 44 

Chapter I – State of Transportation .................................................................................................................. 44 

Chapter II – Modal Planning ............................................................................................................................. 44 

Chapter III – Highway Data Analytics ............................................................................................................... 44 

Chapter IV – New and Emerging Technologies ................................................................................................. 45 

Introduction to ITD’s Business Practices ........................................................................................................... 45 

 .......................................................................................................................................................................... 45 

Project Selection and Development .................................................................................................................. 45 

Asset Management ........................................................................................................................................... 46 

Continuous Improvement ................................................................................................................................. 46 

 .......................................................................................................................................................................... 46 

Recommendations ............................................................................................................................................ 50 

APPENDICES 
Appendix 1:  .......................................................................................................... FAST Act Checklist 

Appendix 2:  ........................................................................................................... Technical Reports 

Appendix 3:  ......................................................................................................... Public Involvement 

Appendix 4:  .......................................................... Transportation Performance Management Report 

Appendix 5:  ............ Metropolitan Planning Organizations’ Regional Long-Range Transportation Plans 

71



 
  
 

 
 
 

Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

Preface 
Page ii 

 

Executive Summary 
Introduction 

Over the last two years, planning staff from the Idaho Transportation Department (ITD) have engaged the public, 
stakeholders, and transportation professionals across Idaho in conversations about our present transportation 
infrastructure, future conditions, needs, and issues that we can expect as we progress toward the year 2040. This 
plan is a result of collaborative work group sessions, interactive surveys, and one-on-one engagement. ITD 
planners have used feedback from these efforts to develop a plan that provides recommendations to best navigate 
transportation decision making through 2040. 

The ITD Long-Range Transportation Plan, branded as IDAGO 2040, provides information, guidance, and 
recommendations within the first four chapters covering the important topics of growth, modes of transportation, 
technology, and data analytics. The final chapter of this plan addresses implementation, with recommendations 
tied to ITD’s project-delivery-focused work structure, outlining how this plan will improve processes. The 
Department’s plan is focused primarily on surface transportation and the State Highway System; however, there 
are important relationships from the Divisions of Motor Vehicles and Aeronautics that tie into the future of Idaho’s 
transportation network. 

The recommendations from this plan are either aspirational in nature or identify areas where further planning is 
required.  The aspirational recommendations are intended to help improve the general planning behind the work 
conducted by transportation professionals in Idaho.  The recommendations that outline further planning, such as 
producing a State Highway System Plan, do give specific steps to improving decision making related to 
transportation in Idaho. 

Summary 

Preface 

In the 2010 Long-Range Transportation Plan “Idaho on the Move,” ITD established three long-range goals which were 
and still are critical in supporting Idaho’s economy and quality of life: Safety, Mobility, and Economic Vitality. Since 
the adoption of “Idaho on the Move,” ITD has elevated these three goals to now serve as the Department’s mission: 
 

 
Your Safety      Your Mobility      Your Economic Opportunity 

 

The context of the plan is framed by ITD’s long-term goals (LTG) from its Strategic Plan: 

• LTG-1: Commit to providing the safest transportation system possible. 

• LTG-2: Provide a mobility-focused transportation system that drives economic opportunity. 

• LTG-3: Become the best organization by continually developing employees and implementing innovative 
business practices. 

72



 
  

Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan

Preface 
Page iii 

In addition to these long-term goals, the plan outlines the following recurring and most common issues mentioned 
to ITD staff during public and stakeholder outreach to provide additional context.  

From the public: 

• Congestion/delay relief and preservation/maintenance are the top two strategies for pursuing ITD’s
mission (per survey results).

• Commuting, personal/general, and recreational trips were the top use of the State Highway System (per
public outreach survey).

• Preserving quality of life is important (from public comments).

• The public has a desire for more public transportation options in Idaho (from survey results and
comments).

From stakeholders: 

• ITD should actively pursue coordination with external agencies through partnerships, data sharing, and
research opportunities.

• Consider all modes of transportation in planning and project development.

• Be a leader on applicable statewide transportation issues.

Chapter I – State of Transportation 

In examining Idaho’s State of Transportation, collaboration with stakeholders resulted in reporting on the entire 
network of state highways and local roads in regard to funding, condition, and traffic reporting. This plan will serve 
as a consolidated report for this information. The reporting focuses on changes since 2010, the date of adoption of 
ITD’s previous plan. In addition to statewide reporting, ITD provides the status of its customer-friendly 
performance measures, guidance for understanding impacts from growth to transportation, and further analysis 
on growth that has occurred and, according to stakeholders participating in development of this plan, can be 
expected for years to come. The recommendations in Chapter I will help prepare ITD for a growing state by 
improving the Department’s planning processes, positioning to pursue additional funding, and better reporting the 
performance of the State Highway System. 

Chapter II – Modal Planning 

ITD is dedicated to ensuring people can safely access their desired destinations. The Modal Planning chapter 
identifies the modes of transportation for which ITD plans on the State Highway System as follows: 

• Active Transportation – (e.g., Bicycle, Pedestrian)

• Aeronautics – (e.g., Private and Commercial Aircraft)

• Freight – (e.g., Truck, Rail, Aircraft, Watercraft)

• Public Transportation – (e.g., Bus, Van Pool)

• Privately Operated Vehicles – (e.g., Automobile, Motorcycle, Registered Recreational Vehicle)

These modes are discussed in detail with references to relevant planning and operational documents. The 
recommendations in Chapter II provide specific guidance to maintain and improve how ITD plans and accounts for 
all modes of transportation in its deliverables to the public. 

73



 
  

Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan

Preface 
Page iv 

Chapter III – Highway Data Analytics 

Chapter III outlines how ITD ensures quality data collection and how that data is converted into meaningful 
information. ITD has continuously enhanced its decision making by improving information availability and 
understanding used in decision-making processes. ITD also places constraints on such processes to ensure data is 
not manipulated to a point that it loses meaning or value. The recommendations in Chapter III will help ITD 
improve the quality, cost, and integrity of the data and information that are considered in decision making. 

Chapter IV – New and Emerging Technologies 

New technologies have the capacity to not only compliment and improve current policy and procedures, but to also 
disrupt them. Funding, growth, and other changes influencing various facets of transportation are important to 
incorporate in transportation planning, however ITD staff sees new and emerging technologies as a different type of 
influence than more traditional areas. It is important to understand not only how a technology could compliment or 
disrupt the status quo, but also if it results in a positive or negative impact to various facets of transportation. For 
example, changing from one fuel source to another can have great benefits to user costs or environmental impacts, 
but also might severely compromise the current revenue stream used to maintain the transportation system. This 
plan identifies vehicles, infrastructure, fuels (energy), data collection and analysis, driver information services, and 
funding as six potential impact areas to transportation from new and emerging technologies. The recommendations 
in Chapter IV will help ITD identify and evaluate new and emerging technologies’ impact on transportation and plan 
for smooth transition of these technologies in the transportation system. 

This plan has 21 total recommendations that are presented at the end of chapters I-IV. 
 Below are five key recommendations from this plan: 

• Inform and train transportation professionals on the impacts of population and economic growth on
the State Highway System and statewide trends in travel patterns.

Increasing the knowledge of our transportation professionals to incorporate future needs into the design of 
infrastructure will better prepare our transportation system for the future. 

• Partner with stakeholders and the public to best modify, adjust or expand the State Highway System.
Working together with stakeholders and the public will ensure changes to the transportation system are in the best 
interest of as many as parties as possible. 

• Develop a State Highway System Plan
ITD and partner transportation agencies currently produce large amounts of data and plan for several modes of 
transportation, but there is no integrated analysis of the State Highway System.  A State Highway System plan 
would fully integrate data collection, forecasting, economics, safety and security to further assist decisions in the 
future. 

• Adopt the Quality-Centric model for tasks and services which create or use data and information.
ITD and partner transportation agencies collect large amounts of data regarding the transportation network.  
Having a guiding model will be integral continuously providing quality data and information to decision makers 

• Continue public engagement and education on technology advancements and solicit input on
community impacts.

This plan points out future impacts of new technologies to transportation that are expected in the near future.  
Maintaining public awareness will ensure the public understands the benefits of such technologies and supports 
decisions to integrate them into the transportation network. 

74



 
  

Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan

Preface 
Page v 

Chapter V – Implementation 

ITD is focused on delivering a safe, efficient highway system that is free of impediments and promotes economic 
activity. This is accomplished through the Department’s daily operations and capital improvements outlined in the 
Idaho Transportation Improvement Program. Chapter V incorporates the recommendations from Chapters 1-4 and 
ties them into ITD’s project delivery and operational activities to serve as additional guidance for becoming the 
best transportation department in the country. 

Closing 

The recommendations in this plan will assist in developing our path to 2040.  What the future holds for us is 
unpredictable, but along the way, together decisions can be made that are: 

 well understood by an informed public and stakeholders;

 a consensus among transportation professionals;

 adaptable based on good planning;

 the best possible decisions from the best possible information at the time.

The intent of this plan is to provide information and guidance not only to ITD, but to any agency responsible for 
transportation oversight and management in Idaho. The recommendations set forth in this plan are aspirational in 
nature and are to be considered by transportation officials to improve the understanding of future impacts to the 
transportation system that occur from today’s decisions. 

75



 
  

Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan

Preface 
Page vi 

Preface 
In the 2010 Long-Range Transportation Plan “Idaho on the Move,” the Idaho Transportation Department (ITD) 
established three long-range goals which were and still are critical in supporting Idaho’s economy and quality of 
life: Safety, Mobility, and Economic Vitality. Since the adoption of “Idaho on the Move,” ITD has elevated these 
three goals to now serve as the Department’s mission: 

Your Safety      Your Mobility      Your Economic Opportunity 

ITD’s Long-Term Goals – From Strategic Plan 

Commit to providing the   
safest transportation 

system possible. 

Provide a mobility-focused 
transportation system that 

drives economic opportunity. 

Become the best organization 
by continually developing 

employees and implementing 
innovative business practices. 

LTG-1: Commit to providing the safest transportation system possible. 

Why it matters:  In 2017, 245 people were killed and 12,969 injured in crashes on Idaho’s 
highways. The economic and personal costs of these deaths and injuries, along with more than 
25,851 collisions that occurred throughout the state, amounted to more than $4.1 billion. More 
importantly, those figures represent family members, friends, and neighbors – each individual 
death a tragic and unacceptable loss.  

ITD works toward delivering the safest transportation system possible through infrastructure 
improvements and behavioral modification campaigns. The Office of Highway Safety manages 
many behavioral campaigns that are outlined in the Strategic Highway Safety Plan. Infrastructure 
improvements are outlined in the Safety and Capacity Program in the most recent Idaho 
Transportation Investment Program (ITIP). 

In addition to behavioral and infrastructure initiatives, a transportation system that maintains a 
state of good repair serves as the foundation for the safest transportation system possible. 
Highways with bridges and pavements in good condition that are free of ice and snow and other 
natural impacts are a top priority. 

76



 
  

Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan

Preface 
Page vii 

LTG-2: Provide a mobility-focused transportation system that drives 
economic opportunity.  

Why it matters:  As Idaho develops, investments in its roads, airports, railroads, canals, and 
rivers have always preceded economic growth. Taxpayer dollars are spent on transportation 
projects after rigorous analysis of safety, congestion, optimum lifecycle, and other factors. The 
investment return to Idaho citizens is improved quality of life and prosperity.  

Mobility is defined by not only the ability to arrive at a destination, but also the ability to use a 
preferred method of transportation. ITD delivers programs and initiatives that improve the 
performance of the state highways system, address emergency response incidents that impede 
mobility, provide transportation options for users, and maintain a state of good repair. 

A mobility-focused transportation system is an integral part of Idaho’s economic engine. Moving 
goods and services is vital to the economy of Idaho. Additionally, moving people to and from 
destinations engaged in recreation, tourism, or commerce is a large portion of Idaho’s gross 
domestic product and an important component of economic growth in Idaho. 

LTG-3: Become the best organization by continually developing employees and 
implementing innovative business practices.  

Why it matters:  ITD needs to continually review and improve its business practices to be 
responsive to its customers. Strong leadership is the key to this process. Leaders drive critical 
innovation, implement change, and create adaptable organizations that succeed in meeting and 
exceeding customer expectations. 

Teamwork plays a vital role in ITD achieving its goals. It ensures broad employee input and 
creates an empowered and motivated workforce. Collaborative decision-making leads to better 
solutions and improves services to taxpayers. 

Training ITD’s workforce is also critical. Trained employees are more productive and deliver 
higher-quality results. As they gain higher-level skills, employees need to be financially 
compensated accordingly. Strong leadership combined with a well-developed, stable workforce 
will reduce turnover in key positions and improve ITD’s organizational culture.  

About This Plan 

IDAGO 2040 updates the concepts of “Idaho on the Move” and provides high-level direction on the methods 
and approaches for implementing the Department’s mission. The information presented in the following 
chapters are organized by topic and include relevant information, analysis, and recommendations. The chapters 
of IDAGO 2040 are: 

Chapter I – State of Transportation:  The first chapter contains Information regarding customer-oriented 
performance measures, technical analysis produced by ITD’s subject matter experts that document 
current practices, the constraints and trends of the state’s current and future transportation system, 
along with guidance and recommendations for transportation professionals. - 

77



 
  
 

 
 
 

Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

Preface 
Page viii 

Chapter II – Modal Planning:  Idaho has diverse transportation needs, from highways that carry less than 
one hundred vehicles per day to routes that carry over one hundred thousand vehicles. Some corridors 
have few modes or needs, while complex corridors service all modes of transportation and are vital to the 
economy of Idaho. The modal planning concept outlined in IDAGO 2040 allows staff to account for the 
specific planning needs for each corridor. 

Chapter III – Highway Data Analytics:  The methods by which data are analyzed plays an increasing role 
at ITD. Based on outreach results from IDAGO 2040, the public supports data-assisted decision making. 
Innovations towards improved accuracy in data analytics are vital to maintaining public confidence. 

Chapter IV – New and Emerging Technologies:  Technology advancements are creating new innovations, 
opportunities, and challenges for transportation. It is ITD’s responsibility to apply new technologies that 
help meet the Department’s mission, while taking a cautious approach to avoid dead-end or non-
productive developments. Case studies and guidance material are provided to help direct staff in the 
adoption and implementation of new and emerging transportation technologies. 

Chapter V – Implementation:  This chapter outlines how ITD does business and achieves its mission. The 
discussion connects recommendations from earlier chapters to ITD’s day-to-day operations. 

Public and Stakeholder Outreach 
In this plan, groups of persons are labeled as the public, stakeholders, and transportation professionals. Other 
entities, such as elected officials, have multiple roles in Idaho’s transportation system and span multiple groups. 

Figure P.1. Group Definitions 

 

78



 
  
 

 
 
 

Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

Preface 
Page ix 

As part of the public outreach for IDAGO 2040, ITD held public meetings, facilitated meetings with organized 
advocacy groups, and conducted a public opinion survey. From this outreach, ITD learned the following topics are 
of most interest to the public:  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Congestion/delay                   
relief and preservation/ 

maintenance are the               
top two strategies for 

pursuing ITD’s mission. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Commuting, personal/ 
general, and recreational 

trips were the top use               
of the State Highway   

System (per public 
outreach survey). 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Preserving quality of           
life is important.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The public has a                    
desire for more                    

public transportation                    
options in Idaho. 

 

In addition to public outreach, ITD also met with stakeholders and transportation professionals to solicit additional 
input on the future direction of the State Highway System. Primary recommendations from stakeholders and 
transportation professionals are listed below.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ITD should actively pursue 
coordination with external 

agencies through partnerships, 
data sharing, and research 

opportunities.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Consider all modes of 
transportation in planning and 

project development. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Be a leader on applicable   
statewide transportation issues.  

 

Detailed reports on the public and professional outreach are detailed in Appendix 3. 

 

 

 

 

 

79



 
  
 

 
 
 

Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

Preface 
Page x 

 
IDAGO 2040 Credits & Thanks 
Project Manager 

Kenneth Kanownik, AICP – Planning Services Manager 

Steering Committee Members 
Blake Rindlisbacher, P.E. – Division of Engineering Services Administrator 
Randy Gill – Program Management Office Manager 
Vince Trimboli – Public Affairs Manager 
Bob Thompson – Economist, Financial Planning and Analysis 

Work Group Team Leaders 
Technical Reports: Sonna Lynn Fernandez – Planning Project Manager 
New and Emerging Technologies: Jeff Marker – Freight Program Manager 
Highway Data Analytics: David Coladner – Research Analyst, Principal 

Work Group Staff 
Modal Planning 
Kim McGourty – Public Transportation Manager 
Rachel Pallister – Grants Officer, Public Transportation 
John Tomlinson – Office of Highway Safety Manager 
Bill Statham – Project Manager, Aeronautics 
Brian Shea – Senior Transportation Planner, (retired) 
Blaine Schwendiman – Staff Engineering Assistant, District 3 

New & Emerging Technologies 
Amy Smith – Business Analyst, Division of Motor Vehicles 
Chapman Munn – Principal Research Analyst, Highway Data Analytics 
Chris Peirsol – Senior Transportation Planner, District 5 
Juan Oleaga – Service Integration Manager, Enterprise Technology Services 
Matthew Moore – Transportation Legislation Policy Specialist, Governmental Relations 
Ned Parish – Research Program Manager 
Pat Carr – Program Manager, Division of Motor Vehicles 
Robert Koeberlein – Program Manager (retired) 
Liisa Itkonen, Ph.D., AICP – Principal Planner, Community Planning Association 

Highway Data and Analytics 
Jim Poorbaugh, P.E. – Asset Management Engineer 
Matt Farrar, P.E. – Engineering Manager, Bridge 
Barbara Waite – Program Supervisor 
Margaret Pridmore – Program Manager, Roadway Data 
Mark Wasdahl – Senior Transportation Planner, District 3 
Bill Roberson – Senior Transportation Planner, District 1 
Kelly Campbell – Research Analyst, Principal, Office of Highway Safety 
Jez Arroway – Program Manager, Enterprise Technology Services 
Nick Jorgenson – Data Coordinator, Enterprise Technology Services 

80



 
  
 

 
 
 

Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

Preface 
Page xi 

 
Technical Reports 
Sydney Lewis – GIS Analyst  
Wendy Terlizzi – Program Manager, Environmental 
Ken Helm – Project Manager, District 2 
Mark Layton – Senior Transportation Planner, District 6 
Maranda OBray – Senior Transportation Planner 
Mike Cram – Project Manager – Contracting Services 
Nathan Hesterman – Senior Transportation Planner Programming, Financial Planning and Analysis 
Brad Wolfinger – Project Manager, Program Management Office 

Staff Contributors 
Adam Rush – Public Involvement Coordinator, Office of Communications 
Mark Snyder – Data Analytics Engineer 
Margaret Havey – Senior Transportation Planner, Planning Services 

Partner Contributors 
 Scott Frey – Transportation Engineer, Federal Highway Administration 
 Scott Ellsworth, P.E., P.L.S. – Federal Aid Manager, Local Highway Technical Assistance Council 
 Glenn Miles – Director, Kootenai Metropolitan Planning Organization  
 Shannon Grow – Director, Lewis-Clark Valley Metropolitan Planning Organization 
 Matt Stoll – Director, Community Planning Association of Southwest Idaho 
 Mori Byington – Director, Bannock Transportation Planning Organization 
 Darrell West – Director, Bonneville Metropolitan Planning Organization 

Consultant Contributors 
Technical Editing & Graphics Assistance 
Sarah Nicolai, P.E., PTP – DOWL  
Renee Whitesell, PTP – DOWL  
Rachel Rogge – DOWL 

Public Outreach 
Sarah Nicolai, P.E., PTP – DOWL  
Cody Salo, P.E. – DOWL 
Rosemary Curtin – RBCI 
Kate Reed – RBCI 

81



 
  
 
 

 
 
 

Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

Chapter I 
Page 1 

I. State of Transportation 
Introduction to the Idaho Transportation Department’s Assets 

As of 2018, the Idaho 
Transportation Department (ITD) 
maintained 12,323 lane miles of 
highways across Idaho, 1,824 
bridges, 12 ports of entry, and 31 
rest areas. This infrastructure is 
referred to as the State Highway 
System. This chapter provides 
information on ITD’s evaluation, 
maintenance, and operations of the 
State Highway System and its 
collaborative work with aeronautics 
and partner agencies. 

 

 

 

 

 

*Final plan will include link to 
interactive, zoomable map  

 

 

Reporting Performance to the Public 

ITD has identified four customer-friendly performance measures with specific targets that reflect the condition of 
the State Highway System and directly relate to ITD’s mission.   

82



 
  
 
 

 
 
 

Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

Chapter I 
Page 2 

Performance Measure: Fatalities 

Performance Target: Reduce the five-year fatality rate to 1.10 per 100 million vehicle 
miles traveled for the 2016-2020 period. 

Why This Is Important 
Even one death on Idaho's highways is one death too many. An estimated total of 1,113 people 
lost their lives on Idaho roads between 2013 and 2017. Each death is a personal tragedy for the 
individual's family and friends, and the loss has an enormous financial cost to the community. 
Every life counts.  

How We Measure It 
The measure is calculated by dividing the number of fatalities that occur over a five-year period 
by the number of vehicle miles traveled over the same five-year period. The five-year rate for 
2012 to 2016 is 1.28 fatalities per 100 million vehicle miles traveled. (Note: This rate is based on 
Idaho's estimate of vehicle miles traveled rather than the required Federal estimate which is not 
yet available.) 

What We're Doing About It 
The Department advances programs to eliminate traffic deaths, serious injuries, and economic 
losses. These programs focus on engineering, education, enforcement, and emergency response. 

Performance Measure: Winter Mobility 

Performance Target: Maintain at least 73% unimpeded mobility for the winter season 

Why This Is Important 
Idaho travelers need safe and reliable highways during winter storms. Preventing the 
accumulation of snow and ice or quickly removing it from highways increases safety, mobility, 
and improves commerce. 

How We Measure It 
Idaho's 4,984 centerline miles of highways are divided into 217 sections. Over 46% of these 
highway sections, including the most heavily traveled corridors, have automated roadway 
condition sensors and weather information stations located where travel is deemed to be highly 
impacted by winter storms including high elevation summits, steep grades, and bridge 
overpasses. This measure tracks the percent of time those highway sections with automated 
sensors and weather information stations are clear of ice and snow during winter storms. 

What We're Doing About It 
ITD uses data from the automated roadway condition sensors and weather information stations 
to continuously improve the effectiveness of its winter maintenance efforts across the state. The 
Department accomplishes this by customizing snowplowing practices and de-icing treatments for 
all sections of Idaho highways. 
 
 
 

83



 
  
 
 

 
 
 

Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

Chapter I 
Page 3 

Performance Measure: Roadway Condition 

Performance Target: Sustain 80% of all state highways in good or fair condition.  

Why This Is Important 
Pavement condition has an impact on the operating costs of passenger and commercial vehicles. 
Regularly scheduled preventive maintenance, preservation, and reconstruction treatments 
extend the useful life of pavements in the State Highway System. 

How We Measure It 
Roughness and rutting are measured by driving a specially equipped rating van over the entire 
State Highway System during spring and summer. Cracking is measured in the summer and fall by 
a visual inspection and digital video recordings of the System. The collected data and the visual 
inspections are then used to rate pavement conditions as good, fair, poor or very poor. 

What We're Doing About It 
ITD focuses on internal efficiencies to maximize investments in the system. Investment decisions 
are prioritized to keep highways in good or fair condition to avoid costly replacement. The 
Department has implemented new management systems to strategically schedule preventative 
maintenance and preservation projects at the optimal time across the state. 

Performance Measure: Bridge Condition 

Performance Target: Maintain at least 80% of all bridges in the State Highway System                                     
in good condition. 

Why This Is Important 
Ensuring Idaho's bridges are in good condition protects transportation investments and lowers 
repair costs while maintaining connectivity and commerce. Commerce depends on the carrying 
capacity and reliability of roads and bridges. 

How We Measure It 
The measurement is the ratio of deck area (or plan dimension) of bridges in good condition to 
the deck area of the entire inventory of state bridges stated as a percentage. 

What We're Doing About It 
Idaho strategically schedules preservation and restoration projects to improve deteriorating 
bridges across the state. Over time, increased investments will be needed to achieve this goal. 

 

Figure I.2. Customer Friendly Performance Measure Dashboard 

 

  

Source: ITD, 2019 

84



 
  
 
 

 
 
 

Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

Chapter I 
Page 4 

In addition to bridge condition, ITD and local agencies track bridge age. This is important because as a bridge ages, 
its condition will deteriorate more quickly. Taking into account bridge age, 45% ITD’s bridges are 50 years or older 
and 30% of bridges on local roads are 50 years or older. Of the 26% of bridges on the State Highway System, 2% 
are structurally deficient, while 11% of bridges on local roads are structurally deficient). By 2021, an additional 4% 
of bridges will become 50 years or older, bringing that total to 49%. 

Transportation Funding in Idaho 

ITD’s funding combines federal revenue with state taxes and fees. Congress allocates revenue to states through 
the national transportation bill, historically reauthorized every six years. In December 2015, the President signed a 
new authorization, the FAST Act, which is a five-year bill expiring in 2020. Approximately two-thirds of this funding 
comes from the federal Highway Trust Fund, with sources including but not limited to gas and diesel fuel taxes, 
heavy tire, and heavy vehicle use taxes. 

From a state funding perspective, most of the state fuel taxes on gasoline and diesel are deposited into the 
Highway Distribution Account along with revenue generated by vehicle registration fees, driver licensing fees, and 
miscellaneous sources. Effective July 1, 2015, the Idaho Legislature authorized an increase in state fuel taxes and 
vehicle registration fees. Sixty percent of the revenue generated by these increases is distributed to the State 
Highway Account. The remaining 40 percent is distributed to cities, counties, and highway districts. 

The 2015 Legislature also authorized a “surplus eliminator” provision depositing 50 percent of excess state General 
Fund cash balance at the end of FY15 and FY16 into the Strategic Initiatives Program Fund. 

House Bill 312, enacted during the 2015 Legislative session, directed ITD to establish and maintain a Strategic 
Initiatives Program. The purpose is to fund projects proposed by the Department’s six Districts. The projects must 
compete for selection based on an analysis of their return on investment in these categories: safety, mobility, 
economic opportunity, bridge repair and maintenance, and right-of-way purchases. 

House Bill 334, enacted during the 2017 Legislative session, added an additional category for child pedestrian 
safety on the state and local system. 

Senate Bill 1206, enacted during the 2017 Legislative session, apportioned the moneys transferred into this fund. 
Sixty percent of the revenue generated by these increases is distributed to the State Highway Account. The 
remaining 40 percent is distributed to cities, counties, and highway districts.  

Senate Bill 1206, enacted during the 2017 Legislative session, established the Transportation Expansion and 
Congestion Mitigation Program and fund. The purpose is to fund projects that are chosen by the Idaho 
Transportation Board based on a project’s ability to mitigate traffic times, improve traffic flow, and mitigate traffic 
congestion. This fund receives revenue from one percent of sales tax after local revenue sharing, and all remaining 
moneys following the distribution of the cigarette tax revenue. 

Financial Constraints and Funding Shortfall 

In 2010, former Governor Butch Otter established a task force on transportation to produce an assessment of 
transportation funding in Idaho. The result was an annual shortfall for all roads and highways in Idaho of $543 
million. Since 2010, several legislative efforts have reduced the recurring annual shortfall.  

 

85



 
  
 
 

 
 
 

Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

Chapter I 
Page 5 

Table I-1 presents recurring annual funding from three state sources.  

Table I.1. Ongoing Transportation Revenue Sources 
 

Year 

Ongoing Revenue Sources (in $ Millions) 

Cigarette Tax * 
(HB 547) 

Revenue Increase* 
(HB312a) 

Congestion Mitigation * 
(SB 1206) 

2015 $6.01 - - 

2016 $12.05 $88.88 - 

2017 $9.24 $105.60 - 

2018 $4.70 $108.99 $22.72 

2019 $4.70 $109.84 $19.37 

Totals $36.70 $413.31 $42.09 

Note: No changes between 2010-2014.  

In addition to the recurring annual funding provided by the Idaho Legislature, additional legislative successes have 
provided one-time revenue increases that reduce the annual shortfall. Idaho has also been the recipient of several 
federal discretionary grants and federally ear-marked funds that have addressed the shortfall in a single year, as 
outlined in Table I.2. 

Table I.2. One-Time Transportation Revenue Sources 
 

Year 
One-Time Revenue Sources (in $ Millions) 

Strategic Initiatives* (HB312a) Federal Discretionary 

2010 - $8.20 

2011 - $9.10 

2012 - $7.30 

2013 - $0.00 

2014 - $7.40 

2015 $54.00 $0.30 

2016 $0.00 $5.20 

2017 $10.97 $2.30 

2018 $27.67 $90.20 

2019 $60.30  

Totals $152.93 $130.00 

86



 
  
 
 

 
 
 

Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

Chapter I 
Page 6 

Table I.3 summarizes progress made by the Idaho Legislature, ITD, and Local Transportation Agencies towards the 
funding shortfall. 

Table I.3. 2010-2019 Idaho Transportation Funding Shortfall Summary ($ Millions) 
 

Year 

2010 Task 
Force 

Short Fall 
(2010 

Dollars) 

Ongoing Revenue Sources Shortfall 
With 

Ongoing 
Revenue 
Added 

One-Time Revenue 
Sources 

Shortfall with 
Recurring and 

One-Time 
Funding 
Added 

Cigarette 
Tax* 

(HB 547) 

Revenue 
Increase* 
(HB312a) 

Congestion 
Mitigation 
(SB1206) 

Strategic 
Initiatives 
(HB312a) 

Federal 
Discretionary 

2010 $543.00 - - - $543.00  $8.20 $534.80 

2011 $543.00 - - - $543.00  $9.10 $533.90 

2012 $543.00 - - - $543.00  $7.30 $535.70 

2013 $543.00 - - - $543.00 - $0.00 $543.00 

2014 $543.00 - - - $543.00 - $7.40 $535.60 

2015 $543.00 $6.01 - - $536.99 $54.00 $0.30 $482.69 

2016 $543.00 $12.05 $88.88 - $442.08 $0.00 $5.20 $436.88 

2017 $543.00 $9.24 $105.60 - $428.16 $10.97 $2.30 $414.90 

2018 $543.00 $4.70 $108.99 $22.72 $406.59 $27.67 $90.20 $288.72 

2019 $543.00 $4.70 $109.84 $19.37 $409.09 $60.30 - $348.79 

While data show continuous progress towards addressing the transportation funding shortfall in Idaho, challenges 
such as inflation, growth, and changes in the use of the state’s highways were not taken into account in analyzing 
the shortfall. Since 2010, ITD has invested in staff and resources to better calculate project costs, system needs, 
and system use. 

Figure I.3. 2010-2019 Idaho Transportation Funding Shortfall Summary ($ Millions) 

 

Source: ITD, 2019 

87



 
  
 
 

 
 
 

Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

Chapter I 
Page 7 

The 2010 Task Force identified highway construction material cost inflation as a key factor in the funding shortfall 
at the time. Since 2010, construction material costs have continued to outpace the Consumer Price Index 
calculated by the Bureau of Labor Statistics. 

Table I.4. 1999-2010 Construction Material Costs: 

Material 
Type 

Cost 
1999-2003 

Cost 
2004 -2006 

Cost 
2008-2009 

Cost 
2010 

% Increase 
1999-2010 

Oil for 
Asphalt 
(per ton) 

$211 
Belgrove to Mica 
2001 

$290 
I-90 Paving 
2006 

$865 
Osgood to 
Roberts 
2009 

$779 
Menan/Lorenzo 
I.C. 
2010 

269% 

Plant Mix 
Paving 
(per ton) 

$29.94 
Arrow to Turkey 
Farm 
1999 

$44.45 
Lewiston Hill to 
Genesee 
2004 

$60.00 
U.S. 95, Milepost 
430-436 
2004 

$54.00 
Homedale Rd. 
Beet to Farway 
2010 

80% 

Aggregate for 
Base 
(per ton) 

$7.07 
Yale Road, Cassia 
County 2003 

$14.32 
Twin Falls Alt.        
Rt, Stage 1 
2005 

$11.80 
Chubbuck to Poc. 
Cr. IC 
2009 

$17.80 
Fairgrounds to 
20th St. St. Maries 
2010 

152% 

Base Rock 
(per ton) 

$5.26 
Arrow to Turkey 
Farm 
1999 

$13.61 
Lewiston Hill to 
Genesee 
2004 

$12.75 
Twin Falls Alt. 
Route 
2009 

$15.00 
Salt Lake I.C. to 
Raft River I.C. 
2010 

185% 

Bridge Deck 
Concrete 
(per sq. yard) 

$298 
South Fork 
Palouse River 
2003 

$784 
I-84, Milepost   
17-23 
2006 

$581 
Twin Falls Alt 
Route 
2009 

$755 
Menan/Lorenzo 
I.C. 
2010 

153% 

The Consumer Price Index had an inflation rate of 20.4%-33.2% in the 1999/2003-2010 period. 

  

88



 
  
 
 

 
 
 

Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

Chapter I 
Page 8 

                                   
                                 Table I.5. Inflation of Highway Construction Materials Costs 2011-2018                  

 (Figures Calculated by ITD Project Cost Estimating Team)  

Material 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 
% 

Increase 
from 2011 

Oil for Asphalt 
(per ton) N/A in Present Project Bids - 

Plant Mix Paving 
405-325A 
5,000 to 15,000 Tons 
(per ton) 

$72.78 $77.06 $71.23 $80.90 $68.51 $77.52 $65.25 $81.25 12% 

Aggregate for Base 
303-021A 
8,000 to 20,000 Tons 
(per ton) 

$12.63 $18.56 $15.41 $19.23 $26.07 $20.60 $16.25 $21.43 70% 

Base Rock 
301-005A 
9,000 to 22,000 Ton 
(per ton)  

$9.69 $8.20 $7.45 $13.60 $12.56 $12.66 $14.71 $17.47 80% 

Bridge Deck 
Concrete (per sq yd) * * $577 $649 $601 $654 $1,000 $729 26% 

The Consumer Price Index had an inflation rate of 12% in the 2011-2018 period. 
For the overall period of 1999/2003 to 2018, all construction material costs have continued to outpace Consumer 
Price Index inflation. 

Table I.6. Inflation of Highway Construction Material Costs 1999-2018  
(2010 Governor’s Task Force and ITD Cost Estimating Figures) 

Material 1999-2003 2018 % Increase from  
1999-2003 

Plant Mix Paving  
*405-325A 
*5,000 to 15,000 Tons (per ton) 

$30 $81.25 171% 

Aggregate for Base  
*303-021A 
*8,000 to 20,000 Tons (per ton) 

$7 $21.43 203% 

Base Rock  
*301-005A 
*9,000 to 22,000 Tons (per ton) 

$5 $17.47 232% 

Bridge Deck Concrete (per sq yd) $298 $729 145% 

Consumer Price Index had an inflation rate of 136%-150% for the 1999/2003 – 2018 period. 

 
 

89



 
  
 
 

 
 
 

Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

Chapter I 
Page 9 

Growth and Transportation 
Growth occurring in a given geographic area is highly correlated to an increase in travel demand on highways. 
There are two types of growth that contribute to an increase in transportation demand: 

• Economic Growth – An increase in gross domestic product or other indicator of economic activity 

• Population Growth – The increase of residents within a geographic area 

In 2017, Idaho was named by the U.S. Census Bureau as the fastest-growing state in the country in terms of 
population by percentage, with an annual population growth rate of 2.2%. According to the U.S. Census Bureau, 
Idaho has been a “top ten” fastest-growing state since 2013. Continuation of this trend may strain the state’s ability 
to accommodate past and future growth for an extended period of time. The following information is provided to 
help ITD staff better understand the economic and population growth impacts to the transportation network. 

Available Information on Growth 
The following five leading indicators for growth are readily available to ITD staff. 

1. Demographics – Population statistics including age, location, race and gender 
• Provided by U.S. Census Bureau or Idaho Department of Labor 
• Derived from analysis  
• Delay in reporting 

2. Motor Vehicle and License – Vehicle registration and license information  
• Directly reported, provided by Division of Motor Vehicles (DMV) 
• Minimal reporting delay 
• Detailed to zip code level 

3. Building Permits – Issued building permits for residential dwelling units 
• Directly reported by City/County; U.S. Census also reports summaries 
• Reported monthly and annually 

4. Idaho Gross Domestic Product – A summation of economic activity in Idaho 
• U.S. Department of Commerce 
• Derived by analysis 
• Released quarterly and annually 

5. Employment Information – Labor force statistics such as total employment and unemployment 
• U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics and Idaho Department of Labor 
• Derived from analysis  
• Income and employment rates 

Other data and information on growth are available to ITD staff for growth analysis. Such information is usually 
regionally relevant or a trailing indicator of growth. Examples are listed below.  

1. Traffic Counts/Vehicle Miles Traveled – This information would affirm growth predicted by leading 
indicators, but can also be used for capacity analysis of highways to direct future growth to other 
highways through travel demand forecasting efforts 

90



 
  
 
 

 
 
 

Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

Chapter I 
Page 10 

2. Ridership/Passenger Reports – Annual reports on ridership and passengers for transit and airports can 
provide information regionally or confirm growth as a trailing indicator 

3. Fuel Sales – Annual sales numbers for fuels in Idaho can be grouped in categories such as gasoline, diesel, 
and jet fuel to affirm growth predicted by leading indicators 

 

 

Table I.7. Idaho Growth Indicators 2010-2018 
 

 
Category 

Year 
Growth in Period 

 2010 2017/18 

Le
ad

in
g 

In
di

ca
to

rs
 

Idaho Population  
($ Millions) 1.57 1.72 9.6% 

Driver’s License Surrenders  
($ Thousands) * 39.8 49 23.1% 

Residential Building Permits  
(Annual) 1723 7915 359.4% 

Idaho Gross Domestic Product 
($ Millions) 55.1 72.3 31.2% 

Idaho – Total Employment  
(Thousands) ** 603 717 18.9% 

Tr
ai

lin
g 

In
di

ca
to

rs
 Annual Vehicle Miles Traveled  

(Billions) 15.5 17.3 11.6% 

Boise Airport Ridership  
(Annual, Millions) * 2.6 3.5 34.6% 

Fuel Sales 
(Billions of Gallons)*** 1.1 1.3 16.7% 

*Period of Data 2013-2017/18 
**Total Non-Farm Employment 

91



 
  
 
 

 
 
 

Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

Chapter I 
Page 11 

Figure I.4. AVMT 

Source: ITD, 2019 

 

Idaho’s population growth has an impact on the transportation network. Figure I.4 presents Annual Vehicle Miles 
Traveled (AVMT), which is the total number of miles traveled on all state highways and roads in a given calendar 
year. Between 2014 and 2017, Idaho experienced growth rates not seen since the late 1990s. While the growth 
rates of these time periods might be similar, the more recent growth is numerically greater than the 1990s by 
hundreds of millions of vehicle miles traveled. 

In the past, AVMT was highly correlated with growth. While short-term trends may still correlate with growth, new 
parameters such as mixed-use development, telecommuting, and flex scheduling for work forces influence these 
trends. To mitigate the impact to long-range forecasting from changes in highway use, ITD considers the effects of 
ride sharing (i.e., occupancy rates), mode split (transportation options such as transit, biking, or telecommuting), 
and land use (such as mixed-use development) in its travel demand model. 

Using a five-year running average of numeric growth for AVMT in Idaho to compare the trends in the State Highway 
System and Local Highways, Figure I.5 demonstrates short-term changes in AVMT do not always correlate between 
systems. The portions of the graph which fall below zero are periods in which AVMT declined on the system. 

92



 
  
 
 

 
 
 

Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

Chapter I 
Page 12 

Figure I.5. Average AVMT 

 
Source: ITD, 2019 

ITD’s Transportation Asset Management Plan accounts for growth on an annual basis by using a pavement 
management system that recalibrates each section of highway with updated pavement condition and traffic 
information. Figure I.6 presents an example of how a typical section recalibrates its predicted pavement life cycle. 

-0.2

0.3

0.8

1.3

2000 2002 2004 2006 2008 2010 2012 2014 2016

Five Year Running Average of Numerical Growth to AVMT 
State Highway System vs. Local Highways  

State Highways System Local Highways

Ch
an

ge
 in

 A
VM

T 
(B

ill
io

ns
) 

93



 
  
 
 

 
 
 

Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

Chapter I 
Page 13 

Figure I.6. Asset Management - Pavement Performance Example 

 
Source: ITD, 2019 

Growth Impacts on the Transportation Network 
Population and/or economic growth is observationally confirmed as new structures are built. 
Residential, commercial and industrial buildings have a predictable impact on travel in an area 
and can result in induced future growth. Understanding investment timelines and trip generation 
from development is critical to a better understanding of how economic and population growth 
may impact a transportation system.  

Short-term economic and population growth tends to have a more localized impact to the transportation 
network. Development investments that can produce return within a 1- to 10-year time span are economically 
related to short-term growth. Small single-family housing, infill development, and small commercial developments 
all produce vehicular trips that can result in impacts to an existing local network but in most cases will not produce 
impacts outside of the local network with any significance. However, multiple short-term growth events in a single 
community could produce impacts similar to larger impacts outlined under the mid-term growth section below. 

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

1 3 5 7 9 11 13 15 17 19

Example of Performance Curve  
Hypothetical Section of Highway 

Base Performance Curve

Year 8 Measuremant and Calibrated Pavement Life

Year 9 Measuremant and Calibrated Pavement Life (After Preservation Treatment)

Pavement Treatment Applied 

Pavement Treatment Thresholds 

Preservation 

Restoration 

Rehabilitation 

Reconstruction 

Year in Pavement Life 

O
ve

ra
ll 

Co
nd

iti
on

 In
de

x,
 O

CI
 

Measured Performance 

94



 
  
 
 

 
 
 

Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

Chapter I 
Page 14 

Types of transportation improvements that can accommodate short-term economic and population growth 
include, but are not limited to: 

• Traffic signal construction 
• Intersection modifications, such as added turn lanes 
• Minor transit modifications and ride sharing 
• Active transportation infrastructure  

Mid-term economic and population growth impacts the regional transportation network. Development 
investments that can produce a return within a 10- to 20-year time span are economically related to mid-term 
growth. Larger commercial and retail developments generate trips that originate from neighboring cities. Multi-
family housing developments tend to have higher occupancy turnover than single-family housing, causing changes 
in origin-destination patterns. Large single-family communities or master plan communities tend to build out in 
phases resulting in incremental impacts to the local and regional transportation network. As with short-term 
growth, multiple mid-term growth developments can result in impacts outlined under long-term growth scenarios 
discussed below. Types of transportation improvements that can accommodate mid-term economic and 
population growth include, but not limited to: 

• Highway widening (in conformity with local comprehensive plans) 
• Corridor-wide signal modifications or improvements 
• Innovative intersection improvements 
• Minor construction of new highways (less than 2 miles) 
• Transit routing and expansion 

Long-term economic and population growth results in impacts that extend beyond a regional transportation 
network. These can be impacts to commodity flow to accommodate new industrial investments or population 
changes. Development investments that can produce a return within a timespan greater than 20 years are 
economically related to long-term growth. High-rise buildings have lengthy zoning and building processes and 
require heavy capital investment prior to the opening of such developments. Industrial development also requires 
large capital investment and usually requires continued operation over the long term. Types of transportation 
improvements that can accommodate long-term economic and population growth include, but not limited to: 

• Interstate capacity improvements 
• Conversion from intersections to interchanges 
• Major new highway construction 
• New transit options 

Table I.8 provides guidance on trip generation from various development types. 

95



 
  
 
 

 
 
 

Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

Chapter I 
Page 15 

Table I.8. Trip Generation Quick Reference 

Zoning Growth Type Unit Type Daily Trip 
Generation 

Trips in       
Peak Hour 

Residential Population 
Growth 

1 Single Family 
House 10 1 

1 Apartment 7 0.7 

Commercial 
Economic 
Growth 

1,000 sqft Retail 38 4.2 

1,000 sqft Office 10 1.5 

Industrial 1,000 sqft Industrial 5 0.9 

Round numbers based on ITE Trip Generation Report, 10th Edition 

Analysis of Growth and Transportation in Idaho 

ITD requested input from stakeholders on possible influencing factors for future growth scenarios, 
such as natural resources and economic conditions. Through outreach efforts conducted for this 
plan, stakeholders indicated future predictions based on their belief that 1) continued high growth 
was likely, 2) growth would be variable from year to year, or 3) continued high growth was unlikely. 
Table I.9 presents the results from 72 transportation professionals and elected officials.  

Table I.9. Scenario Planning Results IDAGO 2040 
 

 Likely Continued High 
Growth 

Growth Variable Year to 
Year 

Unlikely Continued High 
Growth 

Votes 40 30 2 

Percentage 56% 42% 3% 

ITD interprets the results to indicate that it would be an acceptable assumption for future forecasting that minor 
fluctuations in economic markets might have short-term influence on growth, but as long as Idaho has a 
comparably low cost of living, low unemployment, and available natural resources, growth can be expected at 
rates higher than national averages.  

The driver’s license surrenders information provides nearly a real-time analysis of population growth among 
drivers in Idaho. In addition to knowing how many more drivers have relocated to Idaho in a given month, ITD also 
tracks information on states of origin for new Idahoans. Table I.10 presents the Driver’s License Surrender 
Summary for 2017.  

96



 
  
 
 

 
 
 

Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

Chapter I 
Page 16 

Table I.10. 2017 Driver’s License Surrenders in Idaho Total and Top 10 States 
 

Rank Total 46,951 

1 CA 11,293 

2 WA 7,354 

3 UT 3,510 

4 OR 3,446 

5 AZ 2,030 

6 CO 1,943 

7 NV 1,816 

8 TX 1,717 

9 MT 1,423 

10 FL 902 

For the same period, according to the U.S. Census Bureau, Table I.11 presents the top ten states in numeric growth 
from 2016 to 2017.  

Table I.11. Top 10 States in Numeric Growth: 2016 to 2017 

Source: U.S. Census Data 

The four fastest and six of the top ten fastest numerically growing states are in the top ten states for driver’s 
license surrenders in Idaho. ITD interprets this as an affirmation of the results of stakeholder outreach outlined 
above. ITD expects continued growth from residents relocating to Idaho from other states if those other states also 
have high numeric growth. 

Rank Name 2010 2016 2017 Numeric 
growth 

1 Texas 25,146,100 27,904,862 28,304,596 399,734 

2 Florida 18,804,594 20,656,589 20,984,400 327,811 

3 California 37,254,518 39,296,476 39,536,653 240,177 

4 Washington 6,724,545 7,280,934 7,405,743 124,809 

5 North Carolina 9,535,721 10,156,689 10,273,419 116,730 

6 Georgia 9,688,690 10,313,620 10,429,379 115,759 

7 Arizona 6,392,309 6,908,642 7,016,270 107,628 

8 Colorado 5,029,325 5,530,105 5,607,154 77,049 

9 Tennessee 6,346,295 6,649,404 6,715,984 66,580 

10 South Carolina 4,625,381 4,959,822 5,024,369 64,547 

97



 
  
 
 

 
 
 

Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

Chapter I 
Page 17 

Design Constraints of the State Highway System 

The State Highway System has yet to meet full capacity build out in many locations across Idaho. However, there 
are areas of the State Highway System that currently have no additional right-of-way for expansion. As ITD 

programs capacity-increasing projects such as highway widening, these areas will 
become more numerous in Idaho. As the State Highway System approaches a 
build-out scenario, ITD will have to look at alternative solutions to maintain 
mobility in built-out corridors. Innovative solutions will be needed on Idaho’s 
Interstate and intercity arterial highways as they reach functional capacity limits. 
As a generalization of capacity calculations, arterial highways will reach maximum 
capacity efficiency at six traffic lanes (three in each direction) and Interstate 
highways will reach maximum capacity at eight to ten traffic lanes (four to five in 
each direction) based on design elements such as distance between interchanges 

and acceleration/deceleration lane widths.  

Examples of constraints to arterial highways that limit capacity efficiency at more than six traffic lanes are: 

• Increased signal delay for turns, vehicular crossings, and pedestrian crossings 
• Increased delay from traffic weaving to make right or left turns 

Examples of constraints to Interstate highways that limit capacity efficiency at more than eight to ten lanes of traffic are: 

• Traffic weaving (i.e., the general crossing of lanes to exit) can increase delay 
• Left-lane exits can increase the capacity efficiency of wider highways but also reduce the economic 

benefits due to increased costs for added infrastructure 

Recognizing the limitations of such sections of highway in the future, ITD will consider innovative solutions to 
increase the capacity of Interstate and arterial highways of the State Highway System. 

Preparing for the Future 
Growing congestion and delay on highways was a concern identified by the public 
and stakeholders during ITD’s outreach. In response, ITD staff researched various 
congestion measures used in other states and determined their state of readiness 
for implementation based on the availability of information, if the measure is 
public friendly, and if the underlying information and analysis is useful for ITD’s 
project selection process. Table I.12 outlines various statewide-applicable 
congestion measurements and ITD’s assessment of each.  
 

 

98



 
  
 
 

 
 
 

Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

Chapter I 
Page 18 

Table I.12. Idaho Transportation Department Congestion Measurement Readiness 

Congestion Measures 
Used in Other States 

Statewide, Corridor 
or Segment Specific 

Ready for 
Implementation Public Friendly 

Technically Useful 
for Congestion 

Mitigation Project 
Selection 

Ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 to

 S
ta

te
w

id
e 

Co
ng

es
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
m

en
t 

Average incident 
clearance time Statewide Some Development 

Needed Yes Yes 

Per Person Delay Statewide Some Development 
Needed Yes Yes 

Percent of days 
with Severe 
Congestion 

Statewide/Corridor/
Segment 

Some Development 
Needed Yes Yes 

Percent of 
System 
Congested 

Statewide Some Development 
Needed Yes Yes 

Duration of 
Congestion 
(Length of Peak) 

Statewide/Corridor Some Development 
Needed Yes Yes 

Commute 
Congestion Statewide Some Development 

Needed Yes No 

Emissions Statewide Immediate Yes No 

 

In addition to statewide congestion measurements, ITD researched and assessed congestion measurements that 
are applicable to corridors and segments of highway, as shown in Table I.13. These measures tend to produce 
information that cannot be projected across an entire network. 

99



 
  
 
 

 
 
 

Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

Chapter I 
Page 19 

Table I.13. Idaho Transportation Congestion Measurement Readiness 

Congestion Measures 
Used in Other States 

Statewide, Corridor 
or Segment Specific 

Ready for 
Implementation Public Friendly 

Technically Useful 
for Congestion 

Mitigation Project 
Selection 

Co
rr

id
or

 a
nd

 S
eg

m
en

t S
pe

ci
fic

 C
on

ge
st

io
n 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t 

Average peak 
travel time 

Corridor/Segment 
Specific Immediate Yes Yes 

Vehicle 
Throughput 

Corridor/Segment 
Specific Immediate Yes Yes 

Before and After 
Analysis Segment Specific Immediate* Yes Yes 

Routinely 
congested 
segments 

Segment Specific Some Development 
Needed Yes Yes 

Person 
Throughput 

Corridor/Segment 
Specific 

Some Development 
Needed Yes Yes 

95th percentile 
reliable travel 

time 

Corridor/Segment 
Specific 

Some Development 
Needed No No 

Lost Throughput 
Productivity 

Corridor/Segment 
Specific 

Intensive 
Development 

Needed 
No Yes 

Maximum 
Throughput 

Travel Time Index 
(MT3I) 

Corridor/Segment 
Specific 

Intensive 
Development 

Needed 
No No 

*Implementation could be immediate, but results would be published after projects are complete 

  

100



 
  
 
 

 
 
 

Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

Chapter I 
Page 20 

Recommendations 

Idaho has experienced a high pace of economic and population growth since 2010, which has impacted the 
highways of the Gem State. Having transportation professionals located around Idaho working for state, regional, 
and local agencies that understand the impacts of growth on transportation is essential for navigating 
transportation issues through 2040. The information contained in this chapter is intended to inform the public, 
stakeholders, and transportation professionals on important factors in transportation across Idaho. The 
recommendations below will help contribute to better transportation solutions for Idaho through 2040. 

1.1 Continue to work with Idaho’s Congressional delegation to secure ongoing support for federal funding 
to meet Idaho’s diverse transportation needs; continue aggressively pursuing federal discretionary 
grants and other funding opportunities. 

1.2 Continue to build relationships with the Idaho Legislature to assure support for new and additional 
funding sources to meet expanding transportation needs in Idaho. 

1.3 Develop a customer-friendly performance measure for congestion. 

1.4 Further invest in training, technologies, and services that can provide the best possible information 
regarding the condition and performance of highways in Idaho. 

1.5 Inform and train transportation professionals on the impacts of population and economic growth on 
the State Highway System and statewide trends in travel patterns. 

1.6 Use guidance from this plan to reinforce best practices in long-term land-use and transportation 
planning when invited to participate in local land-use work-groups or decisions. 

1.7 Continue aggressively pursuing federal discretionary grants and other funding opportunities. 

1.8 Prepare for an updated assessment of transportation funding in Idaho by the year 2020 by preparing 
estimates for the costs to maintain various levels of service for mobility and state of good repair while 
accounting for aging infrastructure.  

1.9 Partner with stakeholders and the public to best modify, adjust or expand the State Highway System. 

1.10 Collaborate with local transportation agencies on travel demand management strategies and public 
transit options that reduce trips on the State Highway System.

101



 
  
 
 

 
 
 

Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

Chapter II 
Page 21 

II. Modal Planning 
Introduction to Planning 

Idaho has much to offer its residents and guests: a unique history, employment 
prospects, inviting cities, recreational opportunities, and attractions. ITD is 
dedicated to ensuring people can safely access their desired destinations. To do 
this, the Department must take into consideration every aspect of state travel 
from the planning process to the operation of state highways. In Idaho, there is a 
significant variance in the need for planning and investing in transportation.  

One way the Department maximizes investment dollars is through the planning process. As outlined in FHWA’s The 
Transportation Planning Process Key Issues: “transportation planning plays a fundamental role in the state, region 
or community’s vision for its future. It includes a comprehensive consideration of possible strategies; an evaluation 
process that encompasses diverse viewpoints; the collaborative participation of relevant transportation-related 
agencies and organization; and open, timely, and meaningful public involvement.”  

ITD’s planning process follows a multidisciplinary-multimodal planning approach with the combined expertise of 
planners, engineers, project managers, research analysists, financial specialists, GIS experts, and many others. This 
approach is grounded in research, forecasting data, and analytics which enables ITD to deliver thoughtful and 
comprehensive roadmaps for strategic transportation planning, corridor assessments, as well as the development 
of complex projects that meet the needs of the citizens and visitors of Idaho. The modes of transportation ITD 
considers include: 

• Active Transportation – (e.g., Bicycle, Pedestrian) 
• Aeronautics – (e.g., Private and Commercial Aircraft)  
• Freight – (e.g., Truck, Rail, Aircraft, Watercraft)  
• Public Transportation – (e.g., Bus, Van Pool) 
• Privately Operated Vehicles – (e.g., Automobile, Motorcycle, Registered Recreational Vehicle)  

ITD recognizes this list may change with new developments in infrastructure, technology, and vehicles. For 
example, ITD must consider potential new modes of transportation such as connected and autonomous vehicles, 
commuter rail, and electric bicycles as demand and available transportation options evolve. 

ITD dedicates a Subject Matter Expert (SME) for each mode of transportation. This staff person serves as the ultimate 
source of knowledge, expertise, and experience for the mode. For each transportation mode, the SME is responsible for: 

• Making policy recommendations to the Idaho Transportation Board 
• Managing the associated statewide modal planning document 
• Administering representative committees (including advisory or administrative boards) 
• Directing applicable public and stakeholder involvement 

 
ITD’s organizational structure also integrates safety, mobility, and economic opportunity 
considerations with each transportation mode. Through the modal planning process, ITD 
develops planning for specific modes of transportation by creating a planning “tool box” for 
decision makers and project managers. The following sections provide brief overviews of how ITD 
addresses each mode; how the ITD mission is addressed; how program funds are administered 
and distributed; and what the future brings for modal planning.  

102



 
  
 
 

 
 
 

Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

Chapter II 
Page 22 

Active Transportation Planning 

Active transportation refers to any self-propelled, human-powered mode of transportation, such as bicycling and 
walking.  ITD employs an SME dedicated to bicycle/pedestrian planning and to manage the Department’s Bicycle 
and Pedestrian Program. This Program is primarily focused on statewide coordination and long-range planning and 
is organized around the 5 E’s of planning and coordination: education; encouragement; engineering; 
enforcement; and evaluation.  

The Idaho Transportation Board has adopted a policy 
on bicycle and pedestrian activities that states: “The 
Idaho Transportation Board is committed to achieving 
a safe, effective, and balanced multimodal 

transportation system that includes 
accommodations for bicyclists, pedestrians, and 
pedestrians with disabilities where they are 
appropriate for the context and function of the 
transportation facility along with motorized 
transportation modes. The Department shall follow 
and use American Association of State Highway 
and Transportation Officials requirements to 
establish standards and specifications for the 
provision of bicycle and pedestrian facilities in 
conjunction with highway projects.”   

ITD’s Administrative Policy establishes a statewide 
Bicycle and Pedestrian Coordinator and a Bicycle and 
Pedestrian Administrative Committee made up of 
professional staff and SMEs to carry out the Board’s 
policy on bicycle and pedestrian transportation. 

Both policies encourage and respect local planning 
efforts through ITD conformance with regard to 
bicycle and pedestrian facilities when constructing 
projects on the state highways within a local 
jurisdiction. ITD works continually to strengthen 
partnerships with local jurisdictions in considering 
and developing bicycle and pedestrian facilities. In 
addition to its policies on bicycle and pedestrian 
transportation, ITD has developed a bicycle and 
pedestrian plan, bicycle and pedestrian study, a 
bicycle route analysis tool (presented in Figure II.1), 
and various safety manuals to help citizens with 
safe, effective, active transportation in Idaho. 
Continuously reviewing, updating, and seeking 
public and stakeholder input on the guidance 
documents will be integral for active transportation 
safety and mobility improvements. 

Source: ITD, 2019 – Bicycle Route Analysis Tool 
 

A guide to help bicyclists plan for long distance 
bicycle trips in Idaho. 

Figure II.1. Bicycle Route Analysis Tool 

103



 
  
 
 

 
 
 

Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

Chapter II 
Page 23 

Figure II.2. Airport Role Classifications 

Although no direct funding is provided for this program, funding opportunities for bicycle and pedestrian projects 
include (but are not limited to and may change at any time):  

• Transportation Alternatives Program  

• Child Pedestrian Safety Program (administered by Local Highway Technical Assistance Council [LHTAC]) 

• Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Curb Ramp Replacement Program.  

The Bicycle and Pedestrian Coordinator works closely with local communities to access available funding programs 
when opportunities arise. 

As Idaho’s transportation needs change over time, ITD will continuously review its commitment to active 
transportation to maximize the effectiveness of available funding to improve safety, mobility, and economic 
opportunities as they relate to active transportation. ITD continually pursues opportunities to collect data and 
perform analysis of active transportation demands and needs. ITD’s outreach efforts have shown that access to 
active transportation options is integral for quality of life in Idaho. ITD will continue to pursue opportunities to 
provide sidewalks, shared highway lanes that are efficient for neighborhoods and low-traffic highways, bike lanes 
for commuters, shared use paths to connect developments, wide shoulders to connect cities, and improved 
highways that connect to off-road trailheads. 
 

Aeronautics Planning 

The ITD Division of Aeronautics has a 
long history in aviation. From serving 
the state’s backcountry to providing 
opportunities for international 
passenger travel and meeting the needs 

of businesses, airports are an integral component of the 
transportation system. In addition to serving 
transportation needs, Idaho’s airports support the 
economy through the creation of jobs, provision of 
emergency transport and access, and facilitation of a 
flourishing tourism sector in the Gem State.  

ITD’s Division of Aeronautics recognizes 
the significance of a proactive approach 
to ensuring aviation’s role in the 
statewide transportation system and 
oversees a variety of airports including 
commercial service, regional business, 

community business, local recreational, and basic 
service airports (illustrated in Figure II.2).  The Division 
uses planning to link statewide aviation services to 
essential aviation programs, services, and projects 
which ultimately develops and fosters an exemplary 
system of airports to meet the current and future 
requirements of a growing and diverse Idaho aviation 
community. 

In addition to oversight by the Idaho Transportation Board, the Division receives direction and 
recommendations from two advisory groups: the Idaho Aeronautics Advisory Board (AAB) and the 

104



 
  
 
 

 
 
 

Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

Chapter II 
Page 24 

Idaho Airstrip Network (IAN). The AAB is a five-member group, appointed by the Governor to review, comment 
upon, and recommend policies, direction, and grant projects for the Division on an advisory basis. The IAN is 
specifically tasked to review and make recommendations for the United States Forest Service (USFS) and public 
airports in Idaho.  

The Division of Aeronautics has five sections that provides valuable planning and programs for aviation users and 
the state:  

• The Airport Planning & Development Section provides various levels of both direct and indirect support to 
owners, managers, and users of public-use municipal airports throughout Idaho while leading the overall 
statewide airport planning effort for a safer, more economical and accessible aviation system. In the future, this 
Section intends to promote development of new software to manage the capital improvement and grant 
programs; provide specific procedures, agreements, and fees for Through the Fence users at community and 
state airports; and develop Pavement Management Guidelines for community construction projects. 

• The Airport Maintenance Section operates and maintains airports throughout the state by providing 
runway surfacing, vegetation control, rodent control, irrigation systems, and safety improvements. Since 
the Department does not own some of these airports, aeronautics has operating leases from other state 
or federal agencies. In the future, this Section will study the effects of increased fees at state airports and 
the impact this may have on users with limited budgets, continue scheduled acquisition and replacement 
of equipment at state airports, and develop new revenue sources for operations, equipment, and 
maintenance budgets, while balancing between desired and needed investments. 

• The Flight Operations Section provides safe, efficient, on-demand air transportation. This Section provides 
as-needed scheduling and air transportation to elected officials and state employees in the state-owned 
aircraft, emergency response services for State Police and other agencies, and staff transportation for 
efficiencies of state aeronautics programs and airports.  

• The Safety and Education Section provides aviation safety programs, pilot and public aviation education, 
and critical aerial search operations for downed, missing, or overdue aircraft.  

• The Administrative Section provides general administrative duties and administers the Division budget, 
accounts payable, capital expenses, program-funding levels, ongoing aircraft and dealer registration and 
fee payment services, the computer replacement program, and out-of-state travel support. 

To address the state’s aviation challenges, the Division developed the Idaho Airport System Plan 
(IASP) under the direction of the ITD Board, the AAB, and the Idaho Airstrip Network (IAN). The 
IASP follows a strategic approach to provide a blueprint for aviation facilities to ensure Idaho’s 
future system of airports meets the state’s aviation safety and infrastructure needs and the 
system’s contribution to the overall economy. The IASP also provides input for federal planning 

documents. The Federal Aviation Administration’s (FAA’s) National Plan of Integrated Airport Systems (NPIAS) is 
updated every two years and provides funding for eligible airport development from the Airport Improvement 
Program (AIP). Airports must be included in the NPIAS for their projects to be eligible for AIP funding. Aeronautic 
planning recommendations from the IASP are included in the NPIAS.  

The IASP is ITD’s comprehensive plan for linking statewide aviation facilities with those of the nation and the 
world. Idaho’s system plan also works in concert with Idaho’s Transportation Vision. The Transportation Vision 
examines all of the state’s transportation needs and sets the direction for making improvements and investments 
in all modes of transportation.  

105



 
  
 
 

 
 
 

Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

Chapter II 
Page 25 

Freight Planning 

Freight planning at ITD encompasses freight from a multimodal perspective. While ITD’s major focus is trucking, the 
Freight Program additionally addresses freight railroads, air cargo, and watercraft from the Port of Lewiston. Pipelines 
in Idaho carry a significant amount of petroleum products but are not typically included in the planning process.  

ITD employs an SME dedicated to freight planning and to manage the Department’s 
Freight Program. The Freight Program Manager works with agencies throughout 
Idaho to identify freight movement, determine needs, and allocate federal freight 
funding where necessary. The Freight Program Manager is advised by the Freight 
Advisory Committee and internal ITD staff. The Idaho Freight Advisory Committee is 
comprised of representatives from various freight-related or freight-reliant agencies 
from throughout Idaho with members appointed by the Idaho Transportation 

Board. The ITD Freight Program Manager 
is the ITD liaison to the Committee. This 
Committee provides the Department 
with stakeholder input on freight issues 
and provides significant input to freight 
project prioritization and critical freight 
corridor selection. 

In December 2015, the Fixing America’s 
Surface Transportation (FAST) Act was 
enacted and formally established the 
freight program on a national level. The 
Act included both discretionary (formula) 
and grant funding for freight-related 
projects, with most of the funding 
designated for improving highway freight 
mobility and safety projects. The FAST 
Act also requires development of state 
freight plans and encourages state 
freight advisory committees. The Idaho 
Statewide Freight Strategic Plan and the 
Idaho Freight Advisory Committee are 
the foundations for the freight program 
and associated planning. 

In February 2017 ITD published and the 
U.S. Department of Transportation 
approved the Statewide Freight 
Strategic Plan which provides analysis 
and identifies needs and issues for each 
freight mode. The document also 
includes an implementation plan which 
identifies freight projects in five-, ten- 
and twenty-year timeframes. As 
required by the FAST Act, the five-year 
projects are budget constrained and are 

Idaho’s Multimodal 
Freight Network and 

Freight Reliant Business 
Locations 

Figure II.3. Idaho’s Multimodal Freight Network 

Source: ITD, 2019 

106



 
  
 
 

 
 
 

Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

Chapter II 
Page 26 

the basis for executing the federal freight formula funds. This budget-constrained project list is updated as 
required for inclusion in the ITIP and with coordination from the Freight Advisory Committee and the five 
metropolitan planning organizations (MPOs). Finally, to obligate federal freight formula funds, projects must 
either be on an Idaho Interstate or on a designated critical urban or critical rural freight corridor which are also 
fully coordinated through the Freight Advisory Committee and MPOs. 

ITD also maintains a State Rail Plan which identifies railroad-specific needs and issues. Rail plans are required by 
the Federal Railroad Administration for those states seeking capital grants under the Passenger Rail Investment 
and Improvement Act (PRIIA). While ITD maintains a rail plan, passenger rail is very limited in Idaho with a single 
passenger rail facility in Sandpoint. Accordingly, Idaho has not requested PRIIA funds and ITD staff do not expect to 
make a request in the near future. 

A final element in freight planning is the 129,000-pound trucking program. Idaho allows 129,000-pound vehicles 
with divisible loads on Interstates and approved state highways. The program requires stakeholders to request 
sections of highways they desire for 129,000-pound trucking operations. Upon request receipt, the Freight 
Program Manager develops the highway evaluations in coordination with the applicable District, Bridge Asset 
Management, and the Office of Highway Safety, while the Office of Communications collects public feedback on 
each request. The Chief Engineer presents each evaluation to the 129,000 Pound Trucking Subcommittee and 
eventually to the Idaho Transportation Board to make the final determination. Approved routes through the state 
continue to develop but are somewhat disjointed due to the request requirements and process. Any future 
planning should include efforts to address 129,000-pound trucking on a statewide level. 

 

Public Transportation Planning 

Public transportation planning takes into consideration fixed-route bus service, demand-response service, human-
service transportation, rideshare (i.e., carpool and vanpool), car sharing, and other public conveyances. ITD’s 
Division of Public Transportation (ITD-PT) is the responsible entity for the management and guidance of all rural 
and assigned small urban programs, and all State of Idaho funding dedicated to public transportation. The Public 
Transportation Advisory Council (PTAC) was established by Idaho Code and advises the Idaho Transportation Board 
on issues, policies, and performance concerning public transportation services in Idaho. The PTAC works to ensure 
the public transportation program is safe, financially sustainable within the current funding constraints, and 
capable of appropriately adjusting to the changing transportation landscape. Figure II.4 illustrates ITD-PT’s efforts 
toward meeting the Department’s mission.  

 

107



 
  
 
 

 
 
 

Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

Chapter II 
Page 27 

Gaps 

Needs 

• Human Service Programs 
• Medical 
• Regional Destinations 
• Education/Campus 

• Recreational 
• Shopping/Recreation 
• Airport Access 
• Employment 

Figure II.4. Public Transportation Connection to ITD Mission  

 

Source: ITD, 2019 

In April 2018, the Idaho Transportation Board adopted the ITD Statewide Public Transportation Plan. This plan was 
also supplemented by the FTA-required Locally Coordinated Human Service Transportation Plans completed in 
2018. Additionally, a 2010 Intercity Bus Study was conducted and will be updated as needed.  

ITD-PT’s transit planning efforts are critical elements to enhance Idaho’s current highway 
infrastructure and offer viable solutions and options for moving people, services, and goods. 
Modal coordination and planning at the statewide level, and in particular during the long-range 
planning efforts, ensures a more integrated and connected transportation system.  

Through the planning process and the application and award phase, the PT office and transit stakeholders strive to meet 
the future mobility needs of Idahoans by considering congestion mitigation opportunities, anticipating the growth on 
state highway infrastructure, establishing processes for transit on state highway right of way, planning for bus rapid 
transit or light rail needs, and staying apprised and engaged on the topic of electric and autonomous vehicles. 

Figure II.5: Public Transportation Gaps and Needs 

Source: ITD, 2019 

Safety 

Ensure Safety and Security    
of Public Transportation 

Mobility 

Encourage Public Transportation     
as an important element of an 

effective multi-modal                          
transportation system in Idaho 

Preserve the existing public 
transportation network 

Economic 
Opportunity 

Provide a transportation 
system that drives economic 

opportunity 

108



 
  
 
 

 
 
 

Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

Chapter II 
Page 28 

The PT office and transit stakeholders have a strong interest in identifying and understanding future impacts on 
the current state of transit and the way transit operates. Figure II.5 presents known public transportation gaps and 
needs. Innovative funding solutions are needed to help meet public transportation gaps and needs statewide.  

Privately Owned Vehicle Planning 

Infrastructure Planning (Highways and Bridges) 

Transportation and infrastructure planning takes into consideration privately owned vehicles such as cars, 
recreational vehicles, and motorcycles. During the transportation planning process, ITD defines future policies, 
goals, investments, infrastructure needs, and lifecycles to ensure people and goods reach their destinations. 
Transportation infrastructure planning is a collaborative process that incorporates the input of stakeholders 
including federal, state, and local government agencies; the general public; and business owners. Transportation 
planners apply a comprehensive approach to analyzing the wide range of alternatives and impacts on the 
transportation system. 

Highway Safety Planning 

An important component of infrastructure planning is safety. The 2016-2020 Strategic Highway 
Safety Plan (SHSP) outlines the Department’s detailed strategy on highway safety. ITD collaborates 
with the Idaho Traffic Safety Commission (ITSC) in carrying out highway safety initiatives outlined 
in the SHSP. ITD integrates highway safety into its work using the “4 E’s” of safety planning – 
engineering, education, enforcement, and emergency medical services.  

The Office of Highway Safety (OHS) has implemented a “Towards Zero Deaths” initiative for the state of Idaho. The 
goal for the year 2020 is to reduce the annual traffic deaths in Idaho to 185 or fewer. ITD’s OHS uses a proactive 
evaluation process to ensure a successful roadway safety program. Through the evaluation process, the OHS 
analyzes overall processes and performance that determine whether current activities deserve enhancement, 
revision, or replacement. 

The “4 E’s” and the three focus areas are encompassed in ITD’s behavioral and infrastructure programs. The 
federally funded Highway Safety Improvement Program is integrated in the Department’s Safety and Capacity 
(S&C) Program. This allows these federal funds to be leveraged with other federal funds through capacity-related 
programs and with state programs to allow the Department to do more “Towards Zero Deaths.”  

Mobility and Congestion Management 

The S&C funding program leverages funding from several federal and state sources 
for candidate projects that address safety and capacity issues on the State Highway 
System. The S&C program uses a competitive data-assisted process that evaluates 
candidate projects and optimizes the amount of funding available towards the 
Department’s mission of safety, mobility, and economic opportunity. Capacity 

project candidates analyzed through S&C can leverage the Transportation Expansion and Congestion Mitigation 
(TECM) Program funds. TECM is a state-funded program created in 2017. ITD considers travel-time savings for 
individuals in its return on investment analysis for highway projects, which is an accepted practice of quantifying 
a quality of life improvement by assigning a value to personal time savings. The Congestion Mitigation and Air 
Quality (CMAQ) policy addresses how ITD will specifically use federally designated CMAQ funding to further 
address capacity issues. 

109



 
  
 
 

 
 
 

Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

Chapter II 
Page 29 

As transportation officials look to solve mobility issues due to congestion, the tool kit for solutions has become 
more diversified. ITD is committed to looking beyond traditional highway widening as a sole solution to capacity 
issues. Innovative designs, connected infrastructure, intelligent transportation systems, active transportation 
programs, and partnerships with local governments or transit agencies are all used at ITD and will become more 
prevalent to solve mobility issues in the future as they provide greater benefits and allow each transportation 
dollar to purchase more benefits. 

Looking forward, the citizens of Idaho can expect innovations in how ITD addresses mobility, including how it 
defines congestion. Traditionally, transportation professionals have defined congestion via an analysis called “level 
of service,” a density-based (volume/capacity) formula that can be difficult for the public to relate to experienced 
delay. The Department will explore travel-time-based metrics such as travel time reliability and delay data. 
Additionally, the Department will explore the application of travel demand management and traffic engineering 
solutions that minimize some of the adverse impacts of traditional highway widening construction projects. 
Looking forward to the future of congestion management in Idaho, ITD seeks to be a leader in solutions. 

Recommendations 

2.1 Develop an up-to-date statewide planning document for every transportation mode that 
provide current, relevant information and guidance and continuously engage the public 

2.2 Reaffirm ITD’s commitment to include local, regional, and statewide stakeholders in the modal 
planning process by gathering valuable insight, developing a larger knowledge base and leading by example. 

2.3 Coordinate internally to focus resources on a single effort when engaged in the development of a 
statewide modal plan to break down silos, focusing on discussions with stakeholders/public, and 
efficiently using staff resources. 

2.4 Implement a collaborative planning approach ensuring SMEs have access to planning staff and services 
and create consistency on planning efforts 

Commitment to these recommendations will provides functional multi-modal solutions for each corridor on the 
state highway system. 

110



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 
 
 

 Chapter IV 
Page 30 

III. Highway Data Analytics 

Introduction to Highway Data Analytics 

In recent years, highway data has played an increased role in decision making. ITD collects and 
processes data into information that is usable by staff, stakeholders, and the public. Figure III.1 
illustrates the relationship between data and information in practice at ITD.  

Figure III.1. ITD Data and Information Definitions 

 

Data: An actual occurrence or condition represented electronically, numerically, or textually 

Information: One or more sets of data arranged to produce meaningful results or data with context. 

 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Technology advancements in how highway data is collected and processed continue to drive mission-based goals of:  

• Meeting a higher standard of accuracy and precision 
• Managing a larger flow of data 
• Maintaining larger sets of information  

 

For example, information concerning the operational performance of the transportation network continues to 
grow in extent and coverage. In some cases, annually collected data is now being gathered and used in real time. 
The pace of advancements and the integral role of data in ITD’s program delivery underscore the need for well-
thought-out information systems, data governance, adherence to data collection standards, and established best 
practices in data analysis to meet ITD and stakeholders needs now and into the future.  

  

Data Information 

111



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 
 
 

 Chapter IV 
Page 31 

Quality-Centric Model 

ITD compiles data and uses defined processes to develop information that informs the decision-
making process. A core value within ITD is to make “data-assisted” decisions. Confident decision-
making is reliant upon high-quality data and information. ITD understands quality must be 
central to all work associated with data to ensure efficacy of decisions derived from its use. To 
meet these needs, ITD has developed a Quality-Centric Model for ensuring quality highway data 
and information. 

ITD’s Quality-Centric Model focuses on the relationships between people, process, and technology with the actions 
or concepts that connect them. 

• People – ITD staff and partners that develop or use highway data and information 
• Process – The documented steps for collecting or using highway data and information 
• Technology – The electronic platforms that allow for the work related to highway data and information 

 

People require training to use technology, documentation to follow processes, and processes that are compatible 
with technology in use. ITD defines three related concepts as follows.   

• Governance – The standards and procedures to publish, use, or maintain highway data and information 
• Effectiveness – How closely process results in intended outcome 
• Talent – Education, professional development, and experience levels of ITD employees 

 

Properly governed technology, effective processes, and talented people yield quality results. Figure III.2 illustrates 
these relationships.  

Figure III.2. Quality-Centric Model 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Source: ITD, 2019 

 

112



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 
 
 

 Chapter IV 
Page 32 

Highway Data Collection 

Since ITD relies on data-assisted decision making in funding allocations and 
operations, consistent data collection and processing is paramount. ITD achieves 
consistency because of defined methodology, procedures, standards, and best 
practices that support data collection and information management. In addition to 
physical transportation network assets, ITD also produces and maintains vital data 
and information products.  Just as ITD applies project management practices to 
the development of a construction project, so too ITD applies project management 
principles to data collection and information development. Figure III.3 provides a 
high-level illustration of ITD’s data collection and information development 
lifecycle process.  

Figure III.3.  

 

Source: ITD, 2019 
*Collection and processing of data may but need not occur simultaneously. 

 
• Initiation – Test, calibrate, and validate data collection systems; implement training and procedures to 

ensure equipment remains in working condition throughout data collection 

• Pre-Collection – Ensure the data collection equipment can record accurate, consistent data; plan to 
collect data at the correct place and time 

• Collection – Record events or conditions 

• Processing – Conduct quality assurance activities to ensure data meet collection standards 

• Delivery – Render raw data into useable formats 
 

 

Initiation Pre-Collection Collection* Processing* Delivery 

113



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 
 
 

 Chapter IV 
Page 33 

 

Highway Information 

Following the Quality-Centric Model, effective processes are a component of quality highway information.  
Table III.1 outlines how highway data and information combine to create new levels of quality highway 
information. ITD recognizes highway data and information could potentially be over processed or analyzed into 
unreliable, meaningless conclusions. ITD limits the extent source data information is projected. When given data or 
information, ITD staff will identify it as source data or information at various levels or projections according to the 
guidance in Table III.1. 

By identifying how far information is projected from source data, ITD can determine the correct role for the 
information in the applicable decision-making process.  

Table III.1. Highway Data and Information Summary 

Level Description Definition 

Data Current Conditions Actual conditions or occurrences 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

Level 1 Current Conditions Derived directly from data (data + analysis/synthesis) 

Level 2 Projection Combines two or more level 1 or data 

Level 3 Projection Analysis Combines at least level 2 with level 1 

Level 4 Enhanced Projection Analysis Combines level 2 with level two or level 3 with others 

Table III.2 presents several examples of where specific data and information fall under the levels of projection. 
 

Table III.2. 

Examples of Highway Data and Information Asset Management Travel Demand Forecasting 

Data Actual conditions or 
occurrences 

Skid, Falling Weight 
Deflectometer, Profiler 
laser/photo 

Traffic Counts 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

Level 1 Derived directly from data 
(data + analysis/synthesis) Pavement Ratings Average Daily Traffic, Land 

Use, Population 

114



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 
 
 

 Chapter IV 
Page 34 

Examples of Highway Data and Information Asset Management Travel Demand Forecasting 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

Level 2 Combines two or more 
level 1 or data 

Projected Pavement 
Ratings 

Future Land Use, Future 
Population, Current Travel 
Demand Scenarios 

Level 3 Combines at least level 2 
with level 1 Pavement Program Analysis Alternatives Analysis 

Level 4 
Combines level 2 with 
level two or level 3 with 
others 

 Future Travel Demand 

 
Topics on Highway Data and Information 

Data Analytics 

ITD uses qualitative and quantitative data analytic techniques and methods to improve 
information and efficiency in decision making. Through data analytics, ITD can identify and analyze 
enhanced data and patterns within data sets. Some of the applications in transportation include 
improving and innovating traffic analysis, projecting information on the state highway system 
from a limited data set, and increasing understanding of future travel scenarios. Additional 

applications in transportation are continuously under research, development, and testing. ITD will adopt data 
analytic methods when they provide costs savings, new and relevant information, improve decision-making ability, 
or provide public information. 

Data Collection and Analysis 

Transportation officials are increasingly reliant on data and analytics. Stakeholders, the public, and ITD 
management expect the Department to leverage data to make cost-effective decisions aligning with ITD’s 
organizational objectives. ITD collects and analyzes data to guide decisions relating to safety, project selection, 
pavement condition, and many other areas. Concurrently, technologies available to transportation departments 
are being developed at an extreme rate. To remain productive and be good stewards of tax-payer financing, ITD 
must effectively research new and emerging technologies and only adopt options meeting critical business needs. 

Numerous technologies address transportation-related data collection and analysis. ITD uses software packages 
including ESRI’s ArcGIS for data collection, management, and analysis; Agile Asset’s Transportation Asset 
Management (TAMS) software for data management and analysis; and a host of technologies such as SQL Server 
Reporting Services, Python, and Business Objects to analyze data.  

ITD’s business unit needs for data collection and analysis are vast, and ITD strives to modernize and consolidate 
appropriate tools in meeting those needs. In the future ITD will likely assess tool selection on a Department-wide 
scale to ensure multiple business units can benefit from data collection and analysis tools.  ITD will also consider 
issues related to integration, standardization, and customization of data collection/analysis tools and practices as it 
selects and deploys new tools. 

115



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 
 
 

 Chapter IV 
Page 35 

Out-of-the-box Data Analysis Tools 

In many cases, standardized data analysis tools and methodologies meet ITD business needs. Although these 
options reduce the ability to customize for specific workflows, standardization offers ease of consolidation, 
automation, and consistency in data analysis results. In the future, ITD will likely strive to standardize data analysis 
tools for implementation Department wide.   

Ad-Hoc Data Analysis Tools 

Some transportation decisions and research projects require data points from multiple sources that may or may 
not be structured for combined analysis, and off-the-shelf software may not provide the necessary tools to do this 
research properly. In these cases, ITD can perform an ad-hoc analysis, although the process is typically difficult to 
automate and standardize with a mixed toolset.  

Automated Data Collection Tools 

ITD is exploring several new traffic and pavement data collection methods such as using cellphone signals for 
traffic counts, leveraging satellites to track congestion, and using automated vehicle data to assess pavement 
condition and traffic flows. These technologies could replace some of the more manual workflows that currently 
exist. 

Data Integration 

ITD gathers, uses, and transmits an enormous amount of data from a variety of sources to its end users. 
Unfortunately, data points are too frequently isolated in silos. As data requests become more complex, ITD will 
focus on integrating datasets to optimize the analysis process. 

Third-Party Highway Data and Information 

Sharing data and information has been a common practice between public agencies, however, the production and 
solicitation of third-party data and information from private, for-profit companies is an opportunity to expand the 
data and information used in transportation decision-making. ITD takes a proactive but cautious approach to 
purchasing and using third-party data and information. 

ITD reviews data and information purchased or otherwise obtained from third-party sources (public or private) to 
ensure that it conforms to ITD standards, including accuracy (the degree to which the data reflects the “real world” 
it represents), completeness, consistency with governance, credibility and reputation of source, ease of integration 
with existing ITD data holdings, metadata (i.e., the degree of new data source documentation), data lineage, and 
other factors that contribute to overall quality. Other key factors include use of open data standards rather than 
proprietary formats, ease of use and interpretation, relevance to current and predicted data requirements, and 
currency of data being supplied. ITD also evaluates the terms of use of the new data to determine whether they 
are consistent with ITD’s status as a public agency.  

 

 

Travel Data 

116



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 
 
 

 Chapter IV 
Page 36 

The current state of travel data collection, reporting, and modeling can be cumbersome and 
incomplete. Technologies are not well integrated; however, methods are emerging that will most 
likely change these relationships. Ultimately, ongoing improvements support ITD’s twenty-year 
vision for the future of travel data:  

1. To become a clearinghouse of collected and modeled travel data in the state of Idaho 

2. To develop a safer and more efficient means of collecting and maintaining travel data, using emerging 
technologies and analysis methods 

ITD has a long history of cooperative data collection and modeling with agencies around the state. The Department 
intends to grow this relationship, providing a means for smaller agencies to feed data and model outputs to 
systems that can house them in statewide models. For example, with the geospatial tools currently available, ITD 
already provides traffic data to the public on the federal aid system. This will expand to include all paved roads in 
the state. 

Travel data collection, analysis, reporting, and modeling will continue to change. The travel 
monitoring industry has shifted from collecting speed and volume data at a single point to 
collecting a subset of volumes and travel times over a distance. However, there is no correlation 
between these data methods and information. The shift has already begun to occur to change this 
undefined relationship. Pooled funds and private research will ultimately create relationships 

between what is considered more “passive” data (such as Bluetooth and Google traffic) and more “active” data 
(such as road tubes, automatic traffic recorders, and weigh-in-motion devices). Within the next 20 years, ITD 
expects most of the active road tube collection will be limited to spot-checking and validating passive collection. 
Furthermore, significant gaps in active data completeness and collection frequency will continue to occur due to 
specific roadway challenges. ITD anticipates a time when passive data systems can be used to fill the gaps, 
providing more comprehensive information. 

Geographic Information Systems 

Almost all highway data and information have a location component, which provides an avenue to integrate and 
share data both inside and outside of the organization using Geographical Information Systems (GIS).  

ITD has recently implemented its new Linear Reference System (LRS), named Roads and 
Highways, which is a means of associating asset location, physical characteristics, and other 
information with road and mile point details. Within a GIS environment, the LRS can easily 
combine data from multiple databases to enhance analysis or planning.  

Location and GIS also provide a powerful means of sharing dating both internally and externally. ITD uses IPLAN to 
publish data within and outside of the organization in the form of dynamic web maps reflecting up-to-date and 
changing data. IPLAN leverages spatial data and information, allowing ITD personnel to create field data collection, 
public engagement, executive dashboard, and analysis applications.  

Using location is also the most feasible way to import data from outside the organization. To meet the Model 
Inventory of Roadway Elements (MIRE) safety data requirements, ITD will need to report and maintain data on 
local roads throughout the state. Conducting field data collection is neither feasible nor desirable and does not 
maximize the benefit of the technology or available resources. ITD will use its location-based tool to efficiently 
import needed data. ITD is also currently working to create an application that will allow other road agencies, such 
as cities, counties, and highway districts, to edit a copy of ITD’s roadway data within their jurisdiction. The 
Department will use available technology to help empower local organizations to improve overall data quality and 

117



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 
 
 

 Chapter IV 
Page 37 

to foster more accurate and complete datasets necessary for ITD to comply with federal regulations and reporting 
requirements in alignment with ITD’s Quality-Centric Model. 

Recommendations 

3.1 Adopt the Quality-Centric model for tasks and services which create or use 
data and information. 

3.2 Pursue data analytics to provide costs savings, discover new and relevant 
information, improve decision making ability, and provide information to the 
public. 

3.3 Pursue or create applications which allow local agencies to participate in ITD’s data and information 
collection, sharing, production, or editing. 

3.4 Pursue third party data if there is a cost savings, safety benefit, or new relevant information and the third-
party data meets ITD’s data and information guidelines. 

 

IV. New and Emerging Technologies 

Introduction to New and Emerging Technologies 

Idaho and the United States are embarking on revolutionary changes in transportation technologies. Rapidly 
developing autonomous and connected vehicles, electric and other alternate fuel source vehicles, advanced 
communications technologies, and innovative infrastructure developments are all helping shape transportation of 
the future. This section of the long-range transportation plan provides insight into technological developments and 
potential decisions the Department will face in the coming years. While ITD does not currently know how these 
technologies will ultimately develop, this section provides potential focus areas and broad recommendations on 
decision options. 

An important aspect with any technological development is to understand the societal mindset. Technologies 
typically develop through what is referred to as the “hype cycle,” where there is an initially inflated enthusiasm for 
what the new technologies will provide. This “peak of inflated expectations” is then followed by a period of 
disillusionment when the technology does not develop as expected or deliver the expected advantages. However, 
as time and technology progress, a clearer understanding of capabilities, or “enlightenment,” is followed by a 
plateau of greater understanding and development. 

118



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 
 
 

 Chapter IV 
Page 38 

Figure IV.1. Hype cycle: 

 

Source: Wikimedia Commons 

 

Autonomous, connected, and alternate fuel source vehicles are currently facing a decline, or a downward trend 
toward the “trough of disillusionment,” but we can expect that during the planning horizon of this plan, these 
technologies will eventually reach the “plateau of productivity,” which will shape the Department’s decision-
making process. 

In addition to challenges with the “hype cycle,” new technologies face development barriers primarily involving 
physical, economic, safety, and legal factors. Physical barriers can include both scientific and physical challenges 
such as battery size and range limitations with electric vehicles. Limited government budgets, low initial return on 
investment, and limited production capabilities are examples of economic barriers facing new and emerging 
technologies. Safety, especially in cases like autonomous vehicle development, presents challenges both in terms 
of practical testing and psychological factors with public acceptance. Legal barriers exist in terms of both legislation 
and litigation. Autonomous vehicles continue to face those challenges as government and private sectors struggle 
with liability and responsibility for vehicle operations. 

Despite the hype and barrier challenges, transportation may be approaching a revolutionary change primarily 
through what is termed “Mobility as a Service” (MaaS) or “Transportation as a Service” (TaaS).  Under this concept, 
transportation will move away from individual car ownership and more toward a MaaS model where individuals 
subscribe to automated vehicle services and rely more on ride-sharing services, bike-share programs, and public 
transportation. Ultimately, this affects transportation funding and transportation-related industries such as 
insurance, automobile sales, and automobile repair services. ITD staff and decision makers must understand 
possible decisions required in the future associated with these challenges and potential changes in the 
transportation system. 

 

 

119



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 
 
 

 Chapter IV 
Page 39 

Vehicles 

The automobile industry is undergoing significant disruption with the rapid development of autonomous vehicles. 
A number of companies, including ride-share organizations, project entirely autonomous vehicle fleets by 
approximately 2022. However, industry is recognizing the artificial intelligence systems required for fully 
autonomous vehicles are more complicated than originally expected and tempering development. Regardless, 
there is still rapid development and the Department will need to remain engaged with public and private agencies 
to understand when and where to expend resources to enable such vehicles.  

ITD must consider the vehicles, roadway infrastructure and systems infrastructure as a collective system, or 
cooperative automated transportation (CAT). Understanding the CAT system will aid in understanding how 
independent systems work together and will aid in future decision making. 

While highly autonomous vehicles, or self-driving cars, are most familiar to the public, the Society of Automotive 
Engineers (SAE) has developed commonly accepted definitions of autonomy as shown in Figure IV.2. 

Figure IV.2. Definitions of Autonomy         Source: Society of Automotive Engineers 

 

Along with autonomous vehicles, there is rapid development in vehicle connectivity or connected vehicles. This 
entails systems within vehicles that communicate with other vehicles (V2V), with infrastructure (V2I), and with 
other parts of the transportation systems such as bicycles, pedestrians, and construction zones (V2X). A related but 
distinct area is truck platooning where large trucks are capable of V2V communications with each other allowing 
two or more trucks to connect and follow at close distance using automated systems reducing wind drag and 
increasing fuel efficiencies. Idaho will need to develop rules and laws that allow such operations to improve the 
economic benefits associated with truck freight movement. 

Electric vehicles also continue to show rapid development. While the percentage of electric vehicles on the roads 
today remains relatively low, the rate of production and public acceptance shows there will be a marked increase 
in electric vehicle operations over the next decade.   

120



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 
 
 

 Chapter IV 
Page 40 

With the increased proliferation of alternate fuel source vehicles (including electric, propane, liquid natural gas, 
and hydrogen cell vehicles) and improved fuel efficiencies associated with these technologies, transportation 
funding will become a greater challenge. Current funding mechanisms are reliant on gas taxes, which do not 
currently meet transportation system requirements and will diminish with these technologies.  

ITD must also evaluate other types of vehicles such as electric bicycles, or e-bikes. As an example, in 2017 the City 
of Boise passed a law regarding e-bike operations on roads, sidewalks, and paths. The city developed different 
classifications with some e-bikes capable of traveling at speeds over 28 miles per hour. This faster class of bicycle 
will only be allowed on roads and not on bicycle paths, sidewalks, or cross walks. This could result in a slower, 
more vulnerable transportation mode integrating on roadways with larger vehicles. ITD does not currently have 
data on the effect e-bikes will have on traffic mobility, it is an issue the Department will need to understand as the 
technology becomes more prevalent. 

Infrastructure 

The impact of CAT could take multiple infrastructure development paths. If future vehicles rely on pavement 
markings and signage, along with electronic map files, then resources need to be planned and budgeted to meet 
these requirements. If future vehicles will instead use high precision GPS data and frequent electronic map file 
updating, then an enhanced GPS program will be required, along with dedicated communications channel(s) for 
delivery of GPS corrections and map file updates. An entire map file management and distribution system will be 
required to achieve the vision for these future vehicles. While industry research continues, systems maintenance 
responsibility remains uncertain and is something ITD will need to address. 

Additional infrastructure investment will be needed to enable safety and mobility applications for the future 
vehicles at signalized intersections, major highway junctions, and other strategic locations on the highway 
network. Signalized intersections may need to be capable of broadcasting their signal phase and timing data and 
any safety related messages, map updates, and traveler information relevant for their locations. 

Dedicated Short Range Communications (DSRC), cellular, satellite, or a combination of communications channels 
may be needed to connect to future vehicles. Some communications channel redundancy is recommended to 
provide highly reliable data delivery. 

Infrastructure requirements to serve advancing technologies will be challenging to implement in rural Idaho. If 
autonomous and connected vehicles require specialized lines and signs, local jurisdictions may have difficulty 
funding installation and upkeep. Similarly, the systems requirements for CAT operations such as DSRC or cellular 
Wi-Fi will present additional financial challenges. Ultimately, transportation jurisdictions will need to coordinate 
efforts and prioritize system deployments to avoid disjointed system architecture across the state. 

Fuels 

While petroleum-based fuels provide 95.5% of transportation energy in Idaho, the use of alternative fuels such as 
compressed natural gas, liquefied natural gas, propane, and electricity is increasing. The US Energy Information 
Administration reports that the percentage of vehicles sold in the US using gasoline or gasoline/ethanol is 
expected to decline from 95% in 2017 to 78% in 2050, and sales of electric, plug-in hybrid electric, and hybrid 
vehicles are expected to grow in market share from 4% to 19% in that same period. 

The Idaho Strategic Energy Alliance (ISEA) was established by Governor Butch Otter in 2009 to enable the 
development of a sound energy portfolio that emphasizes the importance of an affordable, reliable and secure 
energy supply. The Alliance established a Transportation Task Force to focus on developments related to 

121



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 
 
 

 Chapter IV 
Page 41 

alternative fuel vehicles. In 2015, the task force reported that growth in the number of alternatively fueled vehicles 
has been constrained by higher vehicle purchase costs and, in some cases, limited fuel infrastructure. However, it 
was also noted that technology improvements are decreasing the cost of alternate fuel vehicles and improving fuel 
economy for all types of vehicles. 

The FAST Act required designation of national alternative fuel corridors. In 2016, ITD worked with key stakeholders 
to identify nine potential routes for future alternative fuel corridors. These routes included all Interstate highways, 
U.S. 95, U.S. 93, SH75, and SH55. The selections were made in accordance with the federal goal to “connect 
communities, cities and regions to develop a national network of alternative fuel facilities.” The designations were 
not meant to mandate or limit what is largely a market-driven process but rather to incorporate those realities into 
ITD’s decisions. Market-driven decisions will ultimately influence design, use, types and locations. 

Idaho is also a recipient of funding from the Volkswagen Diesel Settlement Trust. Approximately $17.3 million will 
be available for use in achieving diesel emissions reductions, primarily through rebuilding or replacing existing 
diesel vehicles to reduce pollution. Of that $17.3 million, approximately 15 percent is planned for construction and 
deployment of electric vehicle charging stations across the interstates identified in the Idaho Alternative Fuels 
Corridor plan.  

Future increases in alternative fuel vehicles could impact revenue generated to support operation and 
maintenance of Idaho’s transportation system. Legislative action may be required to address funding.  

To support ITD’s mission and prepare for future developments in fuels, ITD will pursue the following future actions:   

• Continue to support the work of the ISEA’s Transportation Task Force and the Volkswagen Settlement 
Interagency Work Group 

• Monitor and report on growth in the number of alternative fuel vehicles in Idaho and nationally 

• Support market-driven development of infrastructure for alternative fuel vehicles 

• Monitor and report on revenues generated from fuel-based taxes 

• Monitor policy-related developments regarding alternative fuel vehicles in other states and at the 
national level 

• Support efforts by Idaho leaders to develop laws and regulations regarding alternative fuel vehicles  

  

122



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 
 
 

 Chapter IV 
Page 42 

Driver Information Services 

ITD must keep road users informed of transportation changes, including road conditions and changes to driver 
license testing and vehicle registration to ensure safe operation.  

CAT will be a reality in Idaho’s future. Drivers may need to acquire new skills to operate emerging automotive 
technologies, and the Department will need to help educate users to ensure safe implementation. ITD will develop 
and deploy driver training and driver manuals in cooperation with industry partners and media outlets. Tailored 
driver skills testing to incorporate use of new vehicle technology ensures that new and previously licensed drivers 
are educated in available automated vehicle systems. ITD will coordinate with the Department of Education to 
develop driver training curriculum and new core training for the Department’s skills testers, ensuring appropriate 
knowledge levels for each application. Safety on Idaho roadways for all users is ITD’s first priority.  

ITD continues to follow federal requirements in developing and implementing changes to Idaho laws and 
regulations related to automated technology. ITD also publishes informational materials through media outlets to 
explain the capabilities, limitations, and operational requirements of connected and automated technology to help 
ensure safe and effective deployment.  

Other Technologies 

In addition to emerging vehicle technology, systems, fuels, and funding, ITD also tracks a range of other 
technologies. As an example, public input for this plan included recommendations to incorporate advance animal 
detection systems and modified infrastructure development for animal crossings. The input focused on improving 
driver safety through improved animal avoidance capabilities.  

Funding 

It is important to understand the impact new and emerging transportation technologies will have on funding. The 
National Cooperative Highway Research Program (NCHRP) has accomplished a variety of studies on the impacts 
and states:  

“AV and CV systems could exacerbate funding deficits through increased costs for maintaining 
and operating roadways. A proliferation of shared AVs (SAVs) could reduce the amount of 
revenue from driver licensing, vehicle sales tax, vehicle registration, moving violations, transit 
fares, and federal funding associated with ridership levels. CV technology could potentially 
increase revenue from road user charges by providing a platform that supports usage-based 
revenue measurement and reporting” (NCHRP Report 845, 2017). 

Similarly, the Texas A&M Transportation Institute in 2018 concluded:  

 “CVI (Connected Vehicle Infrastructure) related legislation, funding, and deployments have 
primarily come from the federal level. Many states have passed automated or connected vehicle 
legislation, but none directly address CVI.…While the benefits that can be derived from these 
technologies can be substantial, the high initial costs of deployment can be a barrier.” 

To begin addressing these funding issues ITD has partnered with the Western Road User Charge Consortium (RUC 
West) to research revenue options. RUC West states:  

123



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 
 
 

 Chapter IV 
Page 43 

 “RUC is a funding mechanism that would allow drivers to support road maintenance based on 
the distance they travel or the period of time they use the roads, rather than the amount of 
gasoline they consume.” 

RUC funding mechanisms are only a beginning, and ITD will need to remain engaged on such research to seek 
additional methods for generating revenue not only for integration of advanced technology systems, but to ensure 
maintenance of roads for the traveling public. 

Recommendations 

4.1 Continue public engagement and education on technology advancements and solicit input on            
community impacts. 

4.2 Participate in research and testing of new potential funding sources such as road usage charges, through 
organizations such as the Western Road Usage Charge Consortium. 

4.3 Be mindful of the impacts and costs associated with ever-expanding technologies that affect and drive 
transportation needs and mobility. 

124



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 
 
 

 Chapter V 
Page 44 

V. Implementation 

Summary of Recommendations  

Chapter I – State of Transportation 

1.1 Continue to work with Idaho’s Congressional delegation to secure ongoing support for federal funding to 
meet Idaho’s diverse transportation needs; continue aggressively pursuing federal discretionary grants 
and other funding opportunities. 

1.2 Continue to build relationships with the Idaho Legislature to assure support for new and additional 
funding sources to meet expanding transportation needs in Idaho. 

1.3 Develop a customer-friendly performance measure for congestion. 

1.4 Further invest in training, technologies, and services that can provide the best possible information 
regarding the condition and performance of highways in Idaho. 

1.5 Inform and train transportation professionals on the impacts of population and economic growth on 
the State Highway System and statewide trends in travel patterns. 

1.6 Use guidance from this plan to reinforce best practices in long-term land-use and transportation 
planning when invited to participate in local land-use work-groups or decisions. 

1.7 Continue aggressively pursuing federal discretionary grants and other funding opportunities. 

1.8 Prepare for an updated assessment of transportation funding in Idaho by the year 2020 by preparing 
estimates for the costs to maintain various levels of service for mobility and state of good repair while 
accounting for aging infrastructure. 

1.9 Partner with stakeholders and the public to best modify, adjust or expand the State Highway System. 

1.10  Collaborate with local transportation agencies on travel demand management strategies and public 
transit options that reduce trips on the State Highway System. 

Chapter II – Modal Planning 

2.1 Develop an up-to-date statewide planning document for every transportation mode. 

2.2 Reaffirm ITD’s commitment to include local, regional, and statewide stakeholders in the modal planning process. 

2.3 Coordinate internally to focus resources on a single effort when engaged in the development of a 
statewide modal plan. 

2.4 Implement a collaborative planning approach. 

Chapter III – Highway Data Analytics 

125



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

Chapter V 
Page 45 

Applicable 
Recommendations 

Applicable 
Recommendations 

3.1 Adopt the Quality-Centric model for tasks and services which create or use data and information. 

3.2 Pursue data analytics to provide costs savings, discover new and relevant information, improve decision 
making ability, and provide information to the public. 

3.3 Pursue or create applications which allow local agencies to participate in ITD’s data and information 
collection, sharing, production, or editing. 

3.4 Pursue third party data if there is a cost savings, safety benefit, or new relevant information and the third-
party data meets ITD’s data and information guidelines. 

Chapter IV – New and Emerging Technologies 

4.1 Continue public engagement and education on technology advancements and solicit input on    
community impacts. 

4.2 Participate in research and testing of new potential funding sources such as road usage charges, through 
organizations such as the Western Road Usage Charge Consortium. 

4.3 Be mindful of the impacts and costs associated with ever-expanding technologies that affect and drive 
transportation needs and mobility. 

Introduction to ITD’s Business Practices 

    

ITD’s employees execute its mission of Your Safety. Your Mobility. Your 
Economic Opportunity daily by evaluating, improving, and maintaining the 
State Highway System. Improvement and maintenance projects outlined in the 
Idaho Transportation Improvement Program (ITIP) go through various phases 
including planning, scoping, programming, design, and construction. Once 
completed, the assets of the State Highway System are kept in a state of good 
repair through various preservation, restoration, or operational maintenance 
activities. The following sections outline how ITD currently performs these 
activities and how the recommendations from this plan tie into ITD’s daily 
operations. 

Project Selection and Development 

  

Details on project selection are outlined in the technical 
report provided in Appendix 2. The high-level steps are 
outlined below.  

Planning: Identify transportation issues in partnership with the public and stakeholders; recommend 
potential solutions to be evaluated by scoping. 

1.1 1.2 1.4 1.7 1.8 4.2 

1.5 1.9 3.2 

Recommendations related to 
funding impact the agency as a 
whole. When staff receives grant 
funding, the legislature increases 
funding or when revenues 
increase, ITD has a greater impact 
on the transportation system for 
the better. 

A better understanding of the functioning of the 
highway system and future needs allows ITD to 
develop projects that fit the needs of today and 
tomorrow. 

126



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 
 
 

 Chapter V 
Page 46 

Applicable 
Recommendations 

Applicable 
Recommendations 

Scoping: Apply engineering principles and analytics to evaluate and identify transportation solutions 

Programming: Allocate budgeted funds to maximize public benefit as allowed by applicable policies and law.  
ITD’s program is called the Idaho Transportation Improvement Program. 

The ITIP outlines projects programmed during a seven-year period.  The programmed year indicates  the year  
project construction is planned to begin.  Depending on complexity, a project may take multiple years to construct.  
Development and right-of-way funding is scheduled for prior years of expected expenditures to allow the project 
to be ready to advertise and award in the program year (i.e., construction year).  Once a project is in the approved 
program, it goes through the following steps: 
 

Design: Apply engineering standards to create the construction plans for transportation solution at a 
specific location 

Construction: Build physical transportation infrastructure to the specifications in the construction plans 

Asset Management 

 

After a project is completed, it is now an asset of 
the state of Idaho. ITD’s asset management and 
operations principles guide three activities that 
keep the State Highway System in a state of good repair and clear of obstruction. 
 

Preservation: Construction activities that maintain a state of good repair or extend the life cycle of an asset 

Restoration: Reconstruction that restores to a state of good repairpartly or completely rebuilds an existing 
asset to restart its life cycle 

Maintenance: Operational activities to respond to incidents and emergencies 

Continuous Improvement 

 

In addition to maintaining the current system and expanding to meet new 
demands, ITD is committed to becoming the best transportation department 
in the country. To accomplish this, ITD will continue to improve its efforts to 
inform, engage and deliver its promises. 
 

Inform: 

ITD informs the public and partners through its Office of 
Communication (including                         public service 
announcements, general informational campaigns, and media) 
and                 planning documents 

1.9 3.2 

1.3 3.4 3.1 2.3 1.10 1.6 4.3 

Improved asset management practices allow for ITD 
to maintain a state of good repair adapting to 
changes in wear and tear and applying the correct 
maintenance treatment at the right time. 

Continuous Improvement is integral 
to ITD’s long-term goals.  
Continuously improving our outreach 
and project delivery will increase 
confidence from the public. 

127



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 
 
 

 Chapter V 
Page 47 

Applicable 
Recommendations 

Engage: ITD engages through its public involvement processes for 
planning and projects 

Deliver: 
ITD completes projects on time and on budget, improves 
safety, and keeps the highways                   in a state of good 
repair 

 

Inform 

 

Office of Communication 

ITD’s Office of Communication works 
extensively with the public and news media organizations. From preparing news releases and stories for 
distribution, to producing articles for ITD’s Transporter newsletter and coordinating social media efforts 
through the department’s Facebook and Twitter accounts, the Office of Communication is the primary 
source for public information about the Department 

The Office also maintains the Department's website, manages public involvement for transportation 
projects statewide, assists other ITD units with technical writing and graphic arts activities, provides 
photography and video production support, and tracks the Department’s contest entries 

Planning Documents: 

Modal Plan  
Serve as an informational document and provide guidance for a specific mode of transportation 
incorporating technical information, relevant data, public/stakeholder involvement, and 
recommendations (some of which may be required to recommend project candidates) 

Corridor Plan 
Serve as a guiding document for a specific corridor that balances each transportation mode’s needs with 
local planning efforts, public/stakeholder involvement methods, and outcomes 

District Plan 
Apply data-assisted engineering methodologies to identify top priorities or needs within a transportation 
district based on recommendations from multiple active corridor plans within each jurisdiction 
 

System Management Plans 
Provide specific engineering methodologies for staff to follow in maintaining the State Highway System in 
a state of good repair  

State Highway System Plan 
Provide guidance and information collectively for policy and decision makers; inform the public on the 
complete condition and performance of the State Highway System 

Figure V.1 displays the relationship of the above-mentioned planning documents. 

2.1 2.4

 
  

2.5 

Our planning documents give insight to stakeholders and the 
public on what to expect from ITD.  Continuously improving 
these products to maintain best practices ensures their 
recommendations are appropriate and accurate. 

128



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 
 
 

 Chapter V 
Page 48 

Applicable 
Recommendations 

Figure V.1. Document Relationships 

 

  Source: ITD, 2019 
Engage 

 

Public Involvement 

Planning 
Public involvement is vital to the Department’s efforts in ensuring the planning activities outlined in the 
LRTP are in the public’s interest and do not conflict with local planning efforts. ITD values the input of the 
public and stakeholders. In pursuit of the department’s goal of continuous innovation, ITD’s public 
involvement aspirations are to: 

• Increase participation 
• Reduce barriers to participation 
• Improve context for effective input 

Understanding how public input influences ITD’s planning activities can help citizens decide how and 
when they would like to participate in the process. Modal guidance plans provide recommendations that 
ultimately impact the infrastructure within a community, and the public has a vested interest in 
expressing what transportation solutions are appropriate locally. Licensed engineers and SMEs perform 
system management planning. The following graphic outlines how ITD balances public input and data-
assisted engineering for various planning activities. 

2.2
  

3.3 4.1 
ITD’s commitment to engaging the public, 
stakeholders and transportation professionals 
into our planning activities must be upheld. 

129



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 
 
 

 Chapter V 
Page 49 

Figure V.2. Balancing Public Input and Data-Assisted Engineering Decisions 

Source: ITD, 2019 

Projects  
The public has the opportunity to participate and comment on the development of the ITIP on an annual 
basis through the Department’s program update process as outlined in the technical report on Program 
Update (see Appendix X). During a 30-day period every July, the Idaho Transportation Board solicits 
comments on projects recommended for funding. Public input is compiled in a report for Idaho 
Transportation Board review prior to its adoption of the Program Update, which it may elect to modify 
based on the public input. 

Projects may also involve additional public involvement during the design and construction phases. Open 
houses, citizen information meetings, and public hearings are common avenues for participation in 
individual projects.  

Innovations 
ITD continues to develop electronic public involvement methods such a virtual public meetings, online 
surveys, and interactive maps. These innovations are directed towards the goal of increasing participation 
and removing barriers by creating a variety of input opportunities. Each ITD public involvement effort 
offers a balance of traditional in-person and innovative in-person and electronic participation as 
determined by project managers or communications specialists. 

Deliver 

Idaho Transportation Investment Program (ITIP) - This seven-year portfolio outlines projects for many different 
programs and contains approximately 700 projects totaling over $2 billion at any given time. ITD has increased 
investment towards delivering the projects identified in the ITIP each year, on time and on budget. The 
Department recently created a Program Management Office (PMO) that actively monitors the progress of each 
project in the ITIP to ensure they are delivered on time and on budget.  
  

Modal 
Guidance 

Modal Project 
Recommendation Corridor District State Highway System 

Management 

Public/Stakeholder Input                    Data-Assisted Engineering 
 Per Idaho Transportation Department Policy 

130



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 
 
 

 Chapter V 
Page 50 

The PMO improves the delivery of the ITIP by: 

1. Idaho Transportation Investment Program (ITIP) Management 
• Administer funding strategies and programming balancing 
• Coach in developing project charters, budgets, and schedules 
• Assist in project programming 

2. Project Management Leadership 
• Provide current needed tools and training to improve necessary skills for project management 
• Provide tools and training on risk management 

3. Statewide Delivery Support 
• Develop better ways of doing business through policies, procedures, standards and technology 

that assist in, and improve on, delivery and stabilizing the Program 
• Provide SMEs in project management, estimating, and funding 
• Develop metrics that help ITD further progress in program delivery 
• Develop consistent and reliable communications and tools statewide 

Recommendations 

In addition to ITD’s daily operations, Table V.1 illustrates how the recommendations from this plan tie into its mission. 

Table V.1: ITD Mission and Goals 

 

Mission Element Chapter I Chapter II Chapter III Chapter IV 

Your Safety 1.1, 1.2, 1.4, 1.5, 
1.7, 1.8 2.1, 2.2, 2.3, 2.4 3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4 4.1, 4.3 

Your Mobility 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 
1.5, 1.6, 1.7, 1.8, 1.9 2.1, 2.2, 2.3, 2.4 3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4 4.1, 4.3 

Your Economic 
Opportunity 

1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 
1.5, 1.6, 1.7, 1.8, 1.9 2.1, 2.2, 2.3, 2.4 3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4 4.1, 4.2, 4.3 

131



 

 Chapter V 

Page 51 

Appendix 1:  FAST Act Reference 
  

132



 
 

  52 

IDAGO Long-Range Transportation Plan 
The State shall develop a long-range statewide transportation plan that incorporates the 
following: 

FAST Act 
Reference Description  

IDAGO Location 
(Chapter/Appendix; 

Page) 

23 CFR 
450.216(1) 

A minimum 20-year forecast period at the time of 
adoption that provides for the development and 
implementation of the multimodal transportation 
system for the State.  

 
Forecast year is 2040 

23 CFR 
450.216(2) 

The long-range statewide transportation plan shall 
consider and include, as applicable, elements and 
connections between public transportation, non-
motorized modes, rail, commercial motor vehicle, 
waterway, and aviation facilities, particularly with 
respect to intercity travel. 

 

Chapter II 

23 CFR 
450.216(3) 

The long-range statewide transportation plan should 
include capital, operations and management strategies, 
investments, procedures, and other measures to ensure 
the preservation and most efficient use of the existing 
transportation system including consideration of the 
role that intercity buses may play in reducing 
congestion, pollution, and energy consumption in a cost-
effective manner and strategies and investments that 
preserve and enhance intercity bus systems, including 
systems that are privately owned and operated. 

 

Chapter I 

23 CFR 
450.216(4) 

The long-range statewide transportation plan may 
consider projects and strategies that address areas or 
corridors where current or projected congestion 
threatens the efficient functioning of key elements of 
the State’s transportation system. 

 

  

- Included in IDAGO 
 - Plan does not address this optional element 

133



 
 

  53 

23 CFR 
450.216(5) 

The long-range statewide transportation plan shall 
reference, summarize, or contain any applicable short-
range planning studies; strategic planning and/or policy 
studies; transportation needs studies; management 
systems reports; emergency relief and disaster 
preparedness plans; and any statements of policies, 
goals, and objectives on issues (e.g., transportation, 
safety, economic development, social and 
environmental effects, or energy), as appropriate, that 
were relevant to the development of the long-range  
statewide transportation plan. 

 

Preface 
Chapter I, II 

23 CFR 
450.216(6) 

The long-range statewide transportation plan should 
integrate the priorities, goals, countermeasures, 
strategies, or projects contained in the HSIP, including 
the SHSP, required under 23 U.S.C. 148, the Public 
Transportation Agency Safety Plan required under 49 
U.S.C. 5329(d), or an Interim Agency Safety Plan in 
accordance with 49 CFR part 659, as in effect until 
completion of the Public Transportation Agency Safety 
Plan. 

 

Chapter II 

23 CFR 
450.216(7) 

The long-range statewide transportation plan should 
include a security element that incorporates or 
summarizes the priorities, goals, or projects set forth in 
other transit safety and security planning and review 
processes, plans, and programs, as appropriate. 

 

23 CFR 
450.216(8)(a) 

A description of the performance measures and 
performance targets used in assessing the performance 
of the transportation system in accordance with § 
450.206(c). 

 
Chapter I 

Appendix 2 

23 CFR 
450.216(8)(b) 

A system performance report and subsequent updates 
evaluating the condition and performance of the 
transportation system with respect to the performance 
targets described in § 450.206(c), including progress 
achieved by the MPO(s) in meeting the performance 
targets in comparison with system performance 
recorded in previous reports. 

 

Chapter I 
Appendix  3 

23 CFR 
450.216(9) 

Within each metropolitan area of the State, the State 
shall develop the long-range statewide transportation 
plan in cooperation with the affected MPOs. 

 
Appendix 4 

  

134



 
 

  54 

23 CFR 
450.216(10) 

For nonmetropolitan areas, the State shall develop the 
long-range statewide transportation plan in cooperation 
with affected nonmetropolitan local officials with 
responsibility for transportation or, if applicable, 
through RTPOs described in § 450.210(d) using the 
State’s cooperative process(es) established under § 
450.210(b). 

With Final 

23 CFR 
450.216(11) 

For each area of the State under the jurisdiction of an 
Indian Tribal government, the State shall develop the 
long-range statewide transportation plan in 
consultation with the Tribal government and the 
Secretary of the Interior consistent with § 450.210(c). 

With Final 

23 CFR 
450.216(12) 

The State shall develop the long-range statewide 
transportation plan, as appropriate, in consultation with 
State, Tribal, and local agencies responsible for land use 
management, natural resources, environmental 
protection, conservation, and historic preservation.  This 
consultation shall involve comparison of transportation 
plans to State and Tribal conservation plans or maps, if 
available, and comparison of transportation plans to 
inventories of natural or historic resources, if available. 

 

Appendix 4 

23 CFR 
450.216(13) 

A long-range statewide transportation plan shall include 
a discussion of potential environmental mitigation 
activities and potential areas to carry out these 
activities, including activities that may have the greatest 
potential to restore and maintain the environmental 
functions affected by the long-range statewide 
transportation plan. The discussion may focus on 
policies, programs, or strategies, rather than at the 
project level. The State shall develop the discussion in 
consultation with applicable Federal, State, regional, 
local and Tribal land management, wildlife, and 
regulatory agencies. The State may establish reasonable 
timeframes for performing this consultation. 

 

Appendix 2 

23 CFR 
450.216(14)(a) 

To nonmetropolitan local elected officials, or, if 
applicable, through RTPOs described in § 450.210(d), an 
opportunity to participate in accordance with 
§450.216(h). 

 
Appendix 4 

  

135



 
 

  55 

23 CFR 
450.216(14)(b) 

To individuals, affected public agencies, representatives 
of public transportation employees, public ports, freight 
shippers, private providers of transportation (including 
intercity bus operators, employer-based cash-out 
program, shuttle program, or telework program), 
representatives of users of public transportation, 
representatives of users of pedestrian walkways and 
bicycle transportation facilities, representatives of the 
disabled, providers of freight transportation services, 
and other interested parties with a reasonable 
opportunity to comment on the proposed long-range 
statewide transportation plan. In carrying out these 
requirements, the State shall use the public involvement 
process described under §450.210(a). 

With Final 

23 CFR 
450.216(15) 

The long-range statewide transportation plan may 
include a financial plan that demonstrates how the 
adopted long-range statewide transportation plan can 
be implemented, indicates resources from public and 
private sources that are reasonably expected to be 
made available to carry out the plan, and recommends 
any additional financing strategies for needed projects 
and programs. In addition, for illustrative purposes, the 
financial plan may include additional projects that the 
State would include in the adopted long-range statewide 
transportation plan if additional resources beyond those 
identified in the financial plan were to become available. 
The financial plan may include an assessment of the 
appropriateness of innovative finance techniques (for 
example, tolling, pricing, bonding, public-private 
partnerships, or other strategies) as revenue sources. 

 

23 CFR 
450.216(16) 

The State is not required to select any project from the 
illustrative list of additional projects included in the 
financial plan described in paragraph of this section. 

 

23 CFR 
450.216(17) 

The State shall publish or otherwise make available the 
long-range statewide transportation plan for public 
review, including (to the maximum extent practicable) 
in electronically accessible formats and means, such as 
the World Wide Web, as described in § 450.210(a). 

After Adoption 

23 CFR 
450.216(18) 

The State shall continually evaluate, revise, and 
periodically update the long-range statewide 
transportation plan, as appropriate, using the 
procedures in this section for development and 
establishment of the long-range statewide 
transportation plan. 

With Final 

23 CFR 
450.216(19) 

The State shall provide copies of any new or amended 
long-range statewide transportation plan documents to 
the FHWA and the FTA for informational purposes. 

With Final After Adoption 

 

136



 
 

  56 

Appendix 2:  Technical Reports  

137



 
 

  57 

 
 
 
 

Technical Report 1 
Strategic Planning 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Subject Matter Expert 
 

Sonna Lynn Fernandez 
Transportation Planning Project Manager 

 

  

138



 
 

  58 

Introduction:  Strategic Planning  
The Idaho Transportation Department has had a Strategic Plan for many years.  All Idaho State Agencies are required to 
have a Strategic Plan.  The plan must be outcome based with a Vision or Mission statement that paints a picture of how 
the agency sees its future and set forth goals on how the Vision/Mission will be accomplished.  To ensure that the 
agency is meeting its goals, performance measures also need to be a part of the agency’s Strategic Plan.  These 
performance measures are to quantify the effectiveness of the department’s efforts and the benefit to the public. 
 
Strategic Plans are to be submitted to the Idaho Division of Financial Management on July 1st annually.  The plan must 
include the following items: 

• Agency overview and profile 
• Core functions and statute authority 
• Key services provided 
• Performance highlights 
• Identified performance measures 
• Results of the performance 

 
At the current time, the Idaho Transportation Department has submitted its 2018-2021 Strategic Plan 
(https://dfm.idaho.gov/publications/bb/strategicplans/economic/stratplan_transportation.pdf). 

Section 1: FAST Act Applicable Section(s) for the LRTP 
Applicable Sections of 23 CFR 450.216 Long Range Transportation Plan (FAST): 

§5. “The long-range statewide transportation plan shall reference, summarize, or contain any applicable 
short range planning studies; strategic planning and/or policy studies; transportation needs studies; 
management systems reports; emergency relief and disaster preparedness plans; and any statements of 
policies, goals, and objectives on issues (e.g., transportation, safety, economic development, social and 
environmental effects, or energy), as appropriate, that were relevant to the development of the long 
range statewide plan.”  

Section 2: Federal and/or State Reference 
 Federal Reference: None 
 State Reference: Idaho Code 67-1901 – 1905 

Section 3:   ITD Board or Administrative Policies 
It is important to note that all Board and Administrative Policies call to action the processes the department will take to 
meet its goals of Safety, Mobility and Economic Opportunity.  This every policy is important to this report.  However, the 
following policies call out the Strategic Plan specifically.  

 
Department Memo:   

• DIR-24 – Cell Phones 
Board Policy:   

• 4020 – Employee Education and Training 
• 4002 – Public Convenience 
• 4007 – Memorandum of Understanding  

Administrative Policy:  
• 5020 – Employee Education and Training 

139

https://dfm.idaho.gov/publications/bb/strategicplans/economic/stratplan_transportation.pdf


 
 

  59 

• 5007 – Memorandum of Understanding 

Section 4:   MOU or Service Agreements  
There are no MOU or Service Agreements with this process. 

Section 5: Stakeholders and Partners 
The Governor and the Idaho Legislature are our partners that can make or break our ability to meet the department’s 
mission by adding or subtracting necessary funding to enable ITD to provide ongoing transportation services. 
 
Division of Financial Management Website: https://dfm.idaho.gov/state_agencies/strat_perf_process/sp_pr_info.html 

Section 6: Process 
All state agencies in Idaho are required by Idaho Code 67-1901 – 1905 to have a Strategic Plan.  The Code intends to: 

1. Improve state agency accountability to citizens and state lawmakers. 
2. Increase the ability of the Legislature to assess and oversee agency performance. 
3. Assist lawmakers with policy and budget decision. 
4. Increase the ability of state agencies to improve agency management and service delivery and assess program 

effectiveness. 
Per Idaho Code 67-1903(1), each agency’s strategic plan should, at a minimum, contain the following:  

• A comprehensive outcome-based vision or mission statement covering the major divisions and core functions of 
the agency;  

• Goals for the major divisions and core functions of the agency;  
• Objectives and/or tasks that indicate how the goals are to be achieved;  
• Performance measures, developed in accordance with section 67-1904, Idaho Code, that assess the progress of 

the agency in meeting its goals in the strategic plan, along with an indication of how the performance measures 
are related to the goals in the strategic plan;  

• Benchmarks or performance targets for each performance measure for, at a minimum, the next fiscal year, 
along with an explanation of the manner in which the benchmark or target level was established; and  

• An identification of those key factors external to the agency and beyond its control that could significantly affect 
the achievement of the strategic plan goals and objectives.  

 
Per Idaho Code 67-1904(1), agency performance reports should contain the following elements:  

• Agency overview provides a brief description of the agency and may include the agency’s governance structure, 
the number of employees, number and location of offices, and a brief history of the agency.  

• Core functions/Idaho Code that describe the agency’s primary operations and corresponding statutory 
authority.  

• Fiscal year revenue and expenditure information for the prior four fiscal years broken down by revenue source 
and type of expenditure. This may include informative breakdowns such as amounts from different revenue 
sources or types of expenditures.  

• Profile of cases managed and/or key services provided for the prior four fiscal years including the most recently 
completed fiscal year. Each agency may determine the items to be reported.  

• Performance measures that assess the progress the agency is making in achieving a goal (quantifiable indicator). 
These are the measures established in the strategic plan. Agencies should choose 10 or fewer measures to 
highlight in table format and provide the results for each measure for the prior four fiscal years. If actual results 
are not available because it is a new measure, that should be stated. Performance measures should be 
organized by goal to clearly indicate which performance measures demonstrate the agency’s progress in 

140

https://dfm.idaho.gov/state_agencies/strat_perf_process/sp_pr_info.html


 
 

  60 

achieving each goal.  
• Benchmarks or performance targets for each performance measure as included in the strategic plan for, at a 

minimum, the next fiscal year, and for each year of the four years of reported results.  
• Explanatory notes which provide context important for understanding the measures and the results, and any 

other qualitative information useful for understanding agency performance.  
• Attestation signed by the agency director that the data reported has been internally assessed for accuracy and is 

deemed to be accurate.  
 

The performance report should also meet the following additional requirements outlined in Idaho Code 67-1904(2)-(10):  
• Information is reported in a consistent format determined by the Division of Financial Management (DFM) to 

allow for easy review of the information reported.  
• Agency uses the information for internal management purposes.  
• Agency maintains reports and four years of documentation to support the data reported. 
• Agency submits the report to DFM and the Legislative Services Office (LSO) by September 1 each year.  
• DFM publishes the report each year as part of the executive budget.  
• LSO may use the information in its budget publication.  
• Agency presents the information to legislative germane committees.  
• Germane committees may authorize alternative forms of measurement or request increases in the number of 

measures. 

Section 7: Recommendations and Implementation 
None. 

Section 8: Helpful Resources 
• http://www.hrtpo.org/uploads/docs/State%20of%20Transportation%202017%20-%20Final%20Report.pdf 
• https://dfm.idaho.gov/publications/bb/strategicplans/economic/stratplan_transportation.pdf 
• http://apps.itd.idaho.gov/apps/Dashboard/ 

  

141

http://www.hrtpo.org/uploads/docs/State%20of%20Transportation%202017%20-%20Final%20Report.pdf
https://dfm.idaho.gov/publications/bb/strategicplans/economic/stratplan_transportation.pdf
http://apps.itd.idaho.gov/apps/Dashboard/


 
 

  61 

 

Technical Report 2 
Transportation  

Performance Management 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Subject Matter Expert 
 

Chapman Munn 
Research Analyst Principal 

 
 

  

  Photo Source: ITD Staff 

142



 
 

  62 

Introduction:  Transportation Performance Planning  
Federal Highways Administration (FHWA) defines Transportation Performance Management as a strategic approach that 
uses system information to make investment and policy decisions to achieve national performance goals. In short, 
Transportation Performance Management: 

• Is systematically applied, a regular ongoing process 
• Provides key information to help decision makers 

allowing them to understand the consequences of 
investment decisions across transportation assets or 
modes 

• Improving communications between decision 
makers, stakeholders and the traveling public. 

• Ensuring targets and measures are developed in cooperative partnerships and based on data and objective 
information 

 
According to ITD’s Strategic Plan (see Technical Report 1), the department has set measurable objectives for each of the 
primary goals as detailed below: 

• Commit to having the safest transportation system possible. 
o Reduce fatalities. 

• Provide a mobility focused transportation system that drives economic opportunity. 
o Maintain the pavement in “good” or “fair” condition. 
o Maintain the bridges in “good” or “fair” condition. 
o Keep highways clear or snow and ice during winter storms. 

• Become the best organization by continually developing employees and implementing innovative business 
practices. 

o Hold Administration and Planning expenditures constant. 
o Complete project designs on time. 
o Hold construction costs to contract award. 
o Reduce the time to process vehicle titles. 
o Increase DMV transactions on the internet. 

Section 1: FAST Act Applicable Section(s) for the LRTP 
Applicable Sections of 23 CFR 450.216 Long Range Transportation Plan (FAST): 
§5. “The long-range statewide transportation plan shall reference, summarize, or contain any applicable short range 

planning studies; strategic planning and/or policy studies; transportation needs studies; management systems 
reports; emergency relief and disaster preparedness plans; and any statements of policies, goals, and objectives 
on issues (e.g., transportation, safety, economic development, social and environmental effects, or energy), as 
appropriate, that were relevant to the development of the long range statewide plan.”  

Section 2: Federal and/or State Reference 
 Federal Reference: FAST Act §§ 1116, 1406; 23 U.S.C. 119, 148, 150, 167 
 State Reference: None. 

Section 3:   ITD Board or Administrative Policies 
It is important to note that all Board and Administrative Policies call to action the processes the department will take to 
meet its goals of Safety, Mobility and Economic Opportunity.  This every policy is important to this report.  However, the 
following policies call out the Strategic Plan specifically.  

143



 
 

  63 

Board Policy:   
• 4004 – Annual Report 
• 4011 – Idaho Transportation Investment Program 

Administrative Policy:  
• 5011 – Idaho Transportation Investment Program 

Section 4:   MOU or Service Agreements  
There are no MOU or Service Agreements with this process. 
 
Section 5: Stakeholders and Partners 
The Governor and the Idaho Legislature are our partners that can make or break our ability to meet the department’s 
mission by adding or subtracting necessary funding to enable ITD to provide ongoing transportation services. 
 
Section 6: Process 
Transportation Performance Management (TPM) is a holistic planning and reporting program created by the Federal 
Highways Administration (FHWA) to help state transportation departments set targets based on key transportation 
criteria to strive towards.  TPM is broken down into three separate and distinct Performance Measures (PM):  

• PM I - Safety 
• PM II - Pavement and Bridge Condition 
• PM III - System Performance 

Within each Performance Measure there are a number of criteria that each state transportation department is required 
to assess and set targets towards for future operations:   

Performance 
Measure Targeting Criteria 

PM I 

Number of state wide fatalities 
Rate of fatalities per 100 million vehicle miles traveled (VMT) 
Number of serious injuries 
Rate of serious injuries per 100 million VMT 
Number of non-motorized fatalities and non-motorized serious injuries 

PM II  

Percent of interstate pavement in Good condition 
Percent of interstate pavement in Poor condition 
Percent of non-interstate National Highway System pavement in Good condition 
Percent of non-interstate National Highway System pavement in Poor condition 
Percent of National Highway System bridges in Good condition 
Percent of National Highway System bridges in Poor condition 

PM III 

Level of Travel Time Reliability (LOTTR) on interstate and non-interstate National Highway System 
Truck Travel Time Reliability (TTTR) on the interstate 
Peak Hour Excessive Delay on the National Highway System  
Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) 
Non-Single Occupancy Vehicle Travel Measure (non-SOV) 

The Federal Highways Administration (FHWA) is responsible for administering Transportation Performance Management 
and tracking state transportation department’s targets and progress on those targets.  Furthermore, FHWA will be using 
TPM data to make assessments about the current state of our national transportations system. 
Municipal Planning Organizations (MPOs) are stake holders in TPM as well.  The TPM final rulings require that MPOs be 
able to set some of their own targets if they wish not to adopt the state transportation departments.  However, in the 

144



 
 

  64 

event a MPO feels comfortable with a state transportation department target, MPOs are able to adopt state targets as 
their own. 
 

 FHWA Final Rule FHWA Effective Date State Target Deadline MPO Target Deadline 

PM I March 15, 2016 April 14, 2016 August 31, 2017 February 28, 2018 

PM II January 18, 2017 May 20, 2017 May 20, 2018 November 16, 2018 

PM III January 18, 2017 May 20, 2017 May 20, 2018 November 16, 2018 

 
Complete implementation timeline: Link 

Section 7: Recommendations and Implementation 
It is recommended that the department continues to work closely with our Metropolitan Planning Organizations as we 
proceed with statewide and metropolitan performance. 

Section 8: Helpful Resources 
Helpful References  

•  FHWA TPM Resource Page/s: 
o https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/tpm/  
o Performance-Based Planning and Programming: 

https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/planning/performance_based_planning/ 
o FAST Act Fact Sheet: https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/fastact/factsheets/performancemgmtfs.pdf 

• PM I (Safety) Final Rule: 
o https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2016/03/15/2016-05202/national-performance-

management-measures-highway-safety-improvement-program 
• PM II (Bridge and Safety) Final Rule: 

o https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2017/01/18/2017-00550/national-performance-
management-measures-assessing-pavement-condition-for-the-national-highway 

• PM III (System Performance) Final Rule: 
o https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2017/01/18/2017-00681/national-performance-

management-measures-assessing-performance-of-the-national-highway-system 
 

 
 
 
 
  

145

https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/tpm/rule/timeline.pdf
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/tpm/
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/planning/performance_based_planning/
https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2016/03/15/2016-05202/national-performance-management-measures-highway-safety-improvement-program
https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2016/03/15/2016-05202/national-performance-management-measures-highway-safety-improvement-program
https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2017/01/18/2017-00550/national-performance-management-measures-assessing-pavement-condition-for-the-national-highway
https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2017/01/18/2017-00550/national-performance-management-measures-assessing-pavement-condition-for-the-national-highway
https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2017/01/18/2017-00681/national-performance-management-measures-assessing-performance-of-the-national-highway-system
https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2017/01/18/2017-00681/national-performance-management-measures-assessing-performance-of-the-national-highway-system


 
 

  65 

 
 
 

Technical Report 3 
Statewide Transportation Planning 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Subject Matter Expert 

 
Ken Kanownik 

Planning Services Manager 
 

  

146



 
 

  66 

Introduction:  Statewide Transportation Planning  
Statewide transportation planning includes a comprehensive consideration of possible strategies, an evaluation process 
that encompasses diverse viewpoints, the collaborative participation of relevant transportation-related agencies and 
organizations, and open, timely, and meaningful public involvement. 
 
One of the greatest challenges facing Idaho’s transportation system is how to meet the needs of a rapidly growing 
population and ever-changing economy. According to the U.S. Census Bureau, Idaho is the ninth fastest growing state in 
the country, and the Idaho Department of Labor says that Idaho’s population will grow at three times the national rate, 
or 15.3% between now and 2025.  
 
Through transportation planning, the Idaho Transportation Department: 

• Articulates a long-term vision for Idaho’s state highway system 
• Implements statewide transportation policy through partnerships with federal, state, regional, and local 

agencies 
• Oversees the framework for the department’s project management process 
• Employs a number of tools to manage projects efficiently and effectively 
• Provides geographic information products and services through the development of spatially enabled 

application, databases, mapping products, analysis, education, and technical support. 
 
ITD’s Long-Range Transportation Plan outlines the department’s goals and provides a plan for how ITD will turn these 
goals into reality.  Being the best transportation department in the country is the department’s vision and ITD will apply 
principles of collaboration and partnership, performance management, and focused investment to that end.  The long-
range transportation planning process guides us on this journey.   

Long-Range Goals and Objectives 
In December 2010, the ITD Board adopted “Idaho on the Move” which outlined three long-range goals and objectives.  
These were: 
 
IMPROVING TRANSPORTATION SAFETY  
 ITD is committed to providing facilities that enable the safe movement of people and goods. Safety is considered 

in all transportation activities, investments, and decision making processes.  
 Key safety objectives are tied to five target areas discussed in Idaho’s Strategic Highway Safety Plan: making 

data-driven decisions, changing the operating culture, committing to stay the course, developing partnerships, 
and evaluating efforts for future improvement.  

 
ENHANCING MOBILITY  
 ITD promotes accessible, affordable and convenient transportation choices for the movement of people and 

goods.  
 Keeping transportation infrastructure in good repair and ensuring uninterrupted service is paramount.  
 ITD is committed to wise use of limited resources, and is turning to new technologies and intermodal strategies 

to keep Idaho on the move.  
 
SUPPORTING IDAHO’S ECONOMIC VITALITY  
 Resources will be applied to maintain, improve and expand routes and services that contribute to economic 

vitality.  
 ITD supports the state’s economic vitality by enabling efficient movement of people and goods.  
 ITD seeks partnerships and cooperative initiatives to improve freight mobility and provide convenient 

intermodal access to jobs and centers of commerce. 

147



 
 

  67 

INVESTMENT STRATEGIES  
Emphasis for operation, preservation, restoration and expansion investments are closely tied to long-range goals and 
objectives for safety, mobility and economic vitality. Investments will be cost-effective and will maintain existing 
infrastructure first.  
 
ITD also supports effective investments that build complete transportation systems, such as public transportation, local 
streets and roads, airports, bicycle/pedestrian facilities, railways and Idaho’s port in Lewiston. The department 
participates statewide in local transportation forums to provide an opportunity for two-way input into both local and 
state decision making processes.  

MANAGEMENT PRINCIPLES  
ITD’s management principles reflect its philosophical approach to serving Idahoans. ITD aims to serve Idahoans by 
becoming the best transportation department in the country. The department will work to create best practices for 
others to follow, thereby improving through competition. To that end, the following principles serve as unifying 
concepts for the department, spanning all ITD divisions, transportation modes and work functions:  

• Customer Service – ITD provides extraordinary customer service. When it is in the best interests of the public 
and the department, ITD looks for ways to get to “yes”.  

• Transparency and Accountability – ITD will operate transparently, be accountable for decisions and actions, and 
deliver on commitments. The department will openly report on progress and will be held accountable for 
results.  

• Efficiency and Effectiveness – ITD is committed to operating with maximum internal efficiency and effectiveness. 
Being effective refers to what ITD does and how well it is done. Efficiency is about operating in a way that gets 
the most out of the resources available and ensuring public funds are used wisely.  

• Partnerships, Teamwork, and Collaboration – ITD seeks opportunities for collaboration. The power of 
partnerships is applied to solve difficult problems. The department values teamwork and uses it as a learning 
tool to improve.  

• Employee Development – ITD values its employees and promotes their development as subject matter experts. 
ITD seeks and retains dependable, self-disciplined people who contribute to the agency’s success. Every 
employee is important and their every job contributes to ITD’s success.  

• Balanced Approach – ITD uses integrated planning and its livability principles to ensure resources and activities 
are appropriately balanced across all modes, and support a variety of needs. This approach also expands to 
planning partnerships and supports broad stakeholder involvement and consultation. 

In the upcoming Long-Range Transportation Plan, we will take these goals and objectives and expand upon them as we 
continue our journey to becoming the best transportation department in the country. 

Section 1: FAST Act Applicable Section(s) for the LRTP 
• 23 CFR 450.200 

Each State is required to carry out a continuing, cooperative, and comprehensive performance-based statewide 
multimodal transportation planning process, including the development of a long-range statewide 
transportation plan and STIP, that facilitates the safe and efficient management, operation, and development of 
surface transportation systems that will serve the mobility needs of people and freight (including accessible 
pedestrian walkways, bicycle transportation facilities, and intermodal facilities that support intercity 
transportation, including intercity bus facilities and commuter van pool providers) and that fosters economic 
growth and development within and between States and urbanized areas, and take into consideration resiliency 
needs while minimizing transportation-related fuel consumption and air pollution in all areas of the State, 
including those areas subject to the metropolitan transportation planning requirements of 23 U.S.C. 134 and 49 

148



 
 

  68 

U.S.C. 5303. 
 

• 23 CFR 450.206(a) 
Each State shall carry out a continuing, cooperative, and comprehensive (3-C) statewide transportation planning 
process that provides for consideration and implementation of projects, strategies, and services that will 
address the following factors: 
1. Support the economic vitality of the United States, the States, metropolitan areas, and nonmetropolitan 

areas, especially by enabling global competitiveness, productivity, and efficiency; 
2. Increase the safety of the transportation system for motorized and non-motorized users;  
3. Increase the security of the transportation system for motorized and non-motorized users; 
4. Increase accessibility and mobility of people and freight; 
5. Protect and enhance the environment, promote energy conservation, improve the quality of life, and 

promote consistency between transportation improvements and State and local planned growth and 
economic development patterns; 

6. Enhance the integration and connectivity of the transportation system, across and between modes 
throughout the State, for people and freight; 

7. Promote efficient system management and operation; 
8. Emphasize the preservation of the existing transportation system; 
9. Improve the resiliency and reliability of the transportation system and reduce or mitigate stormwater 

impacts of surface transportation; and 
10. Enhance travel and tourism. 

 
• 23 CFR 450.216 

The State shall develop a long-range statewide transportation plan, with: 
1. A minimum 20-year forecast period at the time of adoption that provides for the development and 

implementation of the multimodal transportation system for the State.  
2. The long-range statewide transportation plan shall consider and include, as applicable, elements and 

connections between public transportation, non-motorized modes, rail, commercial motor vehicle, 
waterway, and aviation facilities, particularly with respect to intercity travel. 

3. The long-range statewide transportation plan should include capital, operations and management 
strategies, investments, procedures, and other measures to ensure the preservation and most efficient use 
of the existing transportation system including consideration of the role that intercity buses may play in 
reducing congestion, pollution, and energy consumption in a cost-effective manner and strategies and 
investments that preserve and enhance intercity bus systems, including systems that are privately owned 
and operated.  

4. The long-range statewide transportation plan may consider projects and strategies that address areas or 
corridors where current or projected congestion threatens the efficient functioning of key elements of the 
State’s transportation system.  

5. The long-range statewide transportation plan shall reference, summarize, or contain any applicable short-
range planning studies; strategic planning and/or policy studies; transportation needs studies; management 
systems reports; emergency relief and disaster preparedness plans; and any statements of policies, goals, 
and objectives on issues (e.g., transportation, safety, economic development, social and environmental 
effects, or energy), as appropriate, that were relevant to the development of the long-range  statewide 
transportation plan. 

6. The long-range statewide transportation plan should integrate the priorities, goals, countermeasures, 
strategies, or projects contained in the HSIP, including the SHSP, required under 23 U.S.C. 148, the Public 
Transportation Agency Safety Plan required under 49 U.S.C. 5329(d), or an Interim Agency Safety Plan in 
accordance with 49 CFR part 659, as in effect until completion of the Public Transportation Agency Safety 
Plan. 

149



 
 

  69 

7. The long-range statewide transportation plan should include a security element that incorporates or 
summarizes the priorities, goals, or projects set forth in other transit safety and security planning and review 
processes, plans, and programs, as appropriate. 

8. The statewide transportation plan shall include: 
a. A description of the performance measures and performance targets used in assessing the performance 

of the transportation system in accordance with § 450.206(c); and  
b. A system performance report and subsequent updates evaluating the condition and performance of the 

transportation system with respect to the performance targets described in § 450.206(c), including 
progress achieved by the MPO(s) in meeting the performance targets in comparison with system 
performance recorded in previous reports. 

9. Within each metropolitan area of the State, the State shall develop the long-range statewide transportation 
plan in cooperation with the affected MPOs. 

10. For nonmetropolitan areas, the State shall develop the long-range statewide transportation plan in 
cooperation with affected nonmetropolitan local officials with responsibility for transportation or, if 
applicable, through RTPOs described in § 450.210(d) using the State’s cooperative process(es) established 
under § 450.210(b). 

11. For each area of the State under the jurisdiction of an Indian Tribal government, the State shall develop the 
long-range statewide transportation plan in consultation with the Tribal government and the Secretary of 
the Interior consistent with § 450.210(c). 

12. The State shall develop the long-range statewide transportation plan, as appropriate, in consultation with 
State, Tribal, and local agencies responsible for land use management, natural resources, environmental 
protection, conservation, and historic preservation.  This consultation shall involve comparison of 
transportation plans to State and Tribal conservation plans or maps, if available, and comparison of 
transportation plans to inventories of natural or historic resources, if available. 

13. A long-range statewide transportation plan shall include a discussion of potential environmental mitigation 
activities and potential areas to carry out these activities, including activities that may have the greatest 
potential to restore and maintain the environmental functions affected by the long-range statewide 
transportation plan. The discussion may focus on policies, programs, or strategies, rather than at the project 
level. The State shall develop the discussion in consultation with applicable Federal, State, regional, local and 
Tribal land management, wildlife, and regulatory agencies. The State may establish reasonable timeframes 
for performing this consultation. 

14. In developing and updating the long-range statewide transportation plan, the State shall provide: 
a. To nonmetropolitan local elected officials, or, if applicable, through RTPOs described in § 

450.210(d), an opportunity to participate in accordance with §  50.216(h); and  
b. To individuals, affected public agencies, representatives of public transportation employees, public 

ports, freight shippers, private providers of transportation (including intercity bus operators, 
employer-based cash-out program, shuttle program, or telework program), representatives of users 
of public transportation, representatives of users of pedestrian walkways and bicycle transportation 
facilities, representatives of the disabled, providers of freight transportation services, and other 
interested parties with a reasonable opportunity to comment on the proposed long-range statewide 
transportation plan. In carrying out these requirements, the State shall use the public involvement 
process described under § 450.210(a). 

15. The long-range statewide transportation plan may include a financial plan that demonstrates how the 
adopted long-range statewide transportation plan can be implemented, indicates resources from public and 
private sources that are reasonably expected to be made available to carry out the plan, and recommends 
any additional financing strategies for needed projects and programs. In addition, for illustrative purposes, 
the financial plan may include additional projects that the State would include in the adopted long-range 
statewide transportation plan if additional resources beyond those identified in the financial plan were to 
become available. The financial plan may include an assessment of the appropriateness of innovative 

150



 
 

  70 

finance techniques (for example, tolling, pricing, bonding, public-private partnerships, or other strategies) as 
revenue sources. 

16. The State is not required to select any project from the illustrative list of additional projects included in the 
financial plan described in paragraph of this section. 

17. The State shall publish or otherwise make available the long-range statewide transportation plan for public 
review, including (to the maximum extent practicable) in electronically accessible formats and means, such 
as the World Wide Web, as described in § 450.210(a). 

18. The State shall continually evaluate, revise, and periodically update the long-range statewide transportation 
plan, as appropriate, using the procedures in this section for development and establishment of the long-
range statewide transportation plan. 

19. The State shall provide copies of any new or amended long-range statewide transportation plan documents 
to the FHWA and the FTA for informational purposes. 

Section 2: Federal and/or State Reference 
 Federal Reference:  

• FAST Act §§ 1116, 1406; 23 U.S.C. 119, 148, 150, 167 
 State Reference:  

• Idaho Code 67-6501 through 67-6539 
Idaho Local Land Use Planning Act 

Section 3:   ITD Board or Administrative Policies 
Board Policy: 

• 4011 – Idaho Transportation Investment Program 
• 4026 – Environmental Stewardship 
• 4038 – Public Transportation Program 
• 4050 – Bicycle/Pedestrian Coordination 
• 4060 – Functional Classification of State Highway Systems 
• 4061 – State Highway System Adjustments 
• 4069 – Corridor Planning for Idaho Transportation Systems 
• 4082 – Idaho Byways Program 
• 4085 – Rail-Highway Crossing Program 
• B1105 – Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement Program 

Administrative Policy: 
• 5011 – Idaho Transportation Investment Program 
• 5038 – Public Transportation Program 
• 5060 – Functional Classification of State Highway Systems 
• 5061 – State Highway System Adjustments 
• 5069 – Corridor Planning for Idaho Transportation Systems 
• 5082 – Idaho Byways Program 
• 5085 – Rail-Highway Crossing Program 
• A1105 – Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement Program 

Section 4:   MOU or Service Agreements  
There are no MOU or Service Agreements with this process. 

151



 
 

  71 

Section 5: Stakeholders and Partners 
The Idaho Transportation Department (ITD) recognizes the benefits and advantages of working closely with our partners 
to maximize limited resources, to build consensus and resolve conflicts. ITD partners with many agencies and in many 
ways, from long-range transportation planning to project development. Outlined below are some of our most common 
partnerships. 
 

1. Federal Agencies 
ITD works closely with several federal agencies to meet federal regulations as well as to ensure federal funding is 
spent appropriately, to streamline project development, and to plan for future needs. 
 
Some of the federal agencies ITD works with on a regular basis include: 

• U.S. Department of Transportation (USDOT)  
• Federal Highways Administration (FHWA) 
• Federal Transit Administration (FTA) 
• U.S. Department of the Interior (DOI) 
• Bureau of Indian Affairs (BIA) 
• Bureau of Land Management (BLM) 

 
2. Metropolitan Planning Organizations 

Metropolitan Planning Organizations (MPOs) are entities designated by law with the lead responsibility for the 
development of a metropolitan area’s transportation plans and to coordinate the transportation planning 
process. All urban areas of 50,000 populations or more are federally required to have an MPO if the agency 
spends federal funds on transportation improvements. MPOs were created to ensure that existing and future 
expenditures for transportation projects and programs were based on a continuing, cooperative and 
comprehensive (3-C) planning process.  
 
Idaho has five MPOs throughout the state: 

• Bannock Transportation Planning Organization (BTPO) 
• Bonneville Metropolitan Planning Organization (BMPO) 
• Community Planning Association of Southwest Idaho (COMPASS) 
• Kootenai Metropolitan Planning Organization (KMPO) 
• Lewis-Clark Valley Metropolitan Planning Organization (LCVMPO) 

 
3. Local Highway Technical Assistance Council 

The Local Highway Technical Assistance Council (LHTAC) connects Local Highway Jurisdictions in Idaho with 
available resources for maintenance and construction of Idaho’s Local Highway System in the most efficient and 
effective manner possible. 
 

4. Idaho Associations 
Cities, counties and local highway jurisdictions have separate associations that represent hundreds of local 
governments. As part of ITD’s ongoing outreach, we use these associations to target and inform community 
leaders of plans, programs, policies, and projects that may affect their community. 

• Association of Idaho Cities (AIC) 
• Idaho Association of Counties (IAC) 
• Idaho Association of Highway Districts (IAHD) 

 
5. Other State Agencies 

ITD works closely with its Idaho state counterparts, such as the Departments of Commerce, Labor, Fish and 
Game, and Lands. Each state agency is considered a subject matter expert, and we rely heavily on their expertise 

152

https://www.transportation.gov/
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/
https://www.transportation.gov/public-transit
https://www.doi.gov/
https://www.bia.gov/
https://www.blm.gov/
https://itd.idaho.gov/funding/?target=mpos
http://www.bannockplanning.org/
http://www.bmpo.org/
http://www.compassidaho.org/index.html
http://www.kmpo.net/
http://lewisclarkmpo.org/
http://www.lhtac.org/
http://idahocities.org/
http://idcounties.org/
http://iahd.com/


 
 

  72 

to help ITD develop plans, make better decisions and identify infrastructure needs. 
 

6. Tribal Nations 
 

7. General Public 

Section 6: Process 

Idaho Transportation Department 
ITD plans for transportation facilities that are located on the federal and state highway system.  ITD also works in 
conjunction with LHTAC; Local Highway Jurisdictions; cities; counties; metropolitan areas; tribal nations; other federal 
and state agencies; etc. to conduct transportation planning.   
 

Modal Planning & Process 
Each metropolitan planning organization has its own process for conducting transportation planning within their areas.  
It is recommended to visit each MPO website to find out more. 

Section 7: Recommendations and Implementation 
 
To ensure a balanced planning approach, the department utilizes mode-specific and integrated planning approaches. 
These low and high-level plans allow for the appropriate scale and context for users and partners.  It is recommended 
that the department establish a policy on how and when long-range and modal plans are updated.   

Section 8: Helpful Resources 
 

• Idaho Code 67-6501 Idaho Local Land Use Planning Act 
(https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/title67/t67ch65/) 

 
 
 
  
  

153

https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/title67/t67ch65/


 
 

  73 

 

 

Technical Report 4 
Public Involvement &  

Stakeholder Engagement 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Subject Matter Experts 
 

Adam Rush 
Public Involvement Coordinator 

 
Sonna Lynn Fernandez 

Planning Project Manager 
  

154



 
 

  74 

Introduction:  Public Involvement  
The Idaho Transportation Department has long been committed to the concept of public participation. A public 
participation process has been developed which offers the citizens of Idaho the opportunity to speak out on 
transportation issues and needs. The process provides for:  

• Opportunities for early and continuing participation.  
• Timely dissemination of information to the public and other interested groups.  
• Reasonable public access to technical and policy information.  
• Timely public notice and an adequate review period through this process.  
• Consideration of the needs of those under-served:  i.e. minority, low-income, persons with limited English 

proficiency, people with disabilities and American Indian Tribal Governments.  
• Adequate public review of major policy changes.  
• Opportunity for review of proposed project plans.  
• Encouraging public comment.  
• Documentation of public comments and responses.  

 
ITD’s Public Involvement Goals 
 
GOAL 1: EDUCATE AND PRESENT INFORMATION  
ITD’s goal is to educate and present information to the public that enables them to make educated and informed 
decisions. There are a variety of means that the department uses to educate citizens from sending out literature to 
conducting meetings. Visualization is an important part of how the department presents information. ITD uses graphics, 
maps, and pictures, just to name a few.  
 
GOAL 2: SOLICIT PUBLIC INPUT  
ITD solicits input from the public to identify mobility needs, desires, issues, and concerns. Furthermore, ITD continuously 
seeks opportunities for public involvement throughout the transportation planning processes, though specifically 
targeted at the beginning of transportation planning processes, at key decision points and when final plan drafts are 
issued. ITD staff closely monitors public input received throughout the year and provides the Idaho Transportation Board 
with updates for their consideration.  
 
GOAL 3: FACILITATE INFORMATION FLOW BETWEEN THE PUBLIC AND DECISION-MAKERS  
ITD staff is responsible for compiling public issues, comments, and concerns into complete and concise documents for 
presentation to the Idaho Transportation Board and Executive Management. Staff also schedules and organizes 
meetings where the public can present concerns to the Idaho Transportation Board. The Idaho Transportation Board and 
ITD staff works closely with the Office of the Governor and the Idaho Legislature to facilitate the flow of information 
between the public and our decision-makers. In addition, ITD District staff works hand-in-hand with local officials and 
metropolitan planning organizations.  
 
GOAL 4: CONSIDER PUBLIC CONCERNS IN DECISION-MAKING  
The Idaho Transportation Board considers the public’s concerns that are presented to them by the staff as well as those 
presented to them by people at public meetings. ITD Planning staff also considers public concerns as it prepares draft 
planning documents. 

Section 1: FAST Act Applicable Section(s) for Public Involvement 
23 CFR 450.210(a) 
In carrying out the statewide transportation planning process, including development of the long-range statewide 
transportation plan and the STIP, the State shall develop and use a documented public involvement process that 
provides opportunities for public review and comment at key decision points. The State’s public involvement process at 

155



 
 

  75 

a minimum shall: 
1. Establish early and continuous public involvement opportunities that provide timely information about 

transportation issues and decision-making processes to individuals, affected public agencies, representatives of 
public transportation employees, public ports, freight shippers, private providers of transportation (including 
intercity bus operators), representatives of users of public transportation, representatives of users of pedestrian 
walkways and bicycle transportation facilities, representatives of the disabled, providers of freight transportation 
services, and other interested parties; 
 

2. Provide reasonable public access to technical and policy information used in the development of the long-range 
statewide transportation plan and the STIP; 
 

3. Provide adequate public notice of public involvement activities and time for public review and comment at key 
decision points, including a reasonable opportunity to comment on the proposed long-range statewide 
transportation plan and STIP;  
 

4. To the maximum extent practicable, ensure that public meetings are held at convenient and accessible locations 
and times; 
 

5. To the maximum extent practicable, use visualization techniques to describe the proposed long-range statewide 
transportation plan and supporting studies; 
 

6. To the maximum extent practicable, make public information available in electronically accessible format and 
means, such as the World Wide Web, as appropriate to afford reasonable opportunity for consideration of public 
information; 
 

7. Demonstrate explicit consideration and response to public input during the development of the long-range 
statewide transportation plan and STIP; 
 

8. Include a process for seeking out and considering the needs of those traditionally underserved by existing 
transportation systems, such as low-income and minority households, who may face challenges accessing 
employment and other services; and  
 

9. Provide for the periodic review of the effectiveness of the public involvement process to ensure that the process 
provides full and open access to all interested parties and revise the process, as appropriate. 
 

10. The State shall provide for public comment on existing and proposed processes for public involvement in the 
development of the long-range statewide transportation plan and the STIP.  At a minimum, the State shall allow 45 
calendar days for public review and written comment before the procedures and any major revisions to existing 
procedures are adopted. The State shall provide copies of the approved public involvement process document(s) to 
the FHWA and the FTA for informational purposes. 

 
The State shall provide for nonmetropolitan local official participation in the development of the long-range statewide 
transportation plan and the STIP.   
1. The State shall have a documented process(es) for cooperating with nonmetropolitan local officials representing 

units of general purpose local government and/or local officials with responsibility for transportation that is 
separate and discrete from the public involvement process and provides an opportunity for their participation in 
the development of the long-range statewide transportation plan and the STIP.  
 

2. At least once every 5 years, the State shall review and solicit comments from nonmetropolitan local officials and 
other interested parties for a period of not less than 60 calendar days regarding the effectiveness of the 
cooperative process and any proposed changes.  
 

3. The State shall direct a specific request for comments to the State association of counties, State municipal league, 
regional planning agencies, or directly to nonmetropolitan local officials. Although the FHWA and the FTA shall not 
review or approve this cooperative process(es), the State shall provide copies of the process document(s) to the 
FHWA and the FTA for informational purposes. 
 

156



 
 

  76 

4. The State, at its discretion, is responsible for determining whether to adopt any proposed changes. If a proposed 
change is not adopted, the State shall make publicly available its reasons for not accepting the proposed change, 
including notification to nonmetropolitan local officials or their associations. 
 

For each area of the State under the jurisdiction of an Indian Tribal government, the State shall develop the long-range 
statewide transportation plan and STIP in consultation with the Tribal government and the Secretary of the Interior.  
States shall, to the extent practicable, develop a documented process(es) that outlines roles, responsibilities, and key 
decision points for consulting with Indian Tribal governments and Department of the Interior in the development of the 
long-range statewide transportation plan and the STIP.   

Section 2: Federal and/or State Reference 
 Federal Reference:  

• FAST ACT (= Documented Process) 
23 CFR 450.210(a) 
 

• Civil Rights Act of 1964 (= No Discrimination) 
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 states that “no person in the United States shall, on the grounds of race, 
color or national origin be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to 
discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance.” 
 

• Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990 (=Access for all) 
Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 prohibits disability discrimination by all public entities at 
the local or state level. Access includes physical access and programmatic access that might be by discriminating 
policies or procedures. 

 State Reference:  
• Idaho Code 74-201 through 74-208  Idaho Open Public Meeting Law 

Open and honest government is fundamental to a free society. The Idaho Legislature formalized our state’s 
commitment to open government by enacting the Idaho Open Meeting Law in 1974. The Open Meeting Law 
codifies a simple, but fundamental, Idaho value: The public’s business ought to be done in public.  The Idaho 
Open Meeting Law was designed to ensure transparency of the legislative and administrative processes within 
state and local governments. 

Section 3:   ITD Board or Administrative Policies 
It is the policy of this department to develop its transportation plans in partnership with local governments, 
metropolitan planning organizations, elected officials, federal partners, Tribal Nations, those impacted by the plans and 
projects and those who use the transportation system. The department shall conduct its public involvement process in a 
manner to ensure accountability for its actions, continuous communication with stakeholders and constituents, 
consistency in approach, and integrity in its dealings. 
 
Board Policy: 

• 4008 – Open Meeting Requirements  
• 4011 – Idaho Transportation Investment Program  
• 4024 – Public Hearings  

Administrative Policy: 
• A1302 – Public Involvement for Location and Design Determinations  
• 5024 – Public Hearings  

157



 
 

  77 

• A2004 – Public Hearing Officers  
• 5069 – Corridor Planning for Idaho Transportation Systems  
• 5057 – Release of Public Information to the Media  
• 5011 – Idaho Transportation Improvement Program  

Section 4:   MOU or Service Agreements  
23 CFR 450.208(c) – States that two or more States may enter into agreements or compacts, not in conflict with any law 
of the United States, for cooperative efforts and mutual assistance in support of activities under this subpart related to 
interstate areas and localities in the States and establishing authorities the States consider desirable for making the 
agreements and compacts effective. The right to alter, amend, or repeal interstate compacts entered into under this 
part is expressly reserved. 

Section 5: Stakeholders 
• General Public – anyone who uses the state’s transportation facilities (i.e. citizens, tourists, shippers, etc.). 
• Stakeholders – anyone who can affect or be affected by the department’s policies, objectives and actions (i.e. 

other federal agencies, state agencies, business owners, property owners, metropolitan planning organizations, 
Tribal Nations, etc.).  

Section 6: Public Involvement and Stakeholder Engagement Process 
Public involvement is viewed as an integral part of the Department’s planning efforts. Public involvement is more than 
holding a public hearing, posting a notice in a newspaper or on a website and expecting people to willingly comment on 
a project.  
 
Engaging the public involves creative thinking, with the willingness to interact openly to the public’s preferred forms of 
communication. It’s going to them instead of the department expecting them to seek us out. It’s also about balance – 
meeting their needs and the needs of the department. It’s giving stakeholders the opportunity to influence decision-
making when decisions are being considered, not when a project is ready to be constructed.  
 
The U.S. Department of Transportation defines public involvement as “two-way communication aimed at incorporating 
the views, concerns and issues of the public into the decision-making process.”  
 
Decision-makers can sometimes forget the importance of two-way communication, focusing solely on public education 
while overlooking active public involvement. Both are necessary. Public education is “one-way communication intended 
to inform the public.” Certainly, public education is vital because it allows the department to inform people of critical 
issues. However, actively listening to the needs and wants of our stakeholders, engaging them in the beginning of the 
process and including them throughout the development process is more important.  
 
Moreover, transportation plans, and therefore individual transportation projects, are more likely to be accepted and 
supported by stakeholders who can see that they have had an active role in shaping the decisions embodied in the plan. 
Showing stakeholders that the transportation department is willing to address their concerns will set up the project for 
“buy in,” even if all the stakeholders are not in complete agreement with the outcome of the process. 
 

Public Involvement Philosophy 
ITD’s public involvement philosophy can be summed up in three key words: integrated, early and often.  
 

158



 
 

  78 

• INTEGRATED  
Public involvement is part of the project 
planning process, being 
interdependent and occurring 
simultaneously. This includes the integration 
of all key stakeholders (agency and non-
agency) into a customized public outreach 
process. Objectives, activities, the level of 
support and the timing of public 
involvement are individualized to address 
unique characteristics and needs of an affected 
community. Collaboration among the project 
manager, team members, public 
involvement consultants and/or the public 
involvement coordinator will result in the truly 
customized, integrated public 
involvement approach.  
 

• EARLY  
The purpose of early involvement is to both educate and receive public input on a developing plan or project. 
Through early scoping and planning, ITD can develop a public involvement process that will ensure controversy 
does not stop projects/plans or erode public trust. The time and effort spent involving stakeholders early in the 
process is returned in public confidence and support.  
 

• OFTEN  
Public involvement during project planning and development encompasses more than information meetings or 
public hearings. Opportunities to involve stakeholders by sharing and collecting information can range from one-
on-one meetings to attending local city council meetings and should continue throughout the life of a project. 

More Than a Meeting 
Public involvement provides the structure and opportunities for a diversity of stakeholders and interest groups to 
resolve conflicts and manage change in a collaborative manner. Critical to this collaborative process is realizing that:  
 

• PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT IS MORE ART THAN SCIENCE.  
Public involvement oftentimes has set parameters based on legal requirements. The law comes into play based 
on the funding source. There may be different public involvement requirements based on city, county, states, or 
metropolitan planning organizations. There most definitely are public involvement requirements if there is 
federal funding or significant impacts that invoke the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA). Even with the 
various requirements for public involvement, each plan and project is unique and will require different levels of 
public involvement. There is no one-size-fits-all approach to public involvement. As previously mentioned, a 
public involvement plan should be based on the needs and history of a community and its stakeholders. With a 
basic approach as your canvas, your public involvement plan should be crafted and developed with customized 
strategies and technique, resulting in a unique “work of art.”  

 
• EVERY PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT PROCESS WILL BE DIFFERENT AND REQUIRE A CUSTOM APPROACH.  

There simply is not a cookie cutter approach to public involvement. Key principles are found in virtually every 
effort: public education, addressing the past/present/future, identification of key stakeholders, listening, etc. 
Different communities require different approaches.  In one city, the key may be outreach to all of the local civic 
groups. In another, an open house and direct outreach through the local churches may be the key. In a third 

159



 
 

  79 

community, it may be an early-morning presence at the local truck stop and informal visits with residents over a 
cup of coffee.  Furthermore, each district has its own public involvement style and process. What works in one 
district may or may not work in another. However, it is important to understand that there are minimum 
requirements that each district must meet to ensure that stakeholders are being notified, consulted and 
included in the decision-making process. 
 

How Public Involvement Is Used at ITD 
• STRATEGIC PLANNING  

ITD’s Strategic Plan has clearly identified its mission statement as – Our Mission: Your Safety.  Your Mobility. 
Your Economic Opportunity.  This declaration drives everything we do within the department. But this Mission 
Statement did not come out of a vacuum. Through intense public involvement and from listening to our 
stakeholders, the department was able to:  

o set priorities  
o focus departmental energy and resources  
o strengthen our operations  
o ensure that employees and other stakeholders are working toward common goals  
o establish agreement around intended outcomes/results  
o assess and adjust ITD’s direction in response to a changing environment.  

Through the Strategic Plan, ITD has refined its efforts to endure that fundamental decisions and actions shape 
and guide the organization including who it serves, what it does, and why it does it, with a focus on the future.  

 
• LONG- AND SHORT-RANGE PLANNING  

Planning is a dynamic decision-making process that involves the ongoing evaluation and refining of 
transportation policies, programs and plans. Throughout this process, it is necessary to build a strong 
partnership with the citizens of Idaho. A long-lasting, strong partnership with the general public, tribal 
governments, metro planning organizations, universities, non-metropolitan elected and appointed officials as 
well as other state government agencies is the goal.   Typical types of planning documents in this category 
include:  
o Long Range Transportation Plan  
 Modal Plans  
 Bike/Pedestrian  
 Freight  
 Rail  
 Transit  
 Aeronautics  

o District Corridor Plans  
 

• PROJECT PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT  
Financial planning is very important to ensure that what limited federal and state dollars ITD receives is used 
appropriately and that expenditures meet the Mission, Vision and strategic goals outlined for the department. 
This is accomplished through financial planning during the annual update of the Idaho Transportation 
Improvement Program (ITIP).  

 
Annually in July, the department conducts a 30-day public comment period on the ITIP. In recent years, 
comments have dwindled to only a handful. Does this mean that the department is lacking in its way of reaching 
stakeholders and the public? Probably not. The reason is that the Districts have engaged in public involvement 
activities throughout the year, so that when the time comes for comment, much of the public has already been 

160



 
 

  80 

consulted and is satisfied. 

Section 7: Recommendations and Implementation 
Continue to monitor and encourage community engagement.  Use a variety of technologies to reach as many as 
possible. 

Section 8: Helpful Resources 
• Idaho Open Public Meeting Law Manual 

(http://www.ag.idaho.gov/publications/legalManuals/OpenMeeting.pdf) 
 

 
 
 
  

 
  

161

http://www.ag.idaho.gov/publications/legalManuals/OpenMeeting.pdf


 
 

  81 

 
 

Technical Report 5 
Metropolitan Planning  

Organization (MPO) 
Partnerships 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Subject Matter Expert 
 

Maranda Obray 
Senior Transportation Planner 

  

162



 
 

  82 

Introduction:  Metropolitan Planning Organizations in Idaho 
A Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) is a local decision-making body responsible for carrying out a continuing, 
cooperative, and comprehensive the (3-C) transportation planning process within a defined Metropolitan Planning Area 
(MPA). The US Department of Transportation recognizes the urbanized area (UZA) published in the Federal Register for 
purposes of disseminating federal transportation funds for highways, public transit, and other travel and freight modes. 
Every UZA must be represented by an MPO in accordance with 23 USC §134(b) and 49 USC §5303(c). Federal laws and 
regulations (23 USC §134(d) and 23 CFR §450.310(b)) require that the governor of each state in cooperation with local 
officials establish an MPO within 12 months of a place being designated a UZA by the Census Bureau. 
 
MPOs provide a forum for cooperative transportation decision-making in metropolitan areas. Metropolitan planning 
grant funds are apportioned by FHWA and FTA to ITD annually, and are distributed to the MPOs by formula. Planning 
funds are used by MPOs to carry out the metropolitan planning functions (23 USC Section 134 and 49 USC 5303 et. seq.). 
As of 2018, Idaho has four MPOs: 

• Kootenai Metropolitan Planning Organization (KMPO) in the Coeur d’Alene area 
• Lewis-Clark Valley Metropolitan Planning Organization (LCVMPO) in the Lewiston area  
• Bannock Transportation Planning Organization (BTPO) in the Pocatello area 
• Bonneville Metropolitan Planning Organization (BMPO) in the Idaho Falls area 

Idaho has one MPO, COMPASS, that is designated a Transportation Management Area (TMA); areas with populations 
greater than 200,000 or more residents. In addition to the above listed federally required documents, TMAs must have a 
Congestion Management Process (CMP) that identifies actions and strategies to reduce congestion and increase mobility 
and air quality.  
 

  

163



 
 

  83 

Section 1: FAST Act Applicable Section(s) for the LRTP 
Applicable Sections of 23 CFR 450.216 Long Range Transportation Plan (FAST): 

§5. “The long-range statewide transportation plan shall reference, summarize, or contain any applicable 
short range planning studies; strategic planning and/or policy studies; transportation needs studies; 
management systems reports; emergency relief and disaster preparedness plans; and any statements of 
policies, goals, and objectives on issues (e.g., transportation, safety, economic development, social and 
environmental effects, or energy), as appropriate, that were relevant to the development of the long 
range statewide plan.”  

 
§8. “The Statewide transportation plan shall include: 

• A description of the performance measures and performance targets used in assessing the 
performance of the transportation system in accordance with § 450.206(c); and 
• A system performance report and subsequent updates evaluating the condition and 
performance of the transportation system in accordance with the performance targets described in 
§ 450.206(c), including progress achieved by the MPO(s) in meeting the performance targets in 
comparison with system performance recorded in previous reports.” 

Section 2: Federal and/or State Reference 
National transportation policy is set by the US Congress in the form of laws, which can establish specific planning 
requirements and/or delegate that responsibility to the US Secretary of Transportation. Table 1-1 lists the major US 
transportation laws since 1990, including the most recent law, Fixing America’s Surface Transportation Act (FAST Act), 
enacted on December 4, 2015.  

 
Table 1-1: Major US Transportation Laws: 1991-Present 
Year Public Law 

# 
Acronym Full Name 

1991 102-240 ISTEA Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act of 
1991 

1998 105-178 TEA-21 Transportation Equity Act for the 21st Century 
2005 109-59 SAFETEA-

LU 
Safe, Accountable, Flexible, Efficient Transportation 
Equity Act: A Legacy for Users 

2012 112-141 MAP-21 Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century Act 
2015 114-94 FAST Act Fixing America’s Surface Transportation Act  

 
Each new law can add, delete, or modify previsions in previous laws. A compilation of currently applicable laws, as 
amended, is found in the Code of Laws of the United States of America, often referred to as the U.S. Code. 
Transportation planning requirements are found in Title 23 (Highways) of the U.S. Code. Key sections with regard to 
transportation planning include the following, all modified by FAST Act:  
 
Title 23: Highways 
Chapter I: Federal-Aid Highways 
Sections 134 & 135: 

• 23 USC §134 Metropolitan Transportation Planning 
• 23 USC §134 Statewide Non-metropolitan Transportation Planning 
 

FAST Act also amended 23 USC §201, Federal Lands and Tribal Transportation Programs, which mandates, “In 

164



 
 

  84 

consultation with the Secretary of each appropriate Federal land management agency, the Secretary shall implement 
transportation planning procedures for Federal lands and tribal transportation facilities that are consistent with the 
planning processes required under sections 134 and 135.” An approved tribal transportation program, federal lands 
transportation program, and federal lands access program, as well as transportation improvement programs (TIPs) are 
required to be included in appropriate state and MPO plans and programs (23 USC §201(c)(4)).  

 
Federal Regulations  
As noted above, Congress delegates to the US Secretary of Transportation the responsibility to issue regulations 
detailing how transportation laws are to be implemented. New regulations from all federal agencies are published on 
each non-holiday weekday in the Federal Register (FR). Each new regulation can add, delete, or modify provisions in 
previous regulations. A compilation of currently applicable regulations, as amended, is found in the Code of Federal 
Regulations (CFR). Transportation planning requirements are found in Title 23 (Highways).  

 
Title 23: Highways 
Chapter I: Federal Highway Administration, Department of Transportation 
Subchapter E: Planning and Research 
Part 450: Planning Assistance and Standards 
Subpart A, B & C: 

• A: 23 CFR §450.100 et seq.: Planning Definitions 
• B: 23 CFR §450.200 et seq.: Statewide Transportation Planning 
• C: 23 CFR §450.300 et seq.: Metropolitan Transportation Planning and Programming  
 
*“Et seq.” is an abbreviation for the Latin et sequences, which means “and the following.” It indicates that relevant information 
continues in the sections that follow the section cited.  
 

Corresponding, nearly identical requirements are found in Title 49 (Transportation), addressing planning for federal 
transit projects, which are under the jurisdiction of the Federal Transit Administration (FTA).  
Title 49: Transportation  
Subtitle III: General and Intermodal Programs 
Chapter V3: Public Transportation 
Sections 5303 & 5304: 

• 49 USC §5303: Metropolitan Transportation Planning 
• 49 USC §5304: Statewide and Non-metropolitan Transportation Planning 

 
The regulations in 23 CFR §450 specify the federal transportation planning requirements that are addressed in this 
Plan. Regulations implementing the July 2012 Performance Management Measures (23 USC §150) are anticipated to be 
issued by the US Department of Transportation (USDOT) in the 2016-2018 timeframe and communicated through ITD-
DES Planning Services section to the MPOs throughout the State.  

 
Transportation planners should be aware that it takes time to incorporate provisions of a new law into the US Code, 
time for the US Secretary to Transportation to circulate new regulations in response to a new law, and additional time to 
incorporate new regulations into the Code of Federal Regulations. Therefore, check with the ITD-DES Planning Services 
for clarification regarding the current applicable requirements, especially if a new federal transportation law has 
recently been enacted and state action is required.  

 
Required Federal Products 
There are various required federal documents that must be developed by MPOs (including MPOs that have TMA status). 
Table 1-2 summarizes the required federal documents, the time period that each project covers, general contents and 
how often the document needs to be updated. More specific detail on each of the projects is contained in this Plan.  

 

165



 
 

  85 

 
Idaho Statutes 
Similar to the federal process, the Idaho State Legislature passes laws (approved by the governor) which are 
incorporated into the Idaho Code. Idaho’s laws on transportation planning are found in: 
Title 40: Highways and Bridges 
Title 67: State Government and State Affairs 
Chapter I9: State Planning and Coordination 
Section 03 & 04 

• IC §67-1903 et seq.: Strategic Planning 
• IC §67-1904 et seq.: Performance Measurement 

 
Chapter II3: Miscellaneous Provisions 
Idaho’s statutory requirements focus largely on development of the statewide transportation plan and the statewide 7-
year Transportation Facilities Construction Program. The statewide plan and 7-year program are developed including the 
regional and metropolitan project priorities resulting from federally mandated transportation planning processes. All 
plans and programs developed by MPOs, including TMAs, must be consistent with Idaho statutes and ITD planning 
documents.  

Table 1-2: Schedule of Required Federal Products 

Product/Document Horizon Contents Updates Agency 
TMA MPO 

MTP 
(Metropolitan Transportation 

Plan) 

20 years 
(min.) Policies, goals, and strategies 

Every 5 years 
(4 years for 

nonattainment and 
maintenance areas) 

  

UPWP  
(Unified Planning Work 

Program) 
1 year Planning studies and tasks Annually   

WP 
(Work Program) 1 year Planning studies and tasks Annually   

TIP 
(Transportation Improvement 

Program) 
4-5 years Transportation investments by 

fund type and funding year Annually   

Public Participation Plan N/A Details of the MPO public 
involvement process 

As needed  
(to stay in compliance 

with federal regulations) 
  

Title VI Plan N/A Actions taken to meet 
antidiscrimination laws Annually   

Regional Coordination Plan N/A 
Transportation services for 
people with disabilities, low 
incomes, and older adults 

Annually   

Disadvantaged Business 
Enterprises Policy/Plan N/A Policies for required DBE 

participation As needed   

Air Quality Plan Based on 
TIP 

Describes nonattainment or 
maintenance status and 

applicable transportation 
control measures 

Based on TIP   

Congestion Management 
Plan Ongoing 

Provides demand reduction 
and operational management 

strategies 
As needed   

166



 
 

  86 

Section 3:   ITD Board or Administrative Policies 
Board Policies 

• #4007 – Memorandum of Understanding 
• #4008 – Open Meeting Requirements 
• #4011 – Idaho Transportation Investment Program 
• #4028 – Allocation of Federal Formula Highway Apportionments to Local Public Agencies 
• #4028S – Local Public Agency Share of Federal Highway Funding 
• #4060 – Functional Classification of State Highway Systems 

 
Administrative Policies 

• #5011 – Idaho Transportation Investment Program 
• #5028 – Allocation of Federal Formula Highway Apportionments to Local Public Agencies 
• #5060 – Functional Classification of State Highway Systems 
• #A0110 – Memorandum of Understanding 

Section 4:   MOU or Service Agreements  
The Memorandum of Understanding, or MOU, is the umbrella agreement between ITD and each MPO. Unlike contracts 
that are executed annually, the MOU is amended only as needed. At a minimum, ITD-Division of Engineering Services 
and the MPO should review the MOU at least once every three years to make sure it reflects current practice and law. 
Revisions are developed cooperatively by ITD and the MPO. The MOU describes the roles and responsibilities of 
participating agencies for the development of the following three main planning products of the MPO: the MTP, TIP and 
UPWP. 
 
Each MPO/TMA has a Memorandum of Agreement with the department.   

• MOU or Service Agreement References  
• M:\DES\PlanningServices\Employee Folders\Maranda\MPO Coordination\Idaho MPOs\MOUs 

Section 5: Stakeholders and Partners 
 
Each MPO has a variety of stakeholders and partners.  The following list outlines some of them: 
 

 

 KMPO LCVMPO COMPASS BTPO BMPO 

St
at

e 

• ITD District 1 
 

• ITD District 2 
• WASHDOT South 

Central Region  
 

• ITD District 3 
• Idaho Department 

of Environmental 
Quality 

• ITD District 5 
 

• ITD District 6 
 

Fe
de

ra
l 

• Bureau of Land 
Management 

• Bureau of 
Reclamation 

• US Forrest Service 
• US Dept. of Lands 

• Bureau of Land 
Management 

• Bureau of 
Reclamation 

• US Forrest Service 
• US Dept. of Lands 

• Bureau of Land 
Management 

• Bureau of 
Reclamation 

• US Forrest Service 
• US Dept. of Lands 

• Bureau of Land 
Management 

• Bureau of 
Reclamation 

• US Forrest Service 
• US Dept. of Lands 

• Bureau of Land 
Management 

• Bureau of 
Reclamation 

• US Forrest Service 
• US Dept. of Lands 

167



 
 

  87 

Co
un

tie
s • Kootenai County 

 
• Nez Perce County 
• Asotin County, 

WA 
 

• Ada County 
• Canyon County 
 

• Bannock County 
 

• Bonneville County 
 

Hi
gh

w
ay

 D
is

tr
ic

ts
 

• Eastside Highway 
District  

• Lakes Highway 
District 

• Post Falls Highway 
District 

• Worley Highway 
District 

•  Deer Creek 
Highway District 

• Nez Perce County 
Road and Bridge 

• Ada County 
Highway Distirct 

• Nampa Highway 
District 

• Notus Parma 
Highway District 

• Golden Gate 
Highway District 

• Canyon Highway 
District 

• Bannock County 
Road and Bridge 

 
 

• Bonneville County 
Road and Bridge 

 

Ai
r 

• Coeur d’Alene 
Regional Airport 

• Lewiston-Nez 
Perce County 
Regional Airport  

 

• Boise Airport 
• Nampa Regional 

Airport 
• Caldwell Regional 

Airport 

• Pocatello Airport • Idaho Falls Airport 

Tr
an

si
t • Citylink Transit 

• Kootenai County 
Transit Services 

• Lewiston Transit 
• SMART Transit 
• COAST Transit 
•  

• Valley Regional 
Transit 

• Pocatello Regional 
Transit 

• Targhee Regional 
Public Transit 
Agency 

Tr
ib

es
 

• Spokane Tribe 
• Kalispell Tribe 
• Coeur d’Alene 

Tribe 
• Salish/Kootenai 

Tribe 
• Colville Tribe 

• Nez Perce Tribe  • Shoshone-
Bannock Tribes 

 

 

Lo
ca

l 

• Kootenai Clinic 
Hospital 

• Port of Clarkston 
• Port of Lewiston 
• Port of Wilma 
• St. Joseph’s 

Regional Medical 
Center 

• Capital City 
Development 
Corporation 

• Greater Boise 
Auditorium District 

• St. Luke’s Hospital 
• St. Alphonsus 

Hospital 
• Intermountain 

Hospital 
• Boise VA Hospital 

• Portneuf Medical 
Center 

• Eastern Idaho 
Regional Medical 
Center 

168



 
 

  88 

U
ni

ve
rs

iti
es

 

• Lewis-Clark State 
College 

• North Idaho 
Community 
College 

• University of 
Idaho 
 

• Lewis-Clark State 
College 

• Walla Walla 
Community 
College 

• Boise State 
University 

• University of Idaho 
• Northwest 

Nazarene 
University 

• College of Idaho 
• College of Western 

Idaho 

• Idaho State 
University 

• Bingham Young 
University - Idaho 

• Eastern Idaho 
Technical College 

* All MPOs provide a coordinated planning effort between the public, cities, small cities and towns, the county, 
highway districts, the state, transit providers, and Tribal Nations 

Section 6: Process 
 

Plans Metropolitan Transportation Plan, Transportation Improvement Document, Public Involvement 
Plan, Title VI, Coordinated Public-Transit-Human Services Transportation Plan, Short-Tangy 
Transportation Plan, Bike and Pedestrian Plan, Unified Planning Work Program 

Release Dates As needed, monthly reviewed/update, Annually adopted 
Notification 
Methods 

Email, Public Meetings, Workshops, Forums, Emergency/Urgent Meetings, Website, Media Outlet, 
Staff Dedication to Assistance and Outreach 

Section 7: Recommendations and Implementation 
Continue to work hand-in-hand with each metropolitan planning organization to assist them in being successful. 

Section 8: Helpful Resources 
• Attached are the MPO boundary maps for each area of the state. 

  

169



 
 

  89 

 

 

Technical Report 6 

Local Highway Technical  

Assistance Council (LHTAC) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Subject Matter Expert 

 

Mike Cram 

Project Manager 

 

  

170

https://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=&url=https://ctcbusiness.net/Testimonials&psig=AOvVaw3z8cxMI433IGTcB45PgVvO&ust=1533335635827505


 
 

  90 

Introduction:  Local Highway Technical Assistance Council (LHTAC) 
The Local Highway Technical Assistance Council connects Local Highway Jurisdictions in Idaho with available resources 
for maintenance and construction of Idaho’s Local Highway System in the most efficient and effective manner possible. 

 

LHTAC Strategic Plan:  http://lhtac.org/wordpress/wp-content/uploads/2013/08/StrategicPlan2015_Web.pdf  

Section 1: FAST Act Applicable Section(s) for the LRTP 
Applicable Sections of 23 CFR 450.216 Long Range Transportation Plan (FAST): 

§5. “The long-range statewide transportation plan shall reference, summarize, or contain any applicable 
short range planning studies; strategic planning and/or policy studies; transportation needs studies; 
management systems reports; emergency relief and disaster preparedness plans; and any statements of 
policies, goals, and objectives on issues (e.g., transportation, safety, economic development, social and 
environmental effects, or energy), as appropriate, that were relevant to the development of the long 
range statewide plan.”  

Section 2: Federal and/or State Reference 
 Federal Reference:  

• 23 CFR 1.11 and 23 CFR 635.105 – Allows for the Idaho Transportation Department to delegate all or some 
project activities to Local Public Agencies (LPAs) 

• 23 CFR 504.b – Authorizes the establishment of Local Technical Assistance Programs 
 

 State Reference: 

• Idaho Code Title 40 Chapter II4 – Establishment, organization, authority, and requirements of the Local 
Highway Technical Assistance Council (LHTAC) 

• Idaho Code 40-317 – Authority to enter into cooperative agreements with the federal and local 
governments. 

Section 3:   ITD Board or Administrative Policies 
Board Policy: 

• 4028 – Allocation of Federal Formula Highway Apportionments to Local Public Agencies 
• 4028s – Local Public Agency Share of Federal Highway Funding 
• 4030 – Surface Transportation Program Rural (STPR) Exchange Program 
• 4081 – Transportation Alternative Program 

Administrative Policy: 

• 5028 – Allocation of Federal Formula Highway Apportionments to Local Public Agencies  
• 5030 – Surface Transportation Program Rural (STPR) Exchange Program 

171

http://lhtac.org/wordpress/wp-content/uploads/2013/08/StrategicPlan2015_Web.pdf


 
 

  91 

• 5081- Transportation Alternatives Program 

Section 4:   MOU or Service Agreements  
The Local Highway Technical Assistance Council (LHTAC), and the Idaho Transportation Department (ITD) have signed a 
new stewardship agreement! This agreement ensures that, for at least the next five years, the LHTAC is able to continue 
to assist locals in the contract administration of the Federal-aid program throughout Idaho. Outlined within the 
agreement are defined authorities for stakeholders, and procedures and processes that are to be implemented when 
working through the Federal-aid process. 

 

In drafting this agreement, LHTAC and ITD staff worked closely to enhance and streamline which individuals hold 
approval authority on local Federal-aid projects and eliminate any duplication. LHTAC understands that the sponsors 
input is key, and because of that, we are especially excited about one particular change; decision making authority is 
now in the hands of LHTAC in close coordination with the sponsor agency. This will allow decisions to be made by those 
closest to the project, further ensuring the long-term success, and local satisfaction with each project. LHTAC works hard 
to ensure that processes are streamlined, and that the sponsor is always getting the most bang for their buck, this 
agreement will only help in achieving this goal. 

 

Stewardship Agreement:  http://lhtac.org/wordpress/wp-content/uploads/2013/08/stewardship.pdf  

Section 5: Stakeholders and Partners 
• Highway Districts    
• Cities 
• Counties 
• Metropolitan Planning Organizations (MPOs) 
• ITD

172

http://lhtac.org/wordpress/wp-content/uploads/2013/08/stewardship.pdf


Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
92 

Section 6: Process 
The Local Highway Technical Assistance Council (LHTAC) was established under Idaho Code Chapter II4, 
Title 40, in 1994 and continues to assist the Local Highway Jurisdictions (LHJs) on local best management 
practices and administering funding programs. 

 

According to Idaho Code:  The Council shall have the authority to: 

1. Represent its member jurisdictions in conferences, meetings and hearings related to highways, 
roads and streets and other transportation factors affecting local highway jurisdictions;  

2. Develop uniform standards and procedures that may be recommended to its member 
jurisdictions for the construction, maintenance, use, operation and administration of local 
highways;  

3. Cooperate with and receive and expend aid and donations from the federal or state 
governments, and from other sources for the administration and operation of the council;  

4. Make recommendations to the Idaho Transportation Board for the distribution and 
prioritization of federal funds for local highway projects;  

5. Assist the legislature by providing research and data relating to transportation matters affecting 
local highway jurisdictions within the state;  

6. Maintain and disseminate information to local highway jurisdictions of federal and state 
legislation and administrative rules and regulations affecting local highway jurisdictions;  

7. Maintain and disseminate information to local highway jurisdictions of activities relating to 
ground transportation in other states;  

8. When authorized by the participating local jurisdiction, to act for that local jurisdiction through a 
joint exercise of powers agreement with any other local jurisdiction, and any agency of the state 
of Idaho, or any agency of the federal government;  

9. Buy, sell, receive and exchange property, both real and personal, as necessary to perform its 
functions;  
 

10. Be the sole and exclusive authority for the expenditure of the moneys made available by 
appropriation or otherwise to the Council.   

LHTAC has several programs which they administer on behalf of local agencies.  Those programs include: 

 

• Federal-aid: This program is fairly large and includes local rural funds (for cities/towns with a 
population of less than 5,000), urban funds (areas with populations between 5,000-50,000), and 
dedicated funds granted to the one traffic management area in the state (northern Ada County) 
and the five metropolitan planning organizations (MPOs) throughout the state along with funds 
dedicated to the local bridge program.   

173



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
93 

Local rural funds are allocated for projects in rural areas.  Funds may be used for new 
construction, reconstruction or rehabilitation of roadways functionally classified by FHWA as 
arterial or rural major collectors with a small percentage allowed for minor collectors.  The funds 
are recommended for award through a competitive application process administered by LHTAC.  
LHTAC sets an upper project limit of $5 million for these projects with a preference given to 
those that are below $2 million.  The Idaho Transportation Department Board decides which 
rural projects to include in the Idaho Transportation Investment Program (ITIP) based upon the 
LHTAC recommendations and availability of funds. 

 

Urban funds are allocated for projects in urban areas as determined by the US Census Bureau.  
Funds may be used for new construction, reconstruction or rehabilitation of roadways 
functionally classified by FHWA as urban collectors or arterials.  The Federal Highway program 
dedicates funds to urban areas.  In recent years, LHTAC has an agreement to manage the Urban-
Federal Air projects for the Metropolitan Planning Organizations. 

 

The Traffic Management Area (TMA), northern Ada County, has dedicated funds since the 
population is over 200,000.  The other urban fund allocation, for urban areas between 5,000 - 
200,000, is divided using population data between the 5 MPO’s and all other urban areas.  
LHTAC represents the smaller urban areas with populations 5,000 - 50,000.  For these smaller 
urban areas the funds are recommended for award through a competitive application process 
administered by LHTAC.     

 

The local bridge program provides funds for the replacement or rehabilitation of bridges. This 
program has a limit of one project application per year per jurisdiction. The funds are 
recommended for award through a competitive application process administered by LHTAC.  
The Idaho Transportation Department Board decides which local bridge projects to include in 
the Idaho Transportation Investment Program (ITIP) based upon the LHTAC recommendations 
and availability of funds.  In order to qualify for Bridge Funds, the bridge must be in the National 
Bridge Inventory (NBI) Database, which requires the bridge be longer than 20 feet and it must 
carry a public road.  In order to receive Bridge Funds, the project should fall into one of the 3 
categories: 

• Replacement: Bridge should be in poor condition (deck, superstructure, and/or 
substructure, or culvert) 

• Rehabilitation: Bridge should be in fair or poor condition 
• Preserve: Bridge should be in good or fair condition 

174



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
94 

 

• Local Rural Highway Investment Program (LRHIP): The Idaho Transportation Board in 
conjunction with the Idaho Transportation Department (ITD), and the Local Highway Technical 
Assistance Council (LHTAC) has developed this program to assist small cities, counties, and 
highway districts to improve the investment in their roadway infrastructure. The program is 
funded by an exchange of Federal-aid Rural funds for ITD State funds. Currently, up to 
$2,800,000 in state funding is available annually to this program. At the request of the Idaho 
Transportation Board, LHTAC has agreed to administer this program and account for the 
expenditures of the funds based on criteria established by the Idaho Transportation Board and 
LHTAC.  Individual projects can each be awarded a maximum amount of $100,000 as the 
program is currently administered.  Additionally, LHTAC reserves $400,000 of this fund annually 
to help with emergency type projects. Jurisdictions can apply for up to $100,000 to help with an 
emergency once it has occurred. Upon completion of an LRHIP project, a single-page Project 
Document Summary is submitted by the local agency and annually a report is presented by 
LHTAC to the ITD Transportation Board.  
 

• Construction Administration:  LHTAC has performed construction administration of local 
Federal-aid highway construction projects since 2009. The program has matured and grown 
from the initial successes of the Governors Discretionary program and ARRA projects to 
larger and more complex projects currently in the program. LHTAC works in close 
partnership with the private consulting engineers of Idaho, ITD and the local sponsors to 
ensure continued success during construction. Projects are managed by LHTAC; however, 
the onsite construction engineering and inspection is accomplished through consulting firms 
selected by the local highway jurisdiction and LHTAC. This insures local involvement and that 
qualified consultants are selected to perform the work.  

 
• Local Strategic Initiatives Program:  LHTAC administers the Local Strategic Initiatives 

Program, a program established by the Idaho Legislature.  The Strategic Initiatives Program 
requires that funded projects must be related to maintenance, and address safety and 
mobility.  During the 2017 Legislative session, Idaho Law makers voted to continue the 
Surplus Eliminator program previously established in 2015. The Surplus Eliminator Program 
stated that at the end of the year, remaining unallocated funds will be split between the 
rainy-day fund and the Surplus Eliminator program for state transportation projects 
administered by the Idaho Transportation Department (ITD).  In 2017, the previously 
established program was modified slightly to allow for a portion of the allocation to go 
toward the local system.  Now the money is shared 60% to the state system and 40% to the 
local system. In 2018, the total local share of the Surplus Eliminator fund is approximately 
$10.2 million. 

175



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
95 

 
• Local Highway Safety Improvement Program (LHSIP): The Highway Safety Improvement 

Program (HSIP) is a federally funded program aimed at eliminating fatal and serious injury 
(type A) crashes on the roadway system. Local highway jurisdictions receive approximately 
50% of the HSIP funds received by the state and is funneled through the Local Highway 
Safety Improvement Program (LHSIP), a program administered through LHTAC.   Eligibility 
for the LHSIP is based on local highway jurisdictions with a fatal or serious injury (type A) 
crashes during the previous five year period.  

 
• Children Pedestrian Safety Program:  LHTAC administers this program jointly with the Idaho 

Transportation Department.  In 2017, the Idaho Legislature passed legislation which allows 
for a portion of the Strategic Initiatives funding to be used on projects addressing children 
pedestrian safety on the state and local system.  Currently about $2M ($1.2M state share 
and $800K local share) has been set aside for local projects which promote children or 
pedestrian safety.  The requirements for funding under this program are that the project is 
able to go out for bid shortly after award of the grant, will be completed in one construction 
season, and are considered maintenance as required under previous legislation.  Some 
examples of eligible projects include: paths or sidewalks along or adjacent to an existing 
roadway, connecting sidewalks or paths between two terminal points, ADA ramps, or 
pedestrian crossing facilities across an existing roadway including signing and/or 
signalization, and paving an existing pathway.   

 
• Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP): The purpose of the Transportation Alternatives 

Program is to provide for a variety of alternative transportation projects to address the 
needs of non-motorized users while maximizing the use of federal funds. The program will 
provide a mechanism to solicit locally identified projects and leverage potential federal 
funding opportunities for sponsored projects.  The Local Highway Technical Assistance 
Council (LHTAC) has agreed to manage the projects that are primarily on the local system.  
Statewide, this program is currently funded at about $3.2 million dollars for both state and 
local projects with no prescriptive allocation or split.  Projects are funded based on their 
merit regardless of whether they are on the state or local system. 

Section 7: Recommendations and Implementation 
• Additional resources may be needed in the form of a Transportation Planner at LHTAC to 

provide support for the smaller urban areas (those communities with populations 5,000-
50,000). 

• Maintain and build on the partnership developed with LHTAC. 
• Evaluate the LHRIP funding match and determine if the program goals are still being met. 

176



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
96 

Section 8: Helpful Resources 
Helpful References  

• http://www.hrtpo.org/uploads/docs/State%20of%20Transportation%202017%20-
%20Final%20Report.pdf 

• Website: http://lhtac.org/ 

  

177

http://www.hrtpo.org/uploads/docs/State%20of%20Transportation%202017%20-%20Final%20Report.pdf
http://www.hrtpo.org/uploads/docs/State%20of%20Transportation%202017%20-%20Final%20Report.pdf
http://lhtac.org/


Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
97 

 
 
 

Technical Report 7 
Project Selection 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Subject Matter Experts: 
Ken Helm 

District 2 Senior Transportation Planner 
 

Mark Layton 
District 6 Senior Transportation Planner 

 
Sonna Lynn Fernandez 

Transportation Planning Project Manager 
 
 

  

178



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
98 

Introduction:  Project Selection  
The Idaho Transportation Department is committed to providing high quality, cost-effective 
transportation systems that are safe, reliable and responsive for the economical and efficient movement 
of people and products. 
 
Idaho ‘s transportation system is an integrated network of more than 60,000 miles of roads, about 4,000 
bridges, 1,887 miles of rail lines, 125 public airports, and the Port of Lewiston . Of these, the 
transportation department has jurisdictional responsibility for almost 5,000 miles of highway (or nearly 
12,000 lane miles), more than 1,700 bridges, and 30 recreational and emergency airstrips. Also included 
on the state highway system are 30 rest areas and 10 fixed ports of entry. The transportation 
department also oversees federal grants to 15 rural and urban public transportation systems, provides 
state rail planning and rail-project development and supports bicycle and pedestrian projects. 
 
With so many roads, bridges, airports, rail crossings, and a limited budget, many people ask the question 
“how are projects selected?”  This Technical Report will offer a general perspective of this overall 
complicated process. 

Section 1: FAST Act Applicable Section(s) for Project Selection 
Applicable Section is 23 CFR 450.200 of the Long-Range Transportation Plan (FAST Act): 

23 CFR 450.208(d) – Management Systems    
“States may use any one or more of the management systems (in whole or in part) 
described in 23 CFR part 500.  In carrying out the statewide transportation planning process, 
States should apply asset management principles and techniques consistent with the State 
Asset Management Plan for the NHS and the Transit Asset Management Plan, and Public 
Transportation Agency Safety Plan in establishing planning goals, defining STIP priorities, 
and assessing transportation investment decisions, including transportation system safety, 
operations, preservation, and maintenance.” 
 
23 CFR 450.208(g) – ITS Systems 
“The statewide transportation planning process shall (to the maximum extent practicable) 
be consistent with the development of applicable regional intelligent transportation systems 
(ITS) architectures, as defined in 23 CFR part 940.” 
 
23 CFR 450.218 – Statewide Transportation Improvement Program 
“The State shall develop a statewide transportation improvement program (STIP) for all 
areas of the State.  
1. The STIP shall cover a period of no less than 4 years and shall be updated at least every 

4 years, or more frequently if the Governor of the State elects a more frequent update 
cycle. However, if the STIP covers more than 4 years, the FHWA and the FTA will 
consider the projects in the additional years as informational. In case of difficulties 
developing a portion of the STIP for a particular area (e.g., metropolitan planning area, 
nonattainment or maintenance area, or Indian Tribal lands), the State may develop a 
partial STIP covering the rest of the State. 
 

179



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
99 

2. For each metropolitan area in the State, the State shall develop the STIP in cooperation 
with the MPO designated for the metropolitan area. The State shall include each 
metropolitan TIP without change in the STIP, directly or by reference, after approval of 
the TIP by the MPO and the Governor. A metropolitan TIP in a nonattainment or 
maintenance area is subject to a FHWA/FTA conformity finding before inclusion in the 
STIP.  
 

3. In areas outside a metropolitan planning area but within an air quality nonattainment 
or maintenance area containing any part of a metropolitan area, projects must be 
included in the regional emissions analysis that supported the conformity 
determination of the associated metropolitan TIP before they are added to the STIP. 
 

4. For each nonmetropolitan area in the State, the State shall develop the STIP in 
cooperation with affected nonmetropolitan local officials with responsibility for 
transportation or, if applicable, through RTPOs described in § 450.210(d) using the 
State’s consultation process(es) established under § 450.210(b). 
 

5. For each area of the State under the jurisdiction of an Indian Tribal government, the 
STIP shall be developed in consultation with the Tribal government and the Secretary of 
the Interior. Tribal Transportation Program, Federal Lands Transportation Program, and 
Federal Lands Access Program TIPs shall be included without change in the STIP, 
directly or by reference, once approved by the FHWA pursuant to 23 U.S.C. 201(c)(4). 
 

6. The Governor shall provide all interested parties with a reasonable opportunity to 
comment on the proposed STIP as required by § 450.210(a).  
 

7. The STIP shall include capital and non-capital surface transportation projects (or phases 
of projects) within the boundaries of the State proposed for funding under title 23 
U.S.C. and title 49 U.S.C. Chapter V3 (including transportation alternatives and 
associated transit improvements; Tribal Transportation Program projects, Federal 
Lands Transportation Program projects, and Federal Lands Access Program projects; 
HSIP projects; trails projects; and accessible pedestrian walkways and bicycle facilities), 
except the following that may be included:  
a. Safety projects funded under 23 U.S.C. 402 and 49 U.S.C. 31102; 
b. Metropolitan planning projects funded under 23 U.S.C. 104(d) and 49 U.S.C. 

5305(d);  
c. State planning and research projects funded under 23 U.S.C. 505 and 49 U.S.C. 

5305(e); 
d. State planning and research projects funded with Surface Transportation Program 

funds;  
e. Emergency relief projects (except those involving substantial functional, locational, 

or capacity changes); 
f. Research, development, demonstration, and deployment projects funded under 49 

U.S.C. 5312, and technical assistance and standards development projects funded 
under 49 U.S.C. 5314;  

g. Project management oversight projects funded under 49 U.S.C. 5327; and 
h. State safety oversight programs funded under 49 U.S.C. 5329. 

 

180



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
100 

8.     The STIP shall contain all regionally significant projects requiring an action by the FHWA 
or the FTA whether or not the projects are to be funded with 23 U.S.C. Chapters 1 and 
2 or title 49 U.S.C. Chapter V3 funds (e.g., addition of an interchange to the Interstate 
System with State, local, and/or private funds, and congressionally designated projects 
not funded under title 23 U.S.C. or title 49 U.S.C. Chapter V3). For informational and 
conformity purposes, the STIP shall include (if appropriate and included in any TIPs) all 
regionally significant projects proposed to be funded with Federal funds other than 
those administered by the FHWA or the FTA, as well as all regionally significant projects 
to be funded with non-Federal funds.  

 

9.    The STIP shall include for each project or phase (e.g., preliminary engineering, 
environment/NEPA, right-of-way, design, or construction) the following:  
a. Sufficient descriptive material (i.e., type of work, termini, and length) to identify 

the project or phase;   
b. Estimated total project cost or a project cost range, which may extend beyond the 

4 years of the STIP;  
c. The amount of Federal funds proposed to be obligated during each program year. 

For the first year, this includes the proposed category of Federal funds and 
source(s) of non-Federal funds. For the second, third, and fourth years, this 
includes the likely category or possible categories of Federal funds and sources of 
non-Federal funds; and 

d. Identification of the agencies responsible for carrying out the project or phase. 
 

10.   Projects that are not considered to be of appropriate scale for individual identification 
in a given program year may be grouped by function, work type, and/or geographic 
area using the applicable classifications under 23 CFR 771.117(c) and (d) and/or 40 CFR 
part 93. In nonattainment and maintenance areas, project classifications must be 
consistent with the ‘‘exempt project’’ classifications contained in the EPA’s 
transportation conformity regulations (40 CFR part 93, subpart A). In addition, projects 
proposed for funding under title 23 U.S.C. Chapter II that are not regionally significant 
may be grouped in one line item or identified individually in the STIP.  

 

11.   Each project or project phase included in the STIP shall be consistent with the long-
range statewide transportation plan developed under § 450.216 and, in metropolitan 
planning areas, consistent with an approved metropolitan transportation plan 
developed under § 450.324. 

 

12.  The STIP may include a financial plan that demonstrates how the approved STIP can be 
implemented, indicates resources from public and private sources that are reasonably 
expected to be available to carry out the STIP, and recommends any additional 
financing strategies for needed projects and programs. In addition, for illustrative 
purposes, the financial plan may include additional projects that would be included in 
the adopted STIP if reasonable additional resources beyond those identified in the 
financial plan were to become available. The State is not required to select any project 
from the illustrative list for implementation, and projects on the illustrative list cannot 
be advanced to implementation without an action by the FHWA and the FTA on the 
STIP. Revenue and cost estimates for the STIP must use an inflation rate to reflect ‘‘year 

181



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
101 

of expenditure dollars,’’ based on reasonable financial principles and information, 
developed cooperatively by the State, MPOs, and public transportation operators.  

 

13.   In nonattainment and maintenance areas, projects included in the first 2 years of the 
STIP shall be limited to those for which funds are available or committed. Financial 
constraint of the STIP shall be demonstrated and maintained by year and shall include 
sufficient financial information to demonstrate which projects are to be implemented 
using current and/or reasonably available revenues, while federally supported facilities 
are being adequately operated and maintained. In the case of proposed funding 
sources, strategies for ensuring their availability shall be identified in the financial plan 
consistent with paragraph (l) of this section. For purposes of transportation operations 
and maintenance, the STIP shall include financial information containing system-level 
estimates of costs and revenue sources that are reasonably expected to be available to  
adequately operate and maintain Federal-aid highways (as defined by 23 U.S.C. 
101(a)(5)) and public transportation (as defined by title 49 U.S.C. 5302).  

 

14.   Projects in any of the first 4 years of the STIP may be advanced in place of another 
project in the first 4 years of the STIP, subject to the project selection requirements of § 
450.222. In addition, subject to FHWA/FTA approval (see § 450.220), the State may 
revise the STIP at any time under procedures agreed to by the State, MPO(s), and 
public transportation operators consistent with the STIP development procedures 
established in this section, as well as the procedures for participation by interested 
parties (see § 450.210(a)). Changes that affect fiscal constraint must take place by 
amendment of the STIP. 

 

15.   The STIP shall include a project, or an identified phase of a project, only if full funding 
can reasonably be anticipated to be available for the project within the time period 
contemplated for completion of the project. 

 

16.   In cases where the FHWA and the FTA find a STIP to be fiscally constrained, and a 
revenue source is subsequently removed or substantially reduced (i.e., by legislative or 
administrative actions), the FHWA and the FTA will not withdraw the original 
determination of fiscal constraint.  However, in such cases, the FHWA and the FTA will 
not act on an updated or amended STIP that does not reflect the changed revenue 
situation. 

17.   A STIP shall include, to the maximum extent practicable, a discussion of the anticipated 
effect of the STIP toward achieving the performance targets identified by the State in 
the statewide transportation plan or other State performance-based plan(s), linking 
investment priorities to those performance targets.” 

 
23 CFR 450.222 – Project Selection from the STIP 
1. Only projects in a FHWA/FTA approved STIP are eligible for funds administered by the 

FHWA or the FTA. 
 

2. In metropolitan planning areas, transportation projects proposed for funds 
administered by the FHWA or the FTA shall be selected from the approved STIP in 
accordance with project selection procedures provided in § 450.332. 
 

182



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
102 

3. In nonmetropolitan areas, with the exclusion of specific projects as described in this 
section, the State shall select projects from the approved STIP in cooperation with the 
affected nonmetropolitan local officials, or if applicable, through RTPOs described in § 
450.210(e). The State shall select transportation projects undertaken on the NHS, under 
the Bridge and Interstate Maintenance programs in title 23 U.S.C. and under sections 
5310 and 5311 of title 49 U.S.C. Chapter V3 from the approved STIP in consultation with 
the affected nonmetropolitan local officials with responsibility for transportation. 
 

4. Tribal Transportation Program, Federal Lands Transportation Program, and Federal 
Lands Access Program projects shall be selected from the approved STIP in accordance 
with the procedures developed pursuant to 23 U.S.C. 201, 202, 203, and 204. 
 

5. The projects in the first year of an approved STIP shall constitute an ‘‘agreed to’’ list of 
projects for subsequent scheduling and implementation. No further action under 
paragraphs (b) through (d) of this section is required for the implementing agency to 
proceed with these projects. If Federal funds available are significantly less than the 
authorized amounts, or where there is significant shifting of projects among years, § 
450.332 (a) provides for a revised list of ‘‘agreed to’’ projects to be developed upon the 
request of the State, MPO, or public transportation operator(s). If an implementing 
agency wishes to proceed with a project in the second, third, or fourth year of the STIP, 
the procedures in paragraphs (b) through (d) of this section or expedited procedures 
that provide for the advancement of projects from the second, third, or fourth years of 
the STIP may be used, if agreed to by all parties involved in the selection process. 

 
Any decision by the Secretary concerning a long-range statewide transportation plan or 
STIP developed through the processes provided for in 23 U.S.C. 135, 49 U.S.C. 5304, and 
this subpart shall not be considered to be a Federal action subject to review under the 
National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (42 U.S.C. 4321 et seq.). 

Section 2: Federal and/or State Reference 
 Federal Reference: FAST Act 23 CFR 450.200 

Section 3:   ITD Board or Administrative Policies 
Because every Board and Administrative Policy impacts the way the department selects and constructs 
projects, they will not be listed here.  Please refer to ITD’s PolicyFinder for a list of all department 
policies.  

Section 4:   MOU or Service Agreements  
There are no MOU or Service Agreements with this process. 

183



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
103 

Section 5: Stakeholders 
Because Idaho’s transportation system belongs to the public, shared involvement in planning, 
developing and maintaining all facets of transportation is essential. That is the foundation upon which 
the transportation department’s public involvement program is based. Construction and maintenance 
programs reflect needs that emerge from the grassroots of Idaho. Public input is essential in locating 
interchanges, widening travel lanes, resurfacing roadways, determining traffic patterns and creating 
pedestrian and bicycle paths. 

The public involvement process includes both talking and listening, teaching and learning. While projects 
are not expected to be unanimously endorsed by every citizen, the transportation department is 
committed to the two-way information exchange as an indispensable part of a representative decision- 
making process. These decisions balance the need for safe and efficient transportation with the need to 
preserve economic, social and environmental conditions. The transportation department strives to be 
not only a good provider, but a good neighbor as well. Project planning includes numerous opportunities 
for the public to convey needs and suggestions. Those lines of communication instill shared ownership 
and a common vision for Idaho’s transportation system. Information meetings and formal hearings 
provide public access to the process. By encouraging public involvement early and often in the planning 
and development of transportation projects, the department hopes to ensure a product that serves the 
best interests of the most people. 

Section 6: Project Selection Process 
ITD’s project selection process is a complicated and ongoing process that considers rules and 
regulations, funding provisions, data, plans, community outreach and other information. This process is 
fluid and requires a great deal of time to ensure the appropriate projects are selected, scheduled and 
built.  For an overall view of the process, please see the graphic on the next page. 
 
The ITD Board and Executive Management have a great deal of control on the types of projects the 
department constructs.  ITD’s Mission and Vision drives the department daily and influences all 
decisions to ensure we meet the vision of selecting and constructing projects that improves safety, 
enhances mobility and positively impacts economic opportunities.  This philosophy is evident through 
the many Board and Administrative policies that guide ITD staff in their daily jobs. 
 
Project selection is also influenced by federal and state regulations which spells out how and where the 
funds can be used.  There are many conditions placed on the funds and specific guidelines on the 
engineering standards to maintain national standards and performance.  Sometimes when additional 
funds become available, grants are offered.  These grants also have special contingencies and 
requirements.   
 
Annually the ITD Board and Executive Management reviews the departments Mission and Vision as well 
as statewide performance to ensure the department is moving in the right direction.  The ITD Board 
then establishes the initial project selection screening criteria that staff uses to select projects, 
determine funding availability, and project timelines.  At the same time, ITD’s Financial Planning and 
Analysis (FP&A) reviews federal and state funding availability and outlines the amount of money that 

184



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
104 

will be allocated (through the Transportation Investment System) to specific pots and what each area of 
the state will receive. 
 
Once the criteria and the funding allocations have been established, each district begins its project 
selection process.  To do this each district combines and evaluates:  

• Objective data gathered from several transportation management systems  
• Needs identified during ongoing public and stakeholder engagement 
• Long-range plans, corridor and modal plans, local and metropolitan plans, other federal and 

state agency plans, etc. 

185



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
105 

  

186



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
106 

• Funding allocations and funding strategies 
• Construction schedules and engineering standards 

Meanwhile, ITD Program Managers at Headquarters are soliciting grant applications for a variety of 
competitive grants such as Transportation Alternative Program (TAP), Highway Safety grants, Public 
Transportation Grants, etc.  Grants are then evaluated and recommendations for awards are forwarded 
to be included into the Idaho Transportation Investment Program (ITIP).   
 
The Districts are deciding upon two types of projects: 

1. Safety and Capacity projects – expansion projects or new facilities 
2. Operations, Preservation and Restoration Projects – maintaining the system 

Once the Districts have evaluated pertinent data and input, their recommendations are also forwarded 
to be included into the ITIP.  In June every year, the ITD Board considers all of the projects identified for 
construction in the draft ITIP. The draft ITIP is submitted to stakeholders and the public for 30-days for 
consideration and comment.  At the end of the Comment Period, the ITD Board reconsiders the draft 
ITIP and comments and makes a final determination. If all looks good and there are no additions or 
deletions, the ITD Board will approve the draft ITIP.  The final ITIP will be submitted to the Federal 
Highways Administration and the Federal Transit Administration of certification of the approved project 
list.  This usually occurs in September with certification in October. 

Section 7: Recommendations and Implementation 
No suggestions offered. 

Section 8: Helpful Resources 
Helpful References  
  

187



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
107 

 
 

Technical Report 8 
Program Planning 

ITIP/STIP/TIP 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Subject Matter Expert 
 

Nathan Hesterman 
Senior Transportation Planner 

  

188



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
108 

Introduction:  Program Planning ITIP/STIP/TIP 
1. Programming is the process of scheduling and funding projects envisioned during the 
planning process by committing projected revenues to potential projects outlined in plans and 
studies.  It is during this phase that an idea becomes a project.  Just like Planning, it is important to 
consider stakeholder needs, issues, and wants.  Transportation Programming is the commitment of 
transportation funds to be available over a period of several years to particular projects. Idaho 
considers three separate programming documents – The Idaho Transportation Investment Program 
(ITIP), the Statewide Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) and the Transportation 
Improvement Program (TIP).  Each document is prepared and adopted by various agencies for 
somewhat different purposes.  Here is a concise breakdown of these three important programming 
documents. 
2.  

 

 

What’s the Difference? 

 Idaho Transportation 
Investment Program (ITIP) 

Statewide Transportation 
Improvement Program (STIP) 

Transportation Improvement 
Program (TIP) 

W
ha

t i
s i

t?
 

The ITIP is a state document 
that guides ITD’s investments 
through various funding 
programs (including state and 
federal funds).   
 
Individual projects are listed 
in this document as well as 
those found in the MPO TIPs. 

The STIP is a federal document 
that contains projects that are 
federally funded based on 
grouped projects.   
 
The STIP also contains the 
MPO Transportation 
Improvement Programs (TIPs) 
by reference.   
 
It is during the programming 
process when staff (ITD, 
LHTAC and MPOs) matches 
proposed projects to available 
funds that best meets agency 
strategic performance goals.  
The key to successful 
programming begins with 
planning and project 
development and the 
relationships our agencies 
have with stakeholders.   The 
federally-approved STIP is the 
final document preceding the 
actual construction or 
implementation of projects.  
 

The TIP is a metropolitan 
planning organization (MPO) 
document that guides local 
investments through various 
funding programs (including 
local, state and federal funds).   
 
TIPs are stand-alone 
documents, approved at the 
local level and includes only 
projects within the MPO 
Planning Boundaries that are 
federally, state and locally 
funded. 
 
Individual projects are listed 
in this document as well as 
those projects that are in the 
MPO area found in ITIP. 

189



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
109 

 

 

 

W
ha

t i
s i

nc
lu

de
d?

 Includes all modes of 
transportation (i.e., air, 
highway, freight, bicycle/ 
pedestrian, public 
transportation, rail, etc.) and 
other programs (i.e., safety, 
strategic initiatives, etc.).  

Includes all modes of 
transportation (i.e., air, 
highway, freight, bicycle/ 
pedestrian, public 
transportation, rail, etc.) and 
other programs that are 
federally funded. 

Includes all modes of 
transportation (i.e., air, 
highway, freight, bicycle/ 
pedestrian, public 
transportation, rail, etc.) and 
projects that are regionally 
significant. 

Ho
w

 m
an

y 
ye

ar
s?

 Contains seven-years of 
individually identified 
projects. 
 
The ITIP includes financial 
summary tables to 
demonstrate fiscal constraint 
to the STIP. 

Contains four-years (federally 
funded) and one year 
(planning) of grouped 
projects. Projects may not be 
specifically identified because 
they are grouped (“rolled-up”) 
by funding category.   
 
The STIP includes financial 
summary tables to 
demonstrate fiscal constraint. 
This reduces the need for STIP 
Amendments. 

Contains five-years of 
metropolitan identified 
projects.     
 
The TIP includes financial 
summary tables to 
demonstrate fiscal constraint 
at the local level. 

Ai
r Q

ua
lit

y 
 

Must have performed an Air 
Quality conformity analysis 
for projects located in non-
attainment areas of the state. 

Must have performed an Air 
Quality conformity analysis 
for projects located in non-
attainment areas outside of 
MPOs. 

Must have performed an Air 
Quality conformity analysis 
for projects located within 
MPOs areas that are 
considered non-attainment. 

W
ho

 a
pp

ro
ve

s  

The ITIP is approved by the 
Idaho Transportation Board. 

Approved by the Idaho 
Transportation Board.  The 
approved STIP is submitted to 
Federal Highways, Federal 
Transit Administrations and 
the Environmental Protection 
Agency for their approvals. 

Projects are recommended by 
the MPO Technical Advisory 
Committee and Approved by 
the MPO Policy Board.  The 
TIP is then sent to ITD to be 
included by reference in the 
ITIP and STIP. 

190



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
110 

Ho
w

 th
e 

Pu
bl

ic
 in

vo
lv

ed
 

Annually during the month of July, the Idaho Transportation Department conducts a 30-day 
open public comment period on the draft ITIP.  Although the projects located in metropolitan 
areas are included in the ITIP for public consideration, MPOs also conduct their own 30-day 
public comment period.   ITD staff will accept and consider each comment made on the ITIP; 
however, it is the Idaho Transportation Board that has the final say on how the comment(s) will 
affect the plan and/or program. To assist the ITD Board, the Office of Communication will create 
a comment book showing each of the comments received and indicate how the comment could 
be implemented. The Board will receive the Comment Book prior to the adoption of the 
plan/program for their consideration. 
 
Opportunities will be available to comment on the proposed Idaho Transportation Investment 
Program. Notice will be given (via advertisements, postcards, and electronic mail) that the draft 
will be available online for review and comment for a 30-day period. Comments can be 
submitted during this time period by electronic mail, via on-line comment form or through 
regular mail. The draft ITIP will be available at each of the ITD District offices, MPO offices, and 
online throughout the 30-day comment period.    
 
All Idaho Native American Tribe tribal councils will be notified of ITIP outreach opportunities as 
they become available. Communication and coordination will be different between the ITD 
District and their corresponding tribal council. The District will determine with their tribe which 
projects are of interest and important to them, and plan accordingly for future public 
involvement in project phases. Idaho tribes include those with reservation land in Idaho and 
land area claims in Idaho.   

By ITD policy, a 30-day public 
comment period will be 
conducted on the ITIP. 

By USC Title 23, a 30-day 
public comment period is 
required on the STIP.   

By USC Title 23, a 30-day 
public comment period is 
required. 

191



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
111 

Section 1: FAST Act Applicable Section(s) for the LRTP 
Applicable Sections of 23 CFR 450.216 Long Range Transportation Plan (FAST): 

§3. “The long-range statewide transportation plan should include capital, operations and 
management strategies, investments, procedures, and other measures to ensure the 
preservation and most efficient use of the existing transportation system including 
consideration of the role that intercity buses may play in reducing congestion, pollution, 
and energy consumption in a cost-effective manner and strategies and investments that 
preserve and enhance intercity bus systems, including systems that are privately 
owned.” 

 
§5. “The long-range statewide transportation plan shall reference, summarize, or contain 

any applicable short range planning studies; strategic planning and/or policy studies; 
transportation needs studies; management systems reports; emergency relief and 
disaster preparedness plans; and any statements of policies, goals, and objectives on 
issues (e.g., transportation, safety, economic development, social and environmental 

W
ha

t a
bo

ut
 A

m
en

dm
en

ts
? 

Amendments to the ITIP may 
occur when funding sources 
change, priorities change, 
project scope and termini 
changes and purpose and 
need changes, etc.   
 
Opportunities to comment on 
proposed amendments to the 
ITIP outside of the annual 
update will be publicized by 
sending out a notice of the 
proposed amendments to the 
public through the media, as 
an advertisement, via 
electronic mail or by postcard. 
At the same time, a 7-day 
comment period will be 
announced. 
 

Formal amendments are 
required what changes cause: 
addition or deletion of a 
project; changes in project 
cost beyond a predetermined 
threshold; changes in project 
construction years; or major 
changes in design concept or 
scope.  
 
STIP Amendments are 
subjected to a 7-day public 
comment before they can be 
approved by the Idaho 
Transportation Board and 
submitted for final approval 
by Federal Highways, Federal 
Transit Administrations and 
the Environmental Protection 
Agencies. 
 
If an Amendment is on a 
project that is also included in 
the TIP, the MPO must also 
concur with the change.  In 
many cases, the MPO will 
conduct the outreach for 
public comment. 

For projects located within an 
MPO, amendments will first 
be requested through the 
MPO. If a comment period is 
required, the MPO will be 
required to fulfill this 
obligation. The comment 
period will be subjective to 
MPO policy and procedures.  
 
Once the MPO certifies that 
the amendment has met 
public involvement 
requirements and it has been 
acted upon by their Board, a 
letter from the MPO will be 
sent to ITD for ITD Board 
action. ITD will then send an 
amendment request to the 
proper federal agencies for 
final approval.  

192



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
112 

effects, or energy), as appropriate, that were relevant to the development of the long 
range statewide plan.”  

 
§15. “The long-range statewide transportation plan may include a financial plan that 

demonstrates how the adopted long-range statewide plan can be implemented, 
indicates resources from public and private sources that are reasonably expected to be 
made available to carry out the plan, and recommends any additional financing 
strategies for needed public projects and programs. In addition, for illustrative purposes, 
the financial plan may include additional projects that the state would include in the 
adopted long-range statewide transportation plan in additional resources beyond those 
identified in the financial plan were to become available. The financial plan may include 
an assessment of the appropriateness of innovative finance techniques (for example, 
tolling, pricing, bonding, public-private partnerships, or other strategies) as revenue 
sources.” 

Section 2: Federal and/or State Reference 
Federal References  
• 23 USC 101 – Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century Act (MAP-21)  

 State References 
• Idaho Code 21-105 – The Department may provide technical services and financial assistance to 

municipal airports. 
• Idaho Code 40-310(14) – Authority to transfer funds from the state highway account established 

in Idaho Code 40-702 for the construction, repair or maintenance of roadways in and through 
any state institution.  

• Idaho Code 40-312(2) – Authority of Board to promulgate rules for the expenditure of all 
moneys appropriated or allocated by law to the Department or the Board. 

• Idaho Code 40-317 – Authority to enter into cooperative agreements with the federal and local 
governments. 

• Idaho Code 40-528 – Federal Transit Administration Authority 
• Idaho Code 40-702(5) – Establishment of state highway account to include all federal surface 

transportation funds received from the United Stated government. 
• Idaho Code 40-707 – Appropriation of money in the state highway account. 
• Idaho Code 40-708 – Legislative policy regarding expenditure from state highway account – only 

for state highway purposes. 

Section 3:   ITD Board or Administrative Policies 
ITD Board Policy References  
• 4011 – Idaho Transportation Investment Program 
• 4028 – Allocation of Federal Funding Formula Highway Apportionment to Local Public Agencies 
• 4028S – 4028 Supplemental 
• 4029 – Cooperative Agreements for Construction of State Highways 
• 4030 – Surface Transportation Program Rural (STPR) Exchange Program 

193



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
113 

• 4032 – Local Bridge Inspection Fund 
• 4045 – State Institution Road Improvement 
• 4075 – Assistance to Idaho’s Airports 
• 4081 – Transportation Alternative Program 
• B1105 – Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement Program (CMAQ) 
• B0908 – Bicycle/Pedestrian Facilities 
• B1907 – Highway Safety Funds 
Administrative Policy References 
• 5011 – Idaho Transportation Investment Program 
• 5029 – Cooperative Agreements for Construction of State Highways 
• 5030 – Surface Transportation Program Rural (STPR) Exchange Program 
• 5032 – Local Bridge Inspection Fund 
• 5045 – State Institution Road Improvement 
• 5075 – Assistance to Idaho’s Airports 
• 5081 – Transportation Alternative Program 
• 5514 – Decision Process for Funding Division of Transportation Performance Public 

Transportation Projects 
• 5536 – Financial Reporting Approach for the Infrastructure Inventory Classification of Roadways 
• A0109 – Authority to Sign Contracts, Agreements or Grants 
• A0126 – FHWA Emergency Relief 
• A0538 – Disaster /Emergency Support 
• A1105 – Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement Program (CMAQ) 
• A1406 – Approval of Plans/Specifications/Estimates and the Award of Construction Projects 
• A2804 – Bicycle/Pedestrian Facilities 

Section 4:   MOU or Service Agreements  
None. 

Section 5: Stakeholders and Partners 
ITD works closely with our Metropolitan Planning Organizations and the Local Highway Technical 
Assistance Council to select and program projects. 

Section 6: Process 

Summary of the STIP Update Process 
ITD includes highways, public transportation, bicycle and pedestrian, and aeronautics projects within the 
STIP.  Aeronautics projects are included for informational purposes only as they are not required to be in 
the STIP per 23 CFR 450. 
 
Program Organization 

194



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
114 

Executive management and the Idaho Transportation Board (Board) create and fund a series of 
programs within the STIP to accomplish specific objectives. Example programs and abbreviated 
objectives include: 

• Pavement Preservation - maintain the pavement riding surface on the State Highway System 
• Bridge Restoration – replace or reconstruct highway bridges on the State Highway System 
• Urban - maintain and improve local roads in urban areas 

 
A team of engineers and/or planners with expertise in each program area manage each of these 
programs. These program teams: 

1. Determine the specific objectives for their program, 
2. Determine the engineering requirements for specific project types to cost effectively and 

efficiently meet these objectives, 
3. Collect data, analyze, and report on the condition of the system within their area, 
4. Make recommendations to management on funding required to meet objectives, 
5. Recommend which projects to fund to meet the objectives of their program, and 
6. Manage program budgets and delivery milestones as projects are developed and delivered for 

construction. 
 
Constituents of each program generally represent regions of the state such as Department Districts One 
through Six for the State Highway System (SHS) or the six metropolitan planning areas and the Local 
Highway Technical Assistance Council (LHTAC) representing the urban areas of the Local Road System 
(LRS). Formulae are used to target funds between regions to manage "equity", i.e. there is a healthy 
tension between program performance and regional equity of funding.  
 
System Condition  
Program teams collect data, analyze, and report on the system condition within their program area 
throughout the year. This assessment is used at the beginning of each annual Program Update cycle by 
management and the Board to review and focus program priorities and set funding levels. 
 
Program Revenue 
The STIP is funded from several sources: 

1. Federal transportation acts provide apportionments (Fixing America’s Surface Transportation 
(FAST) for FY 2016 – 2020), 

2. Federal apportionment levels are estimated via FAST apportionment tables, 
3. Annual federal appropriation acts provide authority to obligate these apportionments (avg. 

obligation authority is approximately 95% of annual apportionments), 
4. State and local funds to match federal aid (avg. 92% F.A. and 8% state or local match), 
5. Annual federal project-specific discretionary awards or congressional earmarks, 
6. Private funding; e.g., through Idaho State Tax Anticipated Revenue (STAR) legislation, 
7. Grant Anticipation Revenue Vehicle (GARVEE) bond proceeds, and 
8. State funds for Capital Construction on the State Highway System. 

 

195



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
115 

Seven-year forecasts of these funds are updated each December through January. These forecasts are 
used at the beginning of each annual Program Update cycle by management and the Board to review 
and focus program priorities and funding levels. 
 
Project Solicitations and Submittals 
The annual Program Update Manual captures and communicates the Program Teams', management's, 
and the Board's objectives, priorities, and funding levels to constituencies throughout the state 
including: 
 

1. Department Districts One through Six and headquarters, 
2. Six Metropolitan Planning Areas (five metropolitan planning organizations), 
3. The Local Highway Technical Assistance Council, and 
4. Local transit providers in urbanized areas. 

 
These constituencies, in turn, are composed of other constituencies and so-on. Through this process, the 
request for project solicitations reaches individual project managers who create project scopes, budgets, 
and delivery schedules that meet the objectives, priorities, and funding levels as requested by the 
Board, and corridor goals as established in continual corridor planning activities with the general public 
and other transportation stakeholders. The Program Teams for statewide competitive programs such as 
the Transportation Alternatives Program and Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) may solicit 
projects directly from cities, counties, and local highway districts. 
 
These project submittals travel back up the constituency chain for review and approval at each stage 
including local councils and local boards until they reach the Program Teams prior to the June Board 
review. 
 
Program Review 
The overall program of projects is analyzed by each Program Team to determine if the nominated 
projects meet the objectives, fiscal constraint, and other guidance as determined by the Board for each 
program. There are usually budget overages and underages by program, region, and year caused by 
project size and delivery schedule of the individual projects of which each program is composed. 
 
Any inconsistencies in the Draft Program which prevent it from fully meeting program objectives, fiscal 
constraint, or applicable regional equity to the maximum extent possible given project submittals could 
be resolved through Statewide or District-level or Local Program Balancing meetings where individual 
constituencies can collaboratively modify project delivery schedules between years and programs to 
deliver as many of the submitted projects as possible. 
 
The state and Metropolitan Planning Organizations (MPOs) cooperatively review projects within each 
Metropolitan Planning Area before inclusion in each Draft Transportation Improvement Program (Draft 
TIP).  
 
The Draft Program is reviewed and modified by management at the end of May and by the Board in 
June. The Draft STIP and Draft TIPs are then made available to the general public for a 30-day review and 

196



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
116 

comment period in July.  Modifications to the Draft Program due to public comment and end-of-year 
delivery of the Approved Program are made in August.  
 
At this point, the state and Metropolitan Planning Organizations (MPOs) again cooperatively review 
projects within each Metropolitan Planning Area to ensure any changes made since public involvement 
are captured in each TIP.  The Draft Program now becomes the Recommended Program which is 
reviewed and modified by management at the end of August and reviewed and approved by the ITD 
Board in September and by the MPO Boards by the end of October. 
 
The newly Approved Program is input into our budgeting and obligation systems in October.  Projects 
approved in previous years’ STIPs may proceed to obligation.  Per 23 CFR 450.218(j), ITD also groups 
projects that are likely to receive an environmental categorical exclusion.  These projects may also 
proceed to obligation.  The previous year’s STIP and MPO TIPs are then amended to include new 
projects so that obligation for preliminary engineering may proceed prior to approval of the new STIP. 
 
The newly Approved Program is then submitted to the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) and 
Federal Transit Administration (FTA) in the STIP Submittal document. This document includes self-
certifications from each MPO that their TIP and planning processes meet all of the requirements of 23 
CFR 450l.  Final STIP approval by these administrations generally occurs in December. The next annual 
Program Update cycle begins. 
 

Program Summaries 
 
State Highway System Infrastructure Programs 
Approximately 75% of federal and 100% of state funding are used on the State Highway System.  The 
core programs fund the life-cycle costs of the present highway system.  Core programs are funded with 
federal National Highway Performance Program (NHPP), federal Surface Transportation Block Grant 
(STBG), state, state HB312, and state strategic initiatives fund apportionments. 
 
Pavement programs include Pavement Preservation on Commerce Routes (average truck traffic at or 
above 300 daily), Pavement Preservation on Non-Commerce Routes, and Pavement Restoration.  The 
optimal splits of funds between preservation and restoration activities are determined by the 
Transportation Asset Management System (TAMS).  This system is also used to determine the optimal 
funding split between ITD Districts.  District personnel use this system to determine which projects to 
nominate for these pavement programs.  This system optimizes project selection based upon asset life-
cycle costs. 
 
Core bridge programs include Bridge Preservation and Bridge Restoration.  The Bridge Management 
System (BrM) is used by the bridge section to select the optimal set of bridges for programming in the 
new year of the program based upon asset life-cycle costs and whether a bridge is structurally deficient, 
width, height, or load restricted, or has a deteriorated bridge deck.  The bridge engineer visits each 
District to review the list, modify it based upon District priorities, and finally reach agreement on the 
bridge project nominations. 
 

197



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
117 

Submittals to the Safety & Capacity Program are nominated based upon a benefit-cost ratio (BCR) 
generated by the Transportation Economic Development Impact System (TREDIS) software.  TREDIS 
measures the safety, mobility, and economic impact of project submittals.  The Safety & Capacity 
Program is funded with federal Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP), NHPP, STBG, state, and 
state transportation expansion and congestion mitigation (TECM) funds. 
 
The Freight Program integrates freight system needs into the State’s infrastructure development 
ensuring the effective, competitive, efficient, and safe movement of freight in Idaho.  It is a new 
program begun under the FAST Act.  Project submittals are reviewed by the Freight Advisory Council and 
nominated by the Freight Project Selection Team based upon criteria published in the Program Update 
Manual.  Occasionally, a local freight project will be nominated.  Submittals are also run through TREDIS 
to generate their BCR. 
 
The Early Development Program funds preliminary engineering on up to $175,000 of unfunded 
construction projects.  This allows time for obtaining Environmental Impact Statements on large projects 
that take up to seven years to develop prior to their inclusion in the STIP. 
 
Completed GARVEE Authorizations total $857 million in highway improvements with an annual debt 
service payment of approximately $56.7 million in federal funds and state match.  In FY 2017 the state 
legislature authorized an additional $300 million in new GARVEE bonds.  The Board has allocated $64 
million to the US-95 Garwood to Sagle corridor and $236 million to the I-84 Caldwell to Meridian 
corridor.  The $300 million in additional bonding authority corresponds to additional debt service of 
approximately $24 million totaling $87.7 million annually. 
 
Local Road System Programs 
The Local Highway Technical Assistance Council (LHTAC) administers the Local Safety Program, Local 
Rural Program, Local Bridge Program, Off-System Bridge Program, and Local Urban projects in urban 
areas less than 50,000 in population.  Project applications to these programs are accepted from 
counties, cities, local highway districts, and tribes with jurisdiction over public roads in Idaho.  These 
applications are reviewed by LHTAC staff and projects are nominated for inclusion in the STIP by the 
LHTAC Board.  These programs are funded with federal HSIP and STBG apportionments. 
 
Members of the Local Urban Program include LHTAC who represents urban areas of less than 50,000 
population and the metropolitan planning organization directors who represent urbanized areas of 
50,000 to 200,000 population.  The individual member boards nominate projects which are then 
programmed by the Local Urban Committee for nomination into the STIP.  This program is funded with 
federal STBG apportionments. 
 
The Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP) provides funding that promotes safe alternative, non-
motorized forms of transportation.  In addition to local agencies, applications are accepted from 
schools, public transportation providers, natural resource or public lands agencies, or non-profit entities 
responsible for the administration of local transportation safety programs.  Agencies within the Boise 
Transportation Management Area (TMA) are not eligible as they receive a separate allocation.  
Applications are scored and projects nominated by the TAP Recommendation Committee.  This program 
utilizes TAP urban , rural, and flex apportionments. 

198



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
118 

 
The Community Planning Association of Southwest Idaho (COMPASS) is the MPO for the greater Boise 
area and is the only MPO in Idaho with a population that exceeds 200,000.  The FHWA allocates funds 
toward a Transportation Management Area (TMA) Program and for TAP restricted to the Boise TMA.  
 
The TAP-TMA Program funds the same types of projects as TAP.  Only entities located within the Boise 
TMA may apply, however.  Project applications are reviewed by the regional transportation advisory 
committee (RTAC) and nominated by the COMPASS Board.  The program is funded with the TAP-TMA 
apportionment. 
 
The Transportation Management Area Program is administered by COMPASS.  Agencies within the Boise 
TMA make applications which are scored by the RTAC and nominated by the COMPASS Board.  This 
program is funded with the federal Transportation Management Area apportionment. 
 
The purpose of the Rail-Highway Crossing Program is to enhance safety at Idaho’s public rail-highway 
crossings.  The Railroad Operations and Safety Team (ROAST) is composed of representatives from the 
railroads and from each District.  They rate project submittals according to the Federal Railroad 
Association’s crossing safety criteria.  Nominations are also run through TREDIS to obtain safety BCRs.  
Occasionally, a crossing on the state highway system will be nominated.  This program is funded through 
federal rail-highway crossing apportionments. 
  
The Recreational Trails Program is a pass-through of funds to the Idaho Parks and Recreation 
Department.  They solicit applications for and select projects to be funded with the Recreational Trail 
apportionment.  These projects are not individually included in the STIP. 
 
Planning Programs 
The Systems Planning Program is used for state highway District planning, corridor studies, and pre-
project planning.  These projects are funded through a decrease in their core programs. 
 
The purpose of the State Planning and Research Program (SPR) is to conduct planning and research on 
behalf of ITD in order to establish a cooperative, continuous, and comprehensive framework for making 
transportation investment decisions and develop new tools, technologies, and practices to improve 
agency operations.  This program is funded with the SPR apportionment. 
 
The purpose of the Metropolitan Planning Program is to fund Idaho’s five metropolitan planning 
organizations in order to establish a cooperative, continuous, and comprehensive framework for making 
transportation investment decisions and to carryout planning activities throughout the state. 
 
Federal Lands Access Program (FLAP) 
The Federal Lands Access Program was established to improve transportation facilities that provide 
access to, are adjacent to, or are located within Federal lands. The Access Program supplements State 
and local resources for public roads, transit systems, and other transportation facilities, with an 
emphasis on high-use recreation sites and economic generators. 
 

199



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
119 

The Access Program is funded by contract authority from the Highway Trust Fund and subject to 
obligation limitation. Funds will be allocated among the States using a statutory formula based on road 
mileage, number of bridges, land area, and visitation. 
 
Projects are selected by a Programming Decision Committee (PDC) established in each State. The PDCs 
request project applications through a call for projects. The frequency of the calls is established by the 
PDCs.  The PDC in Idaho is composed of representatives from ITD, LHTAC, and the Federal Highway 
Administration.  They score and select projects from periodic application solicitations. 
 
 
Federal Lands Transportation Program (FLTP) 
The Federal Lands Transportation Program was established to improve the transportation infrastructure 
owned and maintained by the following Federal Lands Management Agencies: National Park Service 
(NPS), US Fish and Wildlife Service (FWS), USDA Forest Service (Forest Service), Bureau of Land 
Management (BLM), US Army Corps of Engineers (USACE), Bureau of Reclamation and independent 
Federal agencies with land and natural resource management responsibilities. 
   
The FLMAs have considerable responsibility and latitude for managing their program within the FLTP. 
The FHWA, however, is ultimately responsible for ensuring the program is administered according to the 
statutory and implementing regulations for title 23, United States Code. This includes conformity to 
highway planning, design, construction, maintenance, and safety standards.  
 
The use of FLTP funds does not affect the overall responsibility for construction, maintenance, and 
operations of the facilities. That responsibility continues to lie with the owner of the facility. 
 
Indian Reservation Roads Program (IRR) 
The Indian Reservation Roads Program mission is to provide safe and adequate transportation and 
public road access to and within Indian reservations in the Great Plains Region, Indian lands and 
communities for Native Americans, visitors, recreationists, resource uses and others while contributing 
to economic development, self-determination, and employment of Native Americans. 
 
The IRR is part of the Federal-Aid Highway Program and is funded from the Highway Trust Fund.  This 
program is jointly administered by the Bureau of Indian Affairs (BIA) and the FHWA. The BIA prepares 
the Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) that is a 5- year plan for improvements on each 
reservation. Each project on the TIP is supported by tribal resolution. The TIP is submitted to the BIA 
Division of Transportation (BIADOT) for review and approval. BIADOT reviews, approves, and forwards 
our TIP to FHWA Federal Lands Highway Office for approval. Once the TIP is approved by the FHWA, we 
then have projects that costs can be charged to. All projects have to be on the approved TIP. 
 
Discretionary Programs 
The FHWA funds two nationally competitive discretionary programs.  Both Transportation Investments 
for Generating Economic Recovery (TIGER) and Infrastructure for Rebuilding America (INFRA) grants 
solicit applications annually from state and local agencies.  The TIGER program provides Federal financial 
assistance to projects that will have a significant impact on the Nation, a metropolitan area, or a region.  

200



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
120 

The INFRA program provides dedicated, discretionary funding for projects that address critical issues 
facing our nation's highways and bridges.  Both programs stress the need for strong local and federal 
local participation in funding the project. 
 
GARVEE Program 
The Grant Anticipation Revenue Vehicle (GARVEE) bond program was legislated in 2006.  ITD used $857 
million to improve 5 five corridors throughout the state.  The FY17 Legislature provided an additional 
$300 million in bonding authority.  The Board applied $64 million to the US-95, Garwood to Sagle 
Corridor, and $236 million to the I-84, Caldwell to Meridian corridor.  GARVEE debt service including 
interest and fees is currently estimated at $80.8 million for the entire $1,157 million in bonds.  Payment 
of annual debt service uses federal formula funds with state match. 
 
Public Transportation Program 
Public transportation provides services to citizens without access to other transportation alternatives 
and allows them travel to employment, shopping, medical care, and social/recreational opportunities. 
Consequently, well-crafted public transportation options strategically placed across the state is a major 
enabler and contributor to the economic development and well-being of the state. 
 
Further, the Public Transportation Program benefits Idaho by helping to extend the lifespan and quality 
of the state highway system’s infrastructure as well as helps extend the lifespan and quality of this 
infrastructure by improving the efficiency of its use along with providing alternative mobility choices for 
Idaho’s citizens. 
 
ITD is the direct recipient of Federal Transit Administration (FTA) funding for rural and small urban 
programs.  These programs support fixed route and paratransit services, transportation services for the 
elderly and persons with disabilities, buses, and bus facilities. 
 
The remaining funding is provided directly to transit service providers in the urbanized areas. 
 
Idaho Airport Aid Program 
Idaho’s system of public-use airports serves a wide variety of aviation activities. General-aviation 
airports serve not only corporate and business users, but these airports also play an important role in 
supporting recreation and tourism in the state. Idaho’s commercial airports accommodate operations by 
regional and commuter airlines, as well as major airline operations. Air cargo activities are also 
supported by the state’s aviation system, as is military activity and aerial fire suppression. In addition to 
these airports, the Division of Aeronautics oversees maintenance and operation activities at state 
operated airports. 
The Division of Aeronautics, in partnership with the FAA and municipalities, coordinates a multi-level 
planning process comprised of the State Airport System Plan, Airport Master Plans, and the Statewide 
Capital Improvement Program (SCIP).  System planning establishes statewide needs while master 
planning is a more detailed plan for a single airport.  
 
Project selection is a collaborative process involving the FAA, municipalities, and ITD. 
 

201



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
121 

Statewide system planning and airport master planning coupled with public input are the basis of the 
SCIP.  Project prioritization based upon the intended use of funds is the basis for project selection and 
acceptance. The division annually requests grant applications from the 70 eligible public airports 
throughout the state. The state has a specific application form and set of application procedures. The 
division requests an updated SCIP prior to the application. 
 
The FAA regularly requests review and comment upon the FAA applications from the division prior to 
the final processing.  A copy of the FAA application is accepted in lieu of an IAAP application when the 
request is simply for assistance with the local match requirement for the AIP funds. 
 
The AERO-IAAP program is managed by the Project Manager of the Airport Planning and Development 
section within the Division of Aeronautics. 
 
Primary Service airport projects are identified, estimated, and scheduled by the FAA. Projects are 
prioritized and selected based upon FAA’s National Priority System and the availability of local matching 
funds. Projects are developed by the airport owner and their consultant with overall management from 
the FAA and construction management from the airport owner and their consultant. 
 
General Aviation airport projects are identified and estimated by the FAA with coordination and 
scheduling input from the Division of Aeronautics. Projects are prioritized and selected based upon 
FAA’s National Priority System and the availability of local matching funds. Projects are developed by the 
airport owner and their consultant with overall management from the FAA and construction 
management from the airport owner and their consultant. 
 
Statewide Airport System Planning projects are identified, estimated, and scheduled by the Division of 
Aeronautics. Projects are prioritized and selected based upon FAA’s National Priority System.  The 
Division of Aeronautics and their consultant with overall management from the FAA and contract 
management from the Division of Aeronautics develop projects. 
General Aviation (Community airports) projects are identified, estimated, and scheduled by the airport 
owner and the Division of Aeronautics. Projects are prioritized and selected based upon the Division of 
Aeronautics Priority System and the availability of local matching funds. Projects are developed by the 
airport owner with overall management from the Division of Aeronautics and construction management 
from the airport owner. 

The STIP Publication 
Idaho’s STIP and the Metropolitan Planning Organizations’ TIPs meet all federal requirements under 23 
CFR 450.  TIPs include all projects within Metropolitan Planning Area boundaries for both state highway 
and local road system projects.  The STIP includes projects within Metropolitan Planning Areas by 
reference only.  This means that the internet address of each TIP document is published in the STIP so 
that one can browse the internet to view all projects.  Costs within the documents are shown in year-of-
expenditure dollars at (currently) 2% annual inflation.  Projects in the TIPs are not grouped.  Projects 
expected to receive an environmental categorical exclusion are grouped on one line by geographic 
region or project type as group control totals rather than being individually listed within the STIP.  This 
removes routine projects from the STIP and allows for project obligation without awaiting full STIP 

202



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
122 

approval the following year.  The STIP format is used both for the 30-day public involvement period in 
July and for the submittal for approval to the FHWA and FTA. 
 
For each project the STIP shows project route; name; mileposts; work type and work subclass; sponsor; 
program; fund source; program year; construction, development, and right-of-way costs by year; project 
lifetime cost, breakout of shares (federal, state, other); advanced construction; work zone safety 
priority; alternative contracting projects; and a public description.  Projects are sorted by Key Number 
(KeyNo) for ease of use by the FHWA Idaho Division Office in finding specific projects when approving 
obligations. 
 
The same dataset is used to print a report called the Idaho Transportation Investment Program (ITIP).  
For the convenience of stakeholders, this report shows costs in present value, includes projects in 
Metropolitan Planning Areas, and individually lists grouped projects.  This report is available in sorts by 
KeyNo, County/City, Route, and Program on ITD’s web site. 

Mid-Year STIP Amendments and Administrative Modifications  
A key feature of a process document regarding changes to the STIP are that it includes clear criteria to 
guide the decision whether to process a STIP change as an amendment or as an administration 
modification.   

Coupled with this is an understanding that ITD’s criteria for determining the processing of a STIP change 
is independent of the criteria used by a metropolitan planning organization (MPO) for treating changes 
to TIPs for projects in their planning areas.  In other words, the process followed by the state DOT – 
whether amendment or administrative modification – may differ from the handling chosen by the MPO 
through application of their amendment or administration modification policy. 

State DOT (ITD) Criteria for STIP Amendments vs Administrative Modifications Amendment 
Administrative 
Modification 

1. Adding a new non-grouped project into the 4-year STIP; X  
2. Removing a non-grouped project within first four years of the approved STIP; X  
3. Adding or Removing projects that are exempt (per Title 40 §93.126) and/or that 

have air quality implications; and  
X  

4. Make major changes to one or more projects using the below guidelines for 
'Major Changes'. 

X  

• Either the percentage change to an individual project’s Total Project Cost 
greater than 30%, or the project’s Total Project Cost changes by at least 
$2,000,000. 

  

• Cost changes to one or more grouped projects result in a percentage change 
to the group control total of at least 30%, or a dollar cost change to the group 
control total of at least $2,000,000. 

  

• Change in funding across modes (i.e. funding source changes from highway to 
transit or vice versa), unless the project is grouped. 

  

203



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
123 

 
 
Additionally, any corrections to errors in the STIP will be handled as Administrative Modifications.  These 
include corrections to: 

• Improvement type 
• Project limits 
• Functional classification 
• Typographical errors 
• Transposed numbers 

 
The processing of changes to the STIP can be categorized based on whether they are for projects within 
or outside of a metropolitan planning area, and whether the change to the STIP meets the criteria for an 
Amendment or an Administrative Modification. 
 
The exhibit on the next page shows the handling for STIP changes keeping in mind the considerations 
listed above. 

Section 7: Recommendations and Implementation 
Recommendations for the Annual ITIP/STIP are made annually by the Idaho Transportations Board. 

Section 8: Helpful Resources 
 

  

• Major changes in project scope (e.g. number of through traffic lanes).   
• Changes in project location limits greater than a net 0.25 miles and/or which 

trigger an air quality conformity amendment. 
  

• Changes to a project that affect air quality conformity demonstration   
5. Any project changes other than those described in Items 1 through 4.  X 

204



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
124 

 

205



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
125 

 

 
  

206



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
126 

 

Technical Report 9 
Aeronautics Planning & 

Administration 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Subject Matter Expert 
 

Bill Statham 
Aeronautics Project Manager 

  

207



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
127 

Introduction:  Aeronautics Planning and Programming 
The mission of the Division of Aeronautics serves to provide the highest quality, most effective, efficient, 
and safest airport system for all users of aviation services. 
 
To this end, the Division of Aeronautics plans and implements essential programs, services and projects 
to develop, encourage, and foster an exemplary system of airports that meet the current and future 
requirements of a growing and diverse Idaho aviation community. 
 
The direction and operations of the division receives guidance from ITD Policies.  Aeronautics has 17 
board and administrative policies to aid in program direction.  We have nine board and eight 
administrative policies.  Additionally, the division has promulgated eight administrative rules. 
 
The Division receives comment and recommendations from two advisory groups.  The Idaho Aeronautics 
Advisory Board (AAB) is a five-member group, appointed by the Governor to review, comment upon, 
recommend policies, direction, and grant projects for the Division on an advisory basis.  Idaho Airstrip 
Network (IAN) is an additional advisory board specifically tasked to review and make recommendations 
for the USFS and public airports in Idaho. 

Section 1: FAST Act Applicable Section(s) for the LRTP 
• CFR 450.200 

Each State is required to carry out a continuing, cooperative, and comprehensive performance-
based statewide multimodal transportation planning process, including the development of a 
long-range statewide transportation plan and STIP, that facilitates the safe and efficient 
management, operation, and development of surface transportation systems that will serve the 
mobility needs of people and freight (including accessible pedestrian walkways, bicycle 
transportation facilities, and intermodal facilities that support intercity transportation, including 
intercity bus facilities and commuter van pool providers) and that fosters economic growth and 
development within and between States and urbanized areas, and take into consideration 
resiliency needs while minimizing transportation-related fuel consumption and air pollution in 
all areas of the State, including those areas subject to the metropolitan transportation planning 
requirements of 23 U.S.C. 134 and 49 U.S.C. 5303. 

Section 2: Federal and/or State Reference 
Federal Reference:  Title 14 Aeronautics and Space Sections, Volume 4, Chapters 200-1199 
State Reference: Title 21, Aeronautics  

Section 3:   ITD Board or Administrative Policies 
Administrative:   

• 5011 – Idaho Transportation Investment Program (ITIP) 
• 5034 – Charter or Rented Aircraft and Pilot’s Requirements 
• 5035 – Coordination with Aeronautics Advisory Board 

208



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
128 

• 5037 – Aeronautical Activities 
• 5064 – Classification and Maintenance of State-Owned and/or Operated Airports 
• 5065 – Acquisition and Closure of State Airports 
• 5066 – Airport Caretakers 
• 5075 – Assistance to Idaho’s Airports 

Board:    
• 4011 – Idaho Transportation Investment Program (ITIP) 
• 4034 – Charter or Rented Aircraft and Pilot’s Requirements 
• 4035 – Coordination with Aeronautics Advisory Board 
• 4036 – State Aircraft Operation 
• 4037 – Aeronautical Activities 
• 4064 – Classification and Maintenance of State-Owned and/or Operated Airports 
• 4065 – Acquisition and Closure of State Airports 
• 4066 – Airport Caretakers 
• 4075 – Assistance to Idaho’s Airports 

IDAPA Rules: 
• 39.04.04 – Idaho Airport Aid Program 
• 39.04.08 – Rules Governing Operations at State Airports 

Section 4:   MOU or Service Agreements  
There are several MOUs and Service Agreements between ITD’s Aeronautics Division and individual 
airports throughout the state.  These are available upon request.  

Section 5: Stakeholders and Partners 
 
Stakeholders: Cities, Counties, Airport users 
 
Partners: Federal Aviation Administration, Airports 

Section 6: Process 
The Division of Aeronautics has five sections with valuable programs for aviation users and the state.  
The sections include Airport Planning and Development, Airport Maintenance, Flight Operations, Safety 
and Education, and Administration. 
 
AIRPORT PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT (AP&D) SECTION 
The Airport Planning & Development section provides various levels of both direct and indirect support 
to owners, managers, and users of public-use municipal airports throughout Idaho while leading the 
overall statewide airport planning effort for a safer, more economical and accessible aviation system. 
 
This section prepares regular updates to the Idaho Airport System Plan and Economic Impact Analysis 
Plan, conducts on-going airport Network Pavement Management studies and funding, and provides 

209



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
129 

airport lighting and safety supplies to public airports.  We also conduct on-going airport land use and 
zoning coordination and provide financing for small airport construction and planning projects.  This 
section issues annual airport grants through the Idaho Airport Aid Program (IAAP) and compiles an 
annual Idaho Statewide Capital Improvement Program (ISCIP) cooperatively with the FAA.  We conduct 
on-going airport Safety Data Inspections (5010) with reports and perform continuous Airspace 
Obstruction Evaluations statewide.  Our stakeholder services include on-going technical assistance to 
airport managers and owners, interagency aviation coordination with federal land managers, and capital 
improvement program and grant training.  We regularly publish an airport Facility Directory and 
Aeronautical Chart and annually conduct legislative and policy updates. 
 
Recent developments make our work more effective and timely including development and use of 
automated grant payment software, prioritizing pavement inspections and updating the related 
performance measures, and current preparation of a NEW System Plan & Economic Impact Study. 
 
Board policies, 4011-ITIP and 4075-Assistance to Idaho Airports, provide fundamental program guidance 
while Administrative Rules, 39.04.01-Federal Aviation Regulations, 02-Marking Hazards, and 04-Idaho 
Airport Aid Program, provide procedures for the public and division alike. 
 
Plans and manuals are a foundation and pathway for the division’s actions.  The Airport System Plan and 
Economic Impact study will continue to provide perspective and direction for program operations and 
improvement while the Idaho Statewide Capital Improvement Program provides immediate data for 
project funding and priorities.  The Network Pavement program provides both data for funding and long-
range maintenance planning while the Idaho Airport Land Use Guidelines (2016) is a pathway for local 
airports to protect their facilities and meet FAA compliance goals ensuring Aeronautics a degree of 
protection for our prior investments. 
 
FAA Statutes, Rules, Directives, Advisory Circulars, and Program Guidance provide the main source of 
technical guidance and specifications for many airports.  The remaining airports are under Idaho Statutes, 
Rules, Aeronautics Reports and Procedures, and ITD Specifications.  Another valuable resource is the 
Airport Cooperative Research Program (ACRP) publications that provide new and proven guidance from 
the Transportation Research Board of the National Academies’ of Science. 
 
This section’s funding comes from multiple sources including aviation fuel taxes, aircraft registration 
fees, Airport Safety Data (5010) contract inspections, and grant funding from FAA grants. 
 
Looking ahead, we will promote development of new software to manage the capital improvement and 
grant programs, provide specific procedures, agreements, and fees for Through the Fence users at 
community and state airports, and develop Pavement Management Guidelines for community 
construction projects.  Additional program improvements might include continued assistance to Fish & 
Game for establishment of new public use backcountry airports, grant funding for pavement maintenance 
as a high priority project, and explore new revenue sources to expand the grant program and aeronautics 
functions in general. 
 
A significant challenge will be identifying and developing new revenue sources for operation, equipment, 
and grant budgets, while maintaining a balance between wants and needs at Idaho airports. 
 
AIRPORT MAINTENANCE SECTION 

210



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
130 

The Airport Maintenance section operates and maintains airports throughout the state.  This section 
performs regular maintenance on Idaho owned and/or operated airports including: runway surfacing, 
vegetation control, rodent control, irrigation systems, and safety improvements.  Since the department 
does not own some of these airports, aeronautics has operating leases from other state or federal agencies. 
 
The Airport Maintenance section also provides flight-planning facilities at busy airports, provides 
direction for ground operations, and arrange for the leasing of airport property and/or through-the-fence 
agreements for hangars, tie-downs, and other long-term use of airport facilities. 
 
They provide caretakers and camping facilities for select active state airports including staffing, direction, 
training, supplies, and firewood.  They also schedule, administer, and provide instructions for organized 
Fly-In events and other busy flight gathering. 
The Airport Maintenance section also operates a courtesy car program, Adopt-An-Airport program, 
determines the appropriateness of memorials at state airports, reviews new airport proposals, and provides 
for acquisition or closure of an airport. 
 
Recent developments include helping Fish & Game establish a new public airport, detailed scheduling of 
maintenance equipment replacement, scheduling new, or replacement facilities at high activity airports, 
and assisting the 5010 inspector to get a vehicle for his inspections.  The section is experimenting with 
use of wildlife cameras to count aircraft operations and using a Delorme ‘inReach’ radio to help track and 
communicate with staff for safety while in remote areas. 
 
The Airport Maintenance section has a number of board and administrative policies that provide 
fundamental program guidance including 5064-State Owned Airports, 4065-Closure of State Airports, 
and 4066-Airport Caretakers.  Administrative Rules, 39.04.06-Through the Fence-Hangars at State 
Airports, and 08-Operations at State Airports, provide procedures for the public and division alike. 
 
Plans and manuals are a foundation and pathway for the sections actions.  The Idaho Airstrip Network 
(IAN) action plan (2005) brought together transportation partners, interested in enhancing the status, 
condition, functionality, and usefulness of this asset.  The development of this Focus Area Action Plan is 
the result of these diverse stakeholders, interested citizens, and professionals from The Idaho 
Transportation Department, Division of Aeronautics and the US Forest Service working together around a 
common vision.  
 
This strategic plan lays out a blueprint for an innovative approach as a way to ensure that Idaho’s 
reputation in this area of transportation moves forward and contributes to the economy of the state.  
Finally, the approach proposed herein assures that this unique transportation asset remains an integrated 
part of Idaho’s overall transportation system, retains its competitive advantage within the world, and 
continues to reflect Idaho’s long and rich aviation tradition. 
 
The Airport Materials and Construction Desk Manual has been an aeronautics reference and 
specifications manual for the Airport Maintenance and the Airport Planning & Development sections 
since the early 1980’s.  This internal reference, written by Aeronautics staff, is information gathered from 
many sources to assist, develop, and maintain simple airports without detailed FAA requirements or 
regulations while maintaining quality safety standards. 
 
This section’s funding comes from multiple sources including aviation fuel taxes, aircraft registration 
fees, and donations from pilot users. 

211



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
131 

 
Looking ahead, the Airport Maintenance section seek alternatives for firewood and other costs for use of 
aeronautical facilities where we have caretakers and find a way to pay for firewood out of donations or 
some other method.  We will try to work closer with our Forest Service, BLM, and Dept. of Lands 
partners and list major capital development projects in the ISCIP to aid in getting funds.  As time permits, 
the section will continue to update the Airport Desk Manual and other technical directives for aero staff, 
airport employees, and airport owners to provide them with updated reference information. 
 
Some of the challenges ahead include:  

• studying the effects of increased fees at state airports and the impact this may have on users with 
limited budgets,  

• continue scheduled acquisition and replacement of equipment at state airports while verifying it is 
the best fit for that facility,  

• developing new revenue sources for operations, equipment, and maintenance budgets, while 
balancing between wants and needs. 

 
FLIGHT OPERATIONS SECTION 
The goal of Flight Operations is to provide safe and efficient, on-demand air transportation.  This section 
consists of aircraft operations, and aircraft maintenance. 
 
This section provides as needed scheduling and air transportation to elected officials and state employees 
in the state owned aircraft, they provide as needed emergency response services for State Police and other 
agencies and as needed staff transportation for efficiencies of state aeronautics programs and airports.  
Pilots accomplish this using regular and required aircraft operations procedures and directives to provide 
safe and quality air transportation. 
 
The section also provides a regular and on-going program of staff pilot training and refresher classes, 
pilot qualifications and proficiency, and marketing of services to state agencies.  In addition, they provide 
a regular program of aircraft maintenance, including maintaining serviceable aircraft, performing required 
inspections, fueling aircraft, maintenance of ground support equipment, and hangar preservation. 
 
Recent developments involve plans to acquire a new reliable and versatile single engine turbo-prop 
aircraft.  The section updated radios and NavAids in the current aircraft for compliance and safety and use 
an Unmanned Aerial System (UAS) for airport analysis & photos, avalanche data & control, and for use 
with roads, bridges, and highway construction.  A staff member chairs the ITD committee to coordinate 
and teach classes for proper and legal UAS activities. 
 
Division aircraft operations and maintenance conform to requirements contained in Title 14, Part 91, 
Code of Federal Regulations.  Aircraft operations conform to all applicable FAR, local, and national laws, 
manufacturers’ aircraft manuals and limitations and their procedures manual.  Aviation personnel utilize 
sound, conservative judgment in their approach to assigned duties. 
This section receives funding from aviation fuel taxes that supports most activities of this section and the 
annual aircraft inspections and modest repairs.  They also get revenue from agency aircraft passengers.  
Additionally, the Highways Division funds major annual repairs and the inspections and replacement 
parts, such as engines, propellers, NavAids, and windshields associated with the five-year inspection 
requirements. 
 

212



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
132 

Looking forward, the section will add a new single engine turbo-prop aircraft to increase reliability and 
versatility of operations, and continue to provide as needed emergency response services for State Police 
and other agencies.  They will improve aircraft equipage with enhanced radios, use of ADS-B, both in and 
out, for flight safety, and install newer aerial search tracking instrumentation to enhance SAR capabilities. 
 
The section plans to continue using UAS equipment for airport analysis and photos, avalanche data and 
analysis, and to assist the Division of Highways inspections for roads, bridges, and highway construction.  
They will continue to chair the ITD UAS committee to coordinate and teach proper and legal UAS 
activities, and to provide sound and compliant direction to State agencies.  The section will continue to 
develop an ITD policy about UAS use, operations, and information as well as providing data management 
and storage for UAS data and airport information. 
 
The Flight Operations section will complete a feasibility study concerning use of a helicopter for broad 
state agency support and use and will develop maintenance-operations-management procedures for the 
owner. 
 
The Flight Operations section anticipates challenges identifying and developing new revenue sources for 
operation, equipment, and inspection budgets, acquisition of UAS units and integration of those units and 
UAS policy into ITD’s programs, and determining if or when additional personnel are required for both 
manned and unmanned flight operations. 
 
Additional challenges involve the study of effects of increased passenger costs that might be adequate to 
help support passenger service, while potentially reducing passenger numbers due to increased costs. 
 
SAFETY AND EDUCATION SECTION 
The Safety and Education section involves activities to provide aviation safety programs, provide pilot 
and public aviation education, and perform critical aerial search operations for downed, missing, or 
overdue aircraft.  The Safety and Education Coordinator (SEC) also serves as the Division’s Aviation 
Safety Manager. 
 
The Safety and Education section provides aviation safety programs such as on-going public program of 
pilot safety clinics, an annual Safety Stand-down for pilots, and installing En route web cameras and 
ADS-B receivers to enhanced safety in the backcountry.  They also participate in a pilot and public 
education program involving an annual aviation art contest, an annual Aerospace Career Education (ACE) 
academy for our youth to encourage future pilots and aviation professionals in Idaho.  Public education 
involves publishing the Rudder Flutter newsletter on a regular basis to inform and educate Idaho pilots on 
current activities and pilot safety directives and maintenance of an active Facebook page with updates on 
aviation related incidents/accidents and hazards/Notams in addition to publishing general aviation and 
aviation safety related articles. 
 
The section further directs and conducts an aerial search program for lost, missing, or overdue aircraft in 
association with the Civil Air Patrol (CAP), Idaho Office of Emergency Management (OEM), and State 
Communications.  This critical function seeks to save lives, locate pilots and passengers, and provide 
examples for teaching safe pilot operations.  The search program also provides data for the annual Idaho 
Aviation Accident Scorecard (IAASC) report. 
 

213



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
133 

The state administrative rule 39.04.07-Aerial Search and Rescue of Lost Aircraft provides procedures for 
the public and division alike while supporting the development of the Safety and Education Coordinator 
Desk Manual. 
 
Plans and manuals are a foundation and pathway for the division’s actions.  The IAASC and associated 
performance measure provide quantifiable data for the education program while the Aeronautics Standard 
Operating Procedures (SOP) give pilots proper procedures at backcountry airports.  The IAASC further 
provides the division data to modify the Aerial Search Manual, the division’s Safety Program Manual, 
and the SEC Desk Manual for increased accuracy and applicability. 
 
FAA regulations, rules, and directives form the basic specifications for program operations.  The basic 
specifications receive support from the Air Force Rescue Coordination Center (AFRCC) training program 
and the Idaho Aerial Search Manual. 
 
The sections funding comes from aviation fuel taxes and from aircraft registration fees. 
 
Aeronautics added the IAASC as a division performance measure and for safety management as a part of 
the Idaho Aviation Safety Initiative to reduce accidents by 50% over a 5-year period. 
Looking ahead, the section aims to promote development of a multi-platform outreach program using 
social media and technology to inform pilots and students of aviation safety equipment and operations. 
 
The aerial search program plans to continue using cell phone and radar tracking forensics data for aerial 
searches as well as investing in training to better use cell phone and radar forensics to enhance the aerial 
search program.  Additional measures include encouraging pilots to purchase, register, and use ELT 406 
MHz equipment to aid aeronautics in search operations.  
 
Additional measures to explore as an enhancement of aerial search operations include installation of a 
Becker Unit (ELT tracking) as a dedicated receiver, installation of En Route Web Cameras, and continued 
installation of ADS-B receivers at various locations to increase search capabilities in the backcountry. 
 
On-going operations continue to provide a regular program of pilot safety clinics, annual Safety Stand-
down, annual aviation art contest, and annual ACE academy programs for future pilots and aviation 
professionals throughout Idaho. 
 
This section’s greatest challenge involves identifying and developing new revenue sources for operation, 
equipment, and education budgets, while balancing between wants and needs. 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE SECTION 
The Administrative section provides general administrative duties keeping all functions of an office 
active.  Additionally, each administrative employee has specific tasks to perform, and they are required to 
back each other up during times of employee absences such as illness or annual leave.  For that reason, a 
certain amount of cross training is mandatory between positions. 
 
The Administrative section develops and maintains the division budget, accounts payable, capital 
expenses, program-funding levels, on-going aircraft and dealer registration and fee payment services, 
provide a program for computer replacements, out of state travel plans, and time sheet support. 
 

214



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
134 

Additionally, they provide assistance and administration for the Aeronautics Advisory Board including 
agendas, presentations, speakers, issue topics, division status reports, administration, support, and 
permanent storage space for publications and airport files of the Idaho Division of Aeronautics, and 
provide flight scheduling, coordinating of billing, and other financial tasks. 
 
The Administrator provides on-going personnel support, management direction, supervision, leadership, 
and program coordination.  
 
Recent developments include cross training of aero employees, making the receptionist position full time, 
and getting a computer software upgrade for automated aircraft registration.  Additionally, employee 
evaluations and annual goals receive greater attention and priority and the administrator performed a 
study to determine the size, and design of new Aeronautics facilities because the Boise Airport requires 
that we move to allow for airport expansion. 
 
Board policies, 4034-Aircraft and Pilots Requirements, 4035-Coordination with AAB, 4036-State 
Aircraft Operations, 4037-Aeronautical Activities, and 4064-State Owned Airports Major Plans provide 
fundamental program guidance while Administrative Rules, 39.04.03 - Flight in Emergency Areas and 05 
- Aircraft Operations provide procedures for the public and division alike. 
 
Plans and manuals are a foundation and pathway for the division’s actions.  The Procedures Manual 
indicates current procedures and programs while the Airport Facilities Directory and Aeronautical Chart 
provide a fundamental service to our stakeholders. 
 
This sections funding comes from aviation fuel tax revenue and aircraft registration fees. 
 
Looking ahead, the section must continue on-going computer upgrades for administrative functions, 
website updates, and efficient processing of aircraft registration, payments, and tracking of aircraft 
history.  Also, seek reasonable revenue enhancement opportunities. 
 
A significant challenge will be to collect more aircraft information, including data about the 15 digits 406 
MHz ELT, on all aircraft registration forms and renewals.  The updated 2019 registration form will 
request this information.  Another significant challenge is identifying and developing new revenue 
sources for operation, equipment, and administrative budgets. 

Section 7: Recommendations and Implementation 
The Idaho Division of Aeronautics programs have grown and changed with the development of the 
aviation industry since the 1920’s.  Since aviation is a major element of the transportation industry, we 
plan to continue meeting the needs of the flying public with our programs.  Staying adaptable and 
foresighted, we will continue to fulfill our mission and associated goals. 

Section 8: Helpful Resources 
• 39.04.04, Idaho Airport Aid Program 
• 39.04.08, Rules Governing Operations at State Airports 
 

  

215

https://www.google.com/url?q=https://adminrules.idaho.gov/rules/2003/39/0404.pdf&sa=U&ved=0ahUKEwjgs5zIx-XdAhUMJTQIHaY6DtAQFggEMAA&client=internal-uds-cse&cx=000264056216233226350:oezsdwzc1xs&usg=AOvVaw2TblmFr_1oeFC_NtqZcuxN
https://www.google.com/url?q=https://adminrules.idaho.gov/rules/current/39/390408.pdf&sa=U&ved=0ahUKEwjgs5zIx-XdAhUMJTQIHaY6DtAQFggGMAE&client=internal-uds-cse&cx=000264056216233226350:oezsdwzc1xs&usg=AOvVaw2J1sHAhyY5-NPp-qzob4iL


Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
135 

 
 
 

 
Technical Report 10 

Air Quality 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Subject Matter Expert 
 

Brian Shea, RETIRED 2018 
Senior Transportation Planner 

  

216



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
136 

Introduction:  Air Quality  
The CMAQ program was created under the Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act (ISTEA) of 
1991, and reauthorized under every successive Transportation Bill up to and including the Fixing 
America's Surface Transportation (FAST) Act in 2015. Administered by FHWA, the CMAQ program 
provides funding to areas that face the challenge of attaining or maintaining the National Ambient Air 
Quality Standards (NAAQS) for ozone, carbon monoxide, and/or particulate matter. In addition, States 
that have no nonattainment or maintenance areas - facing much less of a clean air challenge - still 
receive a minimum apportionment of CMAQ funding. FHWA released Interim Program Guidance under 
MAP-21 on November 12, 2013. Final Program Guidance is nearing completion and expected to be 
released in early FY 2017. While project eligibilities remain largely the same, the legislation places 
increased emphasis on diesel engine retrofits including construction equipment, port-related landside 
non-road or on- road equipment and alternative fuel infrastructure in designated alternative fuel 
corridors. See FHWA's FAST Act CMAQ website at: 
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/fastact/factsheets/cmaqfs.cfm. 

Section 1: FAST Act Applicable Section(s) for the LRTP 
Applicable Sections of 23 CFR 450.216 Long Range Transportation Plan (FAST): 

§5. “The long-range statewide transportation plan shall reference, summarize, or contain any 
applicable short range planning studies; strategic planning and/or policy studies; 
transportation needs studies; management systems reports; emergency relief and disaster 
preparedness plans; and any statements of policies, goals, and objectives on issues 
(e.g., transportation, safety, economic development, social and environmental effects, or 
energy), as appropriate, that were relevant to the development of the long range statewide 
plan.”  

 
§13. “A long-range statewide transportation plan shall include a discussion of potential 

environmental mitigation activities and potential areas to carry out these activities; 
including activities that may have the greatest potential to restore and maintain the 
environmental functions affected by the long-range statewide transportation plan. 
The discussion may focus on policies, programs, or strategies, rather than at the project 
level. The state shall develop the discussion in consultation with applicable Federal, 
State, regional, local and Tribal land management, wildlife, and regulatory agencies. The 
State may establish reasonable timeframes for performing this consultation.” 

Section 2: Federal and/or State Reference 
Federal Reference:  Clean Air Act 42 USC §7401 

The Clean Air Act (CAA) is the comprehensive federal law that regulates air 
emissions from stationary and mobile sources. Among other things, this law 
authorizes EPA to establish National Ambient Air Quality Standards (NAAQS) to 
protect public health and public welfare and to regulate emissions of hazardous 
air pollutants. 

 
State Reference: IDAPA 58.01.01.563 (https://adminrules.idaho.gov/rules/2012/58/0101.pdf) 

217

https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/fastact/factsheets/cmaqfs.cfm
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/fastact/factsheets/cmaqfs.cfm
https://adminrules.idaho.gov/rules/2012/58/0101.pdf


Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
137 

The Idaho Administrative Code distinguishes two different approaches to 
transportation conformity -those areas with Metropolitan Planning 
Organizations (MPO) and those without. In areas with MPOs, the responsibility 
for gathering information and performing transportation modeling falls on the 
MPO. In rural non-attainment areas, small areas outside MPO jurisdiction 
(donut areas) or for federally-funded “regionally significant” projects outside of 
non-attainment and maintenance areas, ITD is responsible for transportation 
modeling and regional emissions analyses (IDAPA58.01.01.568-569, 40 CFR 
93.109(n)). 

 
DEQ is the designated lead air quality agency (IDAPA 58.01.01.569.01) is responsible for developing the 
draft and final data and analysis for: 

• Air quality inventories; 
• Emissions budgets; 
• Attainment and maintenance demonstrations; 
• Control strategy implementation plan revisions; 
• Updated motor vehicle emission factors; and 
• Proposal and evaluation of Transportation Control Measures (TCMs). 

 
The lead air quality agency is responsible for working with the Inter-Agency Consultation Committee in 
developing the Motor Vehicle Emission Budget (MVEB) and control measures for State Implementation 
Plans (SIPs). MPOs and ITD are responsible for assuring emissions from transportation projects 
“conform” to MVEBs and National Ambient Air Quality Standards. Because DEQ was responsible for 
developing non-attainment and maintenance plans, the agency trained several individuals how to use 
the MOVES model and developed the extensive local data inputs now required by the new model. DEQ 
now has the technical expertise and the computing infrastructure to provide ITD and MPOs training, 
MOVES data input development, and MOVES modeling support. When it comes to MOVES modeling 
capabilities and infrastructure, DEQ is a leader in the Pacific Northwest. DEQ is willing to provide our 
mobile modeling and input database expertise, if ITD provides funding to support the DEQ tasks related 
to ITD’s transportation conformity analysis requirements. 

Section 3:   ITD Board or Administrative Policies 
Administrative:  Administrative Policy A1105 – Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality 
Improvement Program 
Board:   Board Policy B1105 – Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement 
Program 

Section 4:   MOU or Service Agreements  
 
ITD/DEQ MOU – State Implementation Plan Development 
In June 2014, ITD and the Idaho Department of Environmental Quality signed a Memorandum of 
Understanding where ITD would fund EQ to provide air quality conformity and transportation modeling 

218



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
138 

services including the development and maintenance of Idaho-specific input databases for MOVES.  The 
goal of the MOU is to ensure that DEQ, ITD, and the MPO’s are able to cooperatively fulfill their 
responsibilities under IDAPA 58.01.01.563 – 574 to effectively and efficiently enable the State to remain 
in conformity with air quality emissions budgets.  This is a summary of MOVES: 

 
In March of 2010, EPA released a new mobile emissions model known as MOVES to replace the 
simplistic MOBILE6 vehicle emissions model. The new MOVES model requires more complex data inputs 
and databases that run in the background to support the modeling. In March of 2012, MOVES was 
required for all regional emission analysis in support of transportation conformity. In December of 2012, 
the MOVES model was required for all “regionally significant” projects/hot spots that required modeling.  
 
The transition from MOBILE6 to MOVES greatly increased the technical expertise required to run the 
model, and dramatically increased the data input demands. Where MOBILE6 used season averages, 
MOVES now requires hourly data inputs by road segment. As an example of the complexity of this work, 
DEQ now uses two years of ITD’s statewide hourly Automatic Traffic Recorder (ATR) data in over 
131,000 data files to develop hourly profiles of vehicle type by roadway type. The vehicle type profiles 
are cross referenced with county-level registration data to develop vehicle age and vehicle miles 
travelled (VMT) profiles as part of calculating hourly emissions by vehicle type and roadway type. 
 
ITD is responsible to assist IDEQ with the development and maintenance of the MOVES model.  
Specifically: 

1. Support STIP conformity process and Hot Spot analyses, including: 
a. Cache Valley (donut area) conformity 
b. Pinehurst (rural area) conformity 
c. Project-level PM hotspot analysis and documentation  
Conformity determinations in support of the Statewide Transportation Improvement Plan (STIP), 
as needed to conduct Project Level Hot Spot analyses or to meet non-attainment area 
conformity requirements in areas without MPOs.  This task includes a hypothetical threshold hot 
spot analysis to establish threshold size of regionally significant projects that may reach a 
threshold emissions level beyond which a refined analysis is required. Includes one analysis per 
year. With an appropriate hypothetical Hot Spot threshold analysis, ITD, MPOs, and contractors 
will, in most cases, be able to establish compliance with air quality standards by reference to 
this threshold analysis. This will reduce costs and planning time on future projects for several 
years to come.  
 
Deliverable: Update PLAQ (Project Level Air Quality) screening and analysis tool along with 
county level MOVES data inputs for PM Hot Spot analyses.   
 

219



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
139 

2. ITD and MPO conformity training, assistance & documentation. Specifically: 
ITD/MPO conformity assistance includes training and/or preparation of MOVES model 
conformity demonstrations as necessary until MPOs acquire a demonstrated capability to 
produce their own conformity demonstrations. This requires link-level integration of COMPASS’ 
Travel Demand Model (TDM) with Idaho traffic and vehicle source population data. Side-by-side 
training will continue until MPOs/ITD are capable of running MOVES in-house.  Deliverable: A 
report will document each conformity demonstration including inputs, methods and results. 

 
MOU between MPOs and Tribes 
Establishes a cooperative effort among all parties to produce an approvable state implementation plan 
(SIP) for the Portneuf Valley PM10 Non-Attainment Area and to evaluate and amend, if necessary, the 
federal implementation plan (FIP) for the Fort Hall Non-Attainment Area. 
http://www.deq.idaho.gov/media/60180338/moa-kootenai-tribe-deq-1108.pdf 

 
Northwest Cooperative Agreement Environmental Streamlining and Interagency Cooperation on 
Environmental and Transportation Issues (http://www.deq.idaho.gov/media/562994-
all_nw_cooperative_agreement_2000_174.pdf)  

  
The agencies agree to work cooperatively to promote "environmental streamlining" that will facilitate 
the timely delivery of quality transportation programs, protect and enhance environmental quality, and 
make effective and efficient use of agency resources. 

 
Stakeholders: DEQ, ITD, IDWR, IDFG, State Historic Preservation Office, USDOT, BLM, USFS Regions 1 
and 4, and others from WA and OR 

Section 5: Stakeholders and Partners 
 
To make conformity determinations in each non-attainment or maintenance area, a committee of 
agency representatives called the Interagency Consultation Committee (ICC) is required to be 
constituted.  These agencies generally include the following (IDAPA 58.01.01.567.01-02): 

• Idaho Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) 
• Idaho Transportation Department (ITD) 
• Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) 
• Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) and Federal Transit Administration (FTA) 
• Local Highway Technical Assistance Council (LHTAC) 
• Local agencies including Highway Districts, Counties, Cities 
• Public Transit agencies or service providers 
• Tribal governments  

 
Within the Interagency Consultation Committees (ICCs), the following three agencies have specific 
designated responsibilities, all of which are subject to interagency consultation. 
 

220

http://www.deq.idaho.gov/media/60180338/moa-kootenai-tribe-deq-1108.pdf
http://www.deq.idaho.gov/media/562994-all_nw_cooperative_agreement_2000_174.pdf
http://www.deq.idaho.gov/media/562994-all_nw_cooperative_agreement_2000_174.pdf


Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
140 

Idaho Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ)—the state’s designated lead air quality agency 
(IDAPA 58.01.01.569.01). 

• State Implementation Plan (SIP) including public outreach on draft plan, emission inventories 
and budgets, control measures, plan updates. 

• Motor vehicle emission factors. 
• Attainment and maintenance demonstrations. 

 
Idaho Transportation Department (ITD) in non-attainment /maintenance areas without an MPO--
currently Cache Valley, Pinehurst, West Silver Valley (IDAPA 58.01.01.569.03). 

• Conformity determinations for the projects in the Statewide Transportation Improvement 
Program (STIP) and for those subject to the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA). 

• Identify regionally significant projects through the ICC process. 
• Implement Transportation Control Measures (TCMs). 
• Technical and policy input on emission budgets. 
• Transportation modeling, regional emissions and project level (hot-spot) analyses. 
• Distribute draft and final documentation to ICC and interested stakeholders. 

 
Metropolitan Planning Organizations (MPO) in non-attainment/maintenance areas with an MPO--
currently Portneuf Valley and Northern Ada County (IDAPA 58.01.01.569.02).   

• Conformity determinations for Long Range Transportation Plans (LRTPs) and Transportation 
Improvement Plans (TIPs). 

• Identify regionally significant projects through the ICC process. 
• Implement Transportation Control Measures (TCMs). 
• Technical and policy input on emission budgets. 
• Transportation modeling, regional emissions and project level (hot-spot) analyses. 
• Distribute draft and final documentation to ICC and interested stakeholders. 
 

Those agencies making conformity determinations on transportation plans, programs, and projects (i.e., 
the MPOs and ITD), are required, at a minimum, to establish a proactive public involvement process 
which provides reasonable public access and opportunities for public review and comment on all 
technical and policy information being considered by the ICC at both the beginning of the public 
comment period and prior to taking any formal action.  In addition, these agencies must specifically 
address, in writing, all public comments relating to known plans for a regionally significant project, 
which is not receiving FHWA or FTA funding, or approval (IDAPA 58.01.01.574). 
 
Members of the public may submit requests to receive information about the ICC, including meeting 
dates and times, relevant documents and other information.  
 
Following below are the general responsibilities of the MPOs and ITD with respect to the ICC 
consultation process and with interested members of the public (IDAPA 58.01.01.571.01). 

• Initiate the process by notifying the ICC members of the document to be discussed or decision 
to be made and by scheduling and convening meetings. 

• Maintain a distribution list of all ICC members and interested members of the public. 
• Distribute an agenda and all supporting material including the minutes of prior ICC meetings: 

221



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

141 

o 14 days in advance of an ICC meeting if there are non-technical issues to be resolved.
o 30 days in advance for technical issues.

• Confer with other agencies and persons interested in the document or decision.
• Provide an opportunity for informal questions and answers on draft documents and proposed

decisions.
• Consider the views of ICC members and interested members of the public and respond in

writing to significant comments in a timely and substantive manner prior to finalizing or taking
any final actions.

• Assure all comments and written responses of ICC members and members of the public are
made part of the record of any action.

Section 6: Process 
Program Purpose & Benefits 
The purpose of the CMAQ program is to fund transportation projects or programs that will contribute to 
the attainment or maintenance of the National Ambient Air Quality Standards (NAAQS) for ozone, 
carbon monoxide (CO), and particulate matter both coarse (PM10) and fine (PM2.5).  The program 
supports two important benefits:  improving air quality and relieving traffic congestion. 

Project Eligibility 
Each project must meet three basic criteria.  It must… 

• Be a transportation project.
• Generate a measurable emissions reduction.
• Be located in or benefit an area in nonattainment or maintenance of the NAAQS. In Idaho, these

currently include:
o Nonattainment areas:

 Cache Valley (Franklin County) for PM2.5.
 Pinehurst (Shoshone County) for PM10.
 West Silver Valley (Shoshone County) for PM2.5.

o Maintenance areas:
 Portneuf Valley (Bannock County) for PM10.
 Northern Ada County for PM10 and CO.
 Sandpoint (Bonner County) for PM10.

In general, the following types of projects and programs are eligible for funding: 
Diesel engine retrofits  Engine idle reductions 
Traffic flow improvements Freight/intermodal 
Public transportation  Bicycle and pedestrian 
Travel demand management  Public education and outreach 
Carpooling, vanpooling and car sharing Inspection & maintenance programs 
Alternative fuels and vehicles 

Program Funding 

222



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
142 

Idaho’s CMAQ apportionment will be approximately $13 million for FFY 2018 per the FAST Act.  A 25% 
sub-allocation of this total is only usable for projects targeting PM2.5 in those areas designated as being 
in nonattainment or maintenance for PM2.5, i.e., the Cache and West Silver Valleys.  The remaining 75% 
of the funding can be transferred out of the program.  These transferred funds are fully flexible and are 
available statewide for deliverable projects with Surface Transportation Program (STP) eligibility, subject 
to the availability of Obligation Authority.   
 
Program Status 
This program is currently inactive per Idaho Transportation Board Resolution ITB 08-17.  The Board 
made this decision to focus the Idaho Transportation Department’s available, limited funding on 
pavement preservation and restoration activities on the state’s highway system.  
Federal Clean Air Act 
The Clean Air Act (CAA) sets the framework and goals for improving the air quality to protect public 
health.  The CAA established provisions for attainment and maintenance of the National Ambient Air 
Quality Standards (NAAQS).  NAAQS are set for “criteria” pollutants such as those that adversely affect 
human health and safety, at levels to ensure adequate protection of the public. 
When a geographic area violates a NAAQS, it is designated as a “non-attainment” area.  Non-attainment 
areas in Idaho currently include:  

• Cache Valley (Franklin County) for Fine Particulate Matter <2.5 micrometers in diameter (PM2.5) 
• Pinehurst (Shoshone County) for Coarse Particulate Matter <10 micrometers (PM10) 
• West Silver Valley (Shoshone County) for PM2.5 

 
Once designated, a plan must be created and implemented to bring the area back into attainment.  In 
Idaho, these plans are prepared by the Idaho Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) and approved 
by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).  The plan is called the State Implementation Plan 
(SIP). 
 
When an area achieves attainment for three consecutive years, it may request re-designation as a 
“maintenance” area. Maintenance areas are required to have SIPs to ensure the NAAQS continue to be 
met.  Maintenance areas in Idaho include: 

• Portneuf Valley (Bannock County) for PM10 
• Northern Ada County for PM10 and Carbon Monoxide (CO) 

 
EPA classifies emissions of criteria pollutants into three source categories:  point (electric utilities, 
refineries, etc.), area (dry cleaners, paints, solvents, etc.) and mobile including both on-road (cars, 
trucks, buses, etc.) and non-road (airplanes, trains, construction equipment, etc.).   SIPs must include 
strategies and control measures to sufficiently reduce emissions in each of these source categories to 
levels that meet the NAAQS.   The SIPs also set emission caps or “budgets” for each air pollutant. 
 

223



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
143 

Transportation conformity refers to the Clean Air Act requirement that all transportation plans, 
programs and projects developed, funded or approved by the Federal Highway Administration, the 
Federal Transit Administration, and any state or locally funded regionally significant projects must 
demonstrate they “conform” to the applicable State Implementation Plan (SIP).  For more information 
see IDAPA 58.01.01.563 at https://adminrules.idaho.gov/rules/2012/58/0101.pdf.   
 
Given the fact that controlling pollutants from on-road mobile sources is critically important to meeting 
the NAAQS, transportation conformity is intended to help the SIP attain the NAAQS. 

Section 7: Recommendations and Implementation 
Continue to work closely with the Idaho Department of Environmental Quality to collect data for the 
MOVES Model, monitor air quality conditions throughout the state, and establish plans for air quality 
conformity. 

Section 8: Helpful Resources 
• http://www.hrtpo.org/uploads/doc

s/State%20of%20Transportation%2
02017%20-%20Final%20Report.pdf 

• EPA Clean Air Act Website 
(https://www.epa.gov/clean-air-
act-overview) 

• Idaho Real-Time Air Quality 
Monitoring 
(http://airquality.deq.idaho.gov/)  

• Idaho Department of 
Environmental Quality 
(http://www.deq.idaho.gov/air-
quality.aspx 

• Transportation Conformity Rule: 
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/environ
ment/air_quality/conformity/laws_
and_regs/rule.cfm 

  

224

https://adminrules.idaho.gov/rules/2012/58/0101.pdf
http://www.hrtpo.org/uploads/docs/State%20of%20Transportation%202017%20-%20Final%20Report.pdf
http://www.hrtpo.org/uploads/docs/State%20of%20Transportation%202017%20-%20Final%20Report.pdf
http://www.hrtpo.org/uploads/docs/State%20of%20Transportation%202017%20-%20Final%20Report.pdf
https://www.epa.gov/clean-air-act-overview
https://www.epa.gov/clean-air-act-overview
http://airquality.deq.idaho.gov/
http://www.deq.idaho.gov/air-quality.aspx
http://www.deq.idaho.gov/air-quality.aspx
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/environment/air_quality/conformity/laws_and_regs/rule.cfm
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/environment/air_quality/conformity/laws_and_regs/rule.cfm
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/environment/air_quality/conformity/laws_and_regs/rule.cfm


Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
144 

 
 
 
 

Technical Report 11 
Environmental Planning 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Subject Matter Expert 
 

Sue Sullivan, RETIRED 
Environmental Planning Manager 

 
Wendt Terlizzi 

Environmental Planning Manager 
 

  

225



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
145 

Introduction:  Environmental Planning 
Environmental planning is the process of facilitating decision making to carry out land development with 
the consideration given to the natural environment, social, political, economic and governance factors 
and provides a holistic framework to achieve sustainable outcomes. A major goal of environmental 
planning is to create sustainable communities, which aim to conserve and protect undeveloped land.   
 
At the Idaho Transportation Department, environmental planners deal with a full range of 
environmental regulations from federal to state and city levels, administered federally by the 
Environmental Protection Agency. A rigorous environmental process has to be undertaken to examine 
the impacts and possible mitigation of any construction project. Depending on the scale and impact of 
the project, an extensive environmental review is known as an Environmental Impact Statement (EIS), 
and the less extensive version is Environmental Assessment (EA). Procedures follow guidelines from 
National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA), State environmental reviews and/or City environmental 
reviews, and other related federal or state agencies published regulations.  

Section 1: FAST Act Applicable Section(s) for the LRTP 
Applicable Sections of 23 CFR 450.216 Long Range Transportation Plan (FAST): 

§5. “The long-range statewide transportation plan shall reference, summarize, or contain 
any applicable short range planning studies; strategic planning and/or policy studies; 
transportation needs studies; management systems reports; emergency relief and 
disaster preparedness plans; and any statements of policies, goals, and objectives on 
issues (e.g., transportation, safety, economic development, social and environmental 
effects, or energy), as appropriate, that were relevant to the development of the long 
range statewide plan.”  

§13. “A long-range statewide transportation plan shall include a discussion of potential 
environmental mitigation activities and potential areas to carry out these activities; 
including activities that may have the greatest potential to restore and maintain the 
environmental functions affected by the long-range statewide transportation plan. The 
discussion may focus on policies, programs, or strategies, rather than at the project 
level. The state shall develop the discussion in consultation with applicable Federal, 
State, regional, local and Tribal land management, wildlife, and regulatory agencies. The 
State may establish reasonable timeframes for performing this consultation.” 

Section 2: Federal and/or State Reference 
The Idaho Transportation Department (ITD) is responsible for providing leadership and ensuring 
regulatory compliance for actions that affect the built and natural environment during planning, project 
development, construction, and maintenance activities. ITD evaluates environmental resources; 
identifies potential impacts and determines measures to avoid, minimize, or mitigate impacts in 
compliance with local, state, federal, and tribal laws, regulations, and policies.  
 

226



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
146 

ITD is responsible for complying with a host of regulations addressing documentation and disclosure of 
decisions and protection of the built and natural environment. It must avoid, minimize, and mitigate 
impacts to a range of resources, including protected parks and other public sites, fish and wildlife 
species, vegetation, wetland and aquatic resources, farmlands, air quality, sensitive noise receptors, and 
cultural resource. ITD identifies resources within proposed project limits, evaluates potential project 
impacts, and identifies potential avoidance and minimization measures while meeting its transportation 
mission. ITD also supports investigations and remediation of hazardous waste, solid waste, and 
groundwater quality associated with ITD construction projects and ITD maintenance and operations of 
facilities. Throughout all efforts, ITD coordinates as appropriate with local, state, federal, and tribal 
regulatory agencies with jurisdiction and interest in these issues. 

Section 3:   ITD Board or Administrative Policies 
Administrative:  A407 discusses the Department’s Environmental Monitoring Policy 
Board:   4026 articulates the Department’s environmental ethic and stewardship policy 

Section 4:   MOU or Service Agreements  
• Programmatic Agreement between the Federal Highway Administration Idaho Division and the 

Idaho Transportation Department Regarding Approval Actions Classified as Categorical 
Exclusions for Federal-Aid Highway Projects. (2018) 

• MOU between the Idaho Transportation Department and the Idaho Department of Fish & Game 
on interagency coordination (2015) 

• MOA between Idaho Transportation Department and Idaho Department of Water Resources. 
(2017) 

• MOA with FHWA and USFWS on Procedures Relating to Section 7 of the Endangered Species Act 
and Transportation Projects in Idaho (2003) 

• Cooperative Agreement between the Idaho Transportation Department and the Idaho State 
Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) (2012) 

• Cooperative Agreement between the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (Walla Walla District), ITD, 
and FHWA to fund a liaison to streamlining and prioritization of reviews (2015) 

• Memorandum of Understanding between the Federal Highway Administration Region 10, 
Portland, Oregon and the Environmental Protection Agency Region 10, Seattle, Washington and 
the Idaho Transportation Department Boise, Idaho on sole Source Aquifer protection in the 
State of Idaho (1989) 

Section 5: Stakeholders and Partners 
On a project by project basis, staff coordinates with  

• Tribes 
• FHWA 
• Federal Land Management and Regulatory Agencies  

227



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
147 

• State Agencies  
• Local Governments 
• The public 
• Advocacy groups 
• MPO’s 

 
Similar coordination happens on a program level on an annual or sometimes quarterly basis 

Section 6: Process 
ITD statewide environmental staff assists the Department to construct transportation facilities in an 
environmentally responsible manner and comply with multiple environmental laws and regulations. This 
includes: 

• Prepare, review, and approve environmental evaluations for transportation projects.  
• Ensure legal compliance with environmental regulations and policy.  
• Resolve conflicts on environmental matters. 
• Plan and manage the environmental program:   

o Review and comment on federal and state rulemaking. 
o Provide interpretation of regulations and requirements to the Department.   
o Provide ITD’s environmental policies, guidance, standards, and strategic goals. 
o Coordinate/liaison with federal or state environmental agencies; manage relationships 

and communications, dispute resolution, and enforcement issues. 
o Manage agreements with external agencies. 
o Develop and implement streamlining tools. 
o Identify and assess compliance risk.  
o Conduct statewide program reviews. 
o Meet project delivery standards. 
o Collect data for performance measures or assessments. 
o Prepare support data for legal counsel. 
o Provide technical support to statewide environmental training efforts. 

Section 7: Recommendations and Implementation 
Encourage Planning and Environmental Linkages (PEL) as projects are developed and constructed.   

Section 8: Helpful Resources 
• FHWA Environmental Toolkit:  https://www.environment.fhwa.dot.gov/ 
To address regulatory requirements, ITD has outlined its practices and procedures in a series of 

manuals. 
• The ITD Environmental Process Manual provides guidance for performing environmental 

investigations and preparing environmental documents for ITD projects. The manual outlines the 
National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) process, provides guidance on conducting 
environmental analyses and complying with applicable environmental laws and regulations, and 

228

https://www.environment.fhwa.dot.gov/


Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
148 

provides information on developing and tracking mitigation measures and meeting environmental 
permitting obligations. 

• The Best Management Practices Manual assists ITD and its contractors with Clean Water Act 
compliance during construction and post-construction phases of ITD projects.  

• ITD-2950 Form (Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) Narrative for Construction 
Activities) provides ITD’s contractors a template for stormwater compliance when working on a 
construction project that requires a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination Permit (NPDES). 

• The Idaho Transportation Department Transportation Nosie Guidelines contains ITD’s policy on 
highway traffic noise, construction noise, and noise abatement as it affects the human 
environment. This policy describes ITD’s implementation of Federal Highway Administration 
(FHWA) traffic noise requirements codified in 23 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 772.  

  

229



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
149 

 
 

Technical Report 12 
Geographic Information  

Systems (GIS) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Subject Matter Expert 
 

Sydney Lewis 
GIS Analyst 

 

  

230



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
150 

Introduction:  Geographic Information Systems 
A geographic information system (GIS) is a framework for gathering, managing, and analyzing data. 
Rooted in the science of geography, GIS integrates many types of data. It analyzes spatial location and 
organizes layers of information into visualizations using maps and 3D scenes.  ITD uses GIS to create, 
analyze, and display critical data on maps to aid in planning and engineering decision-making.   
 
ITD’s GIS Section has 2 main goals: 

1. Plan and scope roads, highways and bridges for the traveling public. 
2. Empower users with a single source of truth for location data. 

Section 1: FAST Act Applicable Section(s) for the LRTP 
Applicable Sections of 23 CFR 450.216 Long Range Transportation Plan (FAST): 

§5. “The long-range statewide transportation plan shall reference, summarize, or contain 
any applicable short range planning studies; strategic planning and/or policy studies; 
transportation needs studies; management systems reports; emergency relief and 
disaster preparedness plans; and any statements of policies, goals, and objectives on 
issues (e.g., transportation, safety, economic development, social and environmental 
effects, or energy), as appropriate, that were relevant to the development of the long 
range statewide plan.”  

Section 2: Federal and/or State Reference 
 Federal Reference:  

• FAST Act 
• Presidential Executive Order 13286 

(https://ita.idaho.gov/documents/ExecutiveOrder13286.pdf) 
• Federal Geographic Data Committee (https://www.fgdc.gov/standards)  
 

 State Reference: 
• Idaho Technology Authority (https://ita.idaho.gov/resources.html#policies)  
• Executive Order 2017-02 (https://ita.idaho.gov/documents/EO_2017-02.pdf) 
• Executive Order 2005 (https://ita.idaho.gov/documents/execorder200522.pdf)  

Section 3:   ITD Board or Administrative Policies 
Board Policy: 

• 4015 – Idaho Highway Map  
Administrative Policy: 

• 5015 – Idaho Highway Map 

Section 4:   MOU or Service Agreements  
 

231

https://ita.idaho.gov/documents/ExecutiveOrder13286.pdf
https://www.fgdc.gov/standards
https://ita.idaho.gov/resources.html#policies
https://ita.idaho.gov/documents/EO_2017-02.pdf
https://ita.idaho.gov/documents/execorder200522.pdf


Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
151 

All Idaho State Agencies work closely with the Idaho Geospatial Office (https://gis.idaho.gov/).  The 
mission of the IGO is to provide leadership and coordination for the creation and maintenance if 
statewide based geospatial data (also known as the state’s framework) and overall support to the GIS 
community.  The IGO facilitates the use, development, access, sharing, and management of geospatial 
data and assist with communicating the value of geospatial information to citizens and decision-makers 
in the state of Idaho. 

Section 5: Stakeholders and Partners 
• Internal ITD staff 
• Other State Agencies 
• Federal Government 
• Local Government 
• Utilities 
• Private Sector 
• General Public 
• Academic Institutions 
• Tribal Government 

Section 6: Process 
Strategic decision-making is important to ITD.  ITD staff relies heavily on information such as functional 
classification and pavement conditions to prioritize work and plan for future cycles.  From pavement 
types to ramps to number of injury crashes, GIS integrates and distributes reliable, consistent information 
on visual maps for decision-making and information sharing. 

 

Section 7: Recommendations and Implementation 
Recommendations and Implementation  

232

https://gis.idaho.gov/


Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
152 

• Ensure that GIS is the single source of truth. 
• Integrate business utilizing authoritative data. 
• Minimize duplication. 
• Empower personnel to access data, and make their own decisions. 

Section 8: Helpful Resources 
Helpful References  

• http://www.hrtpo.org/uploads/docs/State%20of%20Transportation%202017%20-
%20Final%20Report.pdf 

• Maps and applications: http://www.iplan.mapsarcgis.com/home/gallery.html 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

  

233

http://www.hrtpo.org/uploads/docs/State%20of%20Transportation%202017%20-%20Final%20Report.pdf
http://www.hrtpo.org/uploads/docs/State%20of%20Transportation%202017%20-%20Final%20Report.pdf
http://www.iplan.mapsarcgis.com/home/gallery.html


Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
153 

 
 

Technical Report 13 
Systems Adjustments 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Subject Matter Expert 
 

Maranda Obray 
Senior Transportation Planner 

 

  

234



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
154 

Introduction:  System Adjustments 
The Department has developed Standard Operating Procedures, or SOPs, outlining all adopted processes 
in order to make modifications on the National Highway and State Highway systems; activities to revise 
functional classifications of roads and highways; procedures to add/subtract to the highway systems; 
justify locations of urban boundaries; and methods to 
identify the multiple designations of roadways.  
 
The National Highway System, or NHS, is a network of 
highways important to the Nation’s economy, 
defense and mobility; which includes all designated 
Interstates, Expressways and Freeways, all Principal 
Arterials and above since the implementation of 
MAP-21. All NHS routes are subject to specific design 
standards, performance and asset management 
targets, data and monitoring, signs, project selection 
authority, and project funding and eligibility 
opportunities.    
 
In addition to the NHS, the Idaho Transportation 
Board must establish and maintain Idaho’s State 
Highway System, or SHS; which serves statewide 
economic interests, movement of products and 
materials, and statewide mobility. When presented with an adjustment (addition, removal or other system 
action) to the SHS, the Board Subcommittee shall rely upon department staff and recommend their 
decision to the Idaho Transportation Board. 
 
Functional classification is the process by which “streets and highways are grouped into classes, or 
systems, according to the character of service they are intended to provide”. Basically, this process is the 
recognition that individual roads and streets do not serve travel independently; rather, most travel 
involves movement through a network of roads. It becomes necessary then to determine how this travel 
can be channelized within the network in a logical and efficient manner.  
 
Functional classification carries with it expectations about roadway design, including its speed, capacity 
and relationship to existing and future land use development. Transportation agencies often describe 
roadway system performance, benchmarks and targets by functional classification. As agencies continue 
to move towards a more performance-based planning approach, functional classification will be an 
increasingly important consideration in setting expectations and measuring outcomes for preservation, 
mobility and safety. 
 
Another important consideration is urban boundaries and how changes to the designated areas can affect 
the overall transportation system. Every 10 years, the United States Census Bureau reviews urban growth. 
Approximately two years after the decennial census is conducted, the Census Bureau distributes Urban 
Area Boundary maps. All cities over 5,000 populations, must review the potential census boundary 
changes and either accept them as is or adjust them for transportation planning purposes. 

235



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
155 

Section 1: FAST Act Applicable Section(s) for the LRTP 
Applicable Sections of 23 CFR 450.216 Long Range Transportation Plan (FAST): 

§C. “The long-range statewide transportation plan shall reference, summarize, or contain any 
applicable short range planning studies; strategic planning and/or policy studies; 
transportation needs studies; management systems reports; emergency relief and disaster 
preparedness plans; and any statements of policies, goals, and objectives on issues (e.g., 
transportation, safety, economic development, social and environmental effects, or energy), 
as appropriate, that were relevant to the development of the long range statewide plan.”  

Section 2: Federal and/or State Reference 
Federal Reference:  

• 23 CFR 470 
• 23 USC 100 
• 49 USC 5302   

State Reference:  
• Idaho Code 40-120(5) – Definition of State Highway System  
• Idaho Code 40-203 – Department may abandon or assume control of highway with consent of 

local highway jurisdiction 
• Idaho Code 40-310 – ITD Board shall designate and accept/abandon roads as part of the State 

Highway System  
• Idaho Code 40-312 
• Idaho Code 67-5229 
• Idaho Administrative Rule 39.03.43 

Section 3:   ITD Board or Administrative Policies 
Board Policy: 

• 4061 – State Highway System Adjustments 
• 4069 – Corridor Planning for Idaho Transportation Systems  

Administrative Policy: 
• 5061 – State Highway System Adjustments 
• 5069 – Corridor Planning for Idaho Transportation Systems 

Section 4:   MOU or Service Agreements  
ITD does not have any specific MOUs or Service Agreements in place for System Adjustments.  

Section 5: Stakeholders and Partners 
ITD’s stakeholders and partners include any local, metropolitan, state or federal agency that wants to 
make modifications to the State- and Local-Systems in Idaho.  Additionally, stakeholders can be users of 
the system, as well as, property owners that are along the roadway. 

236



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
156 

Section 6: Process 
Please review the following Procedures Manuals for full description of processes: 

• Idaho Transportation Department Systems Procedures - 
https://apps.itd.idaho.gov/apps/plan/ITDSystemsProcedures.pdf 

• Idaho Transportation Department State Highway System Adjustment Procedures – 
https://apps.itd.idaho.gov/apps/plan/ITDSystemsAdjustmentsProcedures.pdf  

 
In accordance with 23 CFR 470, ITD has the primary responsibility for developing and updating Idaho’s 
NHS, SHS, State and Local Functional Classification and Urban Boundary maps. To complete this task, 
ITD must collaborate with local officials, MPOs and/or appropriate federal agencies. 
 
For urbanized areas, the designated MPO is responsible for developing and maintaining the functional 
classification of roads within their adopted boundaries through coordination with local cities, counties and 
highway districts. The goal of the MPO is to establish consistent standards in the overall classification 
process within their area and to maintain effective communication among public agencies responsible for 
roadways. If your community is within an MPO area, please contact that agency to determine what their 
process is for updating a specific roadway system classification. 
 
The official National Highway System routes are depicted: 

• On the PDF maps posted to 
http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/planning/national_highway_system/nhs_maps/ 

• In the NHS Interactive Map Viewer located at http://hepgis.fhwa.dot.gov/. Users can pan and 
zoom to view NHS segments in greater detail 

• In the NHS Shapefile posted to 
http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/planning/national_highway_system/nhs_maps/. (When putting 
together an NHS submittal package to require System changes, as part of the review process, if 
ITD plans to compare the State’s GIS record against the FHWA NHS shapefile, please make sure 
to download the latest NHS Shapefile from the link above.)  

 
FHWA has final decision-authority for Idaho’s NHS, SHS, State and Local functional classification and 
urban boundary designations. Once approval has been granted by FHWA, ITD will map the results to 
serve as the official record for all federally funded routes. The most up-to-date designations can be found 
in ITD’s IPLAN; which is a web-based portal linking directly to ITD’s authoritative data sources.  

Section 7: Recommendations and Implementation 
Use the Department’s Systems Procedures and Systems Adjustment SOP to ensure that all procedures 
are followed to guarantee smooth additions, deletions and modifications to the transportation systems. 

Section 8: Helpful Resources 
Helpful References  

• http://www.hrtpo.org/uploads/docs/State%20of%20Transportation%202017%20-
%20Final%20Report.pdf 

• 23 CFR Part 470 - https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-

237

https://apps.itd.idaho.gov/apps/plan/ITDSystemsProcedures.pdf
https://apps.itd.idaho.gov/apps/plan/ITDSystemsAdjustmentsProcedures.pdf
http://www.hrtpo.org/uploads/docs/State%20of%20Transportation%202017%20-%20Final%20Report.pdf
http://www.hrtpo.org/uploads/docs/State%20of%20Transportation%202017%20-%20Final%20Report.pdf
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?c=ecfr&SID=eae973efc51d208648a64d2bf8513117&rgn=div5&view=text&node=23:1.0.1.5.13&idno=23#23:1.0.1.5.13.1.1.9.15


Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
157 

idx?c=ecfr&SID=eae973efc51d208648a64d2bf8513117&rgn=div5&view=text&node=23:1.0.1.5.
13&idno=23#23:1.0.1.5.13.1.1.9.15 

• FHWA Highway Functional Classification Concepts, Criteria, and Procedures (2013 Edition) 
Manual - 
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/planning/processes/statewide/related/highway_functional_classific
ations/  

• Guidance Criteria for Evaluating Requests for Modifications to the NHS - 
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-
idx?c=ecfr&SID=eae973efc51d208648a64d2bf8513117&rgn=div5&view=text&node=23:1.0.1.5.
13&idno=23#23:1.0.1.5.13.1.1.9.18 

• FHWA National Highway System Q&A - https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/map21/qandas/qanhs.cfm  
• AASHTO Green Book - https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/design/standards/151112.cfm 
• ITD Roadway Design Manual 
• Strategic Highway Network (STRAHNET) - 

https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/policy/2004cpr/chap18.cfm 
• Census Urban Boundary Maps - https://www.census.gov/  

 

  

238

https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?c=ecfr&SID=eae973efc51d208648a64d2bf8513117&rgn=div5&view=text&node=23:1.0.1.5.13&idno=23#23:1.0.1.5.13.1.1.9.15
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?c=ecfr&SID=eae973efc51d208648a64d2bf8513117&rgn=div5&view=text&node=23:1.0.1.5.13&idno=23#23:1.0.1.5.13.1.1.9.15
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/planning/processes/statewide/related/highway_functional_classifications/
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/planning/processes/statewide/related/highway_functional_classifications/
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?c=ecfr&SID=eae973efc51d208648a64d2bf8513117&rgn=div5&view=text&node=23:1.0.1.5.13&idno=23#23:1.0.1.5.13.1.1.9.18
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?c=ecfr&SID=eae973efc51d208648a64d2bf8513117&rgn=div5&view=text&node=23:1.0.1.5.13&idno=23#23:1.0.1.5.13.1.1.9.18
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?c=ecfr&SID=eae973efc51d208648a64d2bf8513117&rgn=div5&view=text&node=23:1.0.1.5.13&idno=23#23:1.0.1.5.13.1.1.9.18
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/map21/qandas/qanhs.cfm
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/design/standards/151112.cfm
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/policy/2004cpr/chap18.cfm
https://www.census.gov/


Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
158 

 
 

 
Technical Report 14 

Asset Management 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Subject Matter Expert 
 

James Poorbaugh, PE, PMP 
Asset Management Engineer 

  

239



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
159 

Introduction:  Asset Management 
Since the beginning of the Interstate Era, billions of dollars have been spent in Idaho building a sound 
transportation system.  Maintaining and preserving our assets promotes safety, improves mobility and 
enhances economic opportunities.  Utilizing transportation asset management strategies provides 
important quantitative and qualitative data that helps the department plan for future needs and 
program projects around pavement life-cycles.  Based on the data the department also sets targets for 
asset condition and performance.  The development and use of a Transportation Asset Management 
Plan (TAMP) incorporates asset management into the long-range transportation planning process.  
Furthermore, performance standards specific in the TAMP help ITD manage the organization's 
infrastructure so as to cost-effectively achieve the organization's strategic goals in the long-term. 
 
The ITD manages a state highway network of approximately 5,000 centerline miles, or 12,000 lane miles, 
plus more than 1,700 bridges over 20 feet.  The entire Idaho road network is more than 60,000 miles 
with the large majority owned by local governments.  ITD’s routes carry 54% of the state vehicle miles of 
travel (VMT) with 45% of the state’s VMT being on the Interstate Highway System network.  The 
effective management of this system into the future is critical and is dependent upon good decisions 
based on quality data and information.   
A widely held definition for asset management is: 

 
A strategic and systematic process of operating, maintaining, and improving physical assets, 
with a focus on engineering and economic analysis based upon quality information, to identify a 
structured sequence of maintenance, preservation, repair, rehabilitation, and replacement 
actions that will achieve and sustain a desired state of good repair over the lifecycle of the assets 
a minimum practicable cost.   

 

 
Over the last 40-years ITD has implemented numerous best practices and strives to meet this definition. 
These efforts have provided a stable and strong foundation upon which ITD will continue to build its 
asset management practice over the next 20-years.  As previously discussed, the cornerstones of this 
foundation, which support quality, are people, process, and technology.  
 
 

1978 Pavement 
Performance Information 

System 

1986 Begin simple 
economic analysis 

2007 Highway Economic 
Requirements System (HERS-ST) 

2009 AgileAssets TAMS 

ITD Pavement Management Historical Timeline 

240



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
160 

Section 1: FAST Act Applicable Section(s) for the LRTP 
23 CFR 450.216 (c) of the FAST Act states that Long-Range Transportation Plans should include the 
following:  
 
“The long-range transportation plan shall reference, summarize, or contain any applicable short range 
planning studies; strategic planning and/or policy studies; transportation needs studies; management 
systems reports; emergency relief and disaster preparedness plans; and any statements of policies, goals 
and objectives on issues (e.g, transportation, safety, economic development, social and environmental 
effects, or energy), as appropriate, that were relevant to the development of the long-range statewide 
plan.” 

Section 2: Federal and/or State Reference 
Federal Reference:  23 U.S.C. 101(a)(2), 23 U.S.C. 119(e)(1), 23 CFR 515.9 

MAP-21 § 1103, MAP-21 § 1106 
State Reference: No Idaho Code References found 

Section 3:   ITD Board or Administrative Policies 
Administrative:  None 
Board:   None 

Section 4:   MOU or Service Agreements  
At the present time, there are no MOU or Service Agreements in place concerning Aeest Management. 

Section 5: Stakeholders and Partners 
Stakeholders: Internally, every section and district is considered a stakeholder in the asset 

management process. Each area is responsible for collecting data and using the analysis 
output.  Executive leadership use the data to assess performance policies and 
strategically direct limited funds.  

 
Partners: LHTAC, MPOs and Local Highway Jurisdictions  

Section 6: Process 
The Idaho Transportation Department (ITD) is committed to the effective management of the state’s 
highways to protect the public’s safety and its massive investment in this important infrastructure.  As 
part of this commitment ITD has demonstrated a focus on the effective utilization of technology and 
asset management practices for over 40-years.   It is important to note that ITD does not solely consider 
facility classification; rather, ITD looks through the lens of overall benefit to the visitors and residents of 
Idaho.  This focus has placed ITD in the enviable position that the State Highway System (SHS) roads and 
bridges are nearing or exceeding ITD’s goals and where the National Highway System (NHS) subset of 

241



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
161 

SHS exceeds Federal targets and goals.  The NHS is a subset of 174,000 of the most important roads 
nationally. In Idaho, 2,096 miles are on the NHS including the Interstates and major routes such as US-
95, US-55, US-26, US-33, US-12 and others.  Congress emphasizes the condition of the NHS because of 
its freight and travel importance.  
 
The State’s roadway network is one of Idaho’s most valuable assets and is integral to the public’s safety, 
mobility and economic opportunity.  Idaho's transportation system includes a statewide network of 
more than 60,000 miles of roads and nearly 4,000 bridges. Of these, ITD manages almost 5,000 miles of 
highways and more than 1,700 bridges.  ITD manages just 9.7 percent of all roadway miles in Idaho; 
however, the state system carries 55 percent of Idaho’s total vehicle miles of travel (VMT). Although a 
small percentage of total lane miles within the State of Idaho, 1.2 percent, the Interstate highways alone 
carry 25 percent of miles traveled in Idaho.  Within the SHS that ITD manages, the interstate accounts 
for 45 percent of the VMT.  These assets are aging but as they do, they become even more important. 
From 1996 to 2018, vehicle miles travelled on the state highway system grew more than 38 percent.  
The Interstate system experienced a 55 percent increase in travel over the same period while the state 
system, excluding the interstates, experienced a 27 percent increase. This growth reflects the increasing 
mobility of Idaho’s population and the growing importance of freight movement to our economy. 
 
In 2018, the department submitted the DRAFT Transportation Asset Management Plan (TAMP) which, 
as federally required, focuses mainly on the NHS but emphasizes the need to adequately maintain all 
roads. 
 
The TAMP includes information on: 

• Objectives that ITD seeks to achieve; 
• ITD’s asset measures and targets; 
• Description of the department’s assets; 
• Description of the gap analysis the department used and results; 
• The asset management life cycle planning process; 
• The risk management process used; 
• Documenting the financial planning process; and 
• Identifying Investment strategies for expenditures. 

Section 7: Recommendations and Implementation 
As ITD Asset Management looks to the future, we understand that the practice of asset management is 
about maintaining the transportation assets in a condition meeting the expectations of a varied and 
diverse group of people.  This includes users of the system (citizens, tourists, trucking industry...); 
metropolitan planning organizations; and local, state and federal government officials.  In order to 
accomplish this ITD Asset Management is focused on the 3-R’s: Relationships, Relevance, Rigor.  With 
respect to relationships, ITD Asset Management is committed to maintaining and strengthening existing 
strategic relationships.  ITD will accomplish this through continued outreach and communication.   A 
critical component of relationships is establishing understanding of relevance between the parties.  ITD 
future practice of asset management is dependent upon successfully promoting the understanding to 
our stakeholders why asset management is relevant.  This will be accomplished through the public 

242



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
162 

outreach and the preparation, adoption and certification of a Transportation Asset Management Plan 
(TAMP).  Rigor is the quality of being extremely thorough, exhaustive or accurate, though relational 
communication with stakeholders ITD will ensure that it is not confusing effort with results rather 
providing the right information, to the right people at the right time. 
 
Regarding the second cornerstone, processes, ITD asset management staff will identify processes that 
hinder progress toward achieving and sustaining the desired state of good repair. The state of good 
repair will be measured by the degree to which performance targets are achieved.   
 
The types of possible process improvements that will be sought if the targets are not being met could 
include: 

• Difficulty in delivering needed projects and maintenance activities because of issues related to 
funding, permitting, contractor availability, storms, or other climatic or seismic events; 

• Accelerated deterioration caused by increased traffic loadings, failure of materials or earlier 
treatments to provide the longevity that was expected; 

• Inaccuracies in forecasts from bridge or pavement models, or: 
• Other factors such as a re-direction of priorities from the Legislature. 

 
Alternative strategies will be investigated through consultation with bridge and pavement subject 
matter experts, materials and construction staff, district personnel, and agency leadership.  
 
As appropriate, alternative strategies will be reviewed that could include: 

• Increased investments or tradeoffs from other programs if needed; 
• Review of possible different materials or treatment types, if needed; 
• Re-calibration or improvement in deterioration curves and other elements of bridge and 

pavement forecasts; 
• Updates of unit costs to more accurately reflect evolving prices; 
• Stepped up maintenance efforts if they can contribute to the target achieve, or: 
• Adoption of additional policies appropriate to addressing the gaps. 

 
Other process that will be reviewed will be those that could affect the performance of the 
transportation network.  
 
The performance of the transportation network will be viewed through three primary lenses: 

1. Does any condition gap impede achievement of any ITD highway safety goal, objective, or 
target? 

2. Does any condition gap impede the efficient movement of freight on the network, and/or; 
3. Does any condition gap impede the efficient movement of people, such as contributing to 

inordinate congestion or travel delays? 
 
The methodology for identifying these process gaps will rely on consultation with the ITD staff.  The 
consultation also will be facilitated with MPOs, and operators of public transportation via jointly agreed 
upon and development of specific written provisions for cooperatively developing and sharing 
information related to transportation performance data, the selection of performance targets, the 

243



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
163 

reporting of performance targets, the reporting of performance to be used in tracking progress toward 
attainment of critical outcomes for the region of the MPO, and the collection of data for the State asset 
management plan. As part of this joint, collaborative process, ITD will seek from the regional planners 
and operators of transit agencies any identified gaps that impede achievement of the safe, efficient 
movement of goods or people. 
  
If gaps are identified, the ITD will use its planning and asset management process to develop alternative 
strategies to present to the ITD Board. The tools and processes it will use could include, as appropriate 
and relevant: 

• Iterations of bridge and pavement investment strategy scenarios using the bridge and pavement 
models; 

• Scenarios of increase investments, or tradeoffs between asset classes, to close gaps; 
• Review of alternative maintenance strategies if any of the gaps could be alleviated through 

maintenance activities; 
• The adjustment of targets; 
• Consideration of different materials or treatments if, for example, a lack of pavement frictions is 

determined to contribute to highway crashes, or; 
• Increased bridge investments if posted structures are restricting freight movement on NHS 

connectors or other key routes. 
 
As alternative strategies are developed, they will be summarized and presented to the ITD board along 
with their implications relating to funding, tradeoffs with other asset classes, and/or their impact on 
system performance. At the direction of the Board, the approved strategies will be implemented to 
address the performance of the NHS as influenced by asset conditions. 
 
Additional Process Improvements 
ITD also is taking steps to enhance several asset management processes that will strengthen future asset 
management plans.   
These include: 

• ITD will enhance its pavement management model. It is in process of having additional 
consultant subject matter experts review the model and help ITD improve deterioration curves, 
treatment triggers, and condition forecasts. This effort is part of the continuous improvement 
process that ITD applies to all of its asset management efforts. 

• ITD will continue developing the BrM Bridge Management System. ITD has been using the 
relatively new AASHTO bridge management system known as BrM. BrM has been available for 
data collection and storage for several years but its modeling functions are still relatively new. 
ITD is in process of refining the modeling capability of BrM to complement the in-house 
modeling processes that ITD has been using. ITD will continue to review its capabilities with BrM 
to enhance its bridge modeling processes. 

• Assess the long-term consequences of the Non-Commerce Route treatments. ITD has divided all 
routes into Commerce and Non-Commerce routes. Non-Commerce routes handle less than 300 
trucks per day. Because of higher priorities in other programs, ITD has limited for several years 
the treatments on Non-Commerce routes to preservation-type treatments and is not funding 
structural repairs to Non-Commerce pavements.  

244



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
164 

• Assess the Long-Term Needs of ITD’s Large Structures. ITD’s ten largest structures have an 
average age of 41 years old. Within the next 20 years, several of them are likely to need major 
rehabilitation which will create inordinately high costs for the bridge program. Three of them 
have substructures that are rated 5, which is Fair, and one has a deck and another a 
superstructure rated 5. ITD will consider whether it necessary to develop a multi-year program 
to plan for the rehabilitation or replacement of these structures at the appropriate time in their 
lifecycle.   

 
Technology is the last focus area for ITD Asset Management.  ITD employs technology to acquire, 
process and report data.  The following graphic shows a schematic of the data flow within ITD Asset 
Management Section.   

   
Currently the primary data collection devices utilized by ITD include PathRunner Profiler van, a 
Pavement Friction Tester (PFT), and a Falling Weight Deflectometer (FWD).   Since 1995, Idaho has used 
PathRunner Profiler van technology to gather the majority of the roadway data. In 2017, ITD purchased 
a new road profiler van to greatly enhance the data quality and quantity that we are able to obtain and 
process.  The profiler van drives every mile of state jurisdiction highway in the State of Idaho and 
digitally records its condition. From that data, the Pavement Analysis section extracts two values for 
pavement: roughness index and rutting depth.  Public access to information generated by the profiler 
van is available via http://pathweb.pathwayservices.com/idaho/ . 
The Department collects friction data (a number typically between 20 - 100, with the higher numbers 
representing a higher friction value) by towing a trailer that measures the force on a wheel that is locked 
but not rotating (i.e., skidding). The friction represents the friction experienced by tires traveling on the 
pavement surface while wet. The pavement engineers can use this number to calculate whether a 
pavement needs a sealcoat or other remedy to improve surface friction. 

•In Compliance 
with RDQMP 
•Collection of 

Roadway Data 
•Process Data 
•QC Processes 
•Upload to 

Pavment 
Management 
System 

 

Existing 
Conditions Data 

•Review Current 
performance 
against metrics 

•Forecast system 
performance 

•Prepare annual 
pavement 
performance 
report 

•Update ITD 
Metrics and 
dashboards 

•Communicate 
with MPOs on 
performance 

Performance 
Projections 

•Review/modify 
treatment 
senarios based on 
review of metrics 

•Run treatment 
senarios 

•Review project 
against sytem 
performance 
forecast 

•Re-run senarios as 
needed 

•Establish District 
budgets based on 
senarios 

Project 
Recomendations 

•Districts review 
recommendations 
for senarios 

•Districts modify 
project list 

•Revised list 
reviewed against 
performance 
forecast 

•ITIP developed 

STIP Development 

245

http://pathweb.pathwayservices.com/idaho/


Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
165 

The FWD is a non-destructive testing device that is used to complete structural testing for pavement 
rehabilitation projects, research, and pavement structure failure detection. The FWD is a device capable 
of applying dynamic loads to the pavement surface, similar in magnitude and duration to that of a single 
heavy moving wheel load.  The response of the pavement system is measured in terms of vertical 
deformation, or deflection, over a given area using seismometers. ITD collects this data on sections of 
state highways that are eligible for paving projects, and uses the results to design the new pavement 
that is needed. 

The Department has initiated a pilot program to explore the use of Ground Penetrating Radar (GPR) to 
visualize the pavement sub-surface structure.  The intent is to provide pavement engineers better data 
from a continuous scan of a section rather than just the 1/10th or ½ mile data from the FWD and borings. 
This will enable them to better estimate and plan for variations in sub-surface conditions when 
programming roadway improvements.  ITD also began collecting network level GPR scans of all 
commerce routes in the state.  This effort was completed summer of 2017 
Collection technology is ever evolving.  ITD is committed to embracing new technology that advances 
the practice of asset management.  One such technological advance come in the form of the Travel 
Speed Deflectometer (TSD).  This technology is similar to the FWD except that it travels at highway 
speeds and collects data continuously, whereas accepted practice is that the FWD collects data ever 
550-feet and collection occurs at approximately 4-mph.   ITD demonstrated its commitment to this 
advance technology by joining a national pooled fund study in 2018 which will explore the effectiveness 
of this technology as well as establish best practices.  The aim of this is more efficient collection of 
pavement structure data.  With this information ITD will be more effective in the determination of the 
pavement structure.  This in turn will lead to ITD selecting the right treatment at the right location at the 
right time.  
Sharing information and data is currently facilitated by posting reports and findings on the ITD website.   
ITD has begun using geographic information systems (GIS) as a framework to organize and report out 
data.  The future of ITD asset management will rely heavily on this technology to provide  access to and 
communicate asset management information. 
 

Section 8: Helpful Resources 
• http://www.hrtpo.org/uploads/docs/State%20of%20Transportation%202017%20-

%20Final%20Report.pdf 
• ITD Transportation Asset Management Plan 
• https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/asset/ 

  

246

http://www.hrtpo.org/uploads/docs/State%20of%20Transportation%202017%20-%20Final%20Report.pdf
http://www.hrtpo.org/uploads/docs/State%20of%20Transportation%202017%20-%20Final%20Report.pdf
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/asset/


Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
166 

 
 

 
 

Appendix 3:  Public Involvement Summary 

247



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
167 

IDAGO 2040 – Stakeholder Meeting Summary 
 

 
Meeting Purpose 
The Idaho Transportation Department (ITD) hosted a series of stakeholder meetings in each ITD District 
to encourage participation in the long-range planning process and solicit input on future planning 
scenarios related to safety, mobility, and economic opportunity. The purpose of the meetings was to 
share information about ITD's modal planning activities, transportation systems, transportation data, 
and new/emerging technologies and to strengthen long-term working relationships between partner 
agencies. 
 
Invitations and Attendance 
ITD sent email invitations to approximately 850 stakeholders to attend stakeholder workshops in their 
local ITD Districts. A total of 82 stakeholders attended the seven meetings. Sign-in sheets for each 
meeting are provided in Attachment 1.  
 

Table 1 Stakeholder Attendees 

ITD 
District Meeting Location Meeting 

Date 
Stakeholder 
Attendees 

1 Coeur d’Alene 4/25/18 16 
2 Lewiston 3/12/18 4 

3 New Plymouth 4/23/18 5 
Meridian 5/3/18 26 

4 Twin Falls 4/11/18 5 
5 Pocatello 3/22/18 8 
6 Idaho Falls 3/7/18 18 

Total 82 
 
Meeting Overview 
Each of the seven stakeholder meetings held throughout the state followed the same agenda format 
(included in Attachment 2).  Staff intentionally presented the same information to facilitate the same 
discussions with participants on the topics presented to enable quantitative and qualitative analysis of 
responses, which are presented in this report.  
 
Each meeting was staffed with ITD HQ, ITD District, and consultant staff to accommodate the pre-
registered attendees. The LRTP Project Manager, Ken Kanownik, provided an overview presentation 
outlining the purpose and scope of the long-range transportation plan.  
 
After the initial presentation, ITD staff and consultant representatives facilitated an exercise to gather 
stakeholder input on three primary topic areas: modal planning, transportation data, and new and 
emerging technologies. After a brief introduction to each topic, stakeholders were encouraged to write 
their views on each board with suggestions, best practices, and key words related to categories in which 
they had experience or interest. Following the initial input, stakeholders were given 10 red dots to 

248



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
168 

affirm those comments they felt best addressed their statements. The number of red dots next to a 
topic indicated the number of affirmations from other stakeholders. After the exercise, ITD staff and the 
consultant reviewed and compiled stakeholder dots from all white board comments throughout the 
state. The comments with the most dots in each tub-topic area are presented in Table 2.   
  

Table 2  White Board Comments 

Primary 
Topic Sub-Topic Category Comment with Highest  

Dot Count Dot Count  

Modal 
Planning 

Purpose/Scope Multi Modal Look beyond state system 10 
Guidance/Policy Coordination Coordinate with City/County plans 9 

Public Involvement/ 
Advisory Groups Coordination Regional councils or groups 8 

Priority Planning Multi Modal 
Pursue funding for all modes and 

ITD needs to take a leadership role 
to get that funding 

17 

Data and 
Systems 

Models Coordination State/regional/local needs 5 (tie) 
Multi Modal Alternate transportation models 5 (tie) 

Governance Share Share Data 16 
Data Collection Share Collaboration and sharing 7 

Analytics Governance Standardize results 7 

New and 
Emerging 

Technology 

Benefits Safety Improved safety 7 
Risks Safety Not safer infrastructure 7 

Leadership Role Coordination Local/state coordination 10 
Investment 
Strategies Coordination Out-of-State Case Studies 6 

 
Attachment 3 provides a summary of all white board comments based on the number of red dots that 
were represented. While some comments did not receive a red dot, ITD staff will review and consider all 
comments.  Attachment 3 also includes photographs of each board with dots. 
 
Following the white board exercise, ITD staff and the consultant requested input from stakeholders in 
eight scenario categories. For each scenario topic, ITD staff provided an overview of Idaho data and 
trends before asking stakeholders to consider whether the trend would increase, decrease, or remain 
unchanged over the next twenty years. Votes are intended to indicate predictions (i.e., forecasts) as 
opposed to positions (i.e., desired outcomes).  Table 3 details statewide percentages for each scenario 
topic, with top percentages outlined in black. Copies of scenario ballots are provided in Attachment 4. 
 
 
 
  

249



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 

 
169 

At the statewide level, participating stakeholders predict:  
 

• Long-term continued high growth for Idaho demographics – (56%) 
• No significant difference in rural fatalities – (42%) 
• Alternative transportation trips (mode split) will increase compared to single occupancy vehicle 

(SOV) trips – (45%) 
• Autonomous vehicle use will increase slower than hybrid/electric vehicles – (46%) 
• Connected vehicle use will increase faster than hybrid/electric vehicles – (63%) 
• Ride sharing serves a different use base than public transit – (39%) 
• Private services will evolve and outdate public service 511 – (53%) 
• "Wear & tear," natural variations in pavement life, and the nature of funding legislation will 

continue to make funding strategies and pavement modeling longer than 5 years difficult – 
(42%) 

 
 
 
 
 
  

250



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 
 

   

APPENDIX B. 

Stakeholder Summary 

Page 170 

Prediction Prediction Prediction

  
1 Idaho Demographics

The economic factors of Idaho will support 
long-term continued high growth.

40 56%
The economic factors of Idaho are 
variable and growth will vary from 

year to year.
30 42%

Limiting economic factors and resources of 
Idaho will limit growth and continued high 

growth is not likely.
2 3% 72

2
Safety – Rural 
Fatalities

The demographic shift from rural to urban 
will increase rural fatalities.

29 40% No significant difference. 31 42%
The demographic shift from rural to urban 

will decrease rural fatalities.
13 18% 73

3
Urban & Alternative 
Transportation

Alternative transportation trips (mode 
split) will increase compared to single 

occupancy vehicle (SOV) trips.
32 45% No significant difference. 27 38%

Alternative transportation trips (mode 
split) will decrease compared to SOV trips.

12 17% 71

4A
Vehicle Fleet – 
Autonomous Vehicles

Autonomous vehicles use will increase 
faster than Hybrid/Electric vehicles.

25 36% No significant difference. 13 19%
Autonomous vehicle use will increase 
slower than hybrid/electric vehicles.

32 46% 70

4B
Vehicle Fleet – 
Connected Vehicles

Connected vehicle use will increase faster 
than hybrid/electric vehicles.

44 63% No significant difference. 9 13%
Connected vehicle use will increase slower 

than hybrid/electric vehicles. 
17 24% 70

5 Ride Sharing
Ride sharing serves as a compliment to 

public transit and increases the user base 
of public transit. 

22 33% No significant difference. 19 28%
Ride sharing serves a different user base 

than public transit. 
26 39% 67

6
511 – Highway 
Information Systems

Private services will evolve and outdate 
public service 511. 

38 53% No significant difference. 11 15%
511 service will maintain an equitable 
commercial-free highway information 

service. 
23 32% 72

7
Long-Term Highway 
Preservation Strategy

Funding strategies and pavement models 
can be accurate longer than 5 years with 
increased investments and development.

14 20%
ITD can adapt and innovate 

regardless of funding and pavement 
modeling strategy. 

26 38%

"Wear & tear," natural variations in 
pavement life, and the nature of funding 
legislation will continue to make funding 
strategies and pavement modeling longer 

than 5 years difficult. 

29 42% 69

Total 
#

Percentages reflect total number of votes for each scenario category (as opposed to total number of attendees). 

Which scenario will control Idaho? 

# %# % # %
Scenario Category

 

Table 3  Scenario Planning – Statewide Results 

 

251



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 
 

 

 
Individual Presentations and Engagement 
ITD provided an open invitation to any transportation-related work groups, agencies, or professional 
organizations across the state during the development of the Long-Range Transportation Plan.  Table 4 
references those engagements. 
 

Table 4  Invitational LRTP Presentations 

Group/Presentation Date Location Attendance 
ITD Tribal Summit 8/3/2017 Boise ~25 

Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee 3/29/2017 Boise/Conference Call ~10 
Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee 2/1/2018 Boise/Conference Call 5 

Boise Metro Chamber of Commerce 3/21/2018 Boise ~20 
Idaho Freight Summit 4/10/2018 Boise ~50 

Foundation for Ada/Canyon Trail System, Inc. 5/23/2018 Meridian 8 
Nez Perce Tribe 3/17/2018 Lewiston 3 

Southeast Idaho Five County Coalition 7/19/2018 Malad 120 
Relevance2 Retreat 7/25/2018 Boise 15 

Public Transit Summit 8/21/2018 Boise 81 
Total ~337 

 
Metropolitan Planning Organization Collaboration 
ITD also provided updates to the five Idaho Metropolitan Planning Organizations (MPOs).  The Idaho 
MPOs meet on a regularly scheduled basis known as the Urban Balancing Committee.  This committee 
also has membership from Idaho’s Local Highway Technical Assistance Council, and the FHWA attends in 
an observatory role.  ITD presented updates to the MPOs via the Urban Balancing Committee as detailed 
in Table 5.  
 

Table 5  MPO/FHWA/LHTAC Updates 

Date Location Attendance 
4/6/2017 Meridian ~10 

11/2/2017 Meridian ~11 
2/1/2018 Meridian ~12 

Total ~33 
 
ITD Long-Range Transportation Plan Steering Committee 
The Steering Committee meetings also included a built-in component to further allow participation and 
collaboration from stakeholders.  Each Steering Committee meeting provided an open forum for 
stakeholders to comment directly to the members of the Steering Committee which could be considered 
in the advice and direction given to ITD staff directly working on the plan.  Each ITD district office also 
had a video feed to the steering committee meetings.  This allowed for participation across the state.  
Table 6 summarizes these meetings. 
 

 

252



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 
 

 

Table 6  Steering Committee Meetings 

Date Location Attendance 

7/13/2017 Boise & 
Video Feed in Each 

District 

~30 

2/13/2018 ~30 
8/2/2018 ~30 

Total ~90 
 
 
 List of Attachments (Electronic Version Only) 

• Attachment 1: Workshop Agenda and Presentation 
• Attachment 2: Whiteboard Photos 
• Attachment 3: Whiteboard Consolidation Tables 

 
 
 

ITD Response and Incorporation of Stakeholder Input 
 

Stakeholder meeting attendees were informed that their input would be summarized and distributed to 
Subject Matter Experts (SMEs) at ITD responsible for input to IDAGO 2040.  ITD staff received copies of 
the Stakeholder Meeting Summary on June 11, 2018.  A presentation was given, including a summary of 
input, to the Idaho Transportation Board on June 21, 2018.  The IDAGO 2040 Steering Committee 
received a briefing on August 2, 2018.  In addition to incorporating the input into the plan.  The feedback 
from stakeholders also resulted in additional targeted stakeholder involvement.  An example of the 
additional outreach was a presentation and interactive input at ITD’s annual Transit Summit on August 
21, 2018. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

  

253



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 
 

 

 

Online Survey Summary 
 

 
Introduction 
On March 5, 2018, the Idaho Transportation Department (ITD) launched an online public survey to solicit 
user feedback on transportation priorities, budget allocation, and tradeoffs as part of the IDAGO 2040 
update process. The survey was linked through the ITD website and hosted via a third-party vendor. ITD 
placed advertising in newspapers across Idaho encouraging members of the public to participate in the 
survey. The survey closed on June 7, 2018, after nearly 1,000 people viewed the survey and more than 
500 provided information through at least one of the input screens. 
 
The survey tool included an interactive set of five screens providing information to respondents and 
requesting their input in three specific areas: selection of transportation priorities, preferred budget 
allocation, and assessment of transportation tradeoffs. Survey screens are presented in Attachment 1. 
The purpose of the survey was to educate the public about competing priorities and strategies, provide 
an opportunity for public involvement and feedback in the plan process, and enable ITD to gauge 
preferences of survey respondents. Survey respondents could also submit written comments regarding 
the priorities and tradeoffs screens. ITD received a total of 183 written survey comments, which are 
compiled in Attachment 2.  
 
This summary provides an overview of respondent results and demographic information. Results are not 
intended to provide statistically-valid comparisons. 
 
Survey Visits 
A total of 983 people viewed at least one screen via a mobile or desktop platform. Of those, 559 
provided data through at least one screen resulting in a conversion rate of approximately 57%. Visits 
peaked at the beginning and the end of the survey period with occasional spikes following a coordinated 
media push or IDAGO 2040 event. 
 
Most participants accessed the survey using a desktop website, while approximately 20% accessed the 
survey through a mobile device.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  

254



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 
 

 

Figure 1 Survey Participants 

 
 
Priority Ranking 
The survey asked respondents to rank priority areas from most to least important. Respondents could 
select one to four areas most important to them. The results in Figure 2 show the number of times each 
priority was ranked (i.e., how often it was selected as a priority) as well as the average ranking. A rank of 
1 indicated the highest priority and a rank of 4 indicated the lowest priority.  
 
At the statewide level, participants selected Congestion & Delay Relief as the top priority area according 
to average rank, while Preservation & Maintenance was ranked the most times.   
 
Within each District, top priority areas in terms of average rank included Idaho’s Environment (D1 and 
D5), Preservation and Maintenance (D2, D4, and D6), and Congestion & Delay Relief (D3). In terms of 
number of times ranked, Preservation & Maintenance was the top priority or tied for top priority in D1, 
D2, D4, D5, and D6. Congestion & Delay Relief received the most rankings in D3.  
 
  

255



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 
 

 

Figure 2 Statewide Priority Ranking 

 
 
 

Table 7  Priority Ranking Summary 
 

Priority Area 
Average Rank 

State D1 D2 D3 D4 D5 D6 

Congestion & Delay Relief 2.20 2.57 3.42 1.90 3.00 2.33 3.20 
Preservation & Maintenance 2.56 2.43 2.05 2.86 1.82 2.75 2.00 
Idaho's Environment 2.75 2.30 2.53 3.02 2.50 1.00 2.87 
Transportation Options 2.77 2.78 2.85 2.71 4.11 2.50 2.75 
Innovation 3.61 3.72 3.26 3.63 3.11 4.00 3.26 
Airport Development 3.66 4.00 4.43 3.48 3.67 4.00 4.40 
Data Analytics 3.75 4.00 3.90 3.80 3.00 5.00 3.40 
Outreach & Education 3.85 4.14 3.08 3.95 3.50 3.00 3.56 
Shaded cells indicate lowest rank (highest priority) for each geographic area. Statewide values exclude entries with 
zip code marked as 1. District results are based on reported home zip codes.  

 
 
 

2.20 

2.56 
2.75 2.77 

3.61 3.66 3.75 3.85 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

0.00

0.50

1.00

1.50

2.00

2.50

3.00

3.50

4.00

4.50

Ti
m

e 
Ra

nk
ed

 

Av
er

ag
e 

 R
an

k 

Average Rank (Lower Rank = Higher Priority) Times Ranked

256



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 
 

 

 
Table 8  Priority Ranking Summary 

 

Priority Area 

Number of Times Ranked 

State D1 D2 D3 D4 D5 D6 

Preservation & Maintenance 376 54 22 187 11 4 23 
Congestion & Delay Relief 353 46 12 191 9 3 20 
Transportation Options 332 50 13 167 9 4 20 
Innovation 308 46 19 154 9 4 19 
Idaho's Environment 294 47 15 147 8 1 15 
Data Analytics 179 22 10 99 6 1 10 
Outreach & Education 136 22 12 60 4 2 9 
Airport Development 116 11 7 56 3 1 5 
Shaded cells indicate highest number of times ranked for each geographic area. Statewide values exclude entries 
with zip code marked as 1. District results are based on reported home zip codes.  

 
Budget Allocation 
Participants were given a value of 50 “coins” (10 coins with a value of 1 and 8 coins with a value of 5) 
with instructions to divide between eight budget areas. Results reflect the average value of coins 
allotted to each area. Aligning with results for the Priority Ranking screen, the Preservation & 
Maintenance and Expansion & Capacity categories received the highest average budget allocation at the 
statewide level. Preservation & Maintenance was also rated the highest in four of six ITD Districts, with 
Expansion & Capacity ranking highest in District 3 and Bicycle/Pedestrian ranking highest in District 5.   
 

Table 9  Budget Allocation Summary 
 

Budget Area 
Average Allocation 

Statewide D1 D2 D3 D4 D5 D6 
Preservation & Maintenance 8.70 9.13 11.10 8.15 11.57 8.60 10.06 
Expansion & Capacity 8.46 8.30 7.14 9.67 7.57 5.43 6.71 
Bridges & Structures 6.94 7.96 7.66 6.54 10.92 7.40 7.94 
Safety 6.51 6.36 8.61 6.24 8.93 10.20 6.44 
Transit Infrastructure 5.25 6.18 4.73 5.36 3.53 5.67 4.31 
Bicycle/Pedestrian 4.92 5.91 3.88 4.89 2.57 11.80 3.94 
Intelligent Transportation Systems 3.90 3.91 2.49 4.29 2.57 5.20 3.79 
Freight 2.13 1.57 2.95 2.14 2.64 3.60 2.91 

Shaded cells indicate highest average for geographic area. Statewide averages exclude entries with zip code marked as 1. 
District results are based on reported home zip codes.  
 

  
 

257



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 
 

 

Figure 3 Statewide Average Budget Allocation

 
Tradeoffs 
ITD must balance competing needs across the state. Survey participants were asked to indicate 
recommendations for how ITD should manage five transportation tradeoffs. For each tradeoff, 
participants could choose one of five selections: 1) strongly prefer option A, 2) somewhat prefer option 
A, 3) neutral, 4) somewhat prefer option B, and 5) strongly prefer option B. Excluding the neutral option 
(3), statewide average results for the remaining four choices are presented in the figure below.  
 

Figure 4 Statewide Average Tradeoffs 

 
 

 
In all cases, the sum of statewide preferences for option B was greater than the sum for option A. 
Preference for option B also occurred in Districts 3 and 5, with mixed results in Districts 1, 2, 4, and 6.   
 

8.70 

8.46 

6.94 6.51 

5.25 

4.92 

3.90 
2.13 Preservation & Maintenance

Expansion & Capacity

Bridges & Structures

Safety

Transit Infrastructure

Bicycle/Pedestrian

Intelligent Transportation Systems

Freight

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

200

Decision Making Mobility Planning Project Types System Expansion

1 2 4 5

258



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 
 

 

Table 10  Tradeoffs Summary – Statewide 
 

Tradeoff 
Category Option A SUM 

A 
1 2 4 5 SUM 

B Option B 
<< < > >> 

Decision 
Making 

Return on 
Investment 173 58 115 119 111 230 Public Opinion and Input 

Mobility Freight and 
Commerce 129 58 71 113 162 275 Commuters and Transit 

Planning Traditional Highway 
Infrastructure 173 75 98 134 115 249 Infrastructure of Future 

Technologies 

Project 
Types 

Larger Number of 
Smaller Projects 

Statewide 
183 76 107 132 86 218 

Fewer Number of Larger, 
Strategically Located 
Projects Statewide 

System 
Expansion 

Construct New 
Highways 103 46 57 176 139 315 Expand Existing Highways 

Shaded cells indicate highest sum of preferences. Statewide averages exclude entries with zip code marked as 1. Neutral 
responses (3) are excluded from analysis.  
 

Table 11  Tradeoffs Summary – Districts 
 

Tradeoff Category 
D1 D2 D3 D4 D5 D6 

SUM 
A 

SUM 
B 

SUM 
A 

SUM 
B 

SUM 
A 

SUM 
B 

SUM 
A 

SUM 
B 

SUM 
A 

SUM 
B 

SUM 
A 

SUM 
B 

Decision Making 19 33 7 16 108 121 6 6 1 3 11 17 
Mobility 15 38 10 10 68 168 6 4 1 4 15 13 
Planning 14 43 15 7 96 148 6 7 1 3 13 12 
Project Types 34 19 14 9 78 151 7 4 2 3 13 11 
System Expansion 4 52 3 19 72 168 4 7 0 4 6 21 

Shaded cells indicate highest sum of preferences. Statewide averages exclude entries with zip code marked as 1. Neutral 
responses (3) are excluded from analysis.  
 
 
  

259



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 
 

 

Wrap Up 
The final survey screen asked participants to answer a series of demographic questions.  
 
Age 
Most survey respondents were within the 36-50 and 51-65 age ranges. Younger Idahoans were less 
represented in the survey compared to recent population estimates.  
 

Figure 5 Age of Survey Respondents and Idaho Residents 
 

  
Source: 2012-2016 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates. 

 
 
  

1% 
19% 

35% 

33% 

12% 

SURVEY RESPONDENTS 

19 and below 20-35 36-50 51-65 66 and above

29% 

20% 18% 

19% 

14% 

IDAHO RESIDENTS 

19 and below 20-34 35-49 50-64 65 and above

260



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 
 

 

Respondent County of Residence 
Survey respondents live in a variety of locations throughout the state. Based on the 463 responses that 
included home zip codes, most respondents live in Ada (41.9%) and Canyon (12.1%) Counties. Survey 
responses reflected participation from each ITD district and 32 out of 44 Idaho counties (73%). 
Approximately 4.3% of responses did not indicate a home zip code or are located outside of Idaho. 
Figure 5 indicates the percentage of respondents who indicated an Idaho home zip code.  
 
Figure 6 Survey Responses by County 

 
 
Percentages are drawn from 463 responses that indicated a home zip code. Of these, 20 responses are from Other/Outside ID.  

261



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 
 

 

Primary Mode of Transportation 
Most survey respondents use a personal automobile for travel. Smaller percentages walk or use a 
bicycle, transit, or other modes. These results generally mirror recent commuting characteristic 
estimates for the state.  
 

Figure 7 Primary Mode of Transportation 
 

 
 

Source: 2012-2016 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates – Commuting Characteristics. 
 
  

92% 

5% 

0% 
2% 

1% 

SURVEY RESPONDENTS 

Automobile (92%)
Bike (5%)
Other (0%)
Transit (2%)
Walk (1%)

88% 

1% 

3% 

1% 1% 6% 

IDAHO RESIDENTS 

Car, truck, or van (88%)
Public transportation (1%)
Walked (3%)
Bicycle (1%)
Taxicab, motorcycle, or other means (1%)
Worked at home (6%)

262



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 
 

 

Top Uses of Idaho Highways 
The top two uses of Idaho highways involve travel for work and travel for general/personal use. 
Respondents also indicated recreation is a common reason for travel, with fewer participants reporting 
travel for agriculture or commerce.  
 

Figure 8 Top Uses of Idaho Highways 

 
 

Comment Summary: 
 
The survey had 183 additional comments, either in free form or with some 
direction.  The comments are compiled into 13 categories for a response to each 
topic. 
 
Active Transportation (Bicycle and Pedestrian) – ITD has taken several recent actions to help citizens 
who engage in active transportation.  A Child Pedestrian Safety (CPS) Program was established that has 
provided $2 Million in infrastructure grants annually since inception (FY 2018 & FY2019) and the Idaho 
Transportation Board has updated the policy outlining Bicycle and Pedestrian Coordination at ITD.  The 
establishment of CPS requires additional coordination between the ITD and partner agency Local 
Highways Technical Assistance Council (LHTAC) which helps improve other active transportation 
programs at ITD. 
 
Coordination – This topic was also popular with stakeholders across Idaho.  There are recommendations 
in IDAGO 2040 to encourage and promote more coordination between ITD and partner Agencies. 
 
Economy – Economic Opportunity is part of ITD’s mission.  IDAGO 2040 informs on several initiatives ITD 
undertakes to contribute to Idaho’s economic growth. 
 

2% 5% 

34% 

25% 

34% 

Agriculture

Commerce

GeneralPersonal

Recreating

ToFrom Work

263



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 
 

 

Environment – Idaho’s environment and how it relates it transportation is outlined in the technical 
report on ITD’s environmental processes. 
Highway Maintenance – The basics of highway maintenance are outlined in the technical report on 
Asset Management.  There are also other sections that include topics and concepts of highway 
maintenance. 
 
Mobility – IDAGO 2040 addressed mobility in the Modal Planning section of IDAGO 2040.  Recently, the 
Idaho Legislature authorized a new program call Transportation Expansion and Congestion Mitigation 
that uses state funds to address congestion.  Mobility is also address in other areas of IDAGO 2040. 
 
Planning – Many of the planning comments were for project specific issues.  These comments were 
forwarded to the appropriate ITD staff.  In regards to the general planning comments, several sections 
of IDAGO 2040 have recommendations and guidance on how ITD will conduct planning work in the 
future. 
 
Policy – The Idaho Transportation Board sets the policies for the Idaho Transportation Department.  The 
comments provided relating to policies have been forwarded to the Idaho Transportation Board. 
 
Safety – Part of ITD’s mission, safety has been addressed throughout IDAGO 2040.   
 
Transit – The transit comments were forwarded to ITD’s Public Transit Manager.  In addition to review 
of the comments, the overall interest in transit led to an additional stakeholder involvement session at 
the 2018 Idaho Public Transportation Summit in Boise on August 21, 2018. 
 
Survey Related Comments – There were comments related to the survey itself which is useful to ITD 
and will be used to help shape future public outreach efforts. 
 
 
List of Attachments (Final Electronic Version Only) 

• Attachment 1: Survey Screens 
• Attachment 2: Comments 

 
 

 

264



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 
 

 

 

Appendix 4:  Transportation Performance 
Management Report 

  

265



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 
 

 

Transportation Performance Management 
TPM Overview 
The Federal Highway Administration’s (FHWA), during the creation of The Moving Ahead for Progress in 
the 21st Century Act (MAP-21) and Fixing America’s Surface Transportation Act (FAST Act), developed a 
performance measurement program called Transportation Performance Management (TPM).  Under 
TPM, the Idaho Transportation Department (ITD) is required to establish performance targets for four 
different performance management (PM) criteria.  Furthermore, along with setting performance targets, 
ITD is responsible for producing a Transportation Asset Management Plan (TAMP) and a Data Quality 
Management plan (DQM).  
ITD Target Setting Philosophy 
ITD holds itself accountable to the public by setting high but achievable internal goals and targets for the 
conditions of the state’s highways and bridges.  ITD has established and is implementing corresponding 
strategies to set targets that correspond with TPM’s condition rating criteria.  However, ITD’s targets 
and condition rating criteria are generally more stringent than the newly-defined TPM minimum 
requirements. Hence, ITD will continue to plan projects and rate quality based on the more stringent, 
internal performance targets.  Therefore ITD believes that following these strategies to meet our 
internal targets will in turn position us to well meet or exceed the TPM minimum requirements.  
While TPM specifies the four PM criteria, it does not dictate the PM targets that each state 
transportation department must meet.  Rather, TPM requires each state transportation department to 
establish its own state-specific targets for the four TPM criteria.  ITD has proposed targets that meet 
both the TPM minimum requirements and ITD’s internal goals and targets.    
Idaho State Metric and Target Table: 

PM PM Criterion ITD Target 

PM I Safety  

5-Year Average Number of Fatalities 188 
5- Year Fatality Rate Per 100 Million VMT 1.14 
5-Year Average Number of Serious Injuries 1,239 
5-Year Serious Injury Rate per 100 Million VMT 7.49 
5-Year Average Number of Non-Motorized Fatalities and Serious Injuries  120 

PM II Pavement* 

Interstate NHS Percent Good 50% 
Interstate NHS Percent Poor 4% 
Non-Interstate NHS Percent Good 50% 

Non-Interstate NHS Percent Poor 8% 

PM II Bridge* 
NHS Bridge Percent Good 19% 

NHS Bridge Percent Poor 3% 

PM III Congestion* 
Interstate NHS Level of Travel Time Reliability  (LOTTR) 90% 
Non-Interstate NHS Level of Travel Time Reliability (LOTTR) 75% 

Interstate Truck Travel Time Reliability (TTTR) 1.25 
*Values will be used for two and four year PM II and PM III targets 

 

266



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 
 

 

 

PM Network Information 
There are fundamental differences in the networks used for the different performance measures.  State 
transportation departments are required to set their performance targets based on these predefined 
networks regardless of which roads are actually managed by the department.  Furthermore, when ITD 
plans and set targets it does so for the entire state system and not a subset of routes.  The table below 
denotes which networks are to be used for the different performance measures. 

PM  Network Note 

PM I Complete State Wide Network  Entire network regardless of ownership  

PM II National Highway System (NHS) Current NHS  

PM III National Highway System (NHS) Two year old NHS provided by third party vendor 
 
Metropolitan Planning Organizations (MPO) and TPM 
TPM is structured so that MPOs can affect the target setting process for their geographic area.  For each 
performance measure, a state’s MPOs have the ability to either accept the state transportation 
department’s targets or to generate a different target.  A MPO’s PM target can be more or less stringent 
than that of the state.   
TPM Deadlines 

TPM Criteria State Deadline MPO Deadline 
PM I  August 31, 2017 February 27, 2018 
PM II  May 20, 2018 November 16, 2018 
PM III May 20, 2018 November 16, 2018 

Transportation Asset Management Plan* April 30, 2018 - 

Data Quality Management Plan* May 20, 2018 - 

*State transportation department specific item 
PM I Safety Synopsis 
The Idaho state targets, as referenced in the table above, were set in accordance with PM I rules by 
August 31, 2017 and were incorporated in the state’s Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP).  As 
outlined above, PM I differs from the other performance measures in that PM I focuses on a state’s 
entire network instead of explicitly on the National Highway System (NHS).  Moving forward targets for 
PM I will be established each year.  MPOs had a target setting deadline of February 27, 2018 and each 
MPO accepted the state’s PM I target as their own.   
PM II Pavement  Synopsis 
State transportation departments must submit targets for the overall percentage of lane miles in 
“Good” and “Poor” condition for two and four year cycles on the interstate National Highways System 
(NHS) and non-interstate NHS.  Condition and targets must be set using FHWA’s predetermined criteria.  
For the purpose of target setting, FHWA and ITD both measure the same data items (pavement 
smoothness, rutting and cracking).  However, when it comes to condition measurement, ITD has more 

267



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

 
 
 

 

stringent thresholds when evaluating these data items.  TPM guidelines require that a section of 
pavement be rated “Poor” if two out of three data items are rated as “Poor”.  Conversely, ITD’s internal 
measures rate a section of pavement as “Poor” if only one data item is rated as “Poor”.   Finally, when 
planning projects and measuring condition, ITD considers the entire state system as opposed to only the 
NHS and ITD has historically reported the percentage of “Good” and “Fair” pavements as opposed to the 
percentage of “Good” and “Poor” as outlined in TPM.  The difference in condition criteria thresholds, 
ITD’s more stringent rating criteria, and network differences cause ITD’s internal targets and condition 
ratings to be substantially different than ITD’s TPM targets.  
PM II Bridge Synopsis 
State transportation departments must submit targets for the overall percentage of bridge surface area 
(square feet) in ‘Good’ condition and ‘Poor’ condition on two and four year cycles for bridges that reside 
on the NHS.  Bridge rating will be done according to the National Bridge Inventory (NBI) rating 
methodology.  ITD currently employees the same bridge rating criteria as the NBI but structures the 
condition categories slightly differently.  Furthermore, when ITD plans projects and sets internal targets 
it does so for all bridges on the state system and not only bridges that reside on the NHS.  The difference 
in condition categories and networks used cause ITD’s internal targets and condition ratings to be 
substantially different than ITD’s TPM targets. 
PM III Congestion Synopsis 
State transportation departments must submit a target for Level of Travel Time Reliability (LOTTR) on 
the NHS and a Truck Travel Time Reliability (TTTR) target for the interstate for two and four year cycles.  
LOTTR is a measurement in the variability of car and truck travel times on the entirety of the NHS.  TTTR 
focuses on truck travel time variability on the interstate.  TPM regulations require that the reliability 
targets will be computed using a third party database called the National Performance Management 
Research Data Set (NPMRDS).   
Transportation Asset Management Plan (TAMP) 
Each state transportation department is required to develop a TAMP which is meant to be an all-
encompassing document pertaining to the departments operations.  This document, at a minimum, 
should describe the pavement and bridge condition on the NHS, asset management objectives, 
performance gap identification, lifecycle plans, financial plans, and investment strategies.   
 

 

268



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

Appendix 5:  Metropolitan Long-Range 
Transportation Plans 

268A



Idaho Transportation Department 
DRAFT Long-Range Transportation Plan 

To be included in final plan 

268B



Board Agenda Item ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13)

Page 1 of 1 

Meeting Date February 21, 2019 

Consent Item Information Item Amount of Presentation Time Needed  15 minutes 

Presenter's Name Presenter's Title Initials Reviewed By 

LSS Jeff Marker Public Transportation Manager jlm 
Preparer's Name Preparer's Title Initials 

Jeff Marker Public Transportation Manager jlm 

Subject 
129K Pound Trucking Requests - Districts 3 and 4 
Key Number District Route Number 

3/4 US-93 / SH-55 / SH-69 

Background Information 

Three requests for 129,000 pound trucking operations were submitted for routes in ITD Districts 3 and 4 
with the following specifics: 

Case #201801 SH-55, Milepost (MP) 36.10 to MP 42.88 
Case #201802 SH-69, MP 1.43 to MP 9.28 and MP 67.86 to MP 68.03 
Case #201803 US-93, MP 48.26 to MP 58.8 

Staff evaluations determined the bridges, pavements and requested highways’ geometry can support 
129,000 pound vehicle operations.  The Office of Highway Safety 5-year accident data evaluation 
showed no safety issues.   

One public hearing was noticed and conducted in Meridian, Idaho on December 5, 2018 for SH-55 and 
SH-69.  Member DeLorenzo presided and was prepared to receive written and verbal testimony.  Three 
public hearings were noticed and conducted on September 6, 2018, October 4, 2018, and November 20, 
2018, all in Twin Falls for US-93.  Member Kempton presided and received verbal and written testimony.  

Based on analysis by DMV, Bridge Section, the Office of Highway Safety, and the respective Districts the 
Acting Chief Engineer recommends approving these requests.   

Recommendations 
Approve the 129,000 Pound Trucking Subcommittee’s recommendation to approve the request for 
129,000 pound trucking operations on specified sections of US-93, SH-55 and SH-69. Resolution p.306.

Board Action 

 Approved  Deferred 

 Other 

269



270



271



129,000 Pound Evaluation of SH-55 
MP 36.10 to MP 42.88      

(Case #201801SH-55)

Executive Summary 
Handy Truck Line, Inc. submitted a request for 129,000 pound trucking approval on SH-55 between I-84 
at milepost (MP) 36.10 and SH-44 at MP 42.88.  The requestor will transport bulk sand from Emmett to 
facilities in Utah.  This section of SH-55 is designated a “red route” requiring all trucks to adhere to 6.5-
foot off-track and 115-foot overall vehicle length criteria.  ITD Bridge Section evaluated the five bridges 
on the requested section of highway and confirms all are capable of supporting 129,000 pound vehicles.  
District 3 evaluation describes the route as asphalt pavement in good to fair condition with no deficient 
sections.  The Office of Highway Safety analysis shows this section of SH-55 has eleven Non-Interstate 
High Accident Intersection Locations (HAL) in the top 100, including 10 of the top 25, and has six HAL 
clusters.  Division of Motor Vehicles, Bridge Asset Management, Office of Highway Safety and District 3 
all recommend proceeding with this request. 

Detailed Analysis 

Department of Motor Vehicles (DMV) Review 
All Idaho Transportation Department routes are currently categorized by their ability to handle various 
extra-length vehicle combinations and their off-tracking allowances. The categories used when 
considering allowing vehicle combinations to carry increased axle weights above 105,500 pounds and up 
to 129,000 pounds are:  

• Blue routes at 95 foot overall vehicle length and a 5.50-foot off-track
• Red routes at 115 foot overall vehicle length and a 6.50-foot off-track.

Off-tracking is the turning radius of the vehicle combination, which assists in keeping them safely in their 
lane of travel. Off-tracking occurs because the rear wheels of trailer trucks do not pivot, and therefore 
will not follow the same path as the front wheels. The greater the distance between the front wheels 
and the rear wheels of the vehicle, the greater the amount of off-track. The DMV confirms that the 
requested route falls under one of the above categories and meets all length and off-tracking 
requirements for that route. More specifically, the requested section of SH-55 from milepost 36.10 to 
42.88 is designated as a red route and as such all trucks must adhere to the 6.5-foot off-track and 115 
foot overall vehicle length criteria. 

Bridge Section Review 
Bridges on all publicly owned routes in Idaho, with the exception of those meeting specific criteria, are 
inspected every two years at a minimum to ensure they can safely accommodate vehicles. A variety of 
inspections may be performed including routine inspections, in-depth inspections, underwater 
inspections, and complex bridge inspections. All are done to track the current condition of a bridge and 
make repairs if needed. 

272



  Case: #201801SH55 
 

 

When determining the truck-carrying capacity of a bridge, consideration is given to the types of vehicles 
that routinely use the bridge and the condition of the bridge. Load limits may be placed on a bridge if, 
through engineering analysis, it is determined the bridge cannot carry legal truck loads. 
 
ITD Bridge Asset Management has reviewed the five bridges pertaining to this request and has 
determined they will safely support the 129,000-pound truck load, provided the truck’s axle 
configuration conforms to legal requirements. To review load rating data for each of the bridges, see the 
Bridge Data chart below. 
 
District 3 Evaluation 
This segment has been evaluated and the District recommends approval. 

District Three has evaluated the roadway characteristics, pavement condition, and traffic volumes on 
SH-55 between MP 36.10 – MP 42.88 in response to the request to make this segment a 129,000-pound 
trucking route. 
 
The basis of this request is to reduce the number of loads of bulk sand hauled from the Unimin plant in 
Emmett to the final destination in Utah. Details of the evaluation are provided below. 
 
Roadway Characteristics 
State Highway 55 is a 6.8 mile long urban principal arterial connecting SH-44 in Eagle, US-20/26 and 
Interstate 84.  
 
The roadway is four to six lanes with a center island, multiple left turn bays at intersections, multiple 
right turn bays and a few unprotected left / U-turn bays. This section of SH-55 consist of multiple use 
areas, several large shopping centers, several large residential developments, one middle school, one 
large hospital and a medical center. 
 
The route is straight; there are 16 traffic signals and one at grade rail road crossing. There are a couple 
of short grades, being four lanes there are no defined passing lanes. The grades are not of sufficient 
length or slope to warrant runaway truck escape ramps. The speed limit varies between 45 and 55 miles 
per hour. 
 
This section of SH-55 connects to I-84 at MP 36.10 (Interchange 46) allowing vehicles to travel east or 
west on I-84. 
 
The roadway geometry is outlined in the table below.  
  

273



  Case: #201801SH55 
 

 

 
Table 1. SH-55 Roadway Geometry 

MILEPOSTS THROUGH LANES LEFT TURN LANE  SHOULDER 
PARKING 

LANE 

36.10 – 36.84 
6 – 3 each direction Yes Yes No 

12’ 14’ - - 

36.84 – 38.60 
3 lanes NB – 2 lanes SB Yes Yes No 

12’ 14’  - 

38.60 – 42.88 
4 - 2 each direction Yes Yes No 

12’ 14’  - 

NB – Northbound 
SB – Southbound 
 
Pavement Condition 
The road is asphalt pavement and is in good to fair condition; it is not considered deficient in cracking, 
rutting or ride.   
 

Table 2. 2018 TAMS Visual Survey Data 

MILEPOSTS 
PAVEMENT 

TYPE 
DEFICIENT 
(YES/NO) 

CONDITION 
STATE 

CRACKING 
INDEX 

ROUGHNESS 
INDEX 

RUT 
AVERAGE 

(IN) 

36.10 – 36.84 Flexible No Good 5.0 3.33 .24 

36.84 – 37.94 Flexible No Fair 4.0 3.51 .26 

37.94 – 39.00 Flexible No Fair 4.5 3.84 .28 

39.00 – 41.40 Flexible No Fair 4.5 3.84 .28 

41.40 – 42.88 Flexible No Good 4.5 3.56 .24 

 
 
Traffic Volumes 
The speed limit of the highway varies between 45 and 55 mph, there are sixteen traffic signals in this 
section. The traffic is made up of light vehicle and local commercial traffic. 
 

Table 3. 2016 Traffic Volumes 

MILEPOSTS AADT CAADT % TRUCKS 

36.10 – 36.84 44059 1060 2.4 

36.84 – 37.94 49091 909 1.8 

37.94 – 41.40 44638 880 1.9 

41.40 – 42.88 39417 1628 4.1 

 
 
Truck Ramps  / Port of Entry (POE) 
No runaway truck ramps exist. There are no provisions for a roving POE station. 
 
 

274



  Case: #201801SH55 
 

 

 
Highway Safety Evaluation 
This section of SH-55 has eleven Non-Interstate HALs in the top 100, including 10 of the top 25, and has 
six HAL clusters.     
 
Analyses of the 5-year accident data (2012-2016) shows there were a total of 1,277 crashes involving 
2,873 units (2 fatalities and 797 injuries) on SH-55 between MP 36.1 to MP 42.879 (I-84 to SH-44) of 
which 15 crashes involved a tractor-trailer combination.  Of the crashes involving tractor trailers, the 
most prevalent contributing circumstances were following too close, inattention, improper lane change, 
and failure to yield. These crashes resulted in one fatality and four injuries.  The fatality resulted from 
inattention by the passenger vehicle.  
 

Table 4. Table of HAL Segments on SH-55 

Route Statewide Rank Milepost Range 
Length 
(miles) 

County 

SH 55 1 36.943 Intersection Ada 

SH 55 2.5 37.945 Intersection Ada 

SH 55 2.5 38.937 Intersection Ada 

SH 55 8 42.879 Intersection Ada 

SH 55 10 38.195 Intersection Ada 

SH 55 11 39.942 Intersection Ada 

SH 55 21 37.446 Intersection Ada 

SH 55 22 36.100 Intersection Ada 

SH 55 24 38.434 Intersection Ada 

SH 55 25 36.677 Intersection Ada 

SH 55 74 39.474 Intersection Ada 

SH 55 7 38.891-39.891 1.0 Ada 

SH 55 66 36.936-37.934 0.998 Ada 

SH 55 67.5 37.934-38.891 0.957 Ada 

SH 55 70 36.429-36.582 0.153 Ada 

SH 55 74 36.100-36.429 0.329 Ada 

SH 55 76 36.582-36.936 0.354 Ada 

 
 

275



  Case: #201801SH55 
 

 

Additional Data: 
 
Bridge Data: 

Route Number: SH-55     

Department: Bridge Asset Management   

Date:  7/23/2018     

R
o

u
te

 

From: I-84 Junction      
Milepost: 36.10      
To: Eagle, ID      
Milepost: 42.88        

       

Highway Milepost Bridge 
121 

Ratinga    

Number Marker Key (lbs)    

55 36.32 26280 302,000    

55 39.60 15171 434,000    

55 41.78 15175 184,000    

55 42.49 15177 528,000    

55 42.54 15180 210,000    

       
a: The bridge is adequate if it has a rating value greater than 121,000 pounds 

    or is designated as "OK EJ" (okay by engineering judgment).  
 

276



277



278



279



   

 

129,000 Pound Evaluation of SH-69 
MP 1.43 to MP 9.28 and 
MP 67.86 to MP 68.03                 

(Case #201802SH69) 

 

 

 
Executive Summary 
Idaho Materials and Construction submitted a request for 129,000 pound trucking approval on SH-69 
between I-84 and N. Orchard Avenue in Kuna.  While this is a single stretch of highway, it is defined 
using two distinct segment codes resulting in two sets of mileposts (MP).  The applicable MPs are from 
N. Orchard Avenue at MP 1.43 to MP 9.28 and MP 67.86 to MP 68.03 at I-84.  The requestor will 
transport asphalt and milling material associated with road construction.  This section of SH-69 is 
designated a “red route” requiring all trucks to adhere to 6.5-foot off-track and 115-foot overall vehicle 
length criteria.  ITD Bridge Section evaluated the eight bridges on the requested section of highway and 
confirms all are capable of supporting 129,000 pound vehicles.  District 3 evaluation describes the route 
as asphalt pavement in good to fair condition with no deficient sections.  The Office of Highway Safety 
analysis shows this section of SH-69 has four Non-Interstate High Accident Intersection Locations (HAL) 
and no HAL clusters.  Division of Motor Vehicles, Bridge Asset Management, Office of Highway Safety 
and District 3 all recommend proceeding with this request. 
 
Detailed Analysis 
 
Department of Motor Vehicles (DMV) Review 
All Idaho Transportation Department routes are currently categorized by their ability to handle various 
extra-length vehicle combinations and their off-tracking allowances. The categories used when 
considering allowing vehicle combinations to carry increased axle weights above 105,500 pounds and up 
to 129,000 pounds are:  
 
• Blue routes at 95 foot overall vehicle length and a 5.50-foot off-track  
• Red routes at 115 foot overall vehicle length and a 6.50-foot off-track.  
 
Off-tracking is the turning radius of the vehicle combination, which assists in keeping them safely in their 
lane of travel. Off-tracking occurs because the rear wheels of trailer trucks do not pivot, and therefore 
will not follow the same path as the front wheels. The greater the distance between the front wheels 
and the rear wheels of the vehicle, the greater the amount of off-track. The DMV confirms that the 
requested route falls under one of the above categories and meets all length and off-tracking 
requirements for that route. More specifically, the requested sections of SH-69 from MP 1.43 to MP 
9.28 and MP 67.86 to MP 68.03 are designated as a red route and as such all trucks must adhere to the 
6.5-foot off-track and 115 foot overall vehicle length criteria.  
 
Bridge Section Review 
Bridges on all publicly owned routes in Idaho, with the exception of those meeting specific criteria, are 
inspected every two years at a minimum to ensure they can safely accommodate vehicles. A variety of 
inspections may be performed including routine inspections, in-depth inspections, underwater 
inspections, and complex bridge inspections. All are done to track the current condition of a bridge and 
make repairs if needed. 
 

280



Case: #201802SH69 

When determining the truck-carrying capacity of a bridge, consideration is given to the types of vehicles 
that routinely use the bridge and the condition of the bridge. Load limits may be placed on a bridge if, 
through engineering analysis, it is determined the bridge cannot carry legal truck loads. 

ITD Bridge Asset Management has reviewed the eight bridges pertaining to this request and has 
determined they will safely support the 129,000-pound truck load, provided the truck’s axle 
configuration conforms to legal requirements. To review load rating data for each of the bridges, see the 
Bridge Data chart below. 

ITD District 3 Evaluation 
This segment has been evaluated and the District recommends approval. 
District Three has evaluated the roadway characteristics, pavement condition, and traffic volumes on 
SH-69 between MP 1.43 – MP 68.03 in response to the request to make this segment a 129,000-pound 
trucking route to service Idaho Materials & Construction. 

The basis of this request is to reduce the number of loads hauled during the duration a construction 
project between August and September of 2018.  Details of the evaluation are provided below. 

Roadway Characteristics 
State Highway 69 is an 8 mile long rural arterial connecting the City of Kuna with the City of Meridian 
and Interstate 84. The requested section covers the entirety of SH-69 which is divided into two separate 
segment codes with noncontiguous mile posting. 

The roadway is four lanes with a center turn bay that runs primarily through agricultural land. There are 
many housing developments built along the local roads intersecting SH-69. There are seven main 
intersections, six of which are signalized.  

The road is primarily straight with one gradual corner posted with an advisory speed of 40 MPH. There 
are several short grades with no defined passing lanes due to the highway being four lanes wide.  The 
grades are not of sufficient length or slope to warrant runaway truck escape ramps.  

The roadway geometry is outlined in the table below. 

281



  Case: #201802SH69 
 

 

 
Table 1. SH-69 Roadway Geometry 

MILEPOSTS THROUGH LANES 
TWO-WAY LEFT TURN 

LANE (TWLTL) 
SHOULDER 

PARKING 
LANE 

1.432 – 7.210 
4 – 2 each direction Yes Yes No 

12’ 14’ 10’ - 

7.210 – 9.278 
4 – 2 each direction Yes Yes No 

12’ 14’ 8’ - 

67.860 – 68.029 
4 - 2 each direction yes Yes No 

12’ 14’ 2’ - 3’ - 

 
 
Pavement Condition 
The road is asphalt pavement and is in good to fair condition; it is not considered deficient in cracking, 
rutting or ride.  Milepost 67.860 to 68.029 encompasses the new Interchange 44 on I-84 at Meridian.  
 

Table 2. 2018 TAMS Visual Survey Data 

MILEPOSTS 
PAVEMENT 

TYPE 
DEFICIENT 
(YES/NO) 

CONDITION 
STATE 

CRACKING 
INDEX 

ROUGHNESS 
INDEX 

RUT 
AVERAGE 

(IN) 

1.432 – 7.210 Flexible No Good 3.5 3.37 .22 

7.210 – 9.278 Flexible No Fair 3.8 3.62 .39 

67.860 – 68.029 Flexible No Good 4.7 2.50 .08 

 
 
Traffic Volumes 
The speed limit of the highway varies between 35 and 55 mph with six stop lights on this segment. The 
traffic is made up of light vehicle and local commercial traffic. 
 

Table 3. 2016 Traffic Volumes 

MILEPOSTS AADT CAADT % TRUCKS 

1.432 – 7.210 14283 476 3.3 

7.210 – 9.278 24581 693 2.8 

67.860 – 68.029 37000 650 1.7 

 
 
Truck Ramps 
No runaway truck ramps exist.  
 
Port of Entry (POE) 
There are no provisions for a roving P.O.E station. 
 
 
 

282



  Case: #201802SH69 
 

 

 
Highway Safety Evaluation 
This section of SH-69 has four HALs and has no HAL clusters.     
 
Analyses of the 5-year accident data (2012-2016) shows there were a total of 373 crashes involving 766 
units (2 fatalities and 243 injuries) on SH-69 between MP 1.43 to MP 68.034 (N. Orchard Road to I-84) of 
which nine crashes involved a tractor-trailer combination.  Of the crashes involving tractor trailers, the 
contributing circumstances included vehicle defect and failure to maintain lane. The crashes involving 
tractor-trailers resulted in one injury and no fatalities.  Implementation of 129,000 pound trucking is 
projected to reduce truck traffic on this route. 
 

Table 4. Table of HAL Segments – SH-69 

Route 
Statewide 

Rank 
Milepost Range 

Length 
(miles) 

County 

SH 69 9 9.146 Intersection Ada 

SH 69 44 8.141 Intersection Ada 

SH 69 70.5 3.116 Intersection Ada 

SH 69 89 6.131 Intersection Ada 

 

  

283



Case: #201802SH69 

Additional Data: 

Bridge Data: 

Route Number: SH 69 

Department: Bridge Asset Management 

Date: 7/23/2018 

R
o

u
te

 

From: Kuna, ID 

Milepost: 1.43 

To: I-84 Junction

Milepost: 68.03 

Highway Milepost Bridge 
121 

Ratinga 

Number Marker Key (lbs) 

69 2.26 15120 384,000 

69 3.23 15125 244,000 

69 4.57 15130 232,000 

69 6.27 15135 263,800 

69 8.07 15140 422,000 

69 8.65 15145 334,000 

69 9.24 15150 291,800 

69 67.94 15156 212,000 

a: The bridge is adequate if it has a rating value greater than 121,000 pounds 

    or is designated as "OK EJ" (okay by engineering judgment). 

284



285



286



129,000 Pound Evaluation of US-93 
M.P. 48.26 to M.P 58.8

(Case #201803US93)

Executive Summary 
Glanbia Nutritionals submitted a request for 129,000 pound trucking approval on US-93 between mile post 
(MP) 48.26 (Washington Street in Twin Falls) and MP 58.8 (intersection with SH-25) for transportation of 
liquid whey product from their Twin Falls plant to their Richfield plant.  The request projects up to 4,015 
trips annually which is reduction of approximately 1,100 loads annually from current operations.  This 
section of US-93 is coded a “Red Route,” where vehicles with 115-foot overall length and 6.5-foot off-track 
are authorized.   ITD Bridge Section confirms the three bridges on the route will safely support 129,000 
pound vehicles.  District 4 evaluation shows the road condition to be rated “Good” to “Poor” with the 
“Poor” section (MP 49.45 to MP 50.14) rated as deficient.  The deficient section of highway is programed 
for a restoration project in FY 2021. The Office of Highway Safety analysis shows this section of US-93 has 
six Non-Interstate High Accident Intersection Locations (HAL) and has four HAL Clusters with details 
provided below.   There is a single local road, Washington Street, under request with the City of Twin Falls.  
The Division of Motor Vehicles, the Office of Highway Safety, Bridge Asset Management and District 4 all 
recommend proceeding with this request. 

Detailed Analysis 

Division of Motor Vehicles (DMV) Review 
All Idaho Transportation Department routes are currently categorized by their ability to handle various 
extra-length vehicle combinations and their off-tracking allowances. The categories used when considering 
allowing vehicle combinations to carry increased axle weights above 105,500 pounds and up to 129,000 
pounds are:  

• Blue routes at 95-foot overall vehicle length and a 5.50-foot off-track
• Red routes at 115-foot overall vehicle length and a 6.50-foot off-track.

Off-tracking is the turning radius of the vehicle combination, which assists in keeping them safely in their 
lane of travel. Off-tracking occurs because the rear wheels of trailer trucks do not pivot, and therefore will 
not follow the same path as the front wheels. The greater the distance between the front wheels and the 
rear wheels of the vehicle, the greater the amount of off-track. The DMV confirms that the requested 
routes falls under one of the above categories and meets all length and off-tracking requirements for that 
route. More specifically, the requested section of US-93 from MP 48.26 to 58.8 is designated as a red 
route and as such all trucks must adhere to the 6.5-foot off-track and 115-foot overall vehicle length 
criteria.   

Bridge Review 
Bridges on all publicly owned routes in Idaho, with the exception of those meeting specific criteria, are 
inspected every two years at a minimum to ensure they can safely accommodate vehicles.  A variety of 
inspections may be performed including routine inspections, in-depth inspections, underwater 
inspections, and complex bridge inspections.  All are done to track the current condition of a bridge and 
make repairs if needed. 

287



Case #201803US93 

When determining the truck-carrying capacity of a bridge, consideration is given to the types of vehicles 
that routinely use the bridge and the condition of the bridge.  Load limits may be placed on a bridge if, 
through engineering analysis, it is determined the bridge cannot carry legal truck loads. 

ITD Bridge Asset Management has reviewed the three bridges pertaining to this request and has 
determined they will safely support the 129,000-pound truck load, provided the truck’s axle 
configuration conforms to legal requirements.  To review load rating data for each of the bridges, see the 
Bridge Data chart below. 

ITD District 4 Evaluation 
This segment has been evaluated and the District recommends proceeding. 
District 4 has evaluated the roadway characteristics, pavement condition, and traffic volumes on US-93 
between MP 48.26 – MP 58.8 in response to the request to make this segment a 129,000-pound trucking 
route.  The District found no concerns with this action and recommends proceeding.  Details of the 
evaluation are provided below. 

Roadway Characteristics 
This section of road is a Principal Arterial in urban sections of northern Twin Falls and within the Twin Falls 
City limits from MP 48.26 to MP 50.2 and the rural sections through central Jerome County from MP 50.2 to 
MP 58.8.  It intersects with US-93B at MP 49.45, I-84 at MP 53.1 and SH-25 at MP 58.7. 

There are no dedicated passing or climbing lanes.   The roadway geometry is outlined in the table below. 

Table 1. US-93 Roadway Geometry 

MILEPOSTS THROUGH LANES 
TWO-WAY LEFT TURN 

LANE (TWLTL) 
SHOULDER 

PARKING 
LANE 

48.26 – 49.24 
6 – 3 each direction divided No* Yes No 

12’ - 8’ 

49.45 – 49.89 
5 – 2 NBL, 3 SBL Yes Yes No 

12’ - 8’ 

49.89 – 50.14 
4 – 2 each direction No* Yes No 

12’ - 8’ - 

50.14 – 50.74 
4 – 2 each direction bridge No No No 

12’ Barrier Median - 

50.74 – 52.71 
4 – 2 each direction divided No* Yes No 

12’ - 8’ - 

52.71 – 53.15 
4 – 2 each direction No* Yes No 

12’ - 8’ - 

53.15 – 55.20 
4 – 2 each direction divided No* Yes No 

12’ - 8’ - 

55.20 – 58.80 
2 – 1 each direction No Yes No 

12’ 4’ - 5’ 

* Center left turn bays located at local road intersections - 14’ wide.
Note:  A gap in mileposts exits between MP 49.24 and MP 49.45 due to the intersection of Pole Line Road
and Blue Lakes Boulevard.

288



Case #201803US93 

Pavement Condition 
The road is concrete pavement from MP 48.26 to MP 49.24 and MP 52.71 to MP 53.15. Concrete pavement 
is in “Fair” condition and is not deficient in cracking, rutting, or ride. The road is asphalt from and MP 49.45 
to MP 50.14 and is in “Poor” condition with a restoration project programed for FY 2021. The asphalt 
pavement from MP 50.74 to 58.80, the asphalt pavement from MP 49.24 to 52.71 and the asphalt 
pavement from MP 53.15 to 58.80 are in “Good” condition and are not considered deficient in cracking, 
rutting or ride.  

Table 2. Pavement Condition 

MILEPOSTS 
PAVEMENT 

TYPE 
DEFICIENT 
(YES/NO) 

CONDITION 
STATE 

CRACKING ROUGHNESS RUTING 

48.26 – 49.24 Rigid No Fair Good Fair Good 

49.45 – 49.89 Flexible Yes Poor Good Very Poor Fair 

49.89 – 50.14 Flexible Yes Poor Good Very Poor Fair 

50.74 – 52.71 Flexible No Good Good Good Good 

52.71 – 53.15 Rigid No Fair Good Fair Good 

53.15 – 55.20 Flexible No Good Good Good Good 

55.20 – 58.80 Flexible No Good Good Good Good 

Traffic Volumes 
The speed limit of the highway varies between 35 and 60 mph. Seven stop lights are in this segment, four 
located within the City of Twin Falls, two at the I-84 Interchange and one 500 South MP 53.68. 

Table 3. 2016 Traffic Volumes 

MILEPOSTS AADT CAADT % TRUCKS 

48.26-49.24 13,000 400 3 

49.45-49.89 31,000 2,400 8 

49.89-50.14 31,000 2,400 8 

50.74-52.71 27,500 2,800 10 

52.71-53.15 18,500 2,300 12 

53.15-55.20 14,000 2,000 14 

55.20-58.80 8,500 900 11 

Truck Ramps 
No runaway truck ramps exist due to the flat nature of the highway. 

Port of Entry (POE) 
No POEs are located on this section of highway. 

Highway Safety Evaluation 
This US-93 segment has six Non-Interstate High Accident Intersection Locations (HALs) in the top 200 
statewide rakings and has four HAL Clusters in the top 200.  These locations are shown in Table 4 with their 
statewide ranking.   

289



   

Case #201803US93 

Analyses of the 5-year accident data (2012-2016) shows there were a total of 334 crashes involving 712 
units (1 fatality and 282 injuries) on US-93 between MP 48.258 and MP 58.8 of which, 20 crashes involved 
tractor-trailer combinations.  Of the crashes involving tractor trailers, the most prevalent contributing 
circumstances were failure to yield and following too close.  Eight injuries and no fatalities resulted from 
the crashes with tractor trailers.  Implementation of 129,000 pound trucking is projected to reduce truck 
traffic on this route. 
 

Table 4. HAL Segments – US-93 

Route Statewide Rank Milepost Range Length (miles) County 

US 93 52 54.716 Intersection Jerome 

US 93 93 57.727 Intersection Jerome 

US 93 109 48.998 Intersection Twin Falls 

US 93 131 50.742 Intersection Jerome 

US 93 139 56.727 Intersection Jerome 

US 93 160 48.258 Intersection Twin Falls 

US 93 71 48.838-48.930 0.092 Twin Falls 

US 93 79.5 47.961-48.461 0.5 Twin Falls 

US 93 127 48.469-48.670 0.201 Twin Falls 

US 93 194.5 48.258-49.252 0.994 Twin Falls 

 

  

290



Case #201803US93 

Additional Data: 

Bridge Data: 

Route Number: US 93 

Department: Bridge Asset Management 

Date: 10/3/2018 

R
o

u
te

 

From: Intersection with Washington Street 

Milepost: 48.26 

To: SH-25 

Milepost: 58.80 

Highway Milepost Bridge 
121 

Ratinga 

Number Marker Key (lbs) 

93 48.66 19393 364,000 

93 50.04 17580 200,000 

93 56.51 17595 160,000 

a: The bridge is adequate if it has a rating value greater than 121,000 pounds 

    or is designated as "OK EJ" (okay by engineering judgment). 

291



U.S. 93 Written Comments 

To bring any semi-trucks of any load size through the busiest 
thoroughfares in Twin Falls is to put it bluntly insane. I am talking 
about U.S. 93, Blue Lakes Blvd (which has the highest accident rate 
in the city), Addison Ave., which is a challenge on a good day, and 
not only Shoshone St. but ALL the streets downtown which has 
impacted the quality of the "urban experience" downtown Twin Falls 
is trying to rejuvenate.  
 
My own personal experiences have occurred on Pole Line, Addison, 
Blue Lakes, and downtown. If I were not an extremely defensive 
driver a semi truck would have taken me out twice and I have 
only lived here a short time and avoid driving despite the fact I was 
born and raised here. Semis are notorious for unsafe lane changes, 
unsafe turns, jack knives, the noise downtown is intolerable, and the 
traffic backup at U.S. 93 and Pole Line due to semis is unacceptable. 
   
The obvious solution is to route ALL the semi-trucks South to a 
route connecting to the Hansen Bridge or build an additional bridge 
and route the trucks to that bridge, avoiding the metropolitan area of 
Twin Falls. 
 
I respectfully request that you consider alternatives. 
 
Gail Luedtke 
Resident 

---- 

U.S. 93 and Idaho 75 Written Comments 

  
The following is mainly concerning ITD’s proposal to increase truck 
weight limits on U.S. 93 & SH 75 from the Jerome jct. to Hailey in 
order to decrease truck traffic in this area. The trucking industry has 
been pitching this concept from the time I started working for the 
department in 1962 and as you can see the number of trucks has only 

292



increased and have gotten much larger in those 40+ years. So the idea 
that the number of trucks will decrease is ludicrous. Also, the bigger 
the trucks, the slower they are, especially in hilly terrain and because 
of their increased length, people will be less likely to want to pass, 
thus creating more backups on the roadways and there are certainly 
enough of those right now! 

I know the trucking industry thinks they pay for the increased 
damage to our roads but if trucks were eliminated, our roads would 
last, at least 5 times longer. I know that our economy is dependent on 
trucks and is driving this kind of thinking, but ITD needs to be 
building or rebuilding the roadways to handle this kind of traffic 
before allowing heavier vehicles to destroy our roads. 

I just drove SH 75 from the Richfield canal to Mammoth cave exit 
two days ago and was very alarmed at the number of areas about 20’ 
x 40’ that were showing signs of distress. I would guess that there 
were at least 50 to 100 spots. If I remember correctly, when that 
stretch of road was constructed in 1958(+) it was a BST and received 
only seal coats until it was overlaid about 10 years ago and it now 
looks like a 30 year old road that has had no maintenance. I’m sure 
that the gravel trucks that run this stretch almost every day have had 
a devastating effect on it! I would suggest that you check to see if the 
base is able to withstand this kind of weight increase. 

I worked for ITD for 35+ years and we took great pride in our 
construction and maintenance of the highways but since a certain 
governor pushed for privatization of roadway services and our greedy 
legislature put highway funds into the general fund, our highways 
have gone downhill. Roadway and sign maintenance and new 
construction is almost nonexistent, in my opinion. 

Speaking of new construction, the project from Flying J north on US 
93 is a disgrace! The traffic control was as bad as anything I have ever 
seen, especially in the dark! (and I worked in traffic for 20 years). The 
pavement transition from old to new is ridiculous! All of their good 

293



construction work is discarded when the finished surface is as rough 
as a 15 year old road. 

On a brighter note, the new overlay between Gooding and Shoshone 
was terrific! Looking forward to the other half being completed! 

Thanks for all your concern and hard work! 

Larry Sturgeon 
Resident 
 
---- 
 
(1) With increased hwy speeds and the (2) discontinuance of tail 
gating laws and the (3) monstrous number of multiple trucks hitting 
each other and the (4) rather poor ability of truckers to get enough 
sleep and (5) phony their logs .. I think it would be retarded to 
increase the weight these trucks are pulling down a public hwy. 
Know what I mean Vern? 
 
Robert Berentz 
Resident 
 
---- 
 
Thank you for moving forward with the process on the mentioned 
routes. We hope that they will be approved. We have learned when 
people oppose these things it is due to them not having the facts. The 
studies have been extensive and done over many years to determine if 
there are negative impacts on the roads due to the increased weight 
based on the number of axles and their spacing. These studies have 
produced the evidence needed to prove the impact is not negative. So 
logically thinking there should be no reason why they should not be 
approved. We wish you the best in getting these routes approved and 
thank you for all the work you do in helping the trucking industry in 
Idaho be more efficient  and safe. The positive impact it has on 
agriculture and other industries to move their products is significant. 

294



Brian Capps 
Capps Inc. 
 
---- 
 
Re: 129,000 lbs on sections of Id 75 and U.S. 93 and the U.S. 93 
Business, accessing Airport Way in Hailey. 
 
I am definitely against granting additional weight to 129,000 lbs. to 
trucks on SH 75 between Shoshone and Airport Way in Hailey. 
(pictured on map Dist. 4, Mar. 19, 2011) 
 
Route 75 from Shoshone to Timmerman Hill in some areas can be 
difficult but especially from Timmerman North. Winds coming from 
the West (& South) has increased exponentially in the last several 
years and is not likely to diminish since the wind parallels the 
mountains just to the N. of Route 20. 
 
Drainage of the Wood River collects at the N. edge of Timmerman, 
allowing more moisture in the Wood River Valley, resulting in more 
fog and sometimes a glaze of ice on Rt. 20 and on Rt. 75 North & 
South. 
 
Tourists are often more interested in our mountains, large homes, 
variety of scenery and do not anticipate, on our mostly 2-lane roads, 
few pull-offs for them or large transport trucks in Spring, Summer, 
Fall or Winter. 
 
The U.S. 93 Business Loop at Airport Way, Hailey is very congested 
with access to Wood River High School, a number of businesses, the 
main street thru Hailey going N. to Ketchum and beyond and access 
to the airport and a variety of businesses plus an outlyer of St. Luke’s 
Medical Hospital. 
 
Susan Matthes 
Residen 

295



U.S. 93 Verbal Comments 
 

My name is Kevin Iverson. I'm vice president and general 
manager for Transystems. I'm here today to speak for the application 
that Glanbia has submitted in favor of it.   

Several different reasons. It's good for their business. 
Makes them more viable in the company -- or in the country and also 
it's a safer way to get their milk to their processing plant by reducing 
probably I would guess about a fourth of the trucks off the road.   

So -- and I understand they are working with the city to 
change the route a little bit and I'm also in favor of that.   

 
Kevin Iverson 
Vice President, General Manager for Transystems 
 
---- 
 

My name is David Scantlin. I represent Amalgamated 
Sugar. I do understand that there's a new proposal that may be 
offered but I wanted to speak in support of the proposal of allowing 
129's for a number of reasons.   
 First of all, through -- 129's would allow for less trucks or 
would allow less trucks on the routes that they're taking. Less trucks 
is a little more safe. Less traffic, less congestion.   

I personally would not see any more problems from a 129 
versus a 105. The difference I think as far as traffic for a truck size, I 
don't believe that there's a difference substantially that would create a 
problem as far as turning radius or that sort of thing that they may be 
dealing with through Blue Lakes.   
 So I believe if 105s are running through there, there is 
absolutely no reasons why a 129 could not traverse the roads through 
the town. 
 

David Scantlin 
Amalgamated Sugar 
 

296



---- 
 

My name is Drew Adams. I work for Glanbia Nutritionals.  
I'm a transportation operations manager and I'm here today to make 
formal comment on the current application as well as the -- the other 
application regarding U.S. 93 through Twin Falls -- or from Highway 
25 to the city of Twin Falls.   

The current application states that the 129 route would be 
designated from Five Points in Twin Falls up to the corner of Blue 
Lakes and Pole Line in addition to a stretch of 93 up to Highway 25.  
We expect that the city will ask to have that section of road denied 
129 with the alternative being approving the 129 stretch of Highway 
93 from Blue Lakes and Pole Line to Washington Street and Pole 
Line.   

The City would then designate a 129 route from the corner 
of Washington and Pole Line, down South Washington Street to 
Sixth Avenue in Twin Falls until it connects back with Highway 74, 
also known as Shoshone Street, on the south end of town. And we 
expect that if and when the current application gets denied that we 
will move forward with the alternative proposed application that both 
Glanbia Nutritionals and the City of Twin Falls approve of. 
 
Drew Adams 
Glanbia Nutritionals 
 
---- 
 

I'm Jackie Fields. I'm the city engineer for the City of Twin 
Falls. The City of Twin Falls values its industries, its businesses and 
its citizens and all of these people, all these entities are important to 
the City. Glanbia is a responsible and engaged member of our 
community. They're a significant employer with a broad range of 
environmental opportunities. The city values Glanbia's contribution 
to the community and wants Glanbia to continue to grow and 
prosper. 

297



Glanbia is seeking efficient routes for transit of all its raw 
materials and products and wishes to do so in a collaborative manner.  
The City supports the need of businesses and industries to have 
freight services for deliveries and distribution of products and will do 
its best to collaborate in a manner that serves the entire community. 

The City's concerned about the short-term reliability of 
Shoshone Street as a route for truck traffic and would prefer freight 
that is passing through to utilize a different route. 

Further, the City's interested in continuing and developing the 
downtown area as a gathering place for community events with a 
heavy pedestrian movement. Glanbia's transportation operation 
manager has been working with the City to identify a suitable 
alternative to a route that passes directly through the city's downtown 
core.   

The City's concern with the proposed route designation is 
confined to the portion of the route that's within the city limits, 
specifically the route that's south of the Perrine Bridge. U.S. 30, Blue 
Lakes Boulevard North from Pole Line to Addison Avenue is a very 
busy commercial corridor. The congestion's increasing and accidents 
are increasing.  The City believes that people are becoming frustrated 
and exercising poor judgment and this exacerbates our accident 
situations.   

We recognize that traffic signal actuation by emergency services 
providers isn't helping anything. The slow acceleration of freight 
truck traffic also doesn't help. The city council would like to 
minimize the freight component of traffic through the corridor. We 
understand that deliveries are still necessary and an important 
component for a healthy commercial district.   

Minimizing truck traffic on Blue Lakes Boulevard North is an 
important and longstanding community value as evidenced by the 
passage of a resolution and ordinance in 1964 which established truck 
routes on city streets -- the city streets of Washington, Sixth and 
Minidoka.   

The City would like freight traffic to utilize Highway 93 from 
the Perrine Bridge to the intersection of -- the City would like 
129,000-pound freight traffic to utilize U.S. 30 from the Perrine 

298



Bridge to the intersection of Washington Street North via Pole Line 
Road and diverge from there to the city street of Washington Street 
North until the freight can return to the state highway system at U.S. 
30 Addison Avenue or at Highway 74, Shoshone Street, which is also 
Washington Street South.   

The City’s committed to working with Glanbia to use 
Washington Street North from its intersection of Pole Line to 
Addison Avenue and request that ITD does not approve the portion 
of the route of U.S. 30 Blue Lakes Boulevard North from Pole Line 
to Addison Avenue.   
         
      Question from Jim Kempton: Jackie, it’s my understanding that 
you’re working with Glanbia now and that there's an application on 
the new routing that is currently with the ITD chief engineer. And 
that you are in opposition to the routing that’s being considered 
today as far as the notice for the hearing and that is the routing up 
and down Blue Lakes Boulevard. Is that correct?   
       Jackie Fields: That's accurate. From Blue Lakes Boulevard at 
Pole Line Road down to Addison Avenue. We completely recognize 
that Blue Lakes North from Pole Line Road to the Perrine Bridge is a 
necessary component of this freight traffic.   
       So furthermore, the City understands that to fulfill its desire to 
have Glanbia trucks utilize Washington Street North from Pole Line 
Road to Addison Avenue that we will need to engage the State 
formally by designating that as a 129,000-pound route and 
additionally addressing the permitting procedure. 
 
Jackie Fields 
City Engineer for the City of Twin Falls 
 
---- 
 
      My name is Pete Johnston. I live at 312 Washington Street South 
in Twin Falls, Idaho. And in response to the routing of big trucks for 
Glanbia on Blue Lakes Boulevard North to their plant, I feel that 
that's a pretty good-sized truck to be going down Blue Lakes and the 

299



roads are deteriorating fast enough without the increase in the weight 
limits on those trucks. 
      And I personally feel that they could go around on Pole Line and 
go down Pole Line to Washington Street North and then down 
Washington to -- it would be best if they went to Sixth Avenue West 
or Minidoka Avenue. But I just feel personally that those big trucks 
don't have any business on Blue Lakes Boulevard North. 
      I would personally also like to see all truck traffic eliminated on 
Blue Lakes North. I know that would be real hard to do but I feel 
that the less big truck traffic or trucks, 18-wheelers on Blue Lakes 
North would really help eliminate that traffic congestion on Blue 
Lakes and also on Shoshone Street. 

Pete Johnston 
Resident 

---- 

Idaho 55 Written Comments 

My organization, Walk & Ride Eagle, Inc., represents pedestrians and 
bicyclists in Eagle, Idaho. We have serious concerns related to this 
application for a 22.3% increase in permitted large truck weights 
traveling in Highway 55 between I84 and Highway 44. This section 
of the route under consideration is regularly used by Eagle residents, 
on foot and by bicycle, to access city trails, commercial developments 
and the downtown city core. The evaluation performed by District 3 
is wholly inadequate as it pertains to pedestrian and bicyclist safety 
along the route. In fact, we find no mention of pedestrian or bicyclist 
safety in this evaluation. We believe that to be a serious omission. 
The NHTSA found in their 1997 report that vehicle weight matters, 
both in the case of vehicle crashes and accidents involving 
pedestrians and bicyclists. The report states: “Continued growth in 
the number and weight of light trucks, unless offset by safety 
improvements, is likely to increase the hazard in collisions between 
the trucks and smaller road users (including bicyclists and 

300



pedestrians). A reduction in truck weights is likely to generate 
significant benefits for pedestrians and car occupants that might 
exceed the added risk for the occupants of the trucks.” While these 
NHTSA findings were from an investigation into the safety impacts 
of lighter weight passenger vehicles, simple physics will show that 
they apply equally (but inversely) to increasing vehicle weight in large 
trucks as it pertains to impacts with much lighter pedestrians and 
bicyclists. Therefore, an increase in truck weights is likely to generate 
significant adverse impacts to pedestrian and bicyclist safety. A study 
conducted by the engineering firm JUB in 2015 found that pedestrian 
and bicyclist safety to be a major concern on the road segment under 
consideration between Chinden and Highway 44. Increasing 
permitted vehicle weights on this section will further exacerbate these 
concerns. The City of Eagle has made application for Federal 
Highway funds to make safety improvements to this section of 
highway, including adding a pedestrian/bicycle overpass over the 
north channel of the Boise River and a barrier-enhanced dedicated 
bicycle lane along this section of the highway. COMPASS has 
prioritized funds for these improvements in their 5-year budget plan. 
While the applicant claims that the number of trips would decrease 
by “almost one third”, it would actually only decrease them by less 
the one quarter (23%). This decrease in number of trips would not 
sufficiently offset the increased risk to pedestrians and bicyclists. We 
ask that IDT deny this request until pedestrian and bicyclist safety 
improvements can be made to the section of Highway 55 between 
Chinden and Highway 44 that will mitigate the addition risks that 
increasing permitted vehicle weights will impose on pedestrians and 
bicyclists. 
 
Rick Tholen 
Resident 
 

---- 
 
 
 

301



Idaho 69 Written Comments 
 
I am opposed to the proposal of 129k trucks being allowed on ID69 
from Kuna to I84. These extremely heavy trucks pose a safety risk 
due to the inability to stop in any kind of reasonable distance. School 
bus routes run along ID69 and due to the increase in population, the 
traffic has increased on ID69. These overweight trucks cause 
premature wear and tear on the asphalt road surface much faster than 
trucks of lesser weight due to "tire scrub" on the extra axles where 
the tires drag instead of turn. I also believe excess fuel would be 
wasted due to stoplights every mile on ID69. There are a lot of valid 
concerns regarding this proposal and I hope it is rejected.  

Jess Neal 
Resident 
 

---- 
 

Idaho 55 and Idaho 69 Written Comments 
 

We are writing to express our strong opposition to the proposed 
129,000 truck routes on Idaho 55 and Idaho 69. 
Both of these roadways are already overburdened with heavily loaded 
double and triple-trailer trucks. Safety for passenger car occupants is 
my primary concern; the added weight, increased stopping distance 
and reduced maneuverability gives me great concern on these two 
accident prone highways and these excessive weight vehicles will 
further damage our deteriorating roads. 
Please reject the application(s) for an unnecessary burden on our 
already overloaded in-town highways. 
 
John P. Haynes 
Janice F. Gardam 
Residents 
 

302



 

Page 1 of 3 

Idaho Transportation Board 
 

129,000 Pound Truck Route Subcommittee 
 

January 16, 2019 
 
 

Idaho Transportation Board (ITB) 129,000 Pound Truck Route Subcommittee Chairman 
Jim Kempton called the meeting to order at 3:05 PM on Wednesday, January 16, 2019 at the 
Idaho Transportation Department in Boise, Idaho. ITB Members Dwight Horsch and Julie 
DeLorenzo were present.  

 
Principal Subcommittee staff members and advisors present included Deputy Attorney 

General Larry Allen, Public Transportation Manager (PTM) Jeff Marker (former Freight 
Program Manager), Public Involvement Coordinator (PIC) Adam Rush, Division of Engineering 
Services Administrator Blake Rindlisbacher (Acting Chief Engineer), Chief Operations Officer 
Travis McGrath, Bridge Asset Management Engineer Dan Gorley, Executive Assistant to the 
Board Sue S. Higgins, District 4 Engineer Devin Rigby, District 3 Engineer Amy Revis, Local 
Highway Technical Assistance Council Safety Manager Kevin Kuther, and Idaho State Police 
Lieutenant Scott Hanson. 
 
 ITB Chairman Jerry Whitehead was also present. The meeting was available to watch via 
video conference from the District 4 Office in Shoshone. 
 
 Chairman Kempton said that because the Subcommittee is comprised of three members, 
motions will not require a second.  
 
 

Case #201803: US-93, Milepost (MP) 48.26 to 58.8. PTM Marker presented the Chief 
Engineer’s analysis on behalf of Acting Chief Engineer Blake Rindlisbacher. The Division of 
Motor Vehicles (DMV) confirmed that this section of US-93 falls under the red route category 
allowing 115-foot overall vehicle length and a 6.5-foot off-track. The bridge analysis determined 
that the three bridges on the route will safely support vehicle combinations up to 129,000 
pounds, assuming the axle configuration conforms to the legal requirements. The pavement is 
mostly in good to poor condition with an approximate 0.7 mile section rated as deficient. The 
deficient section of highway is programmed for a restoration project in FY21. There are no 
safety concerns and the Chief Engineer’s analysis recommends approving the route. He added 
that there is a local road, Washington Street, under request with the City of Twin Falls as part of 
this application. 
 
 Chairman Kempton mentioned that he was the hearing officer and very few people 
attended. The public hearing was held a couple of times because staff did not believe adequate 
notice was given to the affected local public agencies, there was a mix-up on a segment of the 
route requested, and then the applicant modified the route request. 
 
 Member Horsch made a motion to recommend that the Transportation Board approve the 
129,000 pound truck route request for US-93, milepost 48.26 to 58.8. The motion passed 
unopposed. 

303



 

Page 2 of 3 

 Case #201801: SH-55, MP 36.1 to 42.88. PTM Marker said the DMV confirmed that this 
section of SH-55, from I-84 to SH-44, falls under the red route category allowing 115-foot 
overall vehicle length and a 6.5-foot off-track. The bridge analysis determined that the five 
bridges on the route will safely support vehicle combinations up to 129,000 pounds, assuming 
the axle configuration conforms to the legal requirements. The pavement is in good to fair 
condition with no deficient sections. There are no safety concerns and the Chief Engineer’s 
analysis recommends approving the route. 
 

PIC Rush said one comment was received on this route request with safety concerns for 
pedestrians and bicyclists. There was also one comment opposing designating both SH-55 and 
SH-69 as 129,000 pound routes because of concerns with congestion and safety, and the 
potential for the additional weight to damage the roads. 
 
 Member DeLorenzo said a few people attended the public hearing; however, none gave 
verbal testimony. The public hearing was held on December 5 with sufficient notice. Chairman 
Kempton acknowledged the concerns with commercial vehicles and bicycles/pedestrians; 
however, he added that 105,500 pound vehicles are already allowed on the route. Regarding the 
concern with premature wear and tear due to “tire scrub”, he believes there is less impact to the 
pavement because of the additional axles required on vehicle combinations up to 129,000 
pounds. Member DeLorenzo added that there is a misconception that 129,000 pound vehicles are 
bigger; however, the off-track requirement is the same as for 105,500 pound trucks plus there are 
more axles that lighten the footprint on the highway.  
 
 Member DeLorenzo made a motion to recommend that the Transportation Board approve 
the 129,000 pound truck route request for SH-55, milepost 36.1 to 42.88.  The motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
 
 Case #201802: SH-69, MP 1.43 to 9.28 and MP 67.86 to 68.03. PTM Marker said the 
route is one continuous segment, but is defined with two sets of mileposts. The DMV confirmed 
that SH-69 falls under the red route category allowing 115-foot overall vehicle length and a 6.5-
foot off-track. The bridge analysis determined that the eight bridges on the route will safely 
support vehicle combinations up to 129,000 pounds, assuming the axle configuration conforms 
to the legal requirements. The pavement is in good to fair condition with no deficient sections. 
There are no safety concerns and the Chief Engineer’s analysis recommends approving the route. 
 

PIC Rush said one additional comment opposing this route request was received, with 
safety and the potential premature wear and tear on the asphalt as the main concerns.  
 
 Member DeLorenzo said a few people attended the public hearing, which was published 
in accordance with the requirements; however, no verbal testimony was submitted. 
 
 Member DeLorenzo made a motion to recommend that the Transportation Board approve 
the 129,000 pound truck route request for SH-69, milepost 1.43 to 9.28 and milepost 67.86 to 
68.03. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
 Member Kempton mentioned that there has been some opposition to designating some 
routes for vehicle combinations up to 129,000 pounds in District 3, especially SH-16. Some 

304



 

Page 3 of 3 

citizens do not believe adequate notice of the public hearing was given, even though there is a 
30-day period when comments can be submitted. The hearing is only one option to provide 
testimony. He said it is important to follow the proper procedures for the hearings and in the 
consideration of these route requests. 
 
 Member DeLorenzo said another public hearing will be scheduled for the SH-16 and SH-
52 route requests. 
 
 
 Minutes: November 13, 2018. There were no comments on the minutes of the November 
13, 2018 Subcommittee meeting. 
 
 

The meeting adjourned at 4:00 PM. 
 
 
____________________________ 
Respectfully submitted by: 
SUE S. HIGGINS 
Executive Assistant & Secretary 
Idaho Transportation Board 
 
 
 
SSH:129KsubminJanuary2019:1/22/19 

305



RES. NO. WHEREAS, Senate Bill 1117 was enacted in 2013 allowing the Idaho  
ITBXX-XX Transportation Board to designate state highways for permitted vehicle 

combinations up to 129,000 pounds upon request; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board established a Subcommittee on 129,000 Pound Truck 
Routes to implement provisions of the legislation; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Idaho Transportation Department has received two requests for 
129,000 pound trucking routes in District 3 and one in District 4; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Chief Engineer and ITD Staff received the applications and 
reviewed the proposed routes by conducting an engineering and safety analysis of 
each route; and 
 
WHEREAS, upon completion of the engineering and safety analyses, 30-day 
public comment periods were held, including opportunities for verbal testimony, 
with three total comments on SH-55 and SH-69 and ten comments regarding US-
93; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Chief Engineer’s representative presented the Chief Engineer’s 
analyses to the Board Subcommittee on 129,000 Pound Truck Routes at its 
meeting on January 16, 2019 with a recommendation to approve all requested 
routes; and 
 
WHEREAS, after the Board Subcommittee reviewed the Chief Engineer’s 
analyses and public comments, it passed motions to recommend approval of each 
of the route requests; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Chief Engineer and the Board Subcommittee presented their 
analyses and recommendations to the full Board at the regularly scheduled Board 
meeting of February 21, 2019. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board accepts the Chief 
Engineer’s analyses and recommendations on: 

the SH-55 route, milepost (MP) 36.10 to MP 42.88;  
the SH-69 route, MP 1.43 to MP 9.28 and MP 67.86 to MP 68.03; 
the US-93 route, MP 48.26 to MP 58.8 
and the recommendations of approval from the Board Subcommittee; and  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board directs the Chief Engineer to issue 
Letters of Determination that approve the referenced route requests in Districts 3 
and 4. 

 
 
 
Approved:  

306



Board Agenda Item ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13)

Page 1 of 1 

Meeting Date Feb 21, 2019 

Consent Item Information Item Amount of Presentation Time Needed  10 minutes 

Presenter's Name Presenter's Title Initials Reviewed By 

LSS Tony Pirc Facilities Manager 
Preparer's Name Preparer's Title Initials 

Mike Pape Aeronautics Administrator 

Subject 
Aeronautics Facility Lease Agreement 
Key Number District Route Number 

Background Information 

ITD is currently leasing property from the City of Boise at the Boise Airport and ITD currently owns the 
building that is on that location.  The City of Boise needs to expand the airport because their growth has 
happened faster than expected and the City of Boise is requesting to terminate our current lease sooner 
than the expiration date of 2025 and enter into the new agreement with ITD for the same period.   

As incentive, the City of Boise and the Boise Airport have verbally agreed to enter into a new short-term 
agreement (see Attachment A) and would build a new hangar facility at their cost and relocate ITD to the 
opposite side of the runway (see Attachment B) and keep our current lease rate of $1 per year until 2025.  
After this term is completed, ITD would pay at a negotiated rate from 2025 forward.   

Since ITD requires that the Division of Aeronautics operate and maintain aircraft for the purposes of state 
agency transportation services, we are requesting approval from the Board to pursue the lease 
agreement for the purpose of occupying a new building for the Division of Aeronautics on the property of 
the Boise Airport.   

If approved, the current Division of Aeronautics facility would be removed by the City of Boise at no cost 
to ITD.   

Recommendations 
Approve the attached resolution, page 354. 

Board Action 

 Approved  Deferred 

 Other 

307



 

BOISE AIRPORT LEASE 
 

1 

 

 BOISE AIRPORT 
BUILDING AND GROUND LEASE 

State of Idaho Department of Transportation (Division of Aeronautics) 
ARTICLE I - PREMISES ............................................ 4 

ARTICLE II - TERM OF LEASEHOLD .................................. 5 
2.01 Initial Term ......................................................... 5 
2.02 Renewal Term ....................................................... 5 
2.03 Expiration .......................................................... 5 
2.04 Early Termination Right ................................................ 5 
2.05 Holding Over ........................................................ 5 

ARTICLE III - RENT ............................................... 6 
3.01 Rent Calculation ..................................................... 6 
3.02 Rent .............................................................. 6 
3.03 Rent Increases ...................................................... 6 
3.04 Rent Re-Alignment to Market ............................................ 6 
3.05 Rent Commencement Date ............................................. 6 
3.06 Payment ........................................................... 6 
3.07 Security Deposit ..................................................... 7 
3.08 Additional Rent ...................................................... 7 
3.09 Modification Charge ................................................... 7 
3.10 Unpaid Rent, Fees and Charges .......................................... 7 

ARTICLE IV - OBLIGATIONS OF LESSOR .............................. 7 

ARTICLE V - OBLIGATIONS OF LESSEE ............................... 8 
5.01 Construction of the Project .............................................. 8 
5.02 Net Lease .......................................................... 8 
5.03 Condition of Premises. ................................................. 9 
5.04 Maintenance of Premises ............................................... 9 
5.05 Notifications ........................................................ 9 
5.06 Lessee Improvements – Existing Structures ................................. 9 
5.07 Lessee Improvements ................................................. 9 
5.08 Liens and Approvals .................................................. 9 
5.09 Trash, Garbage, Etc. ................................................. 10 
5.10 Permitted Uses ..................................................... 10 
5.11 Outdoor Storage .................................................... 10 
5.12 Right of Flight ...................................................... 10 
5.13 Non-Utilization of Premises ............................................ 11 
5.14 Prohibited Uses ..................................................... 11 
5.15 Performance Standards ............................................... 11 
5.16 Environmental Compliance ............................................. 12 
5.17 Airport Security ..................................................... 13 

ARTICLE VI – INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION ..................... 13 
6.01 Insurance ......................................................... 13 
6.02 Policy Requirements ................................................. 13 

308



 

BOISE AIRPORT LEASE 
 

2 

 

6.03 Waiver of Subrogation ................................................ 13 
6.04 Eminent Domain .................................................... 14 
6.05 Damages / Casualty.................................................. 14 
6.06 Idaho Petroleum Storage Tank Fund ...................................... 15 
6.07 Indemnification of Lessor .............................................. 15 

ARTICLE VII - DEFAULT ........................................... 16 
7.01 Default ........................................................... 16 
7.02 Lessor Remedies for Default ........................................... 17 
7.03 Assignment and Transfer .............................................. 18 
7.04 Subleasing ........................................................ 18 
7.05 Lien by Lessor ...................................................... 19 

ARTICLE VIII – PROJECT DEVELOPMENT AND CONSTRUCTION .......... 19 

ARTICLE IX – HAZARDOUS MATERIALS .............................. 19 
9.01 Definitions ......................................................... 19 
9.02 Use of Premises by Lessee; Remediation of Contamination Caused by Lessee ....... 20 
9.03 Notice of Hazardous Materials Matters .................................... 21 
9.04 Environmental Indemnification .......................................... 22 

ARTICLE X - GENERAL PROVISIONS ................................ 22 
10.01 Lessors Right of Entry ................................................ 22 
10.02 Improvements upon Termination or Expiration ............................... 23 
10.03 Subordination to the Agreement with the United States ........................ 24 
10.04 Time is of the Essence ................................................ 24 
10.05 Unavoidable Delay................................................... 24 
10.06 Notices ........................................................... 24 
10.07 Attorney's Fees ..................................................... 25 
10.08 Agreement Made in Idaho ............................................. 25 
10.09 Cumulative Rights and Remedies ........................................ 25 
10.10 Interpretation ....................................................... 25 
10.11 Agreement Made in Writing ............................................ 25 
10.12 Paragraph Headings ................................................. 25 
10.13 Severability ........................................................ 26 
10.14 Successors and Assigns .............................................. 26 
10.15 Rules and Regulations ................................................ 26 
10.16 Taxes and Other Charges ............................................. 26 
10.17 National Emergency.................................................. 26 
10.18 Authorization to Enter into Lease ........................................ 26 
10.19 Discrimination Prohibited .............................................. 27 

ARTICLE XI – CIVIL RIGHTS PROVISIONS ............................. 27 
11.01 General Civil Rights Provision .......................................... 27 
11.02 Compliance with Nondiscrimination Requirements ............................ 27 
11.03 Clauses for Construction/Use/Access to Real Property Acquired Under the Activity, Facility 

or Program ........................................................ 29 
11.04 Title VI List of Pertinent Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities .................. 30 

 

309



 

BOISE AIRPORT LEASE 
 

3 

 

BOISE AIRPORT BUILDING AND GROUND LEASE 
BASIC LEASE PROVISIONS 

State of Idaho Department of Transportation (Division of Aeronautics) 
 
Address: 1600 W Gowen Raod, Boise, ID  
 
Premises: Hangar and office building for a total of 17,540 sf.  
 
Initial Base Rent: $1.00 per year  
 
Base Rent Increases: July 1, 2025 (at renewal) 
 
Operating Expenses: Net Lease (Lessee’s responsibility) 
 
Initial Term: Approximately four (4) years (Date of Occupancy –June 30, 2025)  
 
Options to Renew: One (1) ten-year option (Lessee’s)  
 
Effective Date of Lease: as of the date of the last signature 
 
Construction Dates:  TBD 
 
Rent Commencement: Date of Occupancy 
 
Security Deposit:  n/a 
 
Completion Bond:  n/a 
 
Allowed Uses:  Governmental purposes of State of Idaho Department of Transportation 
(Division of Aeronautics) for division operations, office space, division activities, 
maintenance and operation of aircraft hangar for storage and for other such additional 
purposes and uses as may be authorized by legislative action. 
 
Notice Addresses 
     Lessor: Boise Airport 
 Attn: Property/Contract Administrator 
 3201 Airport Way, Suite 1000 
 Boise, Idaho 83705 
 
     Lessee: Idaho Transportation Department 
 Attn: Chief Administrative Officer 
 3311 West State Street 
 Boise, Idaho 83703 
 
 
Total Due on Signing: $ Zero 

310



 

BOISE AIRPORT LEASE 
 

4 

 

BOISE AIRPORT BUILDING AND GROUND LEASE 
BASIC LEASE PROVISIONS 

State of Idaho Department of Transportation (Division of Aeronautics) 
 

 THIS GROUND LEASE (“Lease”) is entered into effective this ___ day of 

______________, 20__ (“Effective Date”) between the City of Boise (Department of 

Aviation), a municipal corporation formed and existing pursuant to Title 50, Idaho Code 

(“Lessor”) and State of Idaho Department of Transportation (Division of Aeronautics) 

(“Lessee”).  Lessor and Lessee may be referred to herein as the “parties, or a “party” as 

the case may be. 

 

 This Lease supersedes in its entirety any prior written or oral agreements with 

respect to the Premises described in herein, including, but not limited to that certain 

Lease dated September 15, 1975. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements 

herein set forth, Lessor and Lessee agree and covenant as follows: 

 

ARTICLE I – PREMISES 
 Subject to and on the terms, conditions, covenants, and agreements contained 

herein, Lessor does hereby demise and lease to Lessee and Lessee does hereby lease 

from Lessor the building and grounds located at 1600 W Gown Road, Boise, Idaho, 

which consists of approximately 1.79 acres/78,000 sf of real property, as further 

described and shown on Exhibit A-1 attached hereto.   

Said real property includes certain buildings and improvements constructed and 

owned by Lessor and leased to Lessee during the Lease Term (collectively “Buildings 

and Improvements”) described in the list attached as Exhibit A-2, and all such real 

property and Buildings and Improvements collectively referred to herein as the 

"Premises". 

  

311



 

BOISE AIRPORT LEASE 
 

5 

 

ARTICLE II - TERM  
 2.01 Initial Term.  The initial term of this Lease shall begin the date of 

occupancy of Lease Premises by Lessor until June 30, 2025, provided that both parties 

have fully executed this Lease (“Initial Term”).    

2.02 Renewal Term. Provided that Lessee is not currently in default, the 

Lessee may request a renewal of this Lease for one (1) additional ten (10) year period 

(July 1, 2025 to June 30, 2035) (“Renewal Term”) by giving written notice of request to 

renew not less than 90 days prior to the end of the initial term.   The renewal term will 

be on the same terms and conditions as the initial term, except as otherwise agreed to 

by the Parties including the Parties’ agreement on rent as set forth below.    Any use of 

“term” herein shall include the Initial Term and any approved Renewal Terms.   

Further, the Renewal Term is not transferable; the Renewal Term shall be 

“personal” to Lessee as set forth above and that in no event will any assignee or 

sublessee have any rights to exercise the Renewal Term.  Lessee shall have no further 

right to extend the term of this Lease. 

 2.03 Expiration.  This Lease, unless terminated earlier, shall expire at the end 

of the Term. 

 2.04 Early Termination Right.  n/a  

2.05 Holding Over.  Any continued occupancy by Lessee of the Premises after 

the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease, whether with or without the consent of 

Lessor, shall operate and be construed as a tenancy from month-to-month at a new 

Base Rent of one and one-half times (150%) the Base Rent in force and effect for the 

last month of the Term prior to termination or expiration (“Holdover Rent”). All other 

rents, costs and obligations under this Lease remain in place.   

If Lessee holds over with written consent from Lessor, such a month-to-month 

lease may be terminated at the end of any such monthly period by Lessor by providing 

a minimum of ten (10) days written notice to Lessee.   

If Lessee holds over without written permission from Lessor, Lessee shall be 

obligated to pay the Holdover Rent and shall pay any losses or damage to Lessor as a 

result of Lessee holding over whether such loss or damage may be contemplated at this 

time or not.   

312



 

BOISE AIRPORT LEASE 
 

6 

 

No receipt or acceptance of money by Lessor from Lessee after the expiration or 

termination of this Lease or after the service of any notice, after the commencement of 

any suit, or after final judgment for possession of the Premises, shall reinstate, continue 

or extend the terms of this Lease or affect any such notice, demand or suit or imply 

consent for any action for which Lessor's consent is required or operate as a waiver of 

any right of the Lessor to retake and resume possession of the Premises or to use self-

help as authorized by law.   

 
ARTICLE III - RENT 

 3.01 Rent Calculation.  Base Rent is calculated off a total land area of 

Premises.  All references to area (acres, square feet, or other) in this Lease, unless 

otherwise specified, pertain to land area.  For computing the Base Rent payments, 

Lessor and Lessee agree that the Premises comprises 1.79 acres more or less 

(approximately 78,000 s.f.).   

3.02 Rent.  The annual rent for the Premises will, through the end of the initial 

terms be One Dollar ($1.00) (the “Base Rent) 

3.03 Rent Increases.  In the event the Lessee chooses to exercise its option to 

renew this lease, the Base Rent described herein shall increase to a rental rate of 

$0.277 per square foot per year.  The square footage shall be determined by a Record 

of Survey to be provided by City upon completion of construction of the Building, Land 

and Improvements.  Said Rent shall be paid to Lessor in equal monthly installments on 

the first day of each calendar month, in advance, commencing on July 1, 2025. 

3.04 Rent Re-Alignment to Market.  n/a  

 3.05 Rent Commencement Date.  Payment of Monthly Rent by Lessee to 

Lessor shall commence upon completion of construction of the hangar pursuant to the 

Development Agreement (“Rent Commencement Date”)   

 3.06 Payment.  Monthly Rent payments shall be paid in advance on or before 

the first day of each and every month during the term of this Lease, without notice from 

Lessor.  Unless Lessor otherwise notifies Lessee in writing of a different address, all 

rent payments shall be paid to Lessor at the following address: 

  

313



 

BOISE AIRPORT LEASE 
 

7 

 

Boise Airport 
Attn: Accounting 

3201 Airport Way, Suite 1000 
Boise, Idaho 83705 

 
 3.07 Security Deposit. n/a 

3.08 Additional Rent.   In addition to Monthly Rent, Lessee shall pay all other 

costs and expenses related to the Premises, commencing on the Rent Commencement 

Date. As used in this Lease, “Rent” shall mean any and all amounts owed by Lessee to 

Lessor, including, but not limited to, Monthly Rent, and any and all other sums that 

Lessee assumes or agrees to pay under the provisions of this Lease, including any 

payments that may become due by reason of any default of Lessee or failure to comply 

with the agreements, terms, covenants and conditions of this Lease to be performed by 

Lessee, after any applicable notice and cure period.  Lessor shall not be responsible for 

any costs or expenses in connection with the Premises and improvements during the 

term of this Lease and shall be entitled to a net return of the rent herein undiminished by 

the cost of insurance, taxes and assessments or water, electrical, gas, sewer, or other 

utility charges or levies of any kind or nature whatsoever, and operation, repair, upkeep 

of the building, improvements, land and /or appurtenances thereto, now or at any time 

hereafter, during the term of this Lease or any renewal or extension hereof, except 

where otherwise specifically provided to the contrary herein.  This Lease is intended to 

be an absolute net lease, with all rent, charges and other sums related to the Premises 

to be paid by Lessee, and none by Lessor. 

 3.09 Modification Charge.  In the event Lessee requests an amendment or 

modification of the Lease, Lessee shall, in its next rental payment, include a $100 fee 

for administrative expenses related to the development and review of the Amendment.  

 3.10 Unpaid Rent, Fees and Charges.  Any installment of Monthly Rent, fees, 

or other charges or monies accruing under any provisions of this Lease that are not 

received by Lessor by the 20th day of the month in which payment is due shall bear 

interest in accordance with Idaho Code §67-2302(7) per annum from the date when the 

same was due according to the terms of this Lease until paid by Lessee. 

   

ARTICLE IV - OBLIGATIONS OF LESSOR 

314



 

BOISE AIRPORT LEASE 
 

8 

 

 Lessee agrees that it has had the opportunity to inspect the Premises prior to 

executing this Lease and accepts the Premises from Lessor AS-IS, WHERE IS, and 

with all faults.  Lessor has no obligations whatsoever regarding the repair, operation, 

and/or maintenance of the Premises. Lessor will provide all warranty information for 

structural, material and workmanship by contractor and any and all warranties by third 

party contractors to Lessor. Lessor agrees that upon Lessee's payment of rent and 

performance of all of the covenants, conditions, and agreements herein, Lessee shall 

and may peaceably and quietly have, hold, and enjoy the Premises hereby demised for 

the Term.     

 

ARTICLE V - OBLIGATIONS OF LESSEE 
 5.01 Construction of the Project . Lessor has caused the Project to be 

constructed on the Premises in accordance with that Term Sheet previously approved 

by the Parties on XXXX date.    

5.02 Net Lease.  This Lease shall be without cost to Lessor except for Lessor's 

obligations specifically set forth in this Lease.  Lessee shall at all times: 

a. Keep, operate, maintain, repair and replace the Premises, including the 

building, improvements and land located thereon as described below in 

Section 5.04; 

b. Pay all taxes, ad valorem taxes and similar taxes assessed against 

Lessee's interest in the Premises and improvements, and all of Lessee's 

personal property located on the Premises. Lessee is exempt from 

taxation pursuant to Idaho Code §§63-3622O and 63-602A.;  

c. Pay all casualty and liability insurance premiums required in accordance 

with Article VI. Lessee is a State of Idaho agency and provides liability 

coverage for public liability, personal injury, death, and property damage 

through the Risk Management Program established under Idaho Code 

§67-5776, which is funded and in effect subject to limitation on liability of 

the Tort Claim Act, Idaho Code §6-901 et seq.; and  

d. Pay the cost of all utilities furnished to the Premises for the Lessee’s use 

and occupation thereof.  

315



 

BOISE AIRPORT LEASE 
 

9 

 

  

5.03 Condition of Premises. As specified above, by taking possession of the 

Premises Lessee accepts the Premises AS-IS, WHERE IS and with all faults, and the 

Lessee shall be obligated at its sole cost and expense to perform any and all repairs, 

modifications or improvements to the Premises, including, but not limited to, the 

Buildings and Improvements and/or any land.  Lessor will provide all warranty 

information for structural, material and workmanship by contractor and any, and all, third 

party warranties to Lessee. 

5.04 Maintenance of Premises.   Lessee agrees, at Lessee’s sole cost and 

expense, to operate, maintain, repair and replace the exterior and interior of the 

buildings, improvements, and land, including, but not limited to, all structural elements, 

equipment, underground storage tanks, above-ground storage tanks, pipes, and 

systems.  Lessee shall keep the Premises in a good state of repair and condition 

(normal wear and tear excepted), including keeping the Premises in a neat and orderly 

condition as determined by Lessor in its sole discretion, free from filth, overloading, 

danger of fire or any pest or nuisance, and in compliance with all federal, state and local 

laws. Landscaped areas shall be watered, trimmed, and weeded as necessary to 

maintain a healthy, neat appearance.  Weeds in non-landscaped areas shall be kept cut 

close to the ground.  It is expressly understood that any maintenance condition is to be 

addressed and resolved within thirty (30) days, without notice from Lessor, or a 

Maintenance Plan is to be provided to Lessor Section 5.05 below. 

5.05 Notification.  If any portion of the Premises or any system or equipment in 

the Premises that Lessee is obligated to maintain or repair cannot be fully repaired, 

restored or replaced, within thirty (30) days, Lessee will provide Lessor with a 

maintenance plan and schedule for rectifying the condition. 

Lessee shall notify Lessor if they wish to install any fuel tanks or facilities.  

Approval will be subject to insurance and environmental considerations.5.06

 Lessee Improvements – Existing Structures.  n/a 

5.07 Lessee Improvements – New Structures.  n/a 

5.08 Liens and Approvals.  Lessee shall at all times keep the Premises lien free 

from any tenant improvement work or otherwise. Lessee shall obtain any and all permits 

316



 

BOISE AIRPORT LEASE 
 

10 

 

required for any tenant improvements, and improvements shall be made in compliance 

with all Boise City building codes and regulations, and all other applicable federal, state 

and local laws.   

 5.09 Trash, Garbage, Etc.   Lessee shall make suitable arrangements for the 

storage, collection, and removal of all trash, garbage and other refuse resulting from 

Lessee's activities on the Premises.  Lessee shall provide appropriate, covered, 

commercial type receptacles for such trash, garbage, and other refuse, and will 

maintain these receptacles, screened from view from adjoining properties or public 

streets, in an attractive, safe, and sanitary manner as determined by Lessor in its sole 

discretion. Lessee shall not allow any trash or litter to accumulate on the Premises. 

 5.10 Permitted Uses.  Lessee will not enter into any activities on the Premises 

other than those stated as follows without Lessor’s prior written approval: 

Governmental purposes of State of Idaho Department of Transportation (Division 

of Aeronautics) for division operations, office space, division activities, maintenance and 

operation of aircraft hangar for storage and for other such additional purposes and uses 

as may be authorized by legislative action and the City of Boise.Lessee's use of the 

Premises must be in full compliance with all statutes, ordinances, laws, rules, 

regulations and restrictive covenants applicable to the Premises, including but not 

limited to compliance with environmental laws as described in Section 5.16.  Lessee 

shall comply with all rules and regulations of the National Fire Protection Association, 

the applicable Fire Rating Bureau and any similar body.   

5.11  Outdoor Storage.  Outdoor storage of any equipment or materials must 

be specifically approved by Lessor in writing which approval shall not be unreasonably 

withheld.  Storage of such items may be required to be in a fenced enclosure; screening 

may also be required.  Approval of outdoor storage by the Lessor shall not be construed 

as approval for Lessee to maintain, either in reality or appearance, a junkyard or 

salvage yard.   

5.12 Right of Flight.   Lessor reserves to itself, its successors and assigns, for 

the use and benefit of the public, a continuing right and easement over the Premises to 

take any action it deems necessary to prevent the construction, erection, alteration or 

growth of any structure, tree or other object in the vicinity of the runways at Boise 

317



 

BOISE AIRPORT LEASE 
 

11 

 

Airport which would constitute an obstruction to air navigation according to the criteria or 

standards prescribed in Subpart C of Part 77 of the Federal Aviation Regulations.  

Lessor reserves for itself, its successors and assigns, the right to prevent any use of the 

Premises which would interfere with aircraft landing on or taking off from Boise Airport 

and the right to prevent any other use of the Premises which would constitute an airport 

hazard. 

5.13 Non-Utilization of Premises .  In the event Lessee ceases operations at 

the Premises for more than one hundred twenty (120) consecutive days for any reason 

other than repairs, remodeling or force majeure (“Abandonment”), Lessor may elect to 

terminate this Lease and recover possession of the Premises by giving Lessee thirty 

(30) days prior written notice of such election to terminate, and upon such termination, 

subject to the Lessee’s rights and options under Section 10.2 herein. 

5.14 Prohibited Uses.   The following uses shall not be permitted on the 

Premises at any time:  anything constituting a nuisance; any residential use; trailer 

courts; labor camps; junkyards; mining and quarrying; dumping, disposal, incineration, 

or reduction of garbage, sewage, offal, dead animals, refuse; hazardous material or 

hazardous waste; fat rendering; stockyards or slaughtering of animals; smelting of iron, 

tin, zinc or other ores; or large animal raising.  Additionally, the Lessee shall not 

maintain any item or do anything in or about the Premises which would cause the 

increase of Lessor’s insurance rates or make such insurance unobtainable.  

5.15 Performance Standards.   The Premises shall not be used or occupied in 

any manner so as to create any dangerous, injurious, noxious, or otherwise 

objectionable conditions, including but not limited to: 

 a. Hazardous Activities:  No activity shall be conducted on the 

Premises that may be or may become hazardous to public health and safety, that shall 

increase the fire insurance rating for adjoining property, or that shall be illegal. 

 b. Vibration or Shock:  No vibration or shock perceptible to a person of 

normal sensibilities shall be permitted within fifty (50) feet of the property line. 

 c. Noise:  No noise objectionable to a person of normal sensibilities 

shall be permitted within fifty (50) feet of the property line. 

 d. Air Pollution:  Except for the operation of motor vehicles to, from, 

318



 

BOISE AIRPORT LEASE 
 

12 

 

and on the Premises as incidental to the use thereof, the following requirements shall 

apply: (1) any use producing smoke, gas, dust, odor, fumes, aerosols, particulates, 

products of combustion, or any other atmospheric pollutant shall be conducted within a 

completely enclosed building; (2) any use producing atmospheric emissions shall 

comply with the standards of the U. S. Environmental Protection Agency, the Ada 

County Air Quality Board, any local environmental regulatory body, or any successor 

organizations performing similar functions, as such regulations exist at the date of the 

Lease or which may be enacted during the term of the Lease; and/or (3) the emission of 

odors that are detectable at any point beyond the property line of the Premises shall not 

be permitted. 

 e. Heat or Glare:  Any operation producing intense glare or heat shall 

be performed within an enclosed screened area in such manner that the glare or heat 

emitted will not be discernible from the property line. 

 f. Electronic or Radio Interference:  No electrical, electronic, or radio 

emissions shall be produced that will interfere, obstruct or adversely affect the operation 

of air navigation aids and Airport communications.  

 g. Illumination:  The maximum height of any lighting standards on the 

Premises shall be limited to thirty (30) feet above ground level. The intensity of 

illumination shall be limited to 10 foot candles or 0.1 lumens per square foot per open 

areas or surface areas visible at the property line. The design and location of exterior 

lighting shall comply in all respects to the requirements of the FAA or any other 

governmental agency having applicable jurisdiction with respect to height, type and 

placement of lighting standards as they may affect the safety of flight operations into, 

from and around the Airport. 

 h. Liquid or Solid Refuse and Waste:  No liquid or solid refuse or 

waste shall be kept, stored, or allowed to accumulate on any lot. No other substance, 

condition, or element in such amount as to affect the surrounding area or adjoining 

premises shall be allowed.  

 5.16 Environmental Compliance.   Lessee shall not permit any “hazardous 

material”, solid waste, or otherwise toxic substance in, on, around or under the 

Premises in violation of Article IX, herein.  

319



 

BOISE AIRPORT LEASE 
 

13 

 

5.17 Airport Security. As used herein, “Federal Regulatory Agencies” shall 

mean the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA), Transportation Security Administration 

(TSA) or any other Agency in existence now or as may be later created to regulate 

Airport operations and security. 

Lessee agrees to observe all applicable security requirements of Federal 

Regulatory Agencies and the Airport Security Plan, applicable parts of which shall be 

furnished to Lessee, as approved by the Federal Regulatory Agencies and to take such 

steps as necessary or directed by the Lessor to ensure that contractors, subcontractors, 

employees, invitees, and guests observe these requirements. 

If the Lessor incurs any fines and/or penalties imposed by the Federal Regulatory 

Agencies or any expense in enforcing the regulations of applicable Federal Regulations 

pertaining to Airport security as a result of the acts or omissions of Lessee, Lessee 

agrees to pay and/or reimburse all such costs and expense. Lessee further agrees to 

rectify at its own expense any security or other deficiency as may be determined as 

such by the Lessor or the Federal Regulatory Agencies. The Lessor reserves the right 

to take any action necessary to rectify any security or other deficiency, in the event 

Lessee fails to remedy the security or other deficiency. Lessee is responsible for 

Lessor’s costs and expenses should Lessor take action itself to rectify the deficiency. 

 

ARTICLE VI – INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION  
 6.01 Insurance.  Lessee is a State of Idaho agency and provides liability 

coverage for public liability, personal injury, death, and property damage through the 

Risk Management Program established under Idaho Code §67-5776, which is funded 

and in effect subject to limitation on liability of the Tort Claim Act, Idaho Code §6-901 et 

seq. 
6.02 Policy Requirements.   Lessee shall provide proof of insurance coverage to 

Lessor from the Lessee’s Office of Risk Management Program within ten (10) days of 

the date this agreement is fully executed.  

6.03   Waiver of Subrogation.   Each party’s insurer waives all right of 

subrogation, and all rights based upon and assignment from its insured, against the 

other party, its officers, directors, partners, members, managers, employees, agents, 

320



 

BOISE AIRPORT LEASE 
 

14 

 

concessionaires, licensees and invitees, and in the case of Lessee, its subtenants and 

their officers, directors, partners, members, managers, employees, agents, 

concessionaires, licensees and invitees, in connection with any loss or damage thereby 

insured against; provided that the foregoing reference shall not be deemed a consent by 

Lessor to any sublease of the premises. If any policy of insurance requires the 

agreement of a party’s insurer as a condition to the effectiveness of this mutual waiver 

of subrogation, such party agrees to make a commercially reasonable effort to obtain 

such agreement. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Lease to the contrary, 

neither party to this Lease or its officers, directors, partners, members, managers, 

employees, agents, concessionaires, licenses and invitees shall be liable to the other 

for loss or damage covered by insurance required to be carried under this Lease, and 

each party to this Lease hereby waives any rights of recovery against the other and its 

officers, directors, partners, members, managers, employees, agents, concessionaires, 

licenses and invitees for injury or loss on account of such covered risks.    

 6.04 Eminent Domain .  If during the Lease Term the Premises or the Building 

and Improvements or any substantial part thereof are taken through the exercise of the 

power of eminent domain, this Lease shall automatically terminate as of the date of 

such taking.  

In case of a partial taking of the Premises, if the remainder is insufficient for 

Lessee’s uses as allowed herein, or if the time required to restore the remainder of the 

Premises in a proper condition for use by Lessee will exceed six (6) months, or if 

Lessee does not commence to restore the Premises within sixty (60) days after the 

receipt of condemnation proceeds for any taking, and proceed thereafter with 

reasonable diligence to completion, Lessor may, at Lessor’s option, terminate this 

Lease by a written notice delivered to Lessee within thirty (30) days after the right to 

terminate arises.  

6.05 Damages / Casualty.  If during the Lease Term the Premises or the 

Building and Improvements or any part thereof are damaged by fire or other casualty 

sufficient to make the Premises unusable by Lessee, and the time required to restore 

the remainder of the Premises in a proper condition for use by Lessee will exceed 

321



 

BOISE AIRPORT LEASE 
 

15 

 

twelve (12) months, either party may choose to terminate this Lease through written 

notice delivered to the other party within sixty (60) days after the casualty incident. 

If both parties elect not to terminate, Lessee shall be responsible for all cost 

association with restoration.  If Lessee does not commence restoration of the Premises 

within sixty (60) days after the receipt of insurance proceeds for the casualty, and 

proceed thereafter with reasonable diligence to completion, Lessor may, at Lessor’s 

option, terminate this Lease by a written notice delivered to Lessee within thirty (30) 

days after the right to terminate arises. 

Lessee shall only have the right or interest to any insurance proceeds from 

Lessee insurance and shall only be entitled to condemnation rewards associated with 

the Building and Improvements constructed and paid for by Lessee.  Lessor shall 

receive all other payments from either insurance or condemnation proceeds on the 

Premises.   

In the case of termination, Rent and other sums payable during the then current 

Term shall be due and payable through the date of such termination.  In the event that 

Lessee chooses to restore any damage, all Rents and other sums payable will continue 

to be due in full throughout any restoration period.  Should a partial taking of the 

Premises occur that does not result in termination of the lease, the size of the Premises 

shall be adjusted based on the taking and a new Base Rent calculated based on the 

new land area. 

 6.06    Idaho Petroleum Storage Tank Fund.   n/a  

6.07 Indemnification.  Subject to limitations hereinafter set forth, each Party 

shall indemnify, defend and save harmless the other from and against any and all 

demands, claims or liabilities caused by or arising out of any negligent acts by the other 

while acting within the course and scope of their employment, which arise from this 

Lease. Any such indemnification hereunder is subject to the limitations of the Idaho Tort 

Claims Act (currently codified at chapter 9, title 6, Idaho Code). Such indemnification 

hereunder by shall in no event cause the liability of either party for any such negligent 

act to exceed the liability limits set forth in the Idaho Tort Claims Act. Such 

indemnification shall in no event exceed the amount of loss, damages, expenses or 

attorney fees attributable to such negligent act, and shall not apply to loss, damages 

322



 

BOISE AIRPORT LEASE 
 

16 

 

expenses or attorney fees attributable to the negligence to the other party.  Nothing 

contained herein shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the State’s sovereign 

immunity, which immunity is hereby expressly reserved. 
 

ARTICLE VII - DEFAULT 

  7.01 Events of Default.  Any of the following shall constitute a default 

and breach of this Lease by Lessee (each event to be a “Default”): 

 a. Be in arrears in the payment of the whole or any part of the Monthly Rent 

and any other amounts owed hereunder for a period of ten (10) days after 

the due date without the requirement of written notice; 

 b. Failure to pay any other sum payable under this Lease within ten (10) 

days after written notice has been delivered to Lessee; 

 c. Make any general assignment for the benefit of creditors; 

 d. Abandonment of the Premises as more specifically defined in Section 5.10 

above; 

 e. Default in the performance of any of the covenants and conditions 

required herein (except rent payments which are addressed above) to be 

kept and performed by Lessee, and such default continues for a period of 

thirty (30) days after receipt of written notice from Lessor to cure such 

default; 

 f. Be adjudged a bankrupt in involuntary bankruptcy proceedings; and/or 

 g. Be made a party to any receivership proceeding in which a receiver is 

appointed for the property or affairs of Lessee where such receivership is 

not vacated within sixty (60) days after the appointment of such receiver; 

 h. Holding over without permission from Lessor 

In any of the aforesaid events, Lessor may, after complying with any procedures 

imposed by law, take immediate possession of the Premises including any and all 

improvements thereon and remove Lessee's effects, forcibly if necessary, without being 

deemed guilty of trespassing.  If Lessee breaches any covenant or condition of this 

Lease, Lessor may, on reasonable notice to Lessee, (except that no notice need be 

given in case of emergency), cure such breach at the expense of Lessee and the 

323



 

BOISE AIRPORT LEASE 
 

17 

 

reasonable amount of all expenses, including reasonable attorney’s fees, incurred by 

Lessor in doing so (whether paid by Lessor or not) shall be considered rent due on the 

date of the next regularly scheduled rent installment.  Failure of Lessor to declare this 

Lease cancelled upon the default of Lessee for any of the reasons set out shall not 

operate to bar or destroy the right of Lessor to cancel this Lease by reason of any 

subsequent violation of the terms of this Lease. 

 No receipt or acceptance of money by Lessor from Lessee after the expiration or 

cancellation of this Lease or after the service of any notice, after the commencement of 

any suit, or after final judgment for possession of the Premises, shall reinstate, continue, 

or extend the terms of this Lease or affect any such notice, demand or suit or imply 

consent for any action for which Lessor's consent is required or operate as a waiver of 

any right of the Lessor to retake and resume possession of the Premises. 

 7.02 Lessor Remedies for Default.  In the event of default by Lessee hereunder 

which shall remain uncured after the required notices have been given pursuant to this 

Lease, Lessor shall have the following remedies: 

 a. Lessor shall have the right to terminate this Lease, including all of 

the right, title, and interest of Lessee hereunder.  No notice in addition to the notice 

required by this Article shall be required to effectuate Lessor’s rights in this regard.  On 

expiration of the time fixed in the notice, this Lease and the right, title and interest of 

Lessee hereunder shall terminate in the same manner and with the same force and 

effect, except as to Lessee’s liability, as if the date fixed in the notice of cancellation and 

termination were the end of the Term.  In case of termination, the provisions of this 

Lease regarding indemnification, damages, fees and costs shall survive termination of 

the Lease; 

 b. Lessor shall have the right to sue for specific performance by 

Lessee of Lessee’s obligations hereunder, together with expenses, damages, fees and 

costs incurred by Lessor; 

 c. Lessor shall have the right to collect from Lessee all expenses, 

costs, fees and damages reasonably incurred by Lessor as a result of Lessee’s breach, 

including, but not limited to, reasonable costs of reletting and attorney’s fees; and 

 d. Lessor shall have the right, without further notice to Lessee, to 

324



 

BOISE AIRPORT LEASE 
 

18 

 

accelerate the rent due for the balance of the Term and to collect the present value of 

same from Lessee, less any mitigation thereof by Lessor; and/or 

          e.      Lessor may enter into and upon the Premises or any part thereof and 

repossess the same, expelling therefrom Lessee and all personal property of Lessee 

(which property may be removed and stored at the cost of and for the account of 

Lessee), using such force as may be necessary and relet the Premises or any part 

thereof upon such terms and conditions as shall reasonably appear advisable to Lessor.  

If Lessor shall proceed to relet the Premises and the amounts received from reletting 

the Premises during any month or part thereof be less than the rent due and owing from 

Lessee during such month or part thereof under the terms of this Lease, Lessee shall 

pay such deficiency to Lessor immediately upon calculation thereof, providing Lessor 

has exercised good faith in the terms and conditions of reletting.  Payment of any such 

deficiencies shall be made monthly within ten (10) days after receipt of notice of 

deficiency.  

The aforesaid remedies, as well as any other remedies allowed by Idaho law, 

which are preserved in Lessor, shall be cumulative and non-exclusive, except as is 

otherwise prescribed by Idaho law. Any amounts due to Lessor under this Lease and 

not paid by Lessee when due shall bear interest at a rate in accordance with Idaho 

Code §67-2302(7).  

 7.03 Assignment and Transfer.  Lessee shall not have the right to assign or 

transfer this Lease, or any interest in the Premises, without the prior written consent of 

Lessor, which approval may be withheld at the sole discretion of the Lessor. Any person 

or entity to which this Lease is assigned pursuant to the Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. 

§§101 et seq., shall be deemed without further act or deed to have assumed all the 

obligations arising under this Lease on or after the date of such assignment.  Any such 

assignee shall, upon demand, execute and deliver to Lessor an instrument confirming 

such assumption. 

 7.04 Subleasing.  Lessee may not sublease all or any part of the space 

demised hereunder without Landlord’s prior written consent.  Any approved sublease 

shall be subject to the same conditions, obligations and terms as set forth herein and 

Lessee shall be responsible for the observance by its sublessees of the terms and 

325



 

BOISE AIRPORT LEASE 
 

19 

 

covenants contained in this Lease, and Lessor’s approval may be withheld at the sole 

discretion of Lessor, or Lessor may require conditions for approval, including but not 

limited to personal guarantees, physical modifications to the Premises, or sharing of any 

sublet rent to be collected.  Lessee shall furnish Lessor with a copy of the sublease for 

review. 

 7.05 Lien by Lessor.  It is expressly agreed that in the event of default by 

Lessee hereunder, Lessor shall have a lien upon all goods, chattels, personal property 

or equipment, save and except delivery vehicles or rolling stock, or any other items 

specifically exempted under law,  belonging to Lessee which are placed in, or become a 

part of, the Premises, as security for rent due and to become due for the remainder of 

the Term, which lien shall not be in lieu of or in any way affect any statutory lien given 

by law, but shall be cumulative thereof.  Lessee shall seek permission of the Lessor to 

subordinate its lien to potential lenders of the lessee for improvements.  Said permission 

shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

 

ARTICLE VIII – PROJECT DEVELOPMENT AND CONSTRUCTION – N/A 

 

ARTICLE IX – HAZARDOUS MATERIALS 
 9.01 Definitions.  

“Hazardous Materials” will mean any material, substance or waste that is or has 

the characteristic of being hazardous, toxic, ignitable, reactive or corrosive, including, 

without limitation, petroleum, PCBs, asbestos, materials known to cause cancer or 

reproductive problems and those materials, substances and/or wastes, including 

infectious waste, medical waste, and potentially infectious biomedical waste, which are 

or later become regulated by any local governmental authority, the State of Idaho or the 

United States Government, including substances defined as “hazardous substances,” 

“hazardous materials,” “toxic substances” or “hazardous wastes” in the Comprehensive 

Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980, as amended, 42 

U.S.C. § 9601, et seq.; the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act, 49 U.S.C. § 1801, 

et seq.; the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C. § 6901, et seq.; all 

corresponding and related State of Idaho and local statutes, ordinances and 

326



 

BOISE AIRPORT LEASE 
 

20 

 

regulations, including without limitation any dealing with underground storage tanks; and 

in any other environmental law, regulation or ordinance now existing or hereinafter 

enacted (collectively, “Hazardous Materials Laws”). 

 9.02 Use of Premises by Lessee; Remediation of Contamination Caused by 

Lessee.  

a. Use. Lessee hereby agrees that Lessee and Lessee’s officers, directors, 

employees, representatives, agents, contractors, subcontractors, successors, assigns, 

lessees, sublessees, concessionaires, invitees and any other occupants of the 

Premises (for purpose of this Section 9.02, referred to collectively herein as “Lessee’s 

Representatives”) will not use, generate, manufacture, refine, produce, process, store or 

dispose of, on, under or about the Premises or transport to or from the Premises in the 

future for the purpose of generating, manufacturing, refining, producing, storing, 

handling, transferring, processing or transporting Hazardous Materials, except as 

previously approved in writing by Airport. Lessee will provide Airport with MSDS 

(material safety data sheet) forms for each approved hazardous material. Furthermore, 

Lessee will, at its own expense, procure, maintain in effect and comply with all 

conditions of any and all permits, licenses and other governmental and regulatory 

approvals required for the storage or use by Lessee or any of Lessee’s Representatives 

of Hazardous Materials on the Premises, including without limitation, discharge of 

appropriately treated materials or wastes into or through any sanitary sewer serving the 

Premises.  

b. Remediation. If at any time during the Term any contamination of the 

Premises by Hazardous Materials occurs where the contamination is caused by the act 

or omission of Lessee or Lessee’s Representatives (“Lessee Contamination”), then 

Lessee, at its sole cost and expense, will promptly and diligently remove the Hazardous 

Materials from the Premises, or the groundwater underlying the Premises, to the extent 

reasonably possible in accordance with the requirements of the applicable Hazardous 

Materials Laws and industry standards then prevailing in the Hazardous Materials 

management and remediation industry in Idaho. However, Lessee will not take any 

required remedial action in response to any Lessee Contamination in, on or about the 

Premises or enter into any settlement agreement, consent, decree or other compromise 

327



 

BOISE AIRPORT LEASE 
 

21 

 

in respect to any claims relating to any Lessee Contamination without first notifying 

Lessor of Lessee’s intention to do so and affording Lessor the opportunity to appear, 

intervene or otherwise appropriately assert and protect Lessor’s interest with respect 

thereto. In addition to all other rights and remedies of the Lessor hereunder, if Lessee 

does not promptly and diligently take all steps to prepare and obtain all necessary 

approvals of a remediation plan for any Lessee Contamination, and thereafter 

commence the required remediation of any Hazardous Materials released or discharged 

in connection with Lessee Contamination within thirty (30) days after Lessor has 

reasonably approved Lessee’s remediation plan and all necessary approvals and 

consents have been obtained and thereafter continue to prosecute said remediation to 

completion in accordance with the approved remediation plan, then Lessor, at its sole 

discretion, will have the right, but not the obligation, to cause said remediation to be 

accomplished, and Lessee will reimburse Lessor within fifteen (15) business days of 

Lessor’s demand for reimbursement of all amounts reasonably paid by Lessor (together 

with interest from the date of expenditure on said amounts at Lessor’s Interest Rate until 

paid), when the demand is accompanied by proof of payment by Lessor of the amounts 

demanded. Lessee will promptly deliver to Lessor copies of hazardous waste manifests 

reflecting the legal and proper disposal of all Hazardous Materials removed from the 

Premises as part of Lessee’s remediation of any Lessee Contamination. 

c. Disposition of Hazardous Materials. Except as discharged into the sanitary 

sewer or otherwise removed from the Premises in strict accordance and conformity with 

all applicable Hazardous Materials Laws, Lessee will cause any and all Hazardous 

Materials removed from the Premises as part of the required remediation of Lessee 

Contamination to be removed and transported solely by duly licensed haulers to duly 

licensed facilities for final disposal of the materials and wastes. 

 9.03 Notice of Hazardous Materials Matters . Each party (for purposes of this 

Section, “Notifying Party”) will immediately notify the other party (the “Notice Recipient”) 

in writing of: (a) any enforcement, clean-up, removal or other governmental or 

regulatory action instituted, contemplated or threatened concerning the Premises 

pursuant to any Hazardous Materials Laws; (b) any claim made or threatened by any 

person against the Notifying Party or the Premises relating to damage contribution, cost 

328



 

BOISE AIRPORT LEASE 
 

22 

 

recovery, compensation, loss or injury resulting from or claimed to result from any 

Hazardous Materials on or about the Premises; and (c) any reports made to any 

environmental agency arising out of or in connection with any Hazardous Materials in or 

removed from the Premises including any complaints, notices, warnings or asserted 

violations in connection therewith, all upon receipt by the Notifying Party of actual 

knowledge of any of the foregoing matters. Notifying Party will also supply to Notice 

Recipient as promptly as possible, and in any event within five (5) business days after 

Notifying Party first receives or sends the same, with copies of all claims, reports, 

complaints, notices, warnings or asserted violations relating in any way to the Premises 

or Lessee’s use thereof. 

9.04 Environmental Indemnification. Subject to limitations hereinafter set forth, 

Lessee shall indemnify, defend and save harmless Lessor from and against any and all 

demands, claims or liabilities caused by or arising out of any negligent acts by the other 

while acting within the course and scope of their employment, which arise from 

Hazardous Materials contamination caused by Lessee. Any such indemnification 

hereunder is subject to the limitations of the Idaho Tort Claims Act (currently codified at 

chapter 9, title 6, Idaho Code). Such indemnification hereunder shall in no event cause 

the liability of Lessee for any such negligent act to exceed the liability limits set forth in 

the Idaho Tort Claims Act. Such indemnification shall in no event exceed the amount of 

loss, damages, expenses or attorney fees attributable to such negligent act, and shall 

not apply to loss, damages expenses or attorney fees attributable to the negligence of 

the Lessee.  Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the 

State’s sovereign immunity, which immunity is hereby expressly reserved. The 

foregoing indemnification by Lessee will not extend to conditions not attributable to 

Lessee prior to the Effective Date. 

 

ARTICLE X - GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 10.01 Lessor’s Right of Entry.   Lessor and Lessor’s authorized representatives 

shall have the right to enter the Premises, including all Buildings and Improvements, at 

all reasonable times for the purposes of determining whether the Premises and Building 

and Improvements are in good condition, to make necessary repairs or perform any 

329



 

BOISE AIRPORT LEASE 
 

23 

 

maintenance, to serve any notice required or allowed under this Lease.  Lessor shall 

give Lessee at least 24 hours’ notice prior to entering the Premises, except in the case 

of an emergency involving the potential or actual imminent harm to person or property in 

which case no advance notice shall be required.  

10.02 Improvements upon Termination or Expiration.    

Title to all buildings, structures and improvements that now, or may from time to 

time constitute a part of the Premises that are now, or may from time to time be, used, 

or intended to be used in connection with the Premises shall be and remain Lessor’s 

through the expiration or termination of this Lease.  

Lessee, on expiration or termination of this Lease, shall execute and deliver any 

and all deeds, bills of sale, assignments and other documents which in Lessor’s sole 

judgment may be necessary or appropriate to transfer, to evidence or to vest in Lessor 

clear title to any of the property described in the foregoing subsection located on the 

Premises at the time of such expiration or termination.  

Lessee, in addition, shall deliver to Lessor on expiration or termination of this 

Lease originals or copies of any plans, reports, contracts or other items relating to the 

buildings, structures and improvements of the Premises, to the extent that Lessee has 

the same in its possession.  

The following shall be considered the personal property of the Lessee and shall 

be removed by Lessee upon the termination or expiration of the Lease, at its sole cost 

and expense:     

Office furniture, personal effects of employees, computers, copiers, office 

supplies, aircrafts, aircraft parts, tools, etc. 

Lessor may additionally require Lessee to conduct reasonable, commonly 

accepted testing procedures at Lessee’s expense to demonstrate that the land has not 

been degraded during the Lessee’s tenancy including, but not limited to Phase I, Phase 

II and/or similar environmental tests.   Lessee shall remediate, remove and dispose of 

any tanks and/or environmental condition(s) on the Premises at its sole cost.  All 

removals of soil and/or improvements including, but not limited to, underground and/or 

above ground storage tanks, shall be in compliance with all Applicable Environmental 

Laws. Lessee shall immediately provide to Lessor a copy of all relevant documentation 

330



 

BOISE AIRPORT LEASE 
 

24 

 

received by Lessee during the course of the remediation, removal and/or disposal.  The 

provisions of this section shall be deemed to be a separate contract between the parties 

and shall survive the expiration or any default, termination or forfeiture of this Lease. 

 10.03 Subordination to Agreements with the United States.  This Lease is 

subject and subordinate to the provisions of any agreement heretofore or hereafter 

made between the Lessor and the United States Government relative to the operation 

or maintenance of the Boise Airport, the execution of which has been required as a 

condition precedent to the transfer of federal rights or property to the Lessor for Boise 

Airport purposes, or the expenditure of federal funds for the improvement or the 

development of the Boise Airport, including the expenditure of federal funds for the 

development of the Boise Airport in accordance with the provisions of the Federal 

Aviation Act of 1958, as it has been amended from time-to-time. Lessor covenants that 

it has no existing agreements with the United States government in conflict with the 

express provisions hereof. 

10.04 Time is of the Essence.  Time is and shall be deemed of the essence in 

respect to the performance of each provision of this Lease. 

 10.05 Unavoidable Delay.  If either party will be delayed or prevented from the 

performance of any act required by this Lease by reason of acts of God, strikes, 

lockouts, labor troubles, inability to procure materials, restrictive governmental laws, or 

regulations or other cause, without fault and beyond the reasonable control of the party 

obligated (financial inability excepted), performance of the act will be excused for the 

period of the delay, and the period for the performance of any act will be extended for a 

period equivalent to the period of the delay; provided, however, nothing in this section 

will excuse Lessee from the prompt payment of any rent or other charge required of 

Lessee except as may be expressly provided elsewhere in this Lease. 

 10.06 Notices.  All notices provided to be given under this Lease shall be given 

by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, postage fully prepaid, 

addressed to the proper party at the following addresses: 

 

 LESSOR: Boise Airport 
   Attn: Property & Contract Administrator 
   3201 Airport Way, Suite 1000 

331



 

BOISE AIRPORT LEASE 
 

25 

 

   Boise, Idaho 83705 
    
   
 LESSEE: Idaho Transportation Department 
   Attn: Chief Administrative Officer 
   3311 West State Street 
   Boise, Idaho 83703 

 
 Any notice so given shall be deemed properly delivered, given, served, or 

received on the date shown for delivery or rejection on the return receipt.  Any party 

may change the address to which notices shall thereafter be given upon five (5) days 

prior written notice to all other parties in the manner set forth in this paragraph. 

 10.07 Attorney's Fees.  If either party brings any action or proceedings to 

enforce, protect or establish any right or remedy under the terms and conditions of this 

Lease, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover reasonable attorney's fees, as 

determined by a court of competent jurisdiction, in addition to any other relief awarded. 

 10.08 Agreement Made in Idaho.  The laws of the State of Idaho shall govern the 

validity, interpretation, performance and enforcement of this Lease.  Venue shall be in 

the courts in Ada County, Idaho. 

10.09 Cumulative Rights and Remedies.  All rights and remedies of Lessor here 

enumerated shall be cumulative and none shall exclude any other right or remedy 

allowed by law.  Likewise, the exercise by Lessor of any remedy provided for herein or 

allowed by law shall not be to the exclusion of any other remedy. 

 10.10 Interpretation.  Words of gender used in this Lease shall be held and 

construed to include any other gender, and words in the singular shall be held to include 

the plural and vice versa unless the context otherwise requires. 

 10.11 Agreement Made in Writing.  This Lease contains all of the agreements 

and conditions made between the parties hereto and may not be modified orally or in 

any manner other than by agreement in writing signed by the parties hereto or their 

respective successors in interest.  This Lease may only be amended by a document 

signed by both parties. The recitals and exhibits are hereby incorporated herein by 

reference and made a part of this Lease. 

 10.12 Paragraph Headings.  The Table of Contents of this Lease and the 

captions of the various articles and sections of this Lease are for convenience and ease 

332



 

BOISE AIRPORT LEASE 
 

26 

 

of reference only, and do not define, limit, augment or describe the scope, context or 

intent of this Lease or any part or parts of this Lease. 

 10.13 Severability.  If any provision of this Lease is found by a court of 

competent jurisdiction to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, the remainder of this 

Lease will not be affected, and in lieu of each provision which is found to be illegal, 

invalid, or unenforceable, there will be added as part of this Lease a provision as similar 

to such illegal, invalid, or unenforceable provision as may be possible and be legal, valid 

and enforceable. 

 10.14 Successors and Assigns.  All of the terms, provisions, covenants and 

conditions of this Lease shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon Lessor and 

Lessee and their successors, assigns, legal representatives, heirs, executors and 

administrators. 

 10.15 Rules and Regulations.  Lessee shall observe and comply with all Laws 

and Rules and Regulations governing the conduct and operation of the Boise Airport 

whether established and promulgated by Lessor, by the Boise Airport Commission, by a 

political subdivision of the State of Idaho having jurisdiction, by the State of Idaho, or by 

the United States and its agencies thereof.  All Rules and Regulations now in existence, 

or as herein amended, or hereinafter promulgated and adopted, are incorporated herein 

and made a part hereof by reference. 

 10.16 Taxes and Other Charges.  Lessee is exempt from taxation pursuant to 

Idaho Code §§63-3622O and 63-602A.; 

 10.17 National Emergency.   In the event the rights and privileges hereunder are 

suspended for a period of greater than twenty-one (21) days by reason of war or other 

national emergency requiring occupation of the Premises by the federal government, 

either party shall have the option of terminating this Lease.  If this Lease is terminated 

as set forth in this paragraph, Lessor shall give Lessee thirty (30) days, or the maximum 

period that is reasonably practicable if such period is shorter than thirty days, to vacate 

the Premises.   

10.18  Authorization to Enter into Lease.  If Lessee signs this Lease on behalf of 

an entity, each of the persons executing this Lease on behalf of Lessee warrants to 

Lessor that Lessee is an entity duly authorized and formed pursuant to law, that Lessee 

333



 

BOISE AIRPORT LEASE 
 

27 

 

is qualified to do business in the State of Idaho, that Lessee has full right and authority 

to enter into this Lease, and that each and every person signing on behalf of Lessee is 

authorized to do so.  Upon Lessor's request, Lessee will provide evidence satisfactory 

to Lessor confirming these representations. 

10.19  Discrimination Prohibited. In accordance with Boise City Code, Lessee 

agrees, and it is a condition to the continuance of this Lease, that there will be no 

discrimination against, or segregation of, any person or group of persons on the basis of 

race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity/expression, creed, national 

origin, ancestry, age or disability in the leasing, subleasing, transferring, occupancy, 

tenure or use of the Premises or any portion thereof. 

ARTICLE XI – CIVIL RIGHTS PROVISIONS 

11.01 General Civil Rights Provision.   Lessee agrees to comply with pertinent 

statutes, Executive Orders and such rules as are promulgated to ensure that no 

person shall, on the grounds of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, age, or 

disability be excluded from participating in any activity conducted with or benefiting 

from Federal assistance.  If Lessee transfers its obligation to another, the transferee is 

obligated in the same manner as the Lessee.  

This provision obligates the Lessee for the period during which the property is 

owned, used or possessed by the Lessee and the airport remains obligated to the 

Federal Aviation Administration. This provision is in addition to that required by Title VI 

of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. 

 11.02 Compliance with Nondiscrimination Requirements.  As used in this 

section 11.02, “contractor” shall mean “Lessee.”   

During the performance of this contract, the contractor, for itself, its assignees, 

and successors in interest (hereinafter referred to as the “contractor”) agrees as 

follows: 

1. Compliance with Regulations:  The contractor (hereinafter includes 

consultants) will comply with the Title VI List of Pertinent Nondiscrimination 

Acts And Authorities, as they may be amended from time to time, which are 

herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this contract. 

334



 

BOISE AIRPORT LEASE 
 

28 

 

2. Non-discrimination:  The contractor, with regard to the work performed by it 

during the contract, will not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, or 

national origin in the selection and retention of subcontractors, including 

procurements of materials and leases of equipment.  The contractor will not 

participate directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by the 

Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities, including employment practices when 

the contract covers any activity, project, or program set forth in Appendix B of 

49 CFR part 21.  

3. Solicitations for Subcontracts, Including Procurements of Materials and 

Equipment:  In all solicitations, either by competitive bidding, or negotiation 

made by the contractor for work to be performed under a subcontract, 

including procurements of materials, or leases of equipment, each potential 

subcontractor or supplier will be notified by the contractor of the contractor’s 

obligations under this contract and the Nondiscrimination Acts And Authorities 

on the grounds of race, color, or national origin.   

4. Information and Reports:  The contractor will provide all information and 

reports required by the Acts, the Regulations, and directives issued pursuant 

thereto and will permit access to its books, records, accounts, other sources 

of information, and its facilities as may be determined by the sponsor or the 

Federal Aviation Administration to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with 

such Nondiscrimination Acts And Authorities and instructions.  Where any 

information required of a contractor is in the exclusive possession of another 

who fails or refuses to furnish the information, the contractor will so certify to 

the sponsor or the Federal Aviation Administration, as appropriate, and will 

set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information. 

5. Sanctions for Noncompliance:  In the event of a contractor’s noncompliance 

with the Non-discrimination provisions of this contract, the sponsor will 

impose such contract sanctions as it or the Federal Aviation Administration 

may determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited to: 

335



 

BOISE AIRPORT LEASE 
 

29 

 

a. Withholding payments to the contractor under the contract until the 

contractor complies; and/or 

b. Cancelling, terminating, or suspending a contract, in whole or in part. 

6. Incorporation of Provisions:  The contractor will include the provisions of 

paragraphs one through six in every subcontract, including procurements of 

materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the Acts, the 

Regulations and directives issued pursuant thereto.  The contractor will take 

action with respect to any subcontract or procurement as the sponsor or the 

Federal Aviation Administration may direct as a means of enforcing such 

provisions including sanctions for noncompliance.  Provided, that if the 

contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with litigation by a 

subcontractor, or supplier because of such direction, the contractor may 

request the sponsor to enter into any litigation to protect the interests of the 

sponsor.  In addition, the contractor may request the United States to enter 

into the litigation to protect the interests of the United States. 

11.03 Clauses for Construction/Use/Access to Real Property Acquired Under the 

Activity, Facility or Program.  

A. The Lessee for himself/herself, his/her heirs, personal representatives, 

successors in interest, and assigns, as a part of the consideration hereof, 

does hereby covenant and agree as a covenant running with the land that (1) 

no person on the ground of race, color, or national origin, will be excluded 

from participation in, denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to 

discrimination in the use of said facilities, (2) that in the construction of any 

improvements on, over, or under such land, and the furnishing of services 

thereon, no person on the ground of race, color, or national origin, will be 

excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or otherwise be 

subjected to discrimination, (3) that the Lessee will use the premises in 

compliance with all other requirements imposed by or pursuant to the List of 

discrimination Acts And Authorities. 

336



 

BOISE AIRPORT LEASE 
 

30 

 

B. With respect to leases, in the event of breach of any of the above 

nondiscrimination covenants, Lessor will have the right to terminate the lease 

and to enter or re-enter and repossess said land and the facilities thereon, 

and hold the same as if said lease had never been made or issued. 

11.04 Title VI List of Pertinent Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities. .   As 

used in this section 11.04, “contractor” shall mean “Lessee.”   

During the performance of this contract, the contractor, for itself, its assignees, 

and successors in interest (hereinafter referred to as the “contractor”) agrees to comply 

with the following non-discrimination statutes and authorities; including but not limited 

to: 

• Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., 78 stat. 252), 
(prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin);  

• 49 CFR part 21 (Non-discrimination In Federally-Assisted Programs of The 
Department of Transportation—Effectuation of Title VI of The Civil Rights Act of 
1964);  

• The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 
1970, (42 U.S.C. § 4601), (prohibits unfair treatment of persons displaced or 
whose property has been acquired because of Federal or Federal-aid programs 
and projects);  

• Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, (29 U.S.C. § 794 et seq.), as 
amended, (prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability); and 49 CFR part 
27; 

• The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, (42 U.S.C. § 6101 et seq.), 
(prohibits discrimination on the basis of age); 

• Airport and Airway Improvement Act of 1982, (49 USC § 471, Section 47123), as 
amended, (prohibits discrimination based on race, creed, color, national origin, or 
sex);  

• The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, (PL 100-209), (Broadened the scope, 
coverage and applicability of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, The Age 
Discrimination Act of 1975 and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, by 
expanding the definition of the terms “programs or activities” to include all of the 
programs or activities of the Federal-aid recipients, sub-recipients and 
contractors, whether such programs or activities are Federally funded or not); 

• Titles II and III of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, which prohibit 
discrimination on the basis of disability in the operation of public entities, public 
and private transportation systems, places of public accommodation, and certain 

337



 

BOISE AIRPORT LEASE 
 

31 

 

testing entities (42 U.S.C. §§ 12131 – 12189) as implemented by Department of 
Transportation regulations at 49 CFR parts 37 and 38; 

• The Federal Aviation Administration’s Non-discrimination statute (49 U.S.C. § 
47123) (prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, and 
sex); 

• Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in 
Minority Populations and Low-Income Populations, which ensures non-
discrimination against minority populations by discouraging programs, policies, 
and activities with disproportionately high and adverse human health or 
environmental effects on minority and low-income populations; 

• Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited 
English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin discrimination 
includes discrimination because of limited English proficiency (LEP).  To ensure 
compliance with Title VI, you must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP 
persons have meaningful access to your programs (70 Fed. Reg. at 74087 to 
74100); 

• Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, which prohibits you 
from discriminating because of sex in education programs or activities (20 U.S.C. 
1681 et seq). 

[Signatures to Follow] 

338



 

BOISE AIRPORT LEASE 
 

32 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands as of 

the Effective Date stated above.  

 
LESSOR: 
 
BOISE CITY,  
a municipal corporation formed and existing pursuant 
to Title 50, Idaho Code    
 
 
By:    
 David H. Bieter    
 MAYOR    
 
 
 
 
ATTEST:   
 Lynda Lowry 
 EX-OFFICIO CITY CLERK 
 
 

 

339



 

BOISE AIRPORT LEASE 
 

33 

 

LESSEE: 
 
IDAHO TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT 
 
 
By __________________________ 
                                                                                           
Printed Name: _________________ 
  
Title: _________________________ 
 

340



 

BOISE AIRPORT LEASE 
 

34 

 

EXHIBIT A-1 
 

PREMISES DESCRIPTION 
 

 
ITD aero is located at 1600 W. Gowen Road, Boise, Idaho 83705 and includes 
approximately 1.79 acres/78,000 sf of real property. 
 

 

341



 

BOISE AIRPORT LEASE 
 

35 

 

EXHIBIT A-2 
IMPROVEMENTS 

 
ITD aero lease will include improvements as follows: 
Hangar:  12,000 sf 
Office:        5,400 sf 
Total     17,540 sf 
 

342



“3 0 m 0 ± C -I -T
i 0 C
) C z 0 -4 :0 C C
)

—
I 0 z

4C
r

3
t
i
o

0
4

N
3

i0
O

M
9

l
-5

13
10

C
C

0
5

’

o
n

o
o

n
,’

C
Q

9

/1
7

Ii

04
—

I

V
IV

O
1
D

ro
sd

/
-

-

—
w

II
I

O
4
4
d

t*
l

10
n
i4

’o
7V

D
II

N
IA

C
l3

lW
lt

aO
N

51
1

a
O

C
l

S
C

a
iN

A
a
n

li
v

4
iw

lc
Ii

&
3

O
N

3
N

C
H

d
tl

d
•9

C
a4

j
4
3
ls

’s
fl

ld
’F

v
.n

O
-1

*
lO

3
V

d
d

5
1
i1

M
fl

if
ld

E
N

C
•i

y
H

ip
iO

o

‘S
W

i
e
t
j
v
3
&

i
0
1
0
i

Ii
W

O
Z

O
fl

’O
S

1
0
1
0
1

Ii
3
fl

%
O

1
0
1
0
1

L
l’

4
d

t0
1
0
1
0
1

3
1
F

4
d
n
l

lM
i3

l
O

ti
lN

fl

SI
M

O
N

A
N

N
II

N
V

S

1
ii

1
13

f
la

t

1
s
v
)
e
I

i
n
’
-
.

M
t

r
1

S

15
11

0

l
u
S

W
i’

0
tl

1
N

I
M

s
4
il

1
0
1

C
O

N
jO

in
t

10
0
4
0
1

i
<

v
t
t
a

5
1
M

ti
1

ID
01

10
1

O
M

IC
C

a
1

0
1

Yi
N

0
’O

d
4
0
1

1
1

0
1

•F
3
4

•
i
S

.
fl

M
W

9

3
S

F
5
.0

1
,

0
4
1
0
1
3

c
l
—

l
w

,

I,
:

w
w

M
f
lf

l

N
O

II
W

U
G

4I
1I

A
3
A

fl
S

4
W

C
tO

0
3t

51
4

10
lA

n

o
n

o
v

9
5
1
0
3

3
iC

l1
K

4
1
1
0

f
l
•
I
f
l
n
N

l
v
Q

v
f
l
4

4
n

l
u

f
l
h

t
W

l
S

1
0
1
1
3

p
.5

2
1

0
.4

1
5

0
O

bY
d

1
4

1
1

)3
1

N
w

9
10

A
ll

)
3
.5

4
)1

cr
C

a.
fi

l4
10

11
N

In
p
O

li
In

31
40

01
11

11
51

3
)1

1
3
3
1
0
.0

.’

34
Q

N
d

3A
I1

V
.L

N
3S

33
d3

èI
A

O
N

]e
v

M
Il

Il
fl

4’ )1
0

1
0
1

ID
’

“
l
i
s
t

‘N jo
t

-‘
O

s

ON V ‘N
d

3
d

ON
’

N 11
4

41 W
V •I
l

l1 11
04

S
3M

IF
IN

JS
3N

d3
U

.4
J.

Il
Il

fl

a
’ /

N
V

O
N

V
H

J.
S3

M
,A

M
S

O
N

II
SI

X
]

S
N

O
II

vI
A

2O
O

V

•C
C

d
S

M
O

tv
td

04
I

ra
Ip

-b
d
C

C
v

w
fi

d
0

1
1

0
l

a
n

9
t-

fl
p

W
id

0
1
1
0
0
1
0

0
1

1
3

0
O

W
i

Il
-n

d
51

10
(1

10
00

fl

1
0
1
1
3
1
0
1
4
5
1
1
1
4

V
I’

O
W

.
O

v
id

li
lt

_
fl

I
1
_
fl

I
ll

N
IW

i
‘r

id
.s

t_
n

I
li

lt
C

l)

w
’
l.

J
J
tn

I
O

O
t

i-
fl

1
3

1
3
1
3
1

1A
M

I
n

53
10

11
5

31
11

1
C

l)

X
]O

N
I

I3
3H

S

/
I!

/

-I /

/ /

/ S
•
—

/

M
’O

sN
O

Z
9
5

1
0

4

W
’
O

l’
9

0
.3

1
1

0
5

1
0

1
0

1
1

1

.5
3
4

A
lM

‘4
10

9
Ia

h
Il

t3
C

3
d

0
d

0
$

4

3
0
v
4

4
fl

U
0
1
0
0
1
0
9
4

3
0

lW
N

I
94

41

k
N

A
3

l0
1

S
0

1
0

9
d

il
-o

Il
1
1

9
4

1
5

0
)3

0
1

1
0

1
1

11
41

0
I
I

1
4
1
0

3
4

1
0

3
1

0
4

1
)0

4

3
S

W
0

3
1

5
1

1
1

1
3

4
5

4
9
1
4
3
3
1
0
1
0
9
1

1
0

4
1

1
3

1
3

5
1

3
9

1
1

1
1

4
w

,
0

3
7

0
4

0
0

1

nO
M

0
3
5
0
1
0
2
4

4
4
0
4

1
0

1
4

0
3

0
0

4
0

,4
1

1

I’
C

kA
1
1

1
3

0
3

0
3

1
0

4
0

9
4

O
lI

n
91

11
11

0
.5

0
4
0
9
4

10
(1

11
3

1
4

0
3
5
0
1
1
0
9
4

—
1
3
1

Iw
l

3
0
0
3
1
’

O
fl

l
0
3
5
0
4
0
9
4

11
31

1
C

lw
,l

,C
,O

N
N

O
d
o
.o

d

jl
W

O
1
0
1
1
fl

5
0
9

V
)
1
I
1
O

I
W

d

1
0
9
m

n
.e

w
lD

it
0
3
4
0
4
0
4
4

Ip
o

W
fl

fl
0
fl

o
N

4

11
31

1*
41

11
13

11
11

10
31

04
03

4

4
1
0
4

11
01

1
30

1’
—

IN
a

03
10

11
03

4

9
2
(1

5
0
3
1
1
0
4
0
9
4

3
1
4
1
1
1
0
4
1
5
5
W

la
lM

Il
O

0
3
3
0
1
0
9
4

3
1
4
1
i
a
i
o
s

•W
N

11
51

34
03

10
11

19
11

11
43

11
01

0
1
0
3
d

3•
41

1
3
1
0
(1

0
3
1
0
4
0
9
4

3
9

1
4

1
3
1
1
0
3
1
0
4
0
9
4

3
3

5
1

1
0

1
0

1
0

0
1

0
3

1
0

4
0

9
4

L
11

30
14

0d
40

1
4
0
3
0
3
1
0
1
0
0
4

1
1
1
1

1
4

1
7

4
0

3
1

0
.0

2
.

•
v
l1

A
0

lI
01

01
1

A
w

&
jt

t
F

1
N

O
W

S

03 z

I
—

l-
4
1

-
_

_
_

-
—

—
01

54

-a
- * -0 4 m S •0 S__El

__

0
0

11
11

1

r
i -I

/

O
N

]0
31

5
1

9
0

15
4

6
tO

fl
lj

4
1
$
)

1
”
1
D

3
l0

3
d

C
li

v
3
3
5
3
0
1

1
1

1
1

W
]

0
1

S
s
ll

lv
i

A
S

4
0
1
1
0

A
V

Il
‘1

34
44

9
0
3
5
0
1
0

T
IN

O
N

51
41

,
3
0
4

rl
IS

.1
0

4
1

5
1

3
01

1
0
1
C

4
3
1
1
3
1
0
0

31
11

3
4

1
1

9
0

4
3

0
4

)4
3

1
1

1
1

0
)

31
10

43
0

I1
m

1
IW

0
*
4
1
5
1
(3

T
3
1

4
0

1
0

0
0

L
v

3
0

1
lO

W
!

1
4
L

34
14

12
3L

30
T

T
I1

,1
40

11
10

11
40

)
34

1
30

30
31

4)
5

N
O

I1
)n

1
1
1
sI

4
0
0

3
4
1

4
0

4
1

3
5

1
,4

0
9

0
,4

1
.3

5
3

11
3

1
1
0
0
4
1
1
0
1

W
0

1
)5

4
M

N
O

S
3

JI
U

4
0

A
1
J3

1
5
1
N

0
4
0
1
1

O
H

S
3
9

1
7
0
4
4

13
4

0
1

1
1

0
8

1
1

1
0

3
0
1

1
0
3
3
1

1
)8

0
A

71
L

31
14

A
0W

dW
P

11
00

44
31

,4
’

S
a
Il

ii
li

fl
0

1
0

4
0

8
0

3
3

0
4

3
0
5
9
1
1
0
1

4
0

4
0

0
1

3
0

0
1

31
41

-3
01

01
4

15
9

:l
v

la
1
M

0
1
4
I0

3
0
U

1
0
!I

0
03

40
11

31
94

40
00

01
10

51
34

1

0
1

1
]‘

W
1

0
1

0
1
1
4
0

D
IG

n
O

,
3

€
0

4
11

1,
0

343



I0
’V

’t
14

4
P

IA
C

I
1
1
0
1
2
W

4
0
’

1
3
—

I
c
lJ

t.
c
v

Ir
C

d
0
*
1

1
I
a
i
f
l
L

31
0’

T
hc

%
1
0
1
3
1
4
V

1
0
2

‘I

I
b

0
.
I

3
F

.)
1
a

t
•
J

1
1

0
1

1
*

4
,

1
1
1
*
0
2
.
O

I
l
f
l

W
4

l,
3

fl
4

3
n
i
i
y
i
c
i
n
’
;

cl

v
_
I

10
0’

t0
0
f
l

I
i

ll
s
4

tI
td

1
ll

fl
C

.
n
s
n
)

tI
lK

G
fl

h
IO

O
If

l’
a
q
2

.0
,a

fl
.1

0
0

1
I

-E
ll

a
1
0
4
1
1
1
1
)

i.
2

M
It

1
1

3
1

1
1

0
K

G
1

•
O

1
d
ll

l
IC

ll
O

J
1
4
1
4
3
-I

l
1

0
0

1
V

3
0
0

1
0

1
0

0
1

t
fl

V
j

W
t
4

4
1W

4

lO
w

ld
1
1
1
1
*
1

0
a
4

4
4

li
o

I
c
r
.’

l0
.f

lL
IO

e
3
Ib

fl
V

II
fl

3
1
O

01
01

00
I

1
4

1
0

3
’O

01
14

S
Im

m
.0

‘
t
W

3
t
2
f
l
f
r
l

lv
w

0
•y

Io
0
s

1
1

1
)0

1
4

1

w
iI

V
0

0
0

l2
4

C
d

4
3

1
1

fl
1
W

d
0
*
3
0
1
’O

fl
S

T
lf

lh
l

f
ll

3
ll

f
l

14
11

10
3

l0
0
d
*
.a

o
3
lo

lo
lf

l0
lM

rn
c
lZ

c
S

to
ly

O
)4

1
0
0
2

0
1

0
0

W
4

31
11

01
£1

32
01

01
3
q
I
h

0
1

0
0

4
4

1
0

3
1

3
1

0
1

0
3

1
1

3
1

2
3

3
1

0
0

3
0
4
1
*
3

31
30

2’
dO

2
-‘

0
I*

l3
0

40
41

01
11

4
1
IW

U
O

II
$
C

0
V

D
I

0
3
0
1
4

21
11

tI
lt

O
IC

31
*

0
0

4
4

1
4

4
1
1
1
1
4
1
0
1

3
4

0
fl

0
’4

1
1

0
0

4
0

1
’)

4
1
3
1

3
4
0
0
1

h
O

w
l

01
10

11
1
1
1
0
t4

1
1
1
4
1

0
*

1
3

2
1

li
lU

lt
l

II
30

01
,1

10
I
r
t
n
n

1
1
1
3
1
1
.1

0
t1

T
1
3
2
4
Il

n
*

2
4

0
1

1
0

0
1

1
3

1
£

1
0

0
3

1
4
4
1

31
f
ll

l4
0
1
’

3
*
1
1
.0

0
2

4
0
L

l0
U

0
2

II
I

10
li

tI
I
a
n

—
l

0
0
)1

*
1
4
1
1
*
3
1
0
1

L
0

to
T

h
20

D
n
a

0
a
1
,-

n
n
lo

*
v
n
a
l,

1
3
l4

0
1
2
3

*
3
0
0
3
1
1
*
3
1
1
1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
0

1
I
a
S

1
0
0
f
lt

’
4
1
0
3
_
l0

I
1
h
0
f
lI

t3
t0

3
I
)

II
I

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
I
lI

1
I
0
0
0
-
s
O

lO
n
lo

e
O

.)
4
.h

ll
)
3
1
0
:l

3
I
,c

.r
c
0
0
1
2
,T

h
I

0
2

L
.4

03
3

0
)1

1
0

lI
lt

1
1
1
1
0
3
1

0
1
0
4

11
,3

0
iA

-I
l

n
I

S
3I

O
N

p
N

O
E

S
Y

3.
13

10
3k

02
N

!1
S

IY
3

4
It

0*
ci

I

3d
t’

S
G

W
S

l M
i’

I

__
__

__
__

__
__

1
0
4
1
r1

3
w

4
2
1
3
1
1

I
I

1
1
3
1
3
1
0
1

M
il

l
I•

•.
I

0N
3S

31

t 0 —
I

-n 0 0 a 2 (/
2 —.
4

C 0 —
I

C 2

-

4
.>

I
0
0
i

11
)1

)1
1
l
J

SI

3
-0

-1
.4

4
0
1
1
3
1
)0

.2
1
4

.1
12

1
S

o
if

ln
h
•3

0
1
1
0
1

1
0
k
;
1

r
i

1
0
3
.1

II
7
,1

3
0
1
0
4

l
I
l
t

1
0
*
1
0

D
IC

II
1
1
0
1
W

<
01

3
1
1
0
0
1
1
1
0
7
4
.3

0
1

f
l
d
%

0
1

0
1

1
1

1
1

0
3

0

f
l”

1
3
I

1
0
.1

0
1
.
#
i

10
21

31
I
3

l
a
o

O
W

L

1
0

1
3

*
1

1
f
l

‘0
1
1
0
4
3
4
1
1
4
1
1
3
0
1
1
0
2

1
1
f
l)

-.
lI

io
.4

0
0

o
’a

ra
<

S
I)

0
1

1
0
0

I
3
0
5
1
1

5
3

.
00

0’
;
;f

l,
0
tI

ty
il

O
n

lI
O

lt

3
1

4
1

1
0

3
1

I
W

I
tI

I
I
I

1
0
4
1
2
1
1
0
.0

1
i3

0
l1

l.
0
o
2

1
0
-1

)1
1
1
0
*
3
3
1
1
4
4
1
0
0
0
0
1
1

II
5

0
3
*
1
1
1
0
1

-I
I

1
0

1
.4

0
0

v
,I

1
Ij

0
1
D

3
fl

l
Q

10
;V

0
1
M

a
t

3
*

0
4

4
0

‘
I

ll
4
1
1
h
il

o
t.

1
M

b
1
ll

)1
tT

w
1
Il

4
SI

II
I

D
F

.O
If

lc
c
ll

o
IP

t

1
0
0
I0

fl
4
h
O

O
1
1
2
m

W
I1

4
1
0
a
*
*
l1

0
3
1
m

O
3

11
1

0
tI

C
f
l;

,
1
4
0
1
1
1
1
1
1
0
1
1
1
1
0
0
0
2

II

(I
I

5
3

.0
4

1
1

1
1

4
0

1
1
1
0
5
0
1
1
1
1
1
2
1
1
0
0
0
1
1
1
1
0
0
0
0
1
1

‘I
I

0
1
4
1
0
0
3
0
1
3
3
1
0
0
1

1
0
4
t4

0
3
0
0
W

It
1
3
0
lI

E
0
1
1
0
3
1
1
3
1
0
1
1
1
4
II

1
2
1
1
1

3
1
1
0
7
0
2
1
0
l

11
10

*1
44

41
14

11
01

11
10

00
10

.t
I

a
1

1
*

4
1
1
1
0
1
3
*
1
0
0
0
4
3
*
1
0
-t

0
1

1
0

1
1

0
4

3
0

1
3

*
0

)
3
1
0
3
n
lI

3
4
2
3
:0

0
2

(
I
I

£
3

3
1

1
3

0
3

0
1

4
4

0
0

0
1

*
o

,4
3

4
it

1
l
t
t

1
0

01
O

W
Y

I

3
0

—
c
l
..

a
v
,.

n
s
s
o
,,
o

.c

0
0
1
4
0
0
)4

1
1
0
4
4
1
1
5

1
1

-1
1

1
0

1
:5

4
0

0
1

2
0

4
1

I
1

0
)
1

0
M

1
*
2
3
:0

.0
4

I

ll
t0

S
1
0
4
0
0
3
*

0
8

1
2

0

tr
o
t

2
4

4
1

01
4

0
1

U
1

I0
0

’V
*

0
0

S
L

O
N

A
35

i0
3M

A
Y

S
3)

4
ra

n

34

E

I
13

tfW
O

N
W

li
a
ll

C
3

c
o

d
e

0
4

1
0
1
2
1
.3

$

L
IW

0
II

II
II

6 2 m 30 (0 -0 30 Il
l 0 0 I

1-
m

i-I
d
sv

O
iS

O
d
O

N
d

I’

I
.

‘2

\1

-
-s

1’
V

:i
l
3

-
-
“
I

S
A

Y
M

I)
(Y

I
a

iS
0
4
0

0
4

b
-
1
2
0
4

3
0
4
1
0
0
0
1
0
1
1
1
1
0
1

lA
in

C
•

0
1
0

0
•

•
•

*
o

1
0

4
.

•

*

;-
&

.$
f
l
-

i
I.
:
t

‘
k
.
)
:
i
k

3
-

•
o

1
1
,

1
0
4

•
*

4
4

4
4

4
4

4
3

N
1

344



• A,chitecture • PlarrnLng
• 0257 Wae Rje $,na. u1 0(0 I Sot... Jd.ho 83702

2*34S.05M 20&549.P18 I OfIktOIjCanI

—•2z1r

•

-. C 2019 T0 ENGIPEORS. ThIS INSTRIJtENTISflE PROPERlY tOENG4EER3, W REPRODUCTiON ROUSE OR MODIFICATiON 0€ THIS INSTRAENTOR ITS CONTSNTSVCNOUTSPEC$lC 4M1TTEN PEAISEI0N O€T.0 ENGINEERS IS flICThY PROIIIRTED

C —

z

jo

-U
r

z

;Giancey • Rockwell & Associates

>
0!

CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS FOR:

lTD AERONAUTICS HANGAR
—

3OPERCCNTSET

T0 ENGINEERS

CONSULT1IENGPIEERS• SURVEYORS I PIAINERE

47I S• IITNtSS PlACE
MERIcnd LOAJID 0X42

Co.l StOitl jo.OW. ,Oao.jcSoj.o

345



C 2019 T-O ENGINEERS. NS HSTRLSAENT IS WE PROPERTY OP T.O ENG1NSP.RS. NW REPROOU01& REUSE OR MOVIRCM1ON OF INS ISTRtNT OR ITS CWITTNTS IWYtCUT SPECIFIC YATTUI PEmSsCN OP T0 EIOINM IS SI1IEflY PRON1Ea

- flcflT

Ill

-I
m

H

I-. ... --

H
H 5—

-

r

:Glancey • Rockwell & Associates

1251 Wnt RJ.ømt Srscn. .ula ‘10 I Boise. Idaho 93102
r.Z0S.J4L096 206J4t17rn I e.ollkafll.c..n

cOULU;a:J

n_fl
.__•-... -——I—_.__.—

ft

Tr’ -—

—
-

S
- -—

I

I

....-, -

H1
---11

-41.

-i
--9

-t

-I.

H

z
0
-4

m
rm

0z

-€1

Archizecwre • Planning

CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS FOR:

lTD AERONAUTICS HANGAR
30 PERCENr SET

C T-O ENGINEERS

tG4ftjsCC5t4

346



C 2Q19 O t,ae,s. ,ns ISTR1ke.fl is nt nongn topa,n MItaneacsMCacmA1n4 tovaamsn ITS catyan Vinci? WORC VKfl84psE T.ovqQflOIS Is SWIX parw.

(0
0
C
-I
I
m
r

_

-4

-z

_

4

____-

zzJt

— --. .

Glancey • Rockwell & Associates
Architecnite • Planning

1257 Wt RIwrSit. .u1 110 I Bofac. td.ho 83702
I,. 2.345.Qilt Zj4LI7I5 I offktQ*ob.wn.

0

N

C
ZflI S nwa.a. P.AtX

I€DII& EMO 1C
P.C —ns —.w

..flao-

-3

rn
-in

Z_4

m

-

__J:

CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS FOR

lTD AERONAUTICS HANGAR
30 PERCENT SET

347



1*

n

*

4-,

—Il 1

I. —

I
I

I

- T I

r
ir

--U].!s;r i-.____

_

5: - -4:

*: -;W

348



-
-

-r-:
—

-

T
-

-
-.j,

-
-

-
—

r-
-

-
-

I

r

,--,_.-
‘-

-

:
‘
-

—
-

-
.

—

H

1D
A

H
O

TR
A

N
SPO

R
TA

T
I O

N
’

D
EPA

R
TM

EN
T

I
L

14

N

I
!

IL
r

F

i
t

A-I

‘I
A

I
•
.

—
_

L
l
e
*
4
(

349



Lt
•. I

;..

4

1•

I’

:-i

I’

350



   

  CITY OF BOISE 
DEPARTMENT OF AVIATION 

BOISE AIRPORT 
 

PROPOSED TERM SHEET FOR RELOCATION OF AND LEASE FOR  
THE STATE OF IDAHO TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT –DIVISION OF 

AERONAUTICS 
 

Date: December 13, 2018 
 
The following are the proposed general terms for the termination of an Existing Lease and the terms 
of a Development Agreement (“Development Agreement”) and a new Lease Agreement (the “Lease 
Agreement”) by and between the City of Boise, Department of Aviation (“City”), and the State of 
Idaho Transportation Department, Division of Aeronautic (“ITD”), for the lease of the Leased 
Premises located at Boise Airport (Gowen Field) in Ada County, Idaho (the “Airport”). 

BACKGROUND 

The Airport desires to construct Concourse A, which construction will require the relocation of the 
ITD hangar.  ITD currently leases approximately 78,375 square feet of land from Airport pursuant to 
that Agreement of Lease dated September 15, 1975 as approved by Boise City Council Resolution 
Number 3129 (the “Existing Lease”).  ITD has constructed improvements on its leased property, that 
include the current ITD hangar and offices (the “Existing Building”) along with the fences, parking 
lots and aircraft ramp (“Improvements”) at 3483 W. Rickenbacker Street, Boise, Idaho 83705. The 
Existing Building includes approximately 12,740 square feet as follows: 

6,200 square feet of hangar (100’ x 62’) 
6,540 square feet of office (3,420 sf on the first floor and 3,120 sf on the second floor) 

 
Airport intends to keep ITD whole by constructing a new hangar and office building for ITD at 
Airport’s cost and expense, and relocating ITD to the new hangar and office building.    
 

TERMS 

Construction of New Building and Improvements:  The City will design and construct a replacement 
hangar and office building including fences, access roads, parking lots, ramps and taxiways on a site 
located off of Gowen Road in an area identified on Exhibit “A” (the “New Building and 
Improvements”).  The site shall be the same general size as the Existing Lease and the New Building 
and Improvements will be the same general size as the Existing Building and Improvements. The City 
shall coordinate the design with ITD.  The parties will sign a Development Agreement that approves 
the design and construction of the new building and improvements and includes a construction 
timeline.    

Relocation:  Upon completion of the New Building and Improvements, the City will relocate, or 
contract for the relocation of all furniture and equipment.  ITD will relocate employees, personal 
vehicles and aircraft.   

Ownership of the Buildings and Improvements:  Upon completion of the Relocation ITD will quit 
claim deed the Existing Building and Improvements at 3483 W. Rickenbacker to the City.  The City 
will retain ownership of the New Building and Improvements. 

351



2 PHDATA 4062944_3

New Lease Agreement:  A lease template is attached for your review.  

Initial Term:  The term of the Lease Agreement shall remain the same as the current agreement.  There 
will be no additional rent for the building.  

The term shall begin the date the ITD relocates to the new lease premises and continue until June 30, 
2025 at a rate of One Dollar ($1.00) per annum.    

Renewal Term:  The ITD shall have the right, by providing City with 90-day written notice prior to 
the Initial Term expiration date of June 30, 2025, to renew the Lease for an additional term of ten (10) 
years (July 1, 2025-June 30, 2035) at a rental rate of $0.277 per square foot per year.  The square 
footage shall be determined by a Record of Survey to be provided by City upon completion of 
Construction of New Building and Improvements.  

Rental Rate:   

Initial Term (through June 30, 2025) shall remain One Dollar ($1.00) per year 

Renewal Term (July 1, 2025-June 30, 2035) shall be $0.277 per square foot of ground per year 
(“Renewal Rate”). This will be based upon a Record of Survey of the Leased Premises ground 
footprint.  The New Building and Improvements shall be included within the Renewal Rate. It is 
understood this rate reflects market rent and includes market adjustments during the renewal term. 

ITD may increase or decrease the size of the new building at their discretion during the design phase. 
Any increase or decrease in the footprint of the land size shall result in a corresponding increase or 
decrease in rent during the Renewal Term.  Any substantial increase in building size may result in a 
cost reimbursement to City based upon actual cost per square foot for the added construction plus a 
5% administrative and project management fee.  These costs would be negotiated prior to construction. 

Sublease and Lease Assignment:  Any subleasing or assignment of this lease may result in an increase 
of rental rates.  

Parking: Throughout the Initial Term and any extension thereof, the City will provide ITD with four 
(4) parking passes for use by Idaho State employees.  These passes will allow access to park at an
airport employee lot at the at the airport terminal.  The lot location shall be City’s sole discretion and
shall be in common with other airport employees.

Net Lease:  ITD agrees to maintain the building and grounds and insure the building and contents in 
accordance with the Lease. 

[SIGNATURES TO FOLLOW] 

352



 3 PHDATA 4062944_3 

Approved by 
 
For the City:   
 
By:    
 Rebecca Hupp, Airport Director 
    
Date: __________________________ 
 
For ITD: 
 
By: _________________________________ 
     Brian Ness, Director 
 
Date: __________________________ 

353



AERONAUTICS ADMINSTRATIVE BUILDING RESOLUTION – February 2019 

WHEREAS, the rapid growth at the Boise Airport requires that airport facilities expand into the area 
currently occupied by the ITD Aeronautics Administrative Building; and 

WHEREAS, the Idaho Transportation Department requires that the Division of Aeronautics operate and 
maintain aircraft for the purposes of state agency transportation services; and 

WHEREAS, the Idaho Transportation Department currently leases property from the City of Boise and 
owns the Aeronautics Hangar on that site; and 

WHEREAS, the Idaho Transportation Department is subject to the current lease of the Division of 
Aeronautics property which ends in 2025; and 

WHEREAS, the current Division of Aeronautics facility would need to be removed at the end of the lease; 
and 

WHEREAS, the City of Boise and the Boise Airport have agreed to build a new hangar facility and 
Administrative Building for ITD use at the City and Airport’s own cost; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Boise has agreed to remove the current ITD Aeronautics Administrative Building at 
the City’s own cost; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Boise agrees to honor the current lease conditions and rates in the new city 
owned building to the year 2025; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Boise and ITD have negotiated agreeable lease provisions for ITD’s consideration 
beyond 2025. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the members of the Idaho Transportation Board to authorize the 
Director of the Idaho Transportation Department to enter into the lease agreement between the City of 
Boise and the Idaho Transportation Department for this new site, building, and hangar. 

354



 Board Agenda Item ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13) 

Page 1 of 1 

Meeting Date February 21, 2019  

Consent Item   Information Item  Amount of Presentation Time Needed  15 Min 
 

Presenter's Name Presenter's Title Initials  

 

Reviewed By 

LSS 
      
      

David Tolman Controller DT  
Preparer's Name Preparer's Title Initials  

David Tolman Controller DT  
 
Subject 
State Fiscal Year 2019 Financial Statements 
Key Number District Route Number 

                  

Background Information 
July 01, 2018 thru December 31, 2018,  Fiscal Year 2019 Financial Statements 
 
The financial operations of the Department as of December 31, 2018 continues this fiscal year with revenue coming 
in ahead of forecast year-to-date after six months and the expenditures are following projected budgets.   

• Revenues to the State Highway Account from all state sources are ahead of forecast by 3.8%. Of that total, 
receipts from the Highway Distribution Account are ahead of forecast by 3.1% or $3.3M. Revenue in the 
ethanol exemption and registrations/fuel taxes direct to the State Highway Account are right on forecast.  
State revenues to the State Aeronautics Fund are ahead of forecast by 18% or $276,000.  Staff continues 
to monitor revenue and provide updates as needed. 

• Expenditures are within planned budgets YTD.  The differences are simply timing differences between 
planned and actual expenditures plus encumbrances estimated through the first six months of the year.  
Personnel costs have savings of $5.5 M or 10% is due to reserves for horizontal career path increases, 
vacancies and timing between a position becoming vacant and filled. 

• Contract construction cash expenditures for July to December of this year has exceeded any from the past 
three years:  FY19 = $289.1M; FY18 = $272.8M; FY17 = $158.2M.  After six months in this fiscal year this is 
a very positive result and will assist in helping ITD achieve its objective to reduce the outstanding obligated 
but un-spent balances in this category. 

 
The balance of the long term investments as of the end of December is $136 Million after redeeming $30M in 
October to meet cash flow requirements.  These funds are obligated against both construction projects and 
encumbrances.   The long term investments plus the cash balance of $56 totals $192M.  
  
Expenditures in the Strategic Initiatives Program Fund (GF Surplus), for the six months, were $10M.  Projects 
obligated from these funds are expected to have higher payouts over the next few months.  
 
Deposits into the new Transportation Expansion and Congestion Mitigation Fund of $8.6M is 6% ahead of forecast.  
The receipts into this fund for FY19 is committed to providing match on the INFRA grant. 

 

Recommendations 
For information. 

 

Board Action 

 Approved  Deferred        

 Other        
 

 

355



Expenditures by Type
FY18 Actual

YTD
FY19 Actual

YTD
FY19 Budget

YTD
FY19 to

FY18 Actual
FY 19 to
Budget

Personnel 55,589 56,808 63,306 2.2% -10.3%
Operating 54,463 51,779 51,373 -4.9% 0.8%
Capital Outlay 16,466 13,881 22,194 -15.7% -37.5%
Sub-Grantee 7,156 8,430 6,755 17.8% 24.8%

Totals Operations Expenses: 133,674 130,899 143,628 -2.1% -8.9%

Funds Received

FY18 Actual
YTD

FY19 Actual
YTD

FY19
Forecast

YTD
FY19 to

FY18 Actual
FY 19 to
Forecast

State Highway Account
  Federal Reimbursements 194,133 182,814 230,446 -5.8% -20.7%
  State (Inc. H.D.A.) 164,897 173,775 167,339 5.4% 3.8%
  Local 2,581 5,789 8,662 124.2% -33.2%

Total State Highway Account: 361,611 362,378 406,447 0.2% -10.8%

State Aeronautics Fund
  Federal Reimbursements 146 202 389 38.2% -48.0%
  State 1,546 1,782 1,506 15.3% 18.3%

Total State Aeronautics Fund: 1,692 1,984 1,896 17.3% 4.7%

Total Fund Received: 363,304 364,362 408,343 0.3% -10.8%

User ID: kbentley
Report ID: AD-FN-GL-010
Run Date: 7 Jan 2019
% of Time
Remainin
g:

50

Fiscal Year: 2019

Disbursements (includes Encumbrances)
FY18 Actual

YTD
FY19 Actual

YTD
FY19 Budget

YTD
FY19 to

FY18 Actual
FY 19 to
Budget

  Construction Payouts 273,447 293,778 337,564 7.4% -13.0%
0 0 0 7.4% 0

Operations Expenses
  Highways 94,724 90,321 102,294 -4.6% -11.7%
  DMV 22,533 20,736 20,937 -8.0% -1.0%
  Administration 14,507 13,796 15,128 -4.9% -8.8%
  Facilities 499 2,628 1,830 426.1% 43.6%
  Aeronautics 1,411 3,418 3,440 142.3% -0.6%
Total Operations Expenses: 133,674 130,899 143,628 -2.1% -8.9%

Transfers
  Operating 25 25 25 0.0% 0.0%
  Debt Service 10,491 10,903 10,880 3.9% 0.2%
Total Transfers: 10,516 10,928 10,905 3.9% 0.2%

Total Disbursements: 417,636 435,604 492,097 4.3% -11.5%

Idaho Transportation Department
SUMMARY OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

STATE HIGHWAY ACCOUNT AND STATE AERONAUTICS FUND
BUDGET TO ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR TO DATE - FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2018
(all amounts in '000)

Contract Construction 273,447 293,778 337,564 7.4% -13.0%
Totals (excluding Transfers): 407,121 424,677 481,192 4.3% -11.7%

356



Date Prepared:  1/7/2019

Includes Equipment Buy Back Program Misc. Revenue (RTA $338,099) and Transfers - In

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun
FY17 Actual Revenue 24.386 51.275 80.145 107.095 131.576 158.480 188.080 214.414 240.295 264.866 306.932 335.742
FY18 Actual Revenue 27.003 54.686 82.976 110.644 136.997 164.897 195.901 222.483 249.311 273.673 299.623 326.714
FY19 Current 29.298 57.454 84.752 114.108 142.878 173.775
FY19 Forecast 26.438 54.510 82.043 112.368 139.268 167.339 195.424 222.089 247.974 273.041 305.927 332.112

0.000

50.000

100.000

150.000

200.000

250.000

300.000

350.000
M

ill
io

ns

State Highway Fund 0260
Fiscal Year 2019

State Revenue Source Forecast vs Actual
September - For Period Ending  9/30/2013December - For Period Ending 12/31/2018

357



Date Prepared:  1/7/2019

Current =  Actual Payments and Encumbrances

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun
FY17 Actual Expenditures 58.348 120.371 163.661 202.889 240.383 282.297 316.027 341.550 366.385 390.985 424.174 495.603
FY18 Actual Expenditures 66.330 139.287 221.745 308.357 360.460 405.710 437.190 468.029 504.461 550.126 607.868 669.206
FY19 Current 95.849 163.446 238.100 316.163 372.747 422.734
FY19 Forecast 138.383 271.540 294.850 373.527 435.102 479.374 517.577 554.012 593.684 633.761 688.671 997.795

0.000

200.000

400.000

600.000

800.000

1000.000

M
ill

io
ns

State Highway Fund 0260
Fiscal Year 2019

Expenditures 
September - For Period Ending  9/30/2013December - For Period Ending 12/31/2018

358



Date Prepared:  1/7/2019

Includes Misc. Revenue and Transfers - In Misc. Revenue (RTA $0) and Transfers - In

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun
FY17 Actual Revenue 0.201 0.459 0.789 1.059 1.256 1.559 1.780 1.967 2.123 2.280 2.491 2.699
FY18 Actual Revenue 0.191 0.524 0.834 1.159 1.338 1.546 1.913 2.162 2.354 2.558 2.780 3.015
FY19 Current 0.234 0.538 0.943 1.265 1.563 1.782
FY19 Forecast 0.188 0.447 0.739 1.037 1.233 1.506 1.771 1.953 2.155 2.327 2.522 2.731

0.000

0.500

1.000

1.500

2.000

2.500

3.000

3.500
M

ill
io

ns

Aeronautics Fund 0221
Fiscal Year 2019

State and Interagency Revenue Sources Forecast vs Actual
September - For Period Ending  9/30/2013December - For Period Ending 12/31/2018

359



Date Prepared:  1/7/2019

Current = Actual Payments and Encumbrances

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun
FY17 Actual Expenditures 0.170 0.330 0.697 0.832 1.246 1.390 1.532 1.637 1.767 1.878 2.258 2.514
FY18 Actual Expenditures 0.645 0.778 0.999 1.131 1.262 1.411 1.685 1.894 2.299 2.522 2.909 3.220
FY19 Current 0.193 0.512 0.652 0.816 1.498 1.943
FY19 Forecast 0.199 0.359 0.814 0.945 1.123 1.818 2.014 2.211 2.436 2.622 2.887 4.949

0.000

1.000

2.000

3.000

4.000

5.000

6.000

M
ill

io
ns

Aeronautics Fund 0221
Fiscal Year 2019

Expenditures
September - For Period Ending  9/30/2013December - For Period Ending 12/31/2018

360



State Aeronautics Fund State Highway Fund Transportation Expansion and
Congestion Mitigation Fund

0221 0260 0269
Nov-18 Dec-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Nov-18 Dec-18

ASSETS
Total Cash on Hand (Change Fund) 0 0 5,845 5,845 0 0

Cash in Bank (Daily Operations) 2,452,348 1,734,558 58,409,483 56,260,356 29,618,841 31,025,714
Investments (Long Term: STO - Diversified Bond Fund) 833,401 834,972 136,003,409 136,262,874 0 0
            Total Cash & Investments 3,285,749 2,569,530 194,418,737 192,529,075 29,618,841 31,025,714

Total Receivables - Other 4,389 0 1,028,040 1,090,562 0 0
- Due From Locals (Project Overruns) 23,145 92,020 2,376,629 1,843,219 0 0
- Inter Agency 35,657 11,457 0 0 0 0

            Total Receivables 63,191 103,477 3,404,669 2,933,780 0 0

Inven Inventory on Hand (150) (150) 25,306,339 22,725,125 0 0
            Inventory on Hand (150) (150) 25,306,339 22,725,125 0 0

            Total Assets: 3,348,790 2,672,857 223,129,744 218,187,981 29,618,841 31,025,714

LIABILITIES
Liabil Vouchers Payable 0 0 0 23,918 0 0

Sales Tax Payable 0 0 5,108 4,399 0 0
Deferred Revenue (Local Projects Match) 0 0 28,368,624 28,421,155 0 0
Accounts Receivable Overpayment 0 0 0 0 0 0
Contractor Retained % (In Lieu Of Performance Bond) 0 0 179,483 95,903 0 0
            Liabilities 0 0 28,553,215 28,545,375 0 0

            Total Liabilities: 0 0 28,553,215 28,545,375 0 0

Idaho Transportation Department
OPERATING FUND BALANCE SHEET
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 12/31/2018

UserID: kbentley
Report ID: AD-FN-GL-002 
Run Date: 07 Jan 2019

Fiscal Year: 2019

Fund 0221 Fund 0260 Fund 0269
FUND BALANCE

Reserve for Encumbrance 747,255 205,438 49,327,877 45,820,666 0 0
3,348,790 2,672,857 251,682,959 246,733,355 29,618,841 31,025,714

Fund Balance 2,601,535 2,467,419 145,248,653 143,821,940 29,618,841 31,025,714
            Total Fund Balance: 3,348,790 2,672,857 194,576,530 189,642,606 29,618,841 31,025,714

            Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 3,348,790 2,672,857 223,129,744 218,187,981 29,618,841 31,025,714361



Strategic Initiatives Fund
(State Share)

Strategic Initiatives Fund
(Local Share)

Total Strategic Initiatives
Fund

BBreak 0270.02 0270.05 0270
Nov-18 Dec-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Nov-18 Dec-18

ASSETS
Total Cash on Hand (Change Fund) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Cash in Bank (Daily Operations) 53,197,006 51,761,407 24,285,694 24,338,231 77,482,700 76,099,637
Investments (Long Term: STO - Diversified Bond Fund) 0 0 0 0 0 0
            Total Cash & Investments 53,197,006 51,761,407 24,285,694 24,338,231 77,482,700 76,099,637

Total Receivables - Other 0 0 0 0 0 0
- Due From Locals (Project Overruns) 0 0 0 0 0 0
- Inter Agency 0 0 0 0 0 0

            Total Receivables 0 0 0 0 0 0
Invent Inventory on Hand 0 0 0 0 0 0

            Inventory on Hand 0 0 0 0 0 0

            Total Assets: 53,197,006 51,761,407 24,285,694 24,338,231 77,482,700 76,099,637

LIABILITIES
Liabilit Vouchers Payable 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sales Tax Payable 0 0 0 0 0 0
Deferred Revenue (Local Projects Match) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Accounts Receivable Overpayment 0 0 0 0 0 0
Contractor Retained % (In Lieu Of Performance Bond) 24,285 24,285 0 0 24,285 24,285
            Liabilities 24,285 24,285 0 0 24,285 24,285

            Total Liabilities: 24,285 24,285 0 0 24,285 24,285

Idaho Transportation Department
OPERATING FUND BALANCE SHEET
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 12/31/2018

UserID: kbentley
Report ID: AD-FN-GL-002 
Run Date: 07 Jan 2019

Fiscal Year: 2019

FUND BALANCE
Reserve for Encumbrance 0 0 0 0 0 0

53,221,291 51,785,691 24,285,694.11 24,338,230.61 77,506,984.92 76,123,921.99

Fund Balance 53,172,721 51,737,122 24,285,694 24,338,231 77,458,415 76,075,352
            Total Fund Balance: 53,172,721 51,737,122 24,285,694 24,338,231 77,458,415 76,075,352

            Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 53,197,006 51,761,407 24,285,694 24,338,231 77,482,700 76,099,637
362



User ID: kbentley
Report ID: AD-FN-GL-003 
Run Date: 07 Jan 2019
% of Time
Remaining: 50.0

Fiscal Year: 2019

Fund: 0260 State Highway Fund

Fiscal Year: 2019

Year to
Date

Allotment

Year to
Date Actual

Current
Month
Activity

Year to Date
Encumbrance

Variance
Favorable /
Unfavorable

Percent
Variance

Annual
Appropriation

Appropriation
Balance

Percent
Remaining

Budget Fiscal Year:    2019 (A) (B) (C) (D) (E = A - B - D) (F = E / A) (G) (H = G - B - D) (I = H / G)
REVENUES

Federal Sources
FHWA - Highway 203,202,280 161,961,681 28,286,459 0 (41,240,599) -20.30% 419,082,719 257,121,038 61.35 %
FHWA - Indirect Cost
Allocation 17,525,800 12,144,591 1,147,487 0 (5,381,209) -30.70% 25,000,000 12,855,409 51.42 %

Federal Transit Authority 6,400,000 5,056,106 501,034 0 (1,343,894) -21.00% 12,771,200 7,715,094 60.41 %
NHTSA - Highway Safety 3,050,000 3,151,177 269,814 0 101,177 3.32 % 4,546,900 1,395,723 30.70 %
Other Federal Aid 268,000 500,185 263,608 0 232,185 86.64 % 4,130,000 3,629,815 87.89 %

Total Federal Sources: 230,446,080 182,813,740 30,468,402 0 (47,632,340) -20.67% 465,530,819 282,717,079 60.73 %
State Sources

Equipment Buy Back 0 1,829,000 0 0 1,829,000 0.00 % 7,043,000 5,214,000 74.03 %
Miscellaneous Revenues 14,916,080 15,978,588 2,707,710 0 1,062,508 7.12 % 29,420,099 13,441,511 45.69 %

Total State Sources: 14,916,080 17,807,588 2,707,710 0 2,891,508 19.39 % 36,463,099 18,655,511 51.16 %
Local Sources

Match For Local Projects 8,662,380 5,172,609 613,472 0 (3,489,771) -40.29% 28,850,432 23,677,823 82.07 %
Other Local Sources 0 616,233 (7,990) 0 616,233 0.00 % 0 (616,233) 0.00 %

Total Local Sources: 8,662,380 5,788,842 605,482 0 (2,873,538) -33.17% 28,850,432 23,061,590 79.93 %
TOTAL REVENUES: 254,024,540 206,410,170 33,781,594 0 (47,614,370) -18.74% 530,844,350 324,434,180 61.12 %
TRANSFERS-IN

Highway Distribution Account 107,369,900 110,723,791 20,632,676 0 3,353,891 3.12 % 211,444,100 100,720,309 47.63 %
Fuel/Registration Direct 35,261,610 35,357,160 5,898,986 0 95,550 0.27 % 65,905,200 30,548,040 46.35 %
Ethanol Fuels Tax 9,791,000 9,886,502 1,657,743 0 95,502 0.98 % 18,300,000 8,413,498 45.98 %

TOTAL TRANSFERS-IN: 152,422,510 155,967,453 28,189,406 0 3,544,943 2.33 % 295,649,300 139,681,847 47.25 %
TOTAL REV AND
TRANSFERS-IN: 406,447,050 362,377,623 61,971,000 0 (44,069,427) -10.84% 826,493,650 464,116,027 56.15 %

Idaho Transportation Department
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET TO ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR TO DATE - FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 12/31/2018

363



User ID: kbentley
Report ID: AD-FN-GL-003 
Run Date: 07 Jan 2019
% of Time
Remaining: 50.0

Fiscal Year: 2019

Fund: 0260 State Highway Fund

Fiscal Year: 2019

Year to
Date

Allotment

Year to
Date Actual

Current
Month
Activity

Year to Date
Encumbrance

Variance
Favorable /
Unfavorable

Percent
Variance

Annual
Appropriation

Appropriation
Balance

Percent
Remaining

Budget Fiscal Year:    2019 (A) (B) (C) (D) (E = A - B - D) (F = E / A) (G) (H = G - B - D) (I = H / G)
EXPENDITURES

Operations Expense
Permanent Staff Salaries 43,866,887 39,521,998 6,099,303 0 4,344,889 9.90 % 87,984,833 48,462,835 55.08 %
Board, Hourly, OT, Shift Diff 507,080 437,450 115,616 0 69,630 13.73 % 1,404,690 967,240 68.86 %
Fringe Benefits 18,350,689 16,296,942 1,443,465 0 2,053,747 11.19 % 40,595,377 24,298,435 59.86 %
In State Travel Expense 751,842 783,922 83,575 0 (32,080) -4.27% 1,500,789 716,867 47.77 %
Out of State Travel Expense 211,978 223,491 20,585 0 (11,513) -5.43% 350,480 126,989 36.23 %
Technology Operating Expense 19,232,060 7,829,101 1,591,916 8,097,073 3,305,886 17.19 % 28,583,546 12,657,372 44.28 %
Operating Expense 30,761,041 27,521,226 4,554,683 6,920,789 (3,680,974) -11.97% 59,465,884 25,023,869 42.08 %
Technology Equipment Expense 1,898,700 488,886 97,890 411,227 998,587 52.59 % 2,307,300 1,407,187 60.99 %
Capital Equipment Expense 17,875,400 6,900,167 1,700,834 2,920,614 8,054,618 45.06 % 20,774,700 10,953,918 52.73 %
Capital Facilities Expense 1,829,500 1,783,787 615,595 835,115 (789,401) -43.15% 3,594,500 975,599 27.14 %
Capital Projects 0 9,168 9,168 2,832 (12,000) 0.00 % 0 (12,000) 0.00 %
Trustee & Benefit Payments 6,524,572 7,972,105 1,293,120 0 (1,447,533) -22.19% 17,657,000 9,684,895 54.85 %

Total Operations Expense: 141,809,749 109,768,243 17,625,750 19,187,650 12,853,856 9.06 % 264,219,099 135,263,206 51.19 %
Contract Construction

Technology Operating Expense 0 1,076,396 112,795 709,968 (1,786,364) 0.00 % 0 (1,786,364) 0.00 %
Operating Expense 4,697,800 1,089,896 255,092 241,110 3,366,794 71.67 % 11,900,795 10,569,789 88.82 %
Capital Projects 331,336,825 286,428,979 32,921,253 3,759,279 41,148,568 12.42 % 716,740,916 426,552,659 59.51 %
Trustee & Benefit Payments 1,529,500 472,303 84,629 0 1,057,197 69.12 % 4,933,796 4,461,492 90.43 %

Total Contract Construction: 337,564,125 289,067,574 33,373,769 4,710,357 43,786,195 12.97 % 733,575,507 439,797,576 59.95 %
TOTAL EXPENDITURES: 479,373,874 398,835,816 50,999,519 23,898,007 56,640,051 11.82 % 997,794,606 575,060,782 57.63 %
TRANSFERS OUT

Statutory 25,000 25,000 0 0 0 0.00 % 25,000 0 0.00 %
Operating 10,879,519 10,902,512 10,902,512 0 (22,993) -0.21% 53,200,467 42,297,955 79.51 %

TOTAL TRANSFERS OUT: 10,904,519 10,927,512 10,902,512 0 (22,993) -0.21% 53,225,467 42,297,955 79.47 %
TOTAL EXPD AND
TRANSFERS OUT: 490,278,393 409,763,328 61,902,030 23,898,007 56,617,058 11.55 % 1,051,020,073 617,358,737 58.74 %

Net for Fiscal Year 2019: (83,831,343) (47,385,705) 68,970 12,547,631 (224,526,423) (153,242,710)

Idaho Transportation Department
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET TO ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR TO DATE - FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 12/31/2018

364



User ID: kbentley
Report ID: AD-FN-GL-003 
Run Date: 07 Jan 2019
% of Time
Remaining: 50.0

Fiscal Year: 2019

Fund: 0260 State Highway Fund

Fiscal Year: 2019
Year to Date

Allotment
Year to Date

Actual
Current
Month
Activity

Year to Date
Encumbrance

Variance
Favorable /
Unfavorable

Percent
Variance

Annual
Appropriation

Appropriation
Balance

Percent
Remaining

Budget Fiscal Year:    2019 (A) (B) (C) (D) (E = A - B - D) (F = E / A) (G) (H = G - B - D) (I = H / G)
Contract Construction
Operating Expenditures

COperating Expenditures Dedicated 404,900 168,024 30,151 64,764 172,112 42.51 % 2,880,951 2,648,163 91.92 %
Operating Expenditures Federal 4,253,100 1,987,345 337,634 886,314 1,379,441 32.43 % 8,634,510 5,760,851 66.72 %
Operating Expenditures Local 39,800 10,923 102 0 28,877 72.55 % 385,334 374,411 97.17 %

Total Operating Expenditures 4,697,800 2,166,292 367,887 951,078 1,580,430 33.64 % 11,900,795 8,783,425 73.81 %
Capital Outlay
Capital Outlay Dedicated 123,826,863 117,602,616 13,647,423 1,252,359 4,971,888 4.02 % 268,453,059 149,598,085 55.73 %
Capital Outlay Federal 174,954,844 142,328,923 16,138,398 2,506,919 30,119,002 17.22 % 377,498,319 232,662,477 61.63 %
Capital Outlay FICR 19,886,718 20,867,486 2,074,226 0 (980,768) -4.93% 43,242,712 22,375,226 51.74 %
Capital Outlay Local 12,668,400 5,629,954 1,061,207 0 7,038,446 55.56 % 27,546,826 21,916,872 79.56 %

Total Capital Outlay 331,336,825 286,428,979 32,921,253 3,759,279 41,148,568 12.42 % 716,740,916 426,552,659 59.51 %
Trustee & Benefit Payments
Trustee & Benefit Payments Dedicated 195,100 (1,695) 0 0 196,795 100.87 % 882,835 884,530 100.19 %
Trustee & Benefit Payments Federal 1,311,300 473,998 84,629 0 837,302 63.85 % 3,439,790 2,965,792 86.22 %
Trustee & Benefit Payments Local 23,100 0 0 0 23,100 100.00 % 611,171 611,171 100.00 %

Total Trustee & Benefit Payments 1,529,500 472,303 84,629 0 1,057,197 69.12 % 4,933,796 4,461,492 90.43 %
Total Contract Construction: 337,564,125 289,067,574 33,373,769 4,710,357 43,786,194 12.97 % 733,575,507 439,797,577 59.95 %

Idaho Transportation Department
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET TO ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR TO DATE - FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 12/31/2018

365



User ID: kbentley
Report ID: AD-FN-GL-003 
Run Date: 07 Jan 2019
% of Time
Remaining: 50.0

Fiscal Year: 2019

Fund: 0269 Transportation Expansion and Congestion Mitigation Fund

Fiscal Year: 2019

Year to
Date

Allotment

Year to
Date Actual

Current
Month
Activity

Year to Date
Encumbrance

Variance
Favorable /
Unfavorable

Percent
Variance

Annual
Appropriation

Appropriation
Balance

Percent
Remaining

Budget Fiscal Year:    2019 (A) (B) (C) (D) (E = A - B - D) (F = E / A) (G) (H = G - B - D) (I = H / G)
REVENUES

Miscellaneous Revenues 35,400 260,898 61,424 0 225,498 637.00 % 71,000 (189,898) -267.46%
TOTAL REVENUES: 35,400 260,898 61,424 0 225,498 637.00 % 71,000 (189,898) -267.46%
TRANSFERS-IN

Cigarette Tax 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 % 2,824,000 2,824,000 100.00 %
Sales Tax 8,140,400 8,625,266 1,348,595 0 484,866 5.96 % 16,477,000 7,851,734 47.65 %

TOTAL TRANSFERS-IN: 8,140,400 8,625,266 1,348,595 0 484,866 5.96 % 19,301,000 10,675,734 55.31 %
TOTAL REV AND
TRANSFERS-IN: 8,175,800 8,886,164 1,410,019 0 710,364 8.69 % 19,372,000 10,485,836 54.13 %

EXPENDITURES
Contract Construction - Capital
Projects 14,782,400 550,114 3,146 0 14,232,286 96.28 % 37,967,477 37,417,362 98.55 %

TOTAL EXPENDITURES: 14,782,400 550,114 3,146 0 14,232,286 96.28 % 37,967,477 37,417,362 98.55 %
TOTAL EXPD AND
TRANSFERS OUT: 14,782,400 550,114 3,146 0 14,232,286 96.28 % 37,967,477 37,417,362 98.55 %

Net for Fiscal Year 2019: (6,606,600) 8,336,050 1,406,873 14,942,650 (18,595,477) (26,931,526)

Idaho Transportation Department
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET TO ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR TO DATE - FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 12/31/2018

366



User ID: kbentley
Report ID: AD-FN-GL-003 
Run Date: 07 Jan 2019
% of Time
Remaining: 50.0

Fiscal Year: 2019

Fund: 0270 Strategic Initiatives Program Fund (State 60%)

Fiscal Year: 2019

Year to
Date

Allotment

Year to
Date Actual

Current
Month
Activity

Year to Date
Encumbrance

Variance
Favorable /
Unfavorable

Percent
Variance

Annual
Appropriation

Appropriation
Balance

Percent
Remaining

Budget Fiscal Year:    2019 (A) (B) (C) (D) (E = A - B - D) (F = E / A) (G) (H = G - B - D) (I = H / G)
REVENUES

State Sources - Miscellaneous
Revenues 380,700 542,272 118,863 0 161,572 42.44 % 741,200 198,928 26.84 %

TOTAL REVENUES: 380,700 542,272 118,863 0 161,572 42.44 % 741,200 198,928 26.84 %
TRANSFERS-IN

Statutory 36,177,825 60,296,374 0 0 24,118,549 66.67 % 36,177,825 (24,118,549) -66.67%
TOTAL TRANSFERS-IN: 36,177,825 60,296,374 0 0 24,118,549 66.67 % 36,177,825 (24,118,549) -66.67%
TOTAL REV AND
TRANSFERS-IN: 36,558,525 60,838,646 118,863 0 24,280,121 66.41 % 36,919,025 (23,919,621) -64.79%

EXPENDITURES
Contract Construction - Capital
Projects 24,762,222 9,997,937 1,554,463 0 14,764,285 59.62 % 24,762,222 14,764,285 59.62 %

TOTAL EXPENDITURES: 24,762,222 9,997,937 1,554,463 0 14,764,285 59.62 % 24,762,222 14,764,285 59.62 %
TRANSFERS OUT

Operating 0 24,118,550 0 0 (24,118,550) 0.00 % 0 (24,118,550) 0.00 %
TOTAL TRANSFERS OUT: 0 24,118,550 0 0 (24,118,550) 0.00 % 0 (24,118,550) 0.00 %
TOTAL EXPD AND
TRANSFERS OUT: 24,762,222 34,116,487 1,554,463 0 (9,354,265) -37.78% 24,762,222 (9,354,265) -37.78%

Net for Fiscal Year 2019: 11,796,303 26,722,159 (1,435,599) 14,925,856 12,156,803 (14,565,356)

Idaho Transportation Department
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET TO ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR TO DATE - FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 12/31/2018

367



User ID: kbentley
Report ID: AD-FN-GL-003 
Run Date: 07 Jan 2019
% of Time
Remaining: 50.0

Fiscal Year: 2019

Fund: 0270 Strategic Initiatives Program Fund (LHTAC-Local 40%)

Fiscal Year: 2019

Year to
Date

Allotment

Year to
Date Actual

Current
Month
Activity

Year to Date
Encumbrance

Variance
Favorable /
Unfavorable

Percent
Variance

Annual
Appropriation

Appropriation
Balance

Percent
Remaining

Budget Fiscal Year:    2019 (A) (B) (C) (D) (E = A - B - D) (F = E / A) (G) (H = G - B - D) (I = H / G)
REVENUES

State Sources - Miscellaneous
Revenues 253,800 201,630 52,537 0 (52,170) -20.56% 325,900 124,270 38.13 %

TOTAL REVENUES: 253,800 201,630 52,537 0 (52,170) -20.56% 325,900 124,270 38.13 %
TRANSFERS-IN

Statutory 24,118,550 24,118,550 0 0 0 0.00 % 24,118,550 0 0.00 %
TOTAL TRANSFERS-IN: 24,118,550 24,118,550 0 0 0 0.00 % 24,118,550 0 0.00 %
TOTAL REV AND
TRANSFERS-IN: 24,372,350 24,320,180 52,537 0 (52,170) -0.21% 24,444,450 124,270 0.51 %

Net for Fiscal Year 2019: 24,372,350 24,320,180 52,537 (52,170) 24,444,450 124,270

Idaho Transportation Department
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET TO ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR TO DATE - FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 12/31/2018

368



User ID: kbentley
Report ID: AD-FN-GL-003 
Run Date: 07 Jan 2019
% of Time
Remaining: 50.0

Fiscal Year: 2019

Fund: 0375 GARVEE Debt Service Fund

Fiscal Year: 2019

Year to
Date

Allotment

Year to
Date Actual

Current
Month
Activity

Year to Date
Encumbrance

Variance
Favorable /
Unfavorable

Percent
Variance

Annual
Appropriation

Appropriation
Balance

Percent
Remaining

Budget Fiscal Year:    2019 (A) (B) (C) (D) (E = A - B - D) (F = E / A) (G) (H = G - B - D) (I = H / G)
REVENUES

State Sources - Miscellaneous
Revenues 0 52,737 9,850 0 52,737 0.00 % 0 (52,737) 0.00 %

TOTAL REVENUES: 0 52,737 9,850 0 52,737 0.00 % 0 (52,737) 0.00 %
TRANSFERS-IN

Operating 0 15,602,512 10,902,512 0 15,602,512 0.00 % 0 (15,602,512) 0.00 %
TOTAL TRANSFERS-IN: 0 15,602,512 10,902,512 0 15,602,512 0.00 % 0 (15,602,512) 0.00 %
TOTAL REV AND
TRANSFERS-IN: 0 15,655,249 10,912,362 0 15,655,249 0.00 % 0 (15,655,249) 0.00 %

EXPENDITURES
Bond Principal / Interest 0 43,616,234 370,859 0 (43,616,234) 0.00 % 0 (43,616,234) 0.00 %

TOTAL EXPENDITURES: 0 43,616,234 370,859 0 (43,616,234) 0.00 % 0 (43,616,234) 0.00 %
TOTAL EXPD AND
TRANSFERS OUT: 0 43,616,234 370,859 0 (43,616,234) 0.00 % 0 (43,616,234) 0.00 %

Net for Fiscal Year 2019: 0 (27,960,985) 10,541,502 (27,960,985) 0 27,960,985

Idaho Transportation Department
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET TO ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR TO DATE - FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 12/31/2018

369



User ID: kbentley
Report ID: AD-FN-GL-003 
Run Date: 07 Jan 2019
% of Time
Remaining: 50.0

Fiscal Year: 2019

Fund: 0221 State Aeronautics Fund

Fiscal Year: 2019

Year to
Date

Allotment

Year to
Date Actual

Current
Month
Activity

Year to Date
Encumbrance

Variance
Favorable /
Unfavorable

Percent
Variance

Annual
Appropriation

Appropriation
Balance

Percent
Remaining

Budget Fiscal Year:    2019 (A) (B) (C) (D) (E = A - B - D) (F = E / A) (G) (H = G - B - D) (I = H / G)
REVENUES

Federal Sources - FAA 389,100 202,264 92,181 0 (186,836) -48.02% 666,000 463,736 69.63 %
State Sources - Miscellaneous
Revenues 123,174 72,656 11,464 0 (50,518) -41.01% 330,500 257,844 78.02 %

Interagency Sources -
Miscellaneous Revenues 131,700 127,489 (0) 0 (4,211) -3.20% 250,000 122,511 49.00 %

TOTAL REVENUES: 643,974 402,410 103,645 0 (241,565) -37.51% 1,246,500 844,091 67.72 %
TRANSFERS-IN

Operating 1,251,600 1,581,920 207,434 0 330,320 26.39 % 2,150,000 568,080 26.42 %
TOTAL TRANSFERS-IN: 1,251,600 1,581,920 207,434 0 330,320 26.39 % 2,150,000 568,080 26.42 %
TOTAL REV AND
TRANSFERS-IN: 1,895,574 1,984,330 311,079 0 88,755 4.68 % 3,396,500 1,412,171 41.58 %

EXPENDITURES
Permanent Staff Salaries 386,397 350,487 54,240 0 35,910 9.29 % 773,094 422,607 54.66 %
Board, Hourly, OT, Shift Diff 37,400 54,672 2,243 0 (17,272) -46.18% 56,500 1,828 3.24 %
Fringe Benefits 157,886 146,460 12,467 0 11,426 7.24 % 344,706 198,246 57.51 %
In State Travel Expense 36,831 35,990 17,129 0 841 2.28 % 67,904 31,914 47.00 %
Out of State Travel Expense 10,392 9,369 2,490 0 1,023 9.84 % 17,800 8,431 47.37 %
Technology Operating Expense 18,254 12,775 1,989 272 5,207 28.53 % 40,780 27,733 68.01 %
Operating Expense 350,228 181,099 40,046 164,053 5,076 1.45 % 1,137,216 792,064 69.65 %
Technology Equipment Expense 4,599 5,994 0 0 (1,395) -30.33% 5,200 (794) -15.27%
Capital Equipment Expense 585,500 523,000 523,000 0 62,500 10.67 % 587,500 64,500 10.98 %
Capital Facilities Expense 478 478 0 0 0 0.00 % 260,000 259,522 99.82 %
Trustee & Benefit Payments 230,500 458,074 315,042 0 (227,574) -98.73% 1,658,549 1,200,476 72.38 %

TOTAL EXPENDITURES: 1,818,465 1,778,397 968,645 164,325 (124,258) -6.83% 4,949,249 3,006,527 60.75 %
TOTAL EXPD AND
TRANSFERS OUT: 1,818,465 1,778,397 968,645 164,325 (124,258) -6.83% 4,949,249 3,006,527 60.75 %

Net for Fiscal Year 2019: 77,109 205,933 (657,566) (35,503) (1,552,749) (1,594,356)

Idaho Transportation Department
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET TO ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR TO DATE - FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 12/31/2018

370



ITD Board Mid‐Year 
Financial Report
July 2018 – December 2018

Fiscal Year 2019

1

FY19  YTD Revenue Trends Actual vs. Forecast 
State Highway Fund

2

371



FY19
YTD HDA to State Highway Fund Trend

3

FY19 YTD Expenditure Trend
State Highway Fund

4

372



Strategic Initiatives Program Fund

• June 30, 2018 Balance = $25,039,200
• Transfer In = $36,177,800
• Interest Revenue = $     542,300
• Expenditures in FY19 = ‐$ 9,997,900
• Dec. 31, 2018 Balance = $51,761,400

• FY 18 Balance Transfer In = $60,296,374
– ITD 60% = $36,177,824
– Local 40% = $24,118,550

5

FY19 YTD Revenue Trends Actual vs. Forecast 
State Aeronautics Fund 

6

373



FY 19 YTD Expenditure Trend
State Aeronautics Fund

7

Transportation Expansion and 
Congestion Mitigation Fund

• Balance June 30, 2018 = $22,689,700
• Interest Revenue = $      260,900
• Expenditures YTD FY19 = $     ‐550,100
• Transfers in from Sales Tax = $   8,625,200
• Dec. 31, 2018 Balance = $31,025,700

Idaho Transportation Board has dedicated the 
first two years to the I‐84 Corridor 

8

374



FY18 Audit Update

• One Audit Finding
– Closing package submitted to the State
Controller’s Office did not include some
construction contract payables due to a reporting
error.

9

GARVEE

• First bond series under new $300M approval
– Sell bonds in April (Prior to Fed Reserve meeting)
– Close in May (funds are available)

• Estimated size is approx. $140M
• Bonds issued to retain maximum flexibility for
future issues & federal uncertainty

• Resolution in March for Board authorization
• March ‐ Rating Agencies meetings in NY

10

375



Questions??

11

376



Board Agenda Item ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13)

Page 1 of 2 

Meeting Date February 21, 2019 

Consent Item Information Item Amount of Presentation Time Needed  10 minutes 

Presenter's Name Presenter's Title Initials Reviewed By 

LSS Joel Drake Financial Mgr., FP&A JD 
Preparer's Name Preparer's Title Initials 

Nathan Hesterman Sr. Planner - Programming ndh 

Subject 
Monthly Reporting of Federal Formula Program Funding Through January 

Background Information 

Idaho received obligation authority through February 15th via a Continuing Resolution (CR) signed on 
January 25, 2019.  Obligation Authority (OA) through February 15th (138/365ths) is $116.4 million which 
corresponds to $116.0 million with match after a reduction for prorated indirect costs.  This includes $11.7 
million of Highway Infrastructure General Funds carried over from last year. 

Idaho has received apportionments via notices through January 31, 2019 of $320.4 million which includes 
Redistribution of Certain Authorized Funds and Highway Infrastructure General Funds carried over from 
last year.  Currently, obligation authority is 36.3% of apportionments. 

The exhibits on the following page summarize these amounts and show allotments and remaining funds 
by program through January 31, 2019. 

Provision within the FAST Act  -  Release of Full-Year OA, subject to Subsequent CRs 

When both a Continuing Resolution (CR) and federal Appropriation are lacking, FHWA releases full-year 
Obligation Authority (OA) to the States.  The full-year release is then subject to OA limits created by any 
subsequent CRs, reducing full-year OA to the limit carried under the active CR. 

January 8th -  FHWA notified the department that the FAST Act provision was triggered on December 21st 
and released full-year OA to Idaho. 

As a result of the notice, the department polled the Locals on January 16th and collected their projected 
obligation amounts through February.   Based on that information, assessment of the risk posed by 
continued parsing of current year OA through subsequent CRs, and the department’s ability to advance 
construct (AC) in advance of full-year appropriation, the department allocated full-year OA at 90.03% to 
the Locals to obligate against.  This helps insulate Locals from erratic OA amounts created by the 
current, unique funding environment so they can proceed with scheduled project plans and obligations. 

January 25th  - Congress passed a subsequent CR active through Feb 15th, which reduced available OA 
to 36.3% (138/365ths) of full-year obligation authority. 

Recommendations 
For Information 

Board Action 

 Approved  Deferred 

 Other 

377



Board Agenda Item ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13)

Page 2 of 2 

Exhibit One 
Actual Formula Funding for FY2019 

Per FAST Tables – Total Year 
Federal Aid Only $320,716 
Including Match $344,374 

Per Apportionments – Total Year 
Federal Aid Only $320,367 
Including Match $344,000 

Obligation Limits through 2/15/2019 
Federal Aid Only $116,357 
Less prorated $25M indirect costs w/Match $115,998 

Notes: 1. All dollars in Thousands 
2. ‘Approved Program’ amounts from the FY 2019 Board

Approved Program (Sky Blue Book).
3. Apportionment and Obligation Authority amounts reflect

available funds via federal notices received through
January 31, 2019.

Exhibit Two 
Allotments of Available Formula Funding through February 15, 2019 

Program Allotted Total  
Program Funding 

Total Program Funding 
Remaining 

All Other SHS Programs $84,163 $60,856 

GARVEE Formula Debt Service* $10,000 ($1,791) 

State Planning and Research* $2,611  $1,328 

Metropolitan Planning* $700   $0 

Railroad Crossings $730 $845 

Transportation Alternatives (Urban/Rural) $1,322 $94 

Recreational Trails $574 $571 

STBG - Local Urban $2,923 $1,997 

STBG - Transportation Mgt. Area $3,522 $3,130 

Transportation Alternatives (TMA) $161 ($167) 

STBG – Local Rural $4,802 $4,558 

Local Bridge $1,827   ($3,566) 

Off System Bridge $1,370 $1,599 

Local HSIP $1,291 $989 

Total  (excluding indirect costs) $115,998 $70,445 

Notes: 
1. All dollars in Thousands.
2. Allotments based on the FY 2019 Board Approved Program (Sky Blue Book).
3. Funding amounts include match and reflect total formula funding available (excluding indirect costs).
4. Data reflects both obligation and de-obligation activity (excluding indirect costs) as of January 31st.
5. Advanced construction conversions of $106.4 million are outstanding for FY 2019.
* These programs are provided 100% Obligation Authority.  Other programs are reduced accordingly.

Does not yet include $207k payback from TAP to state and $2,500k payback from Local Bridge to state

378



Board Agenda Item ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13)

Page 1 of 1 

Meeting Date 2/21/19 

Consent Item  Information Item Amount of Presentation Time Needed  15 MIN 

Presenter's Name Presenter's Title Initials Reviewed By 

LSS Neal Murphy Emergency Management Planner NPM 
Preparer's Name Preparer's Title Initials 

Neal Murphy Emergency Management Planner NPM 

Subject 
Emergency Management Program 
Key Number District Route Number 

9 

Background Information 
Brief the board on progress to ITD Emergency Preparedness including: 

Active shooter exercise, Sandy Hook Briefing, Brown bag with ITD employee who survived one 
Working with Safety for Automated external defibrillator, Stop the Bleed, and emergency procedures 
training 
New ITD Standard Emergency procedures book and display 
ITD Emergency Operations center - beginning stages 
Facility Security 
District 1 
District 3/ HHQ 
Lobby 

State wide County and city Emergency managers and Idaho Office of Emergency Management  point of 
contact 

Briefed State Emergency managers in February 

State Wide Disaster Exercise March 2019 

Idaho Point of Contact for Traffic Incident Management - safety of all incident responders 

Recommendations 
For information. 

Board Action 

 Approved  Deferred 

 Other 

379


	129K 2210
	129k Comments
	129K Resolution
	129K Supplemental 201801SH55-App
	129K Supplemental 201801SH55-Eval
	129K Supplemental 201802SH69-App
	129K Supplemental 201802SH69-Eval
	129K Supplemental 201803US93-App
	129K Supplemental 201803US93-Eval
	Administrative Policy 5070 2210
	Administrative Policy 5070 Legislative Format
	Administrative Policy 5070 Signature Ready
	Aero Lease Board Item for Feb 21
	Aero Lease Draft Boise Airport Ground Building lease ITD 1.17.2019 clean
	“Hazardous Materials” will mean any material, substance or waste that is or has the characteristic of being hazardous, toxic, ignitable, reactive or corrosive, including, without limitation, petroleum, PCBs, asbestos, materials known to cause cancer o...
	a. Use. Lessee hereby agrees that Lessee and Lessee’s officers, directors, employees, representatives, agents, contractors, subcontractors, successors, assigns, lessees, sublessees, concessionaires, invitees and any other occupants of the Premises (fo...
	b. Remediation. If at any time during the Term any contamination of the Premises by Hazardous Materials occurs where the contamination is caused by the act or omission of Lessee or Lessee’s Representatives (“Lessee Contamination”), then Lessee, at its...
	c. Disposition of Hazardous Materials. Except as discharged into the sanitary sewer or otherwise removed from the Premises in strict accordance and conformity with all applicable Hazardous Materials Laws, Lessee will cause any and all Hazardous Materi...

	9.03 Notice of Hazardous Materials Matters . Each party (for purposes of this Section, “Notifying Party”) will immediately notify the other party (the “Notice Recipient”) in writing of: (a) any enforcement, clean-up, removal or other governmental or ...
	9.04 Environmental Indemnification. Subject to limitations hereinafter set forth, Lessee shall indemnify, defend and save harmless Lessor from and against any and all demands, claims or liabilities caused by or arising out of any negligent acts by the...

	Aero Lease ITD Term Sheet Exhibit A
	Aero Lease preliminary plans 1600 W Gowen Road
	Aero Lease Term Sheet - ITD Div of Aeronautics 12.17.18 clean
	Board Approval of Consultant Agreements
	February Cover
	February 2019 Over $1M
	KN12098 February 2019
	KN 22154 February 2019
	KN 19431 February 2019
	KN 20486 February 2019
	KN 19052 February 2019
	KN 01004 February 2019
	KN 20788 February 2019


	Board Approval of Contracts for Award 2210
	Board Approval of Contracts for Award Packet
	BSM Contracts 2210
	Child Pedestrian Safety Program 2019
	Child Pedestrain Safety Program 2019
	Child Ped 2019

	Contract Awards and Advertisements 2210
	Contract Awards and Advertisements Packet
	Emergency Preparedness 2210
	Financials Board Item
	Financials Board Packet
	AD-FN-GL-010 Summary of Receipts and Disbursements2019-01-07-06-38-14
	Receipts and Disbursements Board

	GRAPHS December FY19
	Bd Graph 1 (RTA)
	Bd Graph 2
	Bd Graph 3 (RTA)
	Bd Graph 4

	AD-FN-GL-002 Operating Fund Balance Sheet2019-01-07-06-05-08
	Balance Sheet
	Balance Sheet 0270

	AD-FN-GL-003 Statement of Revenues and Expenditures2019-01-07-06-08-08
	0221 Statement of Revenues and Expenditures
	0260 Statement of Revenues and Expenditures
	Contract Construction Statement of Revenues and Expenditures
	0269 Statement of Revenues and Expenditures
	0270 Statement of Revenues and Expenditures
	0375 Statement of Revenues and Expenditures


	Financials Mid-Year Report
	Keller Associates Extension 020719 2210
	LHRIP 2019 2210
	LHRIP 2019 ITD 2210
	LRHIP Board FY2018 Presentation

	Long-Range Transportation Plan 2210
	Long-Range Transportation Plan Draft
	MonthlyFederalFormulaStatus
	Professional Services Agreements and Term Agreement Work Tasks
	State Owned Dwellings Board Item 2210
	State Owned Dwellings Feb 2019
	Detail Sheet

	State Owned Dwellings Summary
	min2019^01.pdf
	REGULAR MEETING OF THE IDAHO TRANSPORTATION BOARD
	January 17, 2019
	WHEREAS, the project is to be designed and constructed beginning in FY19 under the STAR Agreement; and
	WHEREAS, adjustments to the intersection of Black Cat Road and US-20/26 are in the interest of all parties and will reduce the amount of right-of-way needed for construction while still maintaining the original intent of the agreement; and
	WHEREAS, any amendments to the agreement with the Department will be reviewed by the Idaho Transportation Board.
	WHEREAS, any such agreements with the Department will be reviewed by the Board; and
	WHEREAS, the project is to be designed and constructed beginning in FY20 under the STAR Agreement.
	JERRY WHITEHEAD, Chairman
	Read and Approved

	February2019agenda.pdf
	Idaho Transportation Department                                       #
	Idaho Transportation Department                                       #
	PERSONNEL ISSUES [SECTION 74-206(a), (b)]


	Blank Page
	February2019agenda.pdf
	Idaho Transportation Department                                       #
	Idaho Transportation Department                                       #
	PERSONNEL ISSUES [SECTION 74-206(a), (b)]


	Airport lease.pdf
	“Hazardous Materials” will mean any material, substance or waste that is or has the characteristic of being hazardous, toxic, ignitable, reactive or corrosive, including, without limitation, petroleum, PCBs, asbestos, materials known to cause cancer o...
	a. Use. Lessee hereby agrees that Lessee and Lessee’s officers, directors, employees, representatives, agents, contractors, subcontractors, successors, assigns, lessees, sublessees, concessionaires, invitees and any other occupants of the Premises (fo...
	b. Remediation. If at any time during the Term any contamination of the Premises by Hazardous Materials occurs where the contamination is caused by the act or omission of Lessee or Lessee’s Representatives (“Lessee Contamination”), then Lessee, at its...
	c. Disposition of Hazardous Materials. Except as discharged into the sanitary sewer or otherwise removed from the Premises in strict accordance and conformity with all applicable Hazardous Materials Laws, Lessee will cause any and all Hazardous Materi...

	9.03 Notice of Hazardous Materials Matters . Each party (for purposes of this Section, “Notifying Party”) will immediately notify the other party (the “Notice Recipient”) in writing of: (a) any enforcement, clean-up, removal or other governmental or ...
	9.04 Environmental Indemnification. Subject to limitations hereinafter set forth, Lessee shall indemnify, defend and save harmless Lessor from and against any and all demands, claims or liabilities caused by or arising out of any negligent acts by the...

	February2019agenda.pdf
	Idaho Transportation Department                                       #
	Idaho Transportation Department                                       #
	PERSONNEL ISSUES [SECTION 74-206(a), (b)]


	Agenda page 1.pdf
	Idaho Transportation Department                                       #
	Idaho Transportation Department                                       #
	PERSONNEL ISSUES [SECTION 74-206(a), (b)]


	Child Pedestrian Safety Program 2019.pdf
	Child Pedestrain Safety Program 2019
	Child Ped 2019

	February2019agenda.pdf
	Idaho Transportation Department                                       #
	Idaho Transportation Department                                       #
	PERSONNEL ISSUES [SECTION 74-206(a), (b)]


	Child Pedestrian Safety Program 2019.pdf
	Child Pedestrain Safety Program 2019
	Child Ped 2019

	LONG-RANGE PLAN.pdf
	Introduction:  Strategic Planning
	Section 1: FAST Act Applicable Section(s) for the LRTP
	Section 2: Federal and/or State Reference
	Section 3:   ITD Board or Administrative Policies
	Section 4:   MOU or Service Agreements
	Section 5: Stakeholders and Partners
	Section 6: Process
	Section 7: Recommendations and Implementation
	Section 8: Helpful Resources
	Introduction:  Transportation Performance Planning
	Section 1: FAST Act Applicable Section(s) for the LRTP
	Section 2: Federal and/or State Reference
	Section 3:   ITD Board or Administrative Policies
	Section 4:   MOU or Service Agreements
	Section 5: Stakeholders and Partners
	Section 6: Process
	Section 7: Recommendations and Implementation
	Section 8: Helpful Resources
	Introduction:  Statewide Transportation Planning
	Long-Range Goals and Objectives
	INVESTMENT STRATEGIES
	MANAGEMENT PRINCIPLES

	Section 1: FAST Act Applicable Section(s) for the LRTP
	Section 2: Federal and/or State Reference
	Section 3:   ITD Board or Administrative Policies
	Section 4:   MOU or Service Agreements
	Section 5: Stakeholders and Partners
	Section 6: Process
	Idaho Transportation Department
	Modal Planning & Process

	Section 7: Recommendations and Implementation
	Section 8: Helpful Resources
	Introduction:  Public Involvement
	GOAL 1: EDUCATE AND PRESENT INFORMATION
	GOAL 2: SOLICIT PUBLIC INPUT
	GOAL 3: FACILITATE INFORMATION FLOW BETWEEN THE PUBLIC AND DECISION-MAKERS
	GOAL 4: CONSIDER PUBLIC CONCERNS IN DECISION-MAKING

	Section 1: FAST Act Applicable Section(s) for Public Involvement
	Section 2: Federal and/or State Reference
	Section 3:   ITD Board or Administrative Policies
	Section 4:   MOU or Service Agreements
	Section 5: Stakeholders
	Section 6: Public Involvement and Stakeholder Engagement Process
	Public Involvement Philosophy
	More Than a Meeting
	How Public Involvement Is Used at ITD

	Section 7: Recommendations and Implementation
	Section 8: Helpful Resources
	Introduction:  Metropolitan Planning Organizations in Idaho
	Section 1: FAST Act Applicable Section(s) for the LRTP
	Section 2: Federal and/or State Reference
	Section 3:   ITD Board or Administrative Policies
	Section 4:   MOU or Service Agreements
	Section 5: Stakeholders and Partners
	Section 6: Process
	Section 7: Recommendations and Implementation
	Section 8: Helpful Resources
	Introduction:  Local Highway Technical Assistance Council (LHTAC)
	Section 1: FAST Act Applicable Section(s) for the LRTP
	Section 2: Federal and/or State Reference
	Section 3:   ITD Board or Administrative Policies
	Section 4:   MOU or Service Agreements
	Section 5: Stakeholders and Partners
	Section 6: Process
	Section 7: Recommendations and Implementation
	Section 8: Helpful Resources
	Introduction:  Project Selection
	Section 1: FAST Act Applicable Section(s) for Project Selection
	Section 2: Federal and/or State Reference
	Section 3:   ITD Board or Administrative Policies
	Section 4:   MOU or Service Agreements
	Section 5: Stakeholders
	Section 6: Project Selection Process
	Section 7: Recommendations and Implementation
	Section 8: Helpful Resources
	Introduction:  Program Planning ITIP/STIP/TIP
	Section 1: FAST Act Applicable Section(s) for the LRTP
	Section 2: Federal and/or State Reference
	Section 3:   ITD Board or Administrative Policies
	Section 4:   MOU or Service Agreements
	Section 5: Stakeholders and Partners
	Section 6: Process
	Summary of the STIP Update Process
	Program Summaries
	The STIP Publication
	Mid-Year STIP Amendments and Administrative Modifications

	Section 7: Recommendations and Implementation
	Section 8: Helpful Resources
	Introduction:  Aeronautics Planning and Programming
	Section 1: FAST Act Applicable Section(s) for the LRTP
	Section 2: Federal and/or State Reference
	Section 3:   ITD Board or Administrative Policies
	Section 4:   MOU or Service Agreements
	Section 5: Stakeholders and Partners
	Section 6: Process
	Section 7: Recommendations and Implementation
	Section 8: Helpful Resources
	Introduction:  Air Quality
	Section 1: FAST Act Applicable Section(s) for the LRTP
	Section 2: Federal and/or State Reference
	Section 3:   ITD Board or Administrative Policies
	Section 4:   MOU or Service Agreements
	ITD/DEQ MOU – State Implementation Plan Development
	In June 2014, ITD and the Idaho Department of Environmental Quality signed a Memorandum of Understanding where ITD would fund EQ to provide air quality conformity and transportation modeling services including the development and maintenance of Idaho-...
	In March of 2010, EPA released a new mobile emissions model known as MOVES to replace the simplistic MOBILE6 vehicle emissions model. The new MOVES model requires more complex data inputs and databases that run in the background to support the modelin...
	The transition from MOBILE6 to MOVES greatly increased the technical expertise required to run the model, and dramatically increased the data input demands. Where MOBILE6 used season averages, MOVES now requires hourly data inputs by road segment. As ...
	ITD is responsible to assist IDEQ with the development and maintenance of the MOVES model.  Specifically:
	2. ITD and MPO conformity training, assistance & documentation. Specifically:
	ITD/MPO conformity assistance includes training and/or preparation of MOVES model conformity demonstrations as necessary until MPOs acquire a demonstrated capability to produce their own conformity demonstrations. This requires link-level integration ...
	MOU between MPOs and Tribes
	Establishes a cooperative effort among all parties to produce an approvable state implementation plan (SIP) for the Portneuf Valley PM10 Non-Attainment Area and to evaluate and amend, if necessary, the federal implementation plan (FIP) for the Fort Ha...
	Northwest Cooperative Agreement Environmental Streamlining and Interagency Cooperation on Environmental and Transportation Issues (http://www.deq.idaho.gov/media/562994-all_nw_cooperative_agreement_2000_174.pdf)
	The agencies agree to work cooperatively to promote "environmental streamlining" that will facilitate the timely delivery of quality transportation programs, protect and enhance environmental quality, and make effective and efficient use of agency res...
	Stakeholders: DEQ, ITD, IDWR, IDFG, State Historic Preservation Office, USDOT, BLM, USFS Regions 1 and 4, and others from WA and OR

	Section 5: Stakeholders and Partners
	Section 6: Process
	Section 7: Recommendations and Implementation
	Section 8: Helpful Resources
	Introduction:  Environmental Planning
	Section 1: FAST Act Applicable Section(s) for the LRTP
	Section 2: Federal and/or State Reference
	Section 3:   ITD Board or Administrative Policies
	Section 4:   MOU or Service Agreements
	Section 5: Stakeholders and Partners
	Section 6: Process
	Section 7: Recommendations and Implementation
	Section 8: Helpful Resources
	Introduction:  Geographic Information Systems
	Section 1: FAST Act Applicable Section(s) for the LRTP
	Section 2: Federal and/or State Reference
	Section 3:   ITD Board or Administrative Policies
	Section 4:   MOU or Service Agreements
	Section 5: Stakeholders and Partners
	Section 6: Process
	Section 7: Recommendations and Implementation
	Section 8: Helpful Resources
	Introduction:  System Adjustments
	Section 1: FAST Act Applicable Section(s) for the LRTP
	Section 2: Federal and/or State Reference
	Section 3:   ITD Board or Administrative Policies
	Section 4:   MOU or Service Agreements
	Section 5: Stakeholders and Partners
	Section 6: Process
	Section 7: Recommendations and Implementation
	Section 8: Helpful Resources
	Introduction:  Asset Management
	Section 1: FAST Act Applicable Section(s) for the LRTP
	Section 2: Federal and/or State Reference
	Section 3:   ITD Board or Administrative Policies
	Section 4:   MOU or Service Agreements
	Section 5: Stakeholders and Partners
	Section 6: Process
	Section 7: Recommendations and Implementation
	Section 8: Helpful Resources
	Introduction
	Survey Visits
	Priority Ranking
	Budget Allocation
	Tradeoffs
	Wrap Up
	Age
	Respondent County of Residence
	Survey respondents live in a variety of locations throughout the state. Based on the 463 responses that included home zip codes, most respondents live in Ada (41.9%) and Canyon (12.1%) Counties. Survey responses reflected participation from each ITD d...
	Figure 6 Survey Responses by County
	Primary Mode of Transportation
	Top Uses of Idaho Highways

	Comment Summary:
	The survey had 183 additional comments, either in free form or with some direction.  The comments are compiled into 13 categories for a response to each topic.
	List of Attachments (Final Electronic Version Only)




